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Executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Xianzhi
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Sfrom 20 January 2023)

Mr. LIU Weiliang
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Jfrom 20 _January 2023)

Mr. LI Yang
(appointed as chief executive officer with effect from 13 September 2022)
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Mr. WANG Chuanxu
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(vesigned with effect from 13 September 2022)
Mr. XIE Jun
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Mr. XIE Jun
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(resigned with effect from 13 September 2022)
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. CHEN Jian
(resigned with effect from 6 December 2022)
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Ms. KWONG Yin Ping, Yvonne (FCG, HKFCG)
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Mr. LIU Weiliang

(appointed with effect from 20 January 2023)
Mr. CHAN Wai Kin

(resigned with effect from 13 September 2022)
Ms. KWONG Yin Ping, Yvonne

(appointed with effect from 13 September 2022)

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
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TRANSFER AGENT

Woalkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
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Hong Kong
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”), I
hereby present to you the results and business review of Zhenro Properties
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 and its outlook for 2023.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue of the Group was
RMB25,895.5 million; the loss and the core loss(Note) (representing the
net loss excluding impacts from changes in fair values of investment
properties and financial assets, exchange gain or loss, gains or losses on
disposal of financial assets, impairment losses, gain on repurchase of senior
notes and the relevant deferred taxes) were RMB14,617.2 million and
RMB3,550.6 million, respectively; and the loss attributable to owners of
the parent was RMB12,877.0 million. The Board does not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022.

(Note: The Group believes that the presentation of core profit/loss, being a non-IFRS
measure, will facilitate the evaluation of financial performance of the Group by
excluding potential impact of certain non-operating and non-recurring items. Such
non-IFRS measure may be defined differently from similar terms used by other
companies. The Group’s presentation of this non-IFRS measure should not be
construed as an inference that the Group’s future results will be unaffected by these

items.)

MARKET AND BUSINESS REVIEW

2022 was an extraordinary year for the real estate industry in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The real estate industry faced continuous
and in-depth adjustments, compounded by the recurring novel coronavirus
(“COVID-19”) pandemic and other unexpected factors, resulting in
significant difficulties and challenges for real estate enterprises. Weak over-
all consumption demand and declining willingness to purchase houses led
to negative growth in the overall sales of real estate enterprises in 2022,

placing tremendous operating and capital pressures on them.

TECCOFER 6
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The Group’s operations and liquidity were significantly impacted by the
drastic changes in the external environment. Despite such complicated
backdrop and challenges, the Group was determined to forge ahead by
focusing on the two major tasks of “guaranteeing completion and ensuring
delivery” and delivered over 42,000 new housing units in 2022. The Group
was committed to stabilizing production and operations, rebuilding market
confidence and promoting a virtuous circle. To achieve this, the Group (i)
overcame unfavourable factors to ensure that projects progressed in an
orderly manner; (ii) insisted on the development of high-quality products
to meet customer needs; and (iii) conducted a series of activities, such as “Buy
with Confidence”, “Constructed with Quality+ Action” and “One-Stop
Housing Delivery Services”, to boost customer confidence and corporate
reputation. On the other hand, the Group has implemented a wide range of
liquidity management and cost-saving measures to address liquidity
concern, including seeking extensions and waivers regarding its financings,
seeking disposal of assets, accelerating sales and cash collection,
streamlining corporate structure, and reducing non-core business operations
and administrative expenses. In the second half of 2022, the Company
commenced the preparatory work for holistic management solutions for its
offshore indebtedness (the “Offshore Holistic Liability Management
Solutions”) with a view to reaching a viable consensual solution for the
benefit of its stakeholders.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead to 2023, the Group remains committed to stability,
dedicates itself to “ensuring delivery, improving quality, and preserving
value”, and will make every effort to ensure that its operations are
conducted in an orderly manner in order to achieve sustainable
development. As the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic gradually
diminishes and real estate support policies begin to take effect, it is
expected that the real estate market will stabilize and gradually recover.
The Group will seize the opportunity of the gradual recovery of the
economy and the real estate market by improving marketing efforts and

accelerating project sales to improve asset value recovery.

The Group will uphold the operating principles of “safety, health, and
sustainability”, strengthen financial risk management, optimize asset
structure and strictly control operating costs to ensure the Group’s financial
stability. Additionally, the Group will continue to improve product and
service quality to meet the housing needs of its customers. The Group will
also enhance its internal management system and build an efficient team to

establish a solid talent foundation for the Group’s sustainable development.
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irman’s Statement

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, I would like to express our sincere
appreciation to all shareholders, investors, business partners and customers
for their support, and all employees for their dedication and hard work.
The Company will continue to uphold our core value of “prosperity from
integrity” and achieve stable and sustainable development while bringing

value to shareholders, investors and other stakeholders of the Company.

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
LIU Weiliang
Chairman of the Board

Shanghai, PRC
31 March 2023
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
Contracted Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group, together with its joint
ventures and associated companies, recorded contracted sales of
RMB33,456.3 million, representing a 77.0% year-over-year decrease from
2021; total contracted gross floor area (“GFA”) sold amounted to
approximately 2.1 million sq.m., representing a 75.8% year-over-year
decrease from 2021. Contracted average selling price (“ASP”) for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was RMB15,718 per sq.m., whilst that for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was RMB16,545 per sq.m.. The following
table sets forth the geographic breakdown of the contracted sales of the

Group, together with its joint ventures and associated companies, in 2022.

HRIHE aRIEE R BRIME

S AT & i [ A

% of

Contracted Contracted Contracted Contracted

GFA Sold Sales ASP Sales

AR ¥~

Tk ARMETIG ok %

5q.m. RMB’000 RMB/sq.m. %

E=MAE Yangtze River Delta region 915,048 16,579,980 18,119 49.6

e PG 5 b [ Western Taiwan Straits region 559,622 7,982,458 14,264 23.9

IR 1 v Hb [ Bohai Rim region 229,952 3,426,022 14,899 10.2

e o i, [ Central China region 179,443 1,920,418 10,702 5.7

FE Y Hb [ Western China region 108,092 1,392,432 12,882 4.2

= A i e Pearl River Delta region 136,425 2,155,011 15,796 6.4

f Total 2,128,582 33,456,321 15,718 100.0
8 ESHESEE E_E’Dﬂ o

Zhenro Properties Group Limited



o 8 W 3 O i wl i 2k

HE_F__F+_H=Z+—HI:
S EYECHER IS A AR
257076 H B L s M E —_F - —F =
A=+—HIEFEMHANR¥365188H
BT Y 29.6% > E B R A2 AT 4L
B> RO TYENHEE TR BE
CECCEF A= HIEEES A
EEMHEYHECHERTIEEL AR
Me12183 00 Pk B E ZF - —4F
T A=+t —HIEFENAR¥11,614
IG5 K BN 4.99% > T EE R A R
B S B T RS AL A T
TR EL -

i ——C S 1 SN EYE ROk
SR M IE 5¢ B 5 0N ~ BN 7 ) OE 5
JRF ~ BB R IE ST - R IE SN
AIER N 5% 019 1E 26 RE RN BE 55 o 1 R T
A S5 T I R 30 T 4 S A e D 0
4 b [ WY A o

B
e 8 W
Recognized Revenue

from Sales of Properties

EEERmR D

T Discussion and Analysis

Revenue Recognized from Sales of Properties

Revenue recognized from sales of properties decreased by 29.6% from
RMB36,518.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
RMB25,707.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022, primarily
due to the decrease in GFA being delivered and the decline in sales of
completed properties. The Group’s recognized ASP from sales of properties
for the year ended 31 December 2022 was RMB12,183 per sq.m.,
representing a 4.9% increase from RMB11,614 per sq.m. for the year
ended 31 December 2021, primarily due to the increase in the proportion
of properties with higher selling price being delivered in 2022.

During the year of 2022, the properties delivered by the Group included
Quanzhou Zhenro Baojia Riverside Mansion, Zhangzhou Xihu Zhenro
Mansion, Chongqing Yuexi Zhenro Mansion, Nanjing Zhenro River
Mansion, Suzhou Midea Zhenro Spring Courtyard and others. The
following table sets forth the geographic breakdown of the revenue
recognized from sales of properties of the Group for the periods indicated.

LEREES R At e 2
W A 4 b A4 5 T
% of Recognized Revenue
Total GFA Delivered

from Sale of Properties Recognized ASP

CEROCNE ZECE DRI S SR SR E SRR E

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

ARWTL AR/

ARBFLE ANREFI % % VRS F 7k ik Tk

RMB’000 RMB’000 % % sq.m. sg.m. RMB/Sq.m. RMB/Sq.m.

REAILE Yangtze River Delta region 14,328,391 11,011,393 55.8 30.2 896,002 834,997 15,991 13,187
TR Western Taiwan Straits region 9,281,489 16,889,638 36.1 46.3 1,009,997 1,534,664 9,190 11,005
TR 1 i [ Bohai Rim region 1,763 742,632 0.0 2.0 930 79,891 1,897 9,296
e o b [ Central China region 233,879 5,776,197 0.9 15.8 33,283 557,075 7,027 10,369
G 1) [ Western China region 1,057,251 226,524 4.1 0.6 103,740 17,169 10,191 13,194
k= A R Pearl River Delta region 804,840 1,872,380 3.1 5.1 66,254 120,600 12,148 15,526
At Total 25,707,613 36,518,764 100.0 1000 2,110,206 3,144,396 12,183 11,614

—ECCFFR Q
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Completed Properties Held for Sale

Properties held for sale represent completed properties remaining unsold at
the end of each financial period and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost of properties held for sale is determined by an
apportionment of related costs incurred attributable to the unsold
properties.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had completed properties held for sale
of RMB9,904.2 million, representing a 14.3% decrease from
RMB11,554.6 million as at 31 December 2021. The decrease was
primarily due to the decrease in GFA completed by the Group and
provision of impairment was made as a result of a decline in the overall
housing demand and lower selling prices of the Group’s projects in 2022.
The Group has obtained the construction completion certificates in respect

of all completed properties held for sale.

Properties Under Development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion. Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
comprising land costs, construction costs, capitalized interests and other
costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period and net realizable value. Upon completion, the

properties are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had properties under development of
RMB113,364.4 million, representing a 13.5% decrease from
RMB131,073.2 million as at 31 December 2021. The decrease was
primarily due to a decrease in the number of projects developed by the
Group and provision of impairment was made as a result of a decline in the
overall housing demand and lower selling prices of the Group’s projects in
2022.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT
Rental Income

The Group’s rental income for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
RMB90.0 million, representing a 19.0% decrease from RMB111.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021. Rental income fell due to lower
rental prices as impacted by COVID-19 pandemic in 2022.
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Investment Properties

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 11 investment properties with a
total GFA of 684,476 sq.m. Out of the investment properties portfolio of
the Group, 8 investment properties with a total GFA of 429,429 sq.m. had
commenced leasing.

LAND BANK

In 2022, the Group did not replenish any land parcel. As at 31 December
2022, the Group, together with its joint ventures and associated
companies, had a land bank with aggregate GFA of 19.10 million sq.m..
Please refer to the “Land Bank” section of this annual report for details of
the land bank.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue decreased by 30.0% from RMB36,992.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB25,895.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, which was primarily attributable to the decrease
in GFA being delivered. The following table sets forth the Group’s revenue
for each of the components, the percentage of total revenue represented and
the relevant changes for the years indicated.

TR R
2022 2021
Al A8 i i BB AR A
W 23 [iFig4 i A gy H ] b 5 )
% of Total % of Total ~ Year-over-Year
Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue Change
AW T % ARWTIL % %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % %
LE Xk Sales of properties 25,707,613 99.3 36,518,764 98.7 (29.6)
/e N~y Property lease 90,013 0.3 111,101 0.3 (19.0)
Y EEMARTS  Property management — — 67,666 0.2 AN A
services N/A
A7 B RS Management consulting
services" 85,565 0.3 167,047 0.5 (48.8)
By Sales of goods 12,287 0.1 127,790 0.3 (90.4)
At Total 25,895,478 100.0 36,992,368 100.0 (30.0)
B 5 Note:
(1) FEAFE WS ENE S BENF DS (1) Primarily includes revenue generated from provision of design consultation services to

=07 R A SR R R OB T A5 A

joint ventures, associated companies and third parties.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales primarily represents the costs directly incurred for
the property development activities as well as leasing operations and
management consulting services. The principal components of cost of sales
for property development include cost of properties sold, which represents
direct construction costs, land use right costs and capitalized interest costs
on related borrowings for the purpose of property development during the

period of construction.

The Group’s cost of sales decreased by 23.6% from RMB31,610.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB24,146.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022, primarily due to the decrease in GFA being
delivered by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s gross profit decreased by 67.5%
from RMBS5,382.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
RMB1,749.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2022. Gross profit
margin for the year ended 31 December 2022 decreased by 7.8 percentage
points to 6.8% from 14.6% for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Other Income and Gains

The Group’s other income and gains primarily consist of interest income,
commercial compensation, gain on disposal of subsidiaries and others.
Interest income primarily consists of interest income on bank deposits.
Commercial compensation primarily represents forfeited deposits received
from certain potential customers who did not subsequently enter into sales
contracts with the Group and penalties received from certain customers

due to their breach of sales or pre-sales contracts.

Other income and gains decreased by 83.7% from RMB1,559.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB254.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2022, primarily due to a decrease in the gain on disposal of

subsidiaries and interest income in 2022.
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of advertising,
marketing and business development expenses, sales and marketing staff
cost, office expenses, fees paid to third-party sales agents, rental and other

expenses relating to sales of properties and property leasing services.

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses decreased by 21.5% from
RMB1,243.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB976.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2022, primarily due to the
enhanced control over selling and distribution expenses with the overall
reduction of sales and marketing campaigns by the Group in 2022.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses primarily consist of management and
administrative staff costs, entertainment expenses, office and meeting
expenses, stamped duties and other taxes, rental costs, depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, professional fees, travelling expenses, bank
charges, listing expenses and other general office expenses and

miscellaneous expenses.

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by 22.3% from
RMB1,190.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB924.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2022, primarily due to the fact
that the Group streamlined its organizational structure and enhanced cost

control over its administrative items in 2022.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Other Expenses and Impairment Losses on Financial Assets, Net

Other expenses increased by 483.5% from RMB1,528.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB8,920.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 and impairment losses on financial assets, net, increased
by 23,421.2% from RMB7.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 to RMB1,838.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2022,
primarily due to (i) the exchange loss of RMB432.5 million, compared
with exchange gain of RMB41.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 and (ii) the impairment losses recognised for properties under
development and completed properties held for sale of RMBS8,395.5
million and impairment losses on receivables from related companies of
RMB1,780.0 million as a result of a decline in the overall housing demand
and lower selling prices of projects held by the Group, its joint ventures
and associated companies. Details of other expenses, including the bases
and circumstances for impairment losses for properties under development
and completed properties held for sale, are set out in Notes 2.4, 5, 6, 21
and 22 to the financial statements. Details of impairment losses on
financial assets, including the bases and circumstances for such impairment

losses, are set out in Notes 2.4, 6, 24 and 40 to the financial statements.

Fair Value Losses on Investment Properties

The Group develops and holds certain commercial properties on a long-
term basis for rental income or capital appreciation. Under the impact of
the unfavourable macro market environment and the COVID-19 pandemic,
there was a decrease in the fair value of investment properties as a result of
the decline in demand for commercial property. For the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group recorded fair value losses on investment
properties of RMB410.6 million, as compared with fair value losses on
investment properties of RMB201.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. Details of the changes in fair value of investment

properties are set out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

Finance Costs

Finance costs primarily consist of interest expenses for bank and other
borrowings net of capitalized interest relating to properties under

development.
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The Group’s finance costs increased by 112.4% from RMBG645.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB1,370.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, primarily due to an increase of interest expense
as a result of extended construction period for its projects and a lower

capitalization rate for interest on borrowings in 2022.

Share of Losses of Joint Ventures and Associated Companies

The Group’s share of losses of joint ventures was RMB29.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022, compared with the share of profits of
RMB7.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, primarily due to
the decrease in the number of properties delivered by and the decline in

profit margin for joint ventures.

The Group’s share of losses of associated companies was RMB225.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022, compared with the share of profits
of RMB263.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, primarily due
to the decrease in the number of properties delivered by and the decline in

profit margin for associated companies.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses represent corporate income tax and land appreciation
tax (“LAT”) payable by the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

The Group’s income tax expenses increased by 57.0% from RMB1,130.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB1,775.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022, primarily as a result of increase in
deferred tax being charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Loss for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s loss for the year ended 31
December 2022 was RMB14,617.2 million, compared with a profit of
RMB1,195.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

TECCOFER "‘ 6
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

The industry in which the Group engages is a capital-intensive industry.
The Group has met, and expects to continue meeting, its operating capital,
capital expenditure and other capital needs with proceeds from pre-sale and
sale of properties, loans from commercial banks, proceeds from corporate
debts or other securities offerings, and capital injections from shareholders.
The Group’s need for short-term liquid capital is mainly associated with
loan repayments and capital needs for operation, and the Group’s short-
term liquid capital comes from cash balance, proceeds from pre-sale and
sale of properties and new financings. The Group’s need for long-term
liquid capital is associated with capital allocated for new property

development projects and repayment of long-term borrowings.

Cash Positions

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and bank balances of
RMB9,249.7 million (31 December 2021: RMB39,120.5 million), which
included cash and cash equivalents of RMB3,270.1 million (31 December
2021: RMB14,727.1 million), pledged deposits of RMB86.9 million (31
December 2021: RMBS8,132.4 million) and restricted cash of RMB5,892.8
million (31 December 2021: RMB16,261.0 million).

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had total outstanding bank and other
borrowings of RMB30,883.6 million (31 December 2021: RMB47,959.5
million), corporate bond with carrying amounts of RMB4,695.4 million (31
December 2021: RMB4,438.9 million), senior notes with carrying
amounts of RMB23,859.5 million (31 December 2021: RMB21,740.2
million) and senior perpetual capital securities (the “PCS”) with carrying
amounts of RMB1,311.8 million (31 December 2021: Nil). The Group’s
borrowings are denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and US
dollars.
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The following table sets forth the Group’s total borrowings as at the dates

Mg indicated:
wHt+_H=+—H
As at 31 December
2022 2021
AR #F oL ANR#T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R HA £ K Current borrowings:
SRAT I A — A Bank borrowings — secured 126,303 434,240
SRAT 1 K — M Bank borrowings — unsecured 379,536 478,727
oAt & K — A HE Other borrowings — secured 2,715,432 6,869,986
oA X — MEHE AR Other borrowings — unsecured 109,696 63,757
T+ FE RV A Y B R 2 Plus: current portion of non-current borrowings
AT R — A Bank borrowings — secured 16,448,535 13,197,495
SRAT A AR — I AE A Bank borrowings — unsecured 1,675,221 3,389,358
FoAth A 5K — A HEH Other borrowings — secured 4,246,357 1,431,667
At K — AR Other borrowings — unsecured — —
B2 N R ME Senior notes and corporate bonds 28,554,931 8,564,529
K HE G AT S (B 7E) PCS (Note) 1,311,845 —
B HA fi 3K 48 %1 Total current borrowings 55,567,856 34,429,759
H BIHA (5 K Non-current borrowings:
SRATH 3K — A LA Bank borrowings — secured 4,587,247 18,573,989
ERAT A 2K — KA Bank borrowings — unsecured — 980,310
HoAth £5 3% — A HEH Other borrowings — secured 595,270 2,540,000
At A R — ML Other borrowings — unsecured — —
B N R E A Senior notes and corporate bonds — 17,614,485
I B HA 2 3k 44 40 Total non-current borrowings 5,182,517 39,708,784
At Total 60,750,373 74,138,543

Mk RoFZF-HWEH> ARAR
MR K A A R R AT R R A LU
BB R EEAR S BB F
COET AT A REEASF
Hfte v BT B N OR B - BB
e — BN W2 BN SCT A B K A
B R 5 0[] oKk | — e

Note: On 4 January 2022, the Company announced its exercise of option under the PCS to
redeem the PCS in full. As at 31 December 2022 and up to the date of approval of this
annual report, the redemption had not taken place. Please refer to the section headed

“Consent Solicitation relating to PCS” below for further details.
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The following table sets forth the maturity profiles of the Group’s total

borrowings as at the dates indicated:

w+=HA=1+—H

As at 31 December
—®T-E —E I
2022 2021
AR ¥ T T AR ¥F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ZE N — A A B e B R E R Repayable within one year or on demand 55,567,856 34,429,759
JHNES B R Repayable in the second year 1,486,947 18,666,919
AN = B AR NE R Repayable within three to five years 3,589,570 20,349,285
JE LA DL AE R Repayable more than five years 106,000 692,580
s Total 60,750,373 74,138,543

i wk B AR Borrowing Costs
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

The Group’s weighted average financing cost of debt was 7.1% for the year
ended 31 December 2022, compared with 6.8% for the year ended 31
December 2021. The increase was primarily due to the increase in the
proportion of debt which bears higher borrowing costs.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s asset portfolio which included
property, plant and equipment with carrying value of RMB1,038.2 million
(31 December 2021: RMB959.6 million), right-of-use assets with carrying
value of RMB174.6 million (31 December 2021: RMB183.5 million),
investment properties with carrying value of approximately RMB6,156.8
million (31 December 2021: RMBG6,317.7 million), properties under
development with carrying value of RMB56,708.1 million (31 December
2021: RMB66,855.6 million) and completed properties held for sale with
carrying value of RMB1,579.9 million (31 December 2021: RMB1,898.1
million) were pledged as security for the Group’s secured borrowings. As at
31 December 2022, no financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
with carrying value (31 December 2021: RMB168.6 million) were pledged

as security for the Group’s secured borrowings.
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FINANCIAL RISKS

The Group primarily operates its business in the PRC. The currency in
which the Group denominates and settles substantially all of its
transactions is Renminbi. Any depreciation of Renminbi would adversely
affect the value of any dividends the Group pays to shareholders outside of
the PRC. The Group had cash at banks denominated in foreign currencies,
which exposed the Group to foreign exchange risk. The Group currently
does not engage in hedging activities designed or intended to manage
foreign exchange rate risk. The Group will continue to monitor foreign
exchange changes to best preserve the Group’s cash value. The Group is
also exposed to interest rate risk for changes in market interest rates would
have impact on the Group’s bank and other borrowings. The Group
currently does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge interest

rate risk.

In 2022, the property sector in the PRC has continued to experience
volatility. Pre-sale of properties by Chinese property developers has
generally decreased and financing has become increasingly difficult, which
have adversely impacted the Group’s ability to obtain financing from the
capital markets and other sources, and significantly curtailed the funding
available to the Group to address its upcoming debt maturities. The Group
has implemented a wide range of liquidity management and cost saving
measures including without limitation, seeking extensions and waivers
regarding its financings, seeking disposal of assets, accelerating sales and
cash collection, streamlining corporate structure, as well as reducing non-
core business operations and administrative expenses so long as such
measures do not affect the Group’s delivery efforts and normal operations.
The Company has already commenced the preparatory work for the
Offshore Holistic Liability Management Solutions.

Details of financial risk management is set out in Note 43 to the financial

statements.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

The Group’s current ratio was 1.0 as at 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: 1.3). The Group’s net gearing ratio (defined as total borrowings less
cash and bank balances divided by total equity as at 31 December 2022)
was 294.6% as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: 85.5%).

—ECCFFR -ng
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Mortgage Guarantees

The Group provides mortgage guarantees to banks in respect of the
mortgage loans they provided to the Group’s customers in order to secure
the repayment obligations of such customers. The mortgage guarantees are
issued from the date of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and released
upon the earlier of (i) the transfer of the relevant real estate ownership
certificates to the customers, or (ii) the settlement of mortgage loans by the
customers. If a purchaser defaults on the mortgage loan, the Group is
typically required to repurchase the underlying property by paying off the
mortgage loan. If it fails to do so, the mortgagee banks will auction the
underlying property and recover the balance from the Group if the

outstanding loan amount exceeds the net foreclosure sale proceeds.

As at 31 December 2022, the material contingent liabilities incurred for
the Group’s provision of guarantees to financial institutions in respect of
the mortgage loans they provided to the Group’s customers were
RMB40,128.8 million (31 December 2021: RMB34,711.3 million).

The Directors confirm that the Group has not encountered defaults by
purchasers in which it provided mortgage guarantees that, in aggregate,
had a material adverse effect on the financial condition and results of

operations of the Group.

Other Financial Guarantees

As at 31 December 2022, the guarantees given to banks and other
institutions in connection with borrowings made to the related companies
and third parties by the Group were RMB4,464.4 million (31 December
2021: RMB12,981.9 million).

Legal Contingents

The Group may be involved in lawsuits and other proceedings in its
ordinary course of business from time to time. The Group considers that as
at the date of approval of this annual report, no liabilities resulting from
these proceedings will have a material adverse effect on business, financial

condition or results of operations of the Group.

Commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s capital commitment it had
contracted but yet provided for was RMB23,072.1 million (31 December
2021: RMB35,880.8 million).
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS AND
ARRANGEMENTS

Except for the contingent liabilities disclosed above and the matters
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto, as
at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any outstanding loan capital
issued or agreed to be issued, bank overdrafts, loans, debt securities,
borrowings or other similar indebtedness, liabilities under acceptances (other
than normal trade bills), acceptance credits, debentures, mortgages,
charges, finance leases or hire purchase commitments, guarantees or other

material contingent liabilities.

CONSENT SOLICITATION RELATING TO PCS

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 4
January 2022, 18 February 2022, 21 February 2022, 4 March 2022, 7
March 2022, 13 March 2022, 16 March 2022 and 29 March 2022.

On 4 January 2022, the Company made an announcement in relation to
the Company’s exercise of its option pursuant to the Terms and Conditions
of the PCS to redeem the PCS in full on 5 March 2022. However, since
then, against the backdrop of the adverse market conditions, the Company’s
internal funds available for debt services became increasingly limited and it
was expected that its then existing internal resources might be insufficient
to address its debt maturities in March 2022, including the redemption of
the PCS in full on 5 March 2022. Therefore, the Company solicited
consents from beneficial owners of the PCS to certain proposed waiver and
amendments in respect of the PCS pursuant to the consent solicitation as
described in the consent solicitation memorandum, in order to improve the
Company’s overall financial condition and give it financial stability. The
extraordinary resolution relating to the proposed waiver and amendments
was passed at the PCS holders’ meeting that was held on 28 March 2022.
On 29 March 2022, the Company executed the supplemental trust deed to

give effect to the revised proposed amendments.

For further details relating to the PCS, please also refer to the sections
headed “Non-payment of Principal, Interest and/or Distribution of Certain
Senior Notes and PCS” and “Subsequent Events” below.

—ECCFFR ZZW
Annual Report 2022
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EXCHANGE OFFER AND CONSENT
SOLICITATION RELATING TO SENIOR NOTES

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 21
February 2022, 4 March 2022, 13 March 2022, 14 March 2022, 21 March
2022, 29 March 2022 and 30 March 2022.

On 21 February 2022, the Company conducted the exchange offer (the
“Exchange Offer”) and consent solicitation (the “Consent Solicitation”)
with respect to certain senior notes (the “Exchange Notes”) held by
non-U.S. persons outside the United States. The purpose of the Exchange
Offer was to extend the Company’s debt maturity profile, strengthen its
balance sheet and improve cash flow management. The purpose of the
Consent Solicitation was to eliminate substantially all of the restrictive
covenants and to modify certain of the events of default, the definition of
change of control and other provisions in the exchange notes indentures (the
“Exchange Notes Indentures”) and to waive any potential breaches that
may arise as a result of the events described in the exchange offer and

consent solicitation memorandum.

The Company received requisite consents for the consent solicitations
under the Exchange Offer and Consent Solicitation. As such, the proposed
waivers as set forth in the exchange offer and consent solicitation
memorandum had become effective. The supplemental indentures to each
of the Exchange Notes Indentures were executed on 14 March 2022, by
and among the Company, certain of the Company’s offshore subsidiary
guarantors (if applicable) and the respective trustee of the corresponding
Exchange Notes Indentures, giving effect to the proposed amendments in
compliance with the conditions contained in each of the Exchange Notes

Indentures.

With respect to the Exchange Notes submitted for exchange, eligible
holders of the Exchange Notes validly accepted and exchanged in the
Exchange Offer and Consent Solicitation received the applicable exchange
and consent consideration on 29 March 2022. At the same time, the
Company issued US$728,623,000 in aggregate principal amount of 8.0%
senior notes due 2023 (the “New USD Notes”) and RMB1,589,980,000
in aggregate principal amount of 8.0% senior notes due 2023 (the “New
RMB Notes”).
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For further details relating to the New USD Notes and the New RMB
Notes, please also refer to the sections headed “Non-payment of Principal,
Interest and/or Distribution of Certain Senior Notes and PCS” and

“Subsequent Events” below.

CONCURRENT CONSENT SOLICITATION
RELATING TO SENIOR NOTES

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 21
February 2022, 7 March 2022, 13 March 2022 and 29 March 2022.

On 21 February 2022, the Company solicited consents from holders of
certain senior notes (the “Consent Notes” and each, a “Series of Notes”)
to certain proposed amendment and waiver to consent notes indentures
pursuant to the concurrent consent solicitation (the “Concurrent Consent
Solicitation”) as described in the consent solicitation statement. The
purpose of the Concurrent Consent Solicitation was to waive any potential
breaches that may arise as a result of the events described under the consent
solicitation statement and to amend the definition of change of control and
the events of default provision in the consent notes indentures (the “Consent
Notes Indentures”) to carve out any default or event of default in respect
of each Series of Notes as a result of a default or event of default occurring

under the conditions set forth in the consent solicitation statement.

The Company received requisite consents for the consent solicitations
under the Concurrent Consent Solicitation. As such, the proposed waivers
as set forth in the consent solicitation statement had become effective. The
consent supplemental indentures to each of the Consent Notes Indentures
were executed on 14 March 2022, by and among the Company, certain of
the Company’s offshore subsidiary guarantors and the trustee, giving effect
to the proposed amendment in compliance with the conditions contained
in each of the Consent Notes Indentures. On 29 March 2022, the Company

paid the concurrent consent fee.

—ECCFFR 2 3
Annual Report 2022
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Description of Debt Securities

NON-PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL, INTEREST
AND/OR DISTRIBUTION OF CERTAIN SENIOR
NOTES AND PCS

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 10 April
2022, 31 May 2022, 30 June 2022, 3 August 2022 and 30 August 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had not made payment of the
outstanding principal and/or accrued distribution and/or accrued interest

that were due for the securities as set out in the following table:

31 B

Payment Status

RN B E7.125% 0B E R
((ZEZZ—FANRBEE)

7.125% Senior Notes due June 2022
(the “2021 RMB Notes”)

TR A R 5.98% I B E R
([ FENAHFERD

5.98% Senior Notes due April 2022
(the “April 2021 Notes”)

SRR B4R 830 0 B ST B AR
(= FEANHERD
8.3% Senior Notes due September 2023
(the “June 2020 Notes”)

RN = A B R 8.35% 1Y B e A
([ZZZFHAHFERD
8.35% Senior Notes due March 2024
(the “May 2020 Notes”)

ZF VUSRI H B A B 7.8759% i B SR S
((ZZZFE-AZREK)
7.875% Senior Notes due April 2024
(the “January 2020 Notes”)

TR TPUAEILA BUEAE B 7.19% 1 1B B iR
(R ANAERD
7.1% Senior Notes due September 2024
(the “June 2021 Notes”)

2 A ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

IR S AT B R A AR 4 N R 510,020,000 7€ B AT ) B,

Did not make payment for outstanding principal of
RMB10,020,000 and accrued interest that were due

R STA 2 9 R A58 AR 42 23,361,000 3 7T K B A FILEL

Did not make payment for outstanding principal of US$23,361,000

and accrued interest that were due
X AT B HA AT RS

Did not make payment for accrued interest that were due

R SCA E 0 A AR

Did not make payment for accrued interest that were due

R SCA E) 9 e A AR

Did not make payment for accrued interest that were due

R ST EI 9 A B

Did not make payment for accrued interest that were due
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34 B

Payment Status

CECHAE A B E7.35% M B o AR
((=FFFE LA ERED

7.35% Senior Notes due February 2025
(the “September 2020 Notes”)

TR AR A BB 9.15% 1 e R
ZZ—LE+—HERED

9.15% Senior Notes due May 2023
(the “November 2019 Notes”)

TR THENAFIMEE 7% B R
((ZF—hE+AEED

8.7% Senior Notes due August 2022
(the “October 2019 Notes”)

TERTNFE— AR B 6.63% M BE R
([ZZZ—F—HEE)

6.63% Senior Notes due January 2026
(the “January 2021 Notes”)

TR TNE N BB 6.7% B e R R
([ FEZHER)D

6.7% Senior Notes due August 2026
(the “February 2021 Notes”)

TR THEIUA BB 6.50% I B e SR
((ZZZ LA ZRERE)

6.50% Senior Notes due September 2022
(the “September 2021 Notes”)

KA AR I
PCS

E eI %
New USD Notes

AR
New RMB Notes

R SCA E 9 A AR

Did not make payment for accrued interest that were due

R S 0 RE AT ALE

Did not make payment for accrued interest that were due

e S A B A A8 R AR 229,777,000 9 7T KM A A S

Did not make payment for outstanding principal of US$29,777,000

and accrued interest that were due
ST E 1 AT RS

Did not make payment for accrued interest that were due

R ST B AT A B

Did not make payment for accrued interest that were due

R ST A B R A8 1R AR 431,239,000 35 9T M E A AL

Did not make payment for outstanding principal of US$31,239,000

and accrued interest that were due

R ST 0 AT 2 IR

Did not make payment for accrued distribution that were due

R ST B 0 AT A B

Did not make payment for accrued interest that were due

R SCA E 9 A AR

Did not make payment for accrued interest that were due

—ECCFFR 2 6
Annual Report 2022
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2021 RMB Notes, April 2021 Notes, October 2019 Notes and September
2021 Notes: Failure to pay the outstanding principal at maturity, and
accrued interest upon expiration of the 30-day grace period, both
constituted events of default under the 2021 RMB Notes, the April 2021
Notes, the October 2019 Notes and the September 2021 Notes. However,
the non-payment under the respective senior notes has not triggered, and
will not trigger, any cross-default under the terms of other senior notes and
PCS issued by the Company.

June 2020 Notes, May 2020 Notes, January 2020 Notes, June 2021 Notes,
September 2020 Notes, November 2019 Notes, January 2021 Notes,
February 2021 Notes, PCS, New USD Notes and New RMB Notes:
Failure to pay the accrued distribution and/or accrued interest upon
expiration of the respective grace periods constituted an event of default
under the PCS and respective senior notes (as the case may be). If an event
of default has occurred (such as 30-day grace period lapses) and is
continuing, the trustee or holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal
amount of the PCS and/or relevant senior notes then outstanding may, by
written notice to the Company and to the trustee, declare the principal of,
premium, if any, and accrued and unpaid distribution and/or interest on
the relevant PCS and senior notes to be immediately due and payable
(“Acceleration Notice”). As at 31 December 2022 and up to the date of
approval of this annual report, the Company has not received any
Acceleration Notice as a result of the non-payment under the respective

PCS and/or senior notes.

For details relating to the PCS and certain senior notes after 31 December
2022, please refer to the section headed “Subsequent Events” below.
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THE OFFSHORE HOLISTIC LIABILITY
MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 30 August
2022, 9 November 2022, 12 December 2022, 6 March 2023 and 14 March
2023.

The Company is working diligently with its advisers to advance the
preparation work for the Offshore Holistic Liability Management Solutions.
As at the date of approval of this annual report, the independent business
review and liquidation analysis in relation to the Group are substantially
completed, which the Company believes would facilitate its discussion
with offshore creditors. In addition, the Company has developed a
preliminary proposal of the Offshore Holistic Liability Management
Solutions with its advisers and expects to commence discussion with

offshore creditors in the near term.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 25 March
2022. On 25 March 2022, Zhengyu (Foshan) Real Estate Development
Co., Led.* (GE# (1) B £ B A FRA F]) (“Zhengyu” and an indirect
subsidiary of the Company), Chengdu Tongchuangjin Trading Co., Ltd*
BB IR] 81 86 76 & A R B A A F]) (“Chengdu Tongchuang]m ),

Zhenglong (Foshan) Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* Gk F&:(% 1 )ﬁ%
BIRARAT) (“Zhenglong”), Zhenro (Guangzhou) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.* (EZEE M) B EABAF]D) (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Hefan (Guangzhou) Equity
Investment Management Co., Ltd.* (& FLOE M) B HER: & 5L 4 & HE A R
/NH]) entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which
Zhengyu has agreed to dispose of, and Chengdu Tongchuangjin has agreed
to purchase, 51% of the equity interest of Zhenglong for a consideration of
RMB155,623,950, which shall be paid by Chengdu Tongchuangjin to
Zhengyu in cash (the “Zhenglong Disposal”). Completion of the
Zhenglong Disposal took place in April 2022. Upon completion of the
Zhenglong Disposal, the Group no longer held any interest in Zhenglong
and Zhenglong ceased to be accounted as a subsidiary of the Company.

—ECCFFR 2 7
Annual Report 2022
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Reference is also made to the announcement of the Company dated 12
August 2022. On 12 August 2022, Zhenro Fortune (Fujian) Real Estate
Co., Led.* (E4E & (18 1) & F£ A B /A F]) (“Zhenro Fortune (Fujian)”)
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), Quanzhou Junde Jingshui
Investment (Limited Partnership)* CRMN BB K RES BN
(“Quanzhou Junde Jingshui”) and Quanzhou Zhenglang Real Estate
Development Co., Led.* (CRINIEFIEZEARA A (“Quanzhou
Zhenglang”) entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which
Zhenro Fortune (Fujian) agreed to dispose of, and Quanzhou Junde
Jingshui agreed to purchase, 51% of the equity interest of Quanzhou
Zhenglang, and the aggregate amount outstanding and owing by
Quanzhou Zhenglang to Zhenro Fortune (Fujian) as at the date of the
agreement, for an aggregate consideration of RMB102,000,000, which
shall be paid by Quanzhou Junde Jingshui to Zhenro Fortune (Fujian) in
cash (the “Quanzhou Zhenglang Disposal”). Completion of the
Quanzhou Zhenglang Disposal took place in September 2022. Upon
completion of the Quanzhou Zhenglang Disposal, the Group no longer
held any interest in Quanzhou Zhenglang and Quanzhou Zhenglang ceased

to be accounted as a subsidiary of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there was no material acquisition or disposal of

subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates by the Company in 2022.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE
GROUP

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no significant
investment held by the Group.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group currently has no plan to make any significant investment or

acquisition of capital assets.

* For identification purpose only
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 736 employees (31
December 2021: 1,467 employees).

The Group recruits qualified personnel in local markets through various
channels, such as on-campus recruitment programs, recruiting firms,
internal referrals and advertisement on the Internet. The Group particularly
values employees who demonstrate loyalty to their work and who value
corporate culture, as well as those with relevant working experiences. The
Group’s future development, to a considerable extent, depends on its
ability to identify, hire, train and retain suitably skilled and qualified
employees, including management personnel, with relevant professional
skills. Therefore, the Group has established systematic training programs

for employees based on their positions and expertise.

The Group enters into labor contracts with all employees and offers
employees competitive remuneration packages that include basic salaries,
discretionary bonuses and performance-based payments. The Company has
also adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).

Under the applicable PRC laws and regulations, the Group is subject to
social insurance contribution plans. The Group also participates in a
pension scheme under the rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “MPF
Scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Save for the following matters and save as disclosed in Note 44 to the
financial statements, no material events were undertaken by the Group
subsequent to 31 December 2022 and up to the date of approval of this

annual report.
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Description of Debt Securities

Change of Director, Composition of Board Committees and
Authorized Representative

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 20 January
2023. The following changes took effect on 20 January 2023:

(1)  Mr. LIU Weiliang, an executive Director, has been re-designated
from the vice chairman of the Board to the chairman of the Board,
and has been appointed as the chairman of the nomination
committee, a member of the remuneration committee and an
authorized representative of the Company for the purpose of Rule 3.05
of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”); and

(2)  Mr. Huang Xianzhi has resigned as the Chairman, an executive
Director, the chairman of the nomination committee, a member of
the remuneration committee and an authorized representative of the
Company for the purpose of Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules, due to
his plan to retire.

Non-Payment of Principal, Interest and/or Distribution of
Certain Senior Notes and PCS

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 6 March
2023.

As at 6 March 2023 and up to the date of approval of this annual report,
the Company has not made payment of the outstanding principal and/or
the accrued distribution and/or accrued interest that were due for the

securities as set out in the following table:

¢ A4 B

Payment Status

KA BT I
PCS

T R
New USD Notes

BRI

New RMB Notes

3 O ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

R S B R A8 1B AR 42 200,000,000 3 I0 B E AT 4 TR

Did not make payment for outstanding principal of
US$200,000,000 and accrued distribution that were due

R ST B R 4 A 4 728,623,000 35 7T K JE A IS

Did not make payment for outstanding principal of
US$728,623,000 and accrued interest that were due

FATE R E AR S AR H1,589,980,000 7C K ME AT F) &,

Did not make payment for outstanding principal of
RMB1,589,980,000 and accrued interest that were due
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T Discussion and Analysis

PCS, New USD Notes and New RMB Notes: Failure to pay the
outstanding principal on redemption date or at maturity, and failure to pay
accrued distribution and/or accrued interest upon expiration of the
respective grace periods, constituted events of default under the PCS, New
USD Notes and New RMB Notes. If an event of default has occurred (such
as 30-day grace period lapses) and is continuing, the trustee or holders of at
least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the PCS or the relevant senior
notes then outstanding may serve an Acceleration Notice to the Company.
As at the date of approval of this annual report, the Company has not
received any Acceleration Notice as a result of the non-payment of
outstanding principal, accrued distribution and/or accrued interest under
the PCS, New USD Notes and New RMB Notes.

IMPACT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC

Since late March 2022, due to the recurring COVID-19 pandemic in the
PRC and related lockdown in some cities, the operations of the Group had
been affected significantly, and the progress of sales and asset disposals have
been delayed. To cope with the situation, the Group carried out actions to
minimize the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on its business,
including implementing measures to ensure construction of projects,
guaranteeing punctual supply of units and minimizing the risks associated

with units delivery.

Since December 2022, the PRC government has adjusted and relaxed
substantially the anti-pandemic policies and measures. The Company
believes this will stimulate consumption and boost confidence in the real
estate market. It is expected that impact of COVID-19 pandemic will
gradually diminish and the real estate market will stabilize and recover
gradually in 2023.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 5 July
2019, 7 August 2020 and 29 September 2020.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

In July 2019, pursuant to a facility agreement (the “2019 Facility
Agreement”) entered into between, among others, the Company as the
borrower, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company as the original
guarantors, Hang Seng Bank Limited, China Minsheng Banking Corp.,
Ltd., Hong Kong Branch, The Bank of East Asia, Limited, Goldman Sachs
(Asia) L.L.C. and BNP Paribas, acting through its Hong Kong Branch,
collectively as the original lenders, for dual-currency term loan facilities in
the amount of HK$234,000,000 and US$90,000,000 (totalling
approximately US$120,000,000) (the “2019 Loan Facilities”, each a “2019
Loan Facility”) will be made available to the Company for a term of 36
months from the date of the 2019 Facility Agreement.

As provided in the 2019 Facility Agreement, if Mr. OU Zongrong, Mr.
OU Guogiang and Mr. OU Guowei collectively (a) do not or cease to,
directly or indirectly, own at least 51% of the beneficial shareholding in
the Company, carrying at least 51% of the voting right in the Company, of
which at least 45% beneficial shareholding must, at any time on or after
the first date of utilisation of the 2019 Loan Facility, be free from any
security; (b) are not or cease to be the single largest shareholder of the
Company; and/or (c) do not or cease to have management control over the
Company, the commitments under the 2019 Loan Facilities may be
cancelled and all amounts outstanding together with accrued interest and
all other amounts accrued under the 2019 Loan Facilities may become

immediately due and payable.

In August 2020, a facility agreement (the “2020 Facility Agreement”)
was entered into between, among others, the Company as the borrower,
certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company as the original
guarantors, Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, CMB Wing Lung Bank
Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited and certain other financial institutions,
collectively as lenders, for dual-currency term loan facilities in the amount
of HK$273,000,000 and US$106,000,000 (totaling approximately
US$141,000,000) for a term of 36 months from the date of the first
utilisation of the loan facility. In September 2020, Chong Hing Bank
Limited (as the lender) acceded to the 2020 Facility Agreement in
accordance to the terms of the 2020 Facility Agreement (the “Accession”).
Following the execution of the Accession, the total amount of loan facilities
made available to the Company under the 2020 Facility Agreement equals
to approximately US$161,000,000 (the “2020 Loan Facilities”, each a “2020
Loan Facility”).
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Monqgergeﬁi‘ Discussion and Analysis

As provided in the 2020 Facility Agreement, if (i) Mr. OU Zongrong, Mr.
OU Guogiang and Mr. OU Guowei (collectively, the “Relevant Persons”)
collectively (a) do not or cease to, directly or indirectly, own at least 51%
of the beneficial shareholding in the Company, carrying at least 51% of the
voting right in the Company, of which at least 45% of the beneficial
shareholding must, at all times from the date of the 2020 Facility
Agreement for so long as any liability is outstanding or any commitment is
in force, be free from any security; (b) are not or cease to be the single
largest shareholder of the Company; and/or (c¢) do not or cease to have
management control over the Company; and/or (ii) the chairman of the
Company is not any of Mr. HUANG Xianzhi, Mr. LIU Weiliang (being an
existing executive Director) or Mr. CHAN Wai Kin or any of the Relevant
Persons, the commitments under the loan facilities may be cancelled and
all amounts outstanding together with accrued interest and all other
amounts accrued under the loan facilities may become immediately due

and payable.

As at 31 December 2022 and as at the date of approval of this annual
report, the Company had not made payment of the outstanding principal
and/or the accrued interest that were due for the 2019 Loan Facilities and
the 2020 Loan Facilities, which constituted an event of default under the
2019 Loan Facilities and the 2020 Loan Facilities. In light of this, the
Company has commenced the preparatory work for the Offshore Holistic
Liability Management Solutions, details of which are set out in the section
headed “The Offshore Holistic Liability Management Solutions” above.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 December 2022, the
Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the responsibility
of disclosure under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

—ECCFFR 3 3
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Properties Developed by the Group's Subsidiaries
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Shanghai Honggiao Zhenro Mansion

Shanghai Zhenro Royal Kingdom

Shanghai Zhenro Fontainebleau

Shanghai Zhenro Yuelong Mansion

Jiaxing Excellence Zhenro Canal Grand Mansion

Suzhou Zhenro Wind Mansion

Zhangjiagang Tangsong Cloud Garden
Suzhou Riverside Four Seasons Garden
Suzhou Zhenro Riverside Garden
Suzhou Poly Zhenro Oriental Mansion
Suzhou Zhento West to The Moon

Hangzhou Heting Xiging Mansion

Nanjing Zhenro Aoti Nanchen Pinnacle

Nanjing Zhenro Splendid Land

Nanjing Zhenro Riverside Wonderland
Nanjing Zhenro Royal Fame

Nanjing Zhenro Riverside Violet Pinnacle
Nanjing Times Tianyue

Nanjing Zhenro River Mansion

Nanjing South Riverside Peak

Nanjing Zhenro East Mansion

Nanjing Zhenro Joy City Mansion

Nanjing Zhenro Waterfront Mansion

Nanjing Zhenro Mist Mansion

Nanjing Zhenro Begonia Mansion

Nanjing Zhenro Riverbank Mansion

Nanjing Hongyang Riverside Joy Mansion
Chuzhou Zhenro Mansion

Chuzhou Time Elegance Garden

Chuzhou Zhenro Splendid Mansion

Sugian Zhongwu Zhenro Mansion

ERHEREARAT

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Bt

City

|16 Shanghai
1 Shanghai
I Shanghai
| Shanghai
% W Jiaxing

B Suzhou

- MSuzhou
#iMSuzhou
HMSuzhou
HkMSuzhou
BfMSuzhou

B M| Hangzhou

Hi A Nanjing

7 Nanjing
i Nanjing
i3 Nanjing
i Nanjing
A Nanjing
R Nanjing
T 7 Nanjing
i Nanjing

i Nanjing

A Nanjing

T HNanjing

T 5Nanjing

T Nanjing

i Nanjing
1 Chuzhou
M Chuzhou
i Chuzhou

T #8Sugian

AR
R 2
Interest Attributable

to the Group

100.00%
90.25%
90.25%
90.25%
47.50%

52.25%

48.45%
28.86%
32.30%
47.50%
66.65%

78.85%

26.14%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
25.00%
36.67%
20.50%
100.00%

49.00%

51.00%

100.00%

75.02%

51.01%

51.00%
40.00%
50.10%
100.00%

100.00%

FE WK
BmEmgy  (FIK)
Primary  Site Area
Intended Use” (sq.m.)
RIRE 82,362
RIRE 110,022
R/RE 102,806

R 19,393

RIRE 63,568

R 45,742

R/RE 76,416

R 64,382

RIRE 49,502
R/A 103,259

R 31,176

RIRE 30,764
RIRE 31,902
R/IRE 105,353
RIRE 71,345
R/RE 84,546
RES&O 83,048
R/RES&O 44,787
RIRE 32,622
R/RE 26,829

R 84,929

R 11,561

RIRE 36,292
RIRE 34,696

R 63,074

R/RE 40,522

R 65,227

RIRE 80,867

R 55,719

R/RE 92,170
RIRE 112,213

ERUL ¥
(B 7)
Land Cost
(RMB10,000)

256,000
136,038
62,500
67,897
44,243

108,550

105,138
75,533
70,886

240,495
58,694

89,412

323,000

210,000
152,000
312,000
340,000
170,000
152,000
114,000
144,000

51,000

145,000

138,000

250,000

246,000

258,000
41,300
22250

112,400

130,616

KW/t
BTHM
Actual/Estimated

Completion Date

2022/07
2016/05
2016/12
2023/03
2020/01

2021/10

2022110
2024/06
2022111
2023/11
2023/06

2024110

2023/12

2019/01
2018/12
2019/05
2022105
202211
2022105
2021106
2023/04

2022104

2022104

2022112

2022112

2022112

2022112
2021/03
2022106
202512

2023/06

ER 1
(FJ5 %)
Land Bank”

(sq.m.)

122,087
25,965
2,738
47,625
5,698

23,026

86,590
75,884
77,343
340,687
6,142

81,664

122,851

6,739
948
133

181,894
157,027
22,093
9517
193,080

13,491

30,874

91,151

167,157

120,817

187,592
8,953
14,293
252,955

346,281
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Land Bank

Project Address

Lane 1211, Fuyuan Road, Baoshan District, Shanghai, PRC

South to Jinghe Road, East to Jingbo Road, Jinshan District, Shanghai, PRC

North to Chezhan River, West to Bai'an Road, South to Yadan Road, East to Dikuai Boundary, Jiading District, Shanghai, PRC
No.461 of Wenchuan Road, Xiuzhou District, Jiaxing, Zhejiang Province, PRC

Building 1, No.2 Jianye Road, Gaoxin Technology Industrial Park, Economic and Technological Development Zone, Changshu,
Jiangsu Province, PRC

North to Zhangyang Avenue, Jingkai District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

North to Mudan Road, East to Wendu Road, Wangting Town, Xiangcheng District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC
South to Libo Road, West to Xiangshanbei Road, Taihu National Tourism Resort, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC
West to Fuchunjiang Road, North to Penglai Road, Kaifa District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

West to Muguang River, North to Xijingiao Road, Mudu Town, Wuzhong District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

North to Park Green Space, West to Congwen Road, South to Heting Street, East to Xinggang Road, Lin'an Economic Development District,
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, PRC

North to Honghua Road, West to Zhidong First Road, South to Yingtian Street, East to Chengtian Avenue, Qigiao District, Nanbu New Town,
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Zhento Splendid Land, No.2 of Wangjiang Road, Pukou District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Zhenro Riverside Wonderland, No.99 of Zhennanhe Road, Pukou District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

No.27-1 of Hexi South Road, Jianye District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Crossroad of Wuhou Street and Yecheng Road, Jianye District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

No.18, Yongsheng Road, Jiangning District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Crossroad of Zhuquan West Road and Jiangmiao Road, Pukou District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Crossroad of Daishan Middle Road and Daishan North Road, Xishangiao Street, Yuhuatai District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC
North to Pinggang Road, West to Huayuan Road, Longtan New Town, Qixia District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

North to Guangxigeng Street, West to Yingjiang Road, South to Guihuadao Road, East to Guihua Kindergarten and Community Center,
Jiangbei New District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Parcel East to Jiangbei Expressway, North to Qilihe Sub-District, Jiangbei New District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

North to Guihua Qilin Road, West to Guihua Jinger Road, South to Guihua Weiwu Road, East to Guihua Jingsan Road, Qilin Street, Jiangning

District, Xianlin Street, Qixia District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC
East to Kangan Road, South to Yingjiang Road, Pukou District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

North to Fangjiaying Road, West to Fangjiaying No.784, South to Fangjiaying No. 80, East to Chenghe North Road, Gulou District, Nanjing,
Jiangsu Province, PRC

Parcel East to Kangjian Road, South to Yingjiang Road, Jiangpu Street, Pukou District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC
Northeast to the Crossroad of Zuiweng East Road and Yangming South Road, Nangiao District, Chuzhou, Anhui Province, PRC
Southeast to the Crossroad of Renhe Road and Jingzi Road, Chuzhou, Anhui Province, PRC

Northeast to the Crossroad of Qingliu Road and Dingyuan Road, Chuzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Economic and Technological Development Zone, Sugian, Jiangsu Province, PRC
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Interest Attributable Primary  Site Area Land Cost Actual/Estimated Land Bank”
# Project Names City tothe Group  Intended Use" (sq.m.) (RMB10,000) Completion Date (sq.m.)
3 [SES X Xuzhou Yunlonghu Zhenro Mansion M Xuzhou 100.00% R 55,719 60,113 202212 55,408
3 B E 1907 Hefei City 1907 AT Hefei 25.00% RRE 111380 180,500 2019/12 20,505
34 A IEE A E S I Hefei Binhu Zhenro Mansion A Hefei 100.00% R 38,221 85,000 2020109 4124
35 AIEALWIEAE R —#3  Hefei Beicheng Zhenro Mansion-Feng Garden i Hefei 100.00% R/RE 50,857 71,709 2022/06 34,867
36 AIEALWIEA R —H#  Hefei Beicheng Zhenro Mansion-Ya Garden A I Hefei 100.00% RRE 30,488 42,988 2022003 21,790
37 AW EAR— 54 Hefei Beicheng Zhenro Mansion-Song Garden A iEHefei 100.00% R/RE 4324 61,087 202211 118,249
38 AIRERIER Hefei Jade Zhenro Mansion A Hefei 100.00% R/RE 58464 111,374 2022/09 45,003
39 AREAMMEHE AR Hefei Zhenro Cifi Zhengwu Future & Hefei 55.00% RRE 107,128 161,978 2023/10 173,703
40 AEEEREABEM  Lwan Country Garden Zhento A%Lu'an 34.38% RRE 199,748 111,500 2023/06 368,053

A North Phoenix Mansion

41 BN IE 4 Fuyang Yingzhou Zhenro Mansion R BiFuyang 100.00% RRE 192,371 124,112 2024106 431,44
£ = /M 3 Yangtze River Delta Region Sub-total 2,824,793 5,637,314 4,153,219
£ R T d Zhengzhou Chengnan Zhenro Mansion i Zhengzhou 97.90% R 198941 90,000 2023/07 480,576
4 MM EA BB K234 Zhengzhou Zhenro Yushou Mansion Tianyue 234 EbMZhengzhou 26.01% R 49924 47079 2024/06 195,309
4 UME4GIH R Mods  Zhengzhou Zhenro Yushou Mansion Tianyue 24# b Zhengzhou 26.01% R 54041 51,069 2022111 214551
4 MMEAMEEFRIE254  Zhengrhou Zhenro Yushou Mansion Tianjing 254 B3 Zhengzhou 26.01% RRE 62477 59,041 2023005 252,545
46 B IE Wuhan Zhenro Mansion R Wuhan 100.00% RE/S&O 48,736 97,210 2023106 52,108
4 REEREHA Wauhan Zhenro Pinnacle K Wuhan 100.00% RRE 136,139 458,587 2022105 235,338
48 RESEE R Wuhan Panlong Zhenro Mansion RIEWuhan 100.00% R/RE 49,251 92,210 2022/12 204,349
49 RERA EEF Wuhan Guanggu Zhenro Mansion EIEWuhan 100.00% RRE 46,494 101,849 2022/10 140,887
50 RIEE AR Wuhan Zhento Yuelong Mansion I Wuhan 100.00% R/RE 33,331 44335 2023/03 131,986
51 REERERH % Wuhan Zhenro Propitious Peak HIEWuhan 49.66% R/RE 15,478 63,566 202212 671,721
52 REFENER Wuhan Zhenro Yuejing Mansion HIEWuhan 51.00% R/RE 27,390 60,560 2023/06 89,636
53 R BB R Wuhan Caidian Yuelong Mansion East HHEWuhan 100.00% R/RE 34,012 44470 2023/06 118011
54 EHRREEH Xiangyang Changtou Zhenro Mansion HHXiangyang 51.00% R/RE 68,554 85,041 2021112 169,430
55 EWHRILERN Xiangyang Riverside Zhenro Mansion FiXiangyang 100.00% R/RE 20,139 34,800 2022/06 82,632
56 RULEEHE L Changsha Zhenro Forcune Center Fel)Changsha 100.00% RRE 145,220 45,040 202112 186,892
57 RUERBILEM A Changsha Riverside Zhenro Pinnacle Fel)Changsha 100.00% RRESO 107493 83,000 2022/10 325,898
58 RUEERZERA Changsha Meixi Zhenro Pinnacle W Changsha 100.00% R/RE/S&O 20275 76,781 2022/12 216,671
59 R RRELR Changsha Zhongliang Zhenro Mansion F¥)Changsha 51.00% RRE 80,802 119,250 2023/12 303,124
o188 71 &t Central China Region Sub-total 1,198,699 1,654,088 3,467,665
60 P% A R K it Xi'an Beichen Tianyue North FI%Xi an 34.00% RRRE 53,117 85,830 2024/07 187,138
61 1% 40 R KM Xi'an Beichen Tianyue South PI%XT an 34.00% R/RE 41,900 68,000 2024/01 148,748
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Land Bank

Project Address

South to Pengcheng Happy Valley, West to Yudai Avenue, Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Northwest corner of the Crosstoad of Guiyang Road and Sichuan Road, Hefei, Anhui Province, PRC

2 Kilometers West to the Crossroad of Huizhou Avenue and Zhujiang Road, Hefei, Anhui Province, PRC

Northeast corner of the Crossroad of Yangmiao Road and Cihuai Road, Changfeng County, Hefei, Anhui Province, PRC
Northeast corner of the Crossroad of Cihuai Road and Fuyang North Road, Changfeng County, Hefei, Anhui Province, PRC
Northeast corner of the Crossroad of Fuyang North Road and Jihe Road, Changfeng County, Hefei, Anhui Province, PRC
Northeast corner of the Crossroad of Feicui Road and Xianxia Road, Feixi County, Hefei, Anhui Province, PRC

Southeast to the Crossroad of Dengta Road and Chuangxin Avenue, Shangpai Town, Feixi County, Hefei, Anhui, PRC

Crossroad of Qingxi Road and Xingguang Avenue, Lu'an, Anhui Province, PRC

East to Chengquan Road, South to Sanqing Road, Chengnan New District, Fuyang, Anhui Province, PRC
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Daxue South Road auxiliary road (East side), Guihua Third Road(South side), Longhu Town, Xinzheng, Zhengzhou, Henan Province, PRC
West to Jingyi Road, South to Xiangyun Road, Longhu Town, Xinzheng, Zhengzhou, Henan Province, PRC

West to Jingyi Road, North to Weisan Road, Longhu Town, Xinzheng, Zhengzhou, Henan Province, PRC

West to Guihua Road, North to Xianghe Road, Longhu Town, Xinzheng, Zhengzhou, Henan Province, PRC

West to Liantong Harbor, South to Sixin North Road, Hanyang District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC

South to Nanhu Avenue, East to Minzu Avenue, Donghu New Technological Development Zone, Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC

South to Houhu Avenue, East to Panlong Avenue, Panlongcheng Economic Development District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC

East to Baoxi Road, North to Yuhe Street, West to Zihe Road, South to Liufangyuan Road, Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC

West to the Crossroad of Gaofu Street and Tiancheng Road, Caidian Street, Caidian District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC

East to Baoxi Road, North to Gaoxinsan Road, West to Zhiquan Road, South to Shendunwu Road, Donghu New Technology
Development District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC

South to Kangli Street, East to Liufang Road, West to Guanggu Second Road, North to Kangmei Road,
Donghu New Technology Development District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC

West to the Crossroad of Gaofu Avenue and Tiancheng Road, Caidian Street, Caidian District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC
Taiziwan Road, Gaoxin District, Xiangyang, Hubei Province, PRC
North to Hongguang Road, East to Xudong Road, Fancheng District, Xiangyang, Hubei Province, PRC

Southwest corner of the Crossroad of Gaotanglingjiedaojiayuan North Road and Weiluoke Road, Wangcheng District, Changsha,
Hunan Province, PRC

Southeast to the Crossroad of Yinshan Road and Gushan Road, Yuelu District, Changsha, Hunan Province, PRC
Parcel F-19, Meixi Lake Area, Yuelu District, Changsha, Hunan Province, PRC

South to Liangtang Road, Xingsha Street, Changsha County, Changsha, Hunan Province, PRC

o B R 4 7 0 B DL T B DA BT
o B BT 4 % 7 B DR T DA BT

West to Lehua First Road, South to Jinghewan First Road, East to Lehua Second Road, Jinghe New Town, Xi'an, Shaanxi Province, PRC

West to Lehua First Road, North to Jinghewan Second Road, East to Lehua Second Road, Jinghe New Town, Xi‘an, Shaanxi Province, PRC
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Land Bank

AR FEBmR ERUL ¥ BB/ Bt ER 1
i HH 4 i EfiMEE  REAEY (FIR) (B 7) BTHM (FJ5 %)
Interest Attributable Primary  Site Area Land Cost Actual/Estimated Land Bank”
# Project Names City tothe Group  Intended Use" (sq.m.) (RMB10,000) Completion Date (sq.m.)
62 H%IEER Xi'an Zhenro Mansion Fi%Xi'an 100.00% RE/S&0 39,322 32,440 2022/08 88,193
63 % K BE 4 Xi'an Daxing Zhenro Mansion % Xi'an 93.79% RRE 15,586 21310 202207 60,724
4 WEERER A (KR Xi'an Zhenro Pinnacle (East) % Xi'an 96.50% RRES&O 75,748 107,000 2022107 227,364
5] WEIEREH & (75 E) Xi'an Zhenro Pinnacle (West) Fi%Xian 93.49% RRESO 36,042 72,400 2023/04 143,026
3 R E R A I 4 0 — 1 Chengdu Guihu Zhenro Mansion Phase 1 i Chengdu 100.00% R 21205 32232 2021/11 8466
67 AR A 48 1 Chengdu Guihu Zhenro Mansion Phase 2 Hi#fChengdu 100.00% R 20,179 32,032 2022/10 71,564
8 FRCH 6 VL3R IF 48 B RE I Chengdu Dujiangyan Zhenro Yuelong Mansion i #fChengdu 100.00% R/RE 48,140 31,772 2022/10 127,832
6 AR 56 Chengdu Run Mansion i Chengdu 5100% R 29403 90,561 2023106 97,307
70 A Chengdu Spring Rural Fields Hi#fChengdu 65.00% R 24,639 4377 202212 7,540
71 BRI EAR Chongging Yuexi Zhenro Mansion H B Chongqing 100.00% R 88,177 82,000 2023/03 102,643
72 BEFEMERTE Chongging Zhenro Langji Yuejiang Mansion % BiChongging 51.00% R/RE 46,757 51,400 2023/06 133,829
15 /i Western China Region Sub-total 540,215 711,553 1,404,374
7 RN Fuzhou Guanlan Mansion M Fuzhou 51.00% R 19515 32,500 2024/01 57,543
74 ML Fuzhou Begonia Mansion HiMFuzhou 100.00% R/RE 46,429 74,000 2024/11 118,173
75 BB A Fuzhou Jingxiu Mansion M Fuzhou 100.00% R 24,964 33,200 2023/10 54,148
76 M E# &L Fuzhou Zhenro Fortune Center Hi M Fuzhou 100.00% RRESKO 113333 127,700 201712 77371
77 M IEZ Fuzhou Zhenro Mansion FiM Fuzhou 100.00% R/RE/S&O 66,874 191,000 2019/12 600
78 BNESXER=TZE Fuzhou Zhenro Mawei Sanjiang Habitat T8 M Fuzhou 100.00% R 36,014 47,760 2024108 54,199
79 TN B RIEAH S 40— Fuzhou Mawei Zhenro Fortune Cencer Phase 1 {Fuzhou 100.00% RRE 67,032 85,665 2019/08 18436
80 TMIER 28 Fuzhou Zhenro Seascape Wonderland 7 Fuzhou 26.50% R/RE 33,436 74,700 2022005 30,431
81 TMEILIE 2 Fuzhou Riverview Zhenro Mansion FiM Fuzhou 80.00% RRE 110,191 289,000 2023103 214253
82 M EREBET Fuzhou Zhenro Begonia Riverview T8 MFuzhou 100.00% R/RE 23,973 67,200 2023/05 82,081
83 T IE &b i Fuzhou Zhenro Yuerong Mansion Hi M Fuzhou 100.00% RRE 61,510 189,300 202112 55,192
84 RMEREREWER Fuzhou Zhento Jucheng Jinshan Community M Fuzhou 70.00% R 11,116 45,700 2022/05 8,516
85 M0 s Fuzhou Hubin Mansion FiMPuzhou 34.00% R/RE 42420 90,800 2022111 114951
86 M ERIE 40288 Fuzhou Yurong Zhenro Mansion 02 HiM Fuzhou 100.00% R/RE 68,079 100,800 202011 9,792
87 MR IR 035 Fuzhou Yurong Zhenro Mansion 03 HM Fuzhou 100.00% R 64,728 90,000 2021112 22,865
88 BRI Pingtan Zhenro Mansion Yuexi &M Puzhou 100.00% RRE 66560 110,000 2020111 90,487
89 BMEETERERR Xiamen Zhenro Zhonglinag Tianzhu [ M Xiamen 51.00% RRE 19978 188,000 2023/12 86,479
Run Mansion
90 1) 5 8 I 42 Xiamen Lianfa Zhenro Mansion JiZ M Xiamen 51.00% R/RE 19,209 157,000 2023/12 78,170
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Land Bank

Project Address

Northeast corner of the Crossroad of Erhuan North Road (East part) and Yongqing Road, Xi'an, Shaanxi Province, PRC
Northwest corner of the Crosstoad of Yongxing Road and Yongzhen Road, Xi'an, Shaanxi Province, PRC

Southwest corner and Southeast corner of the Crossroad of Yujing Road and Yongcheng Road, Xi'an, Shaanxi Province, PRC
Southwest corner and Southeast corner of the Crossroad of Yujing Road and Yongcheng Road, Xi'an, Shaanxi Province, PRC
Guihu West Road Community, Xindu Street, Xindu District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, PRC

Wugui Village, Guihu Street (Former: Xindu Street), Xindu District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, PRC

Caihong Community, Xingfu Street, Dujiangyan, Sichuan Province, PRC

Group 3, 4 of Wafang Village, Cugiao Street, Group 7 of Banbianjie Village, Jitougiao Street, Wuhou District, Chengdu,
Sichuan Province, PRC

Sth Agricultural Cooperative, Baohua Village, Tuanjie Town, Pidu District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, PRC
East to Heyuan Road, North to Fenghe Road, Shuitu Park Area, Liangjiang New District, Chongging, PRC

Parcel F9-10, F Sub-district, Dadukouzutuan, Dadukou District, Chongging, PRC
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North to Linjiang South Road, East to Yingbin Road, Yinggian Street, Changle District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
Rongdong Village, Zhugi Township, Minhou County, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

South to Raocheng Express Way, Tangxie Village, Xindian Town, Jing'an District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

No. 18, Xinbao Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou County, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

East to Zhandong Road, West to Guishan Road, Jin'an District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

Yanshan West Road (North side), Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

North to Shanggi Road, East to Junzhu Road, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

Southwest to Shangqi Road, Northeast to Zhongjialan Bay, Southeast to Luoxing West Road, Mawei, Fujian Province, PRC
Southwest to Shanggqi Road, Northeast to Zhongjialan Bay, Southeast to Luoxing West Road, Mawei, Fujian Province, PRC
Changjiang Village, Ganzhe Street, Minhou County, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

Parcel 1, Reconstruction of the old house in the submarine dangerous land block, East to Liuyi Road, Jing'an District, Fuzhou,
Fujian Province, PRC

Maipu Comprehensive Development Lot 1 on the East side of Hongwanbei Road, North side of Jinting Community phase 2,
the South side of Jintang Road, Cangshan District, Fuzhou City, Fujian Province, PRC

East to South Railway Station, South to Yongnan Road, Cangshan District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
Yufeng Village, Dongliu Village, Longshan Street, Fuging, Fujian Province, PRC
Yufeng Village, Yutang Village, Longshan Street, Fuging, Fujian Province, PRC

South side of Chengyi Road (Former: Tiandashan North Road), West side of Xinggang Middle Road (Former: Jinjing Second Road),

Pingtan County, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

West to the Crossroad of Jimei Avenue and Jimei North Avenue, Jimei New Town Sub-district, Xiamen, Fujian Province, PRC

Wiest to the Crossroad of Duiying Middle Road and Duiying North Road, Jimei New Town Sub-district, Jimei District, Xiamen,
Fujian Province, PRC
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Project Names

Xiamen Zhongliang Zhenro Mansion
Xiamen Xiang'an Zhenro Mansion

Putian Zhenro Fortune Center

Putian Zhenro Litchi Garden

Putian Zhenro Times Plaza

Putian Zhenro Royal Family

Putian Zhenro Habitat

Putian Royal Palace Zhenro Mansion Phase 1
Putian Royal Palace Zhenro Mansion Phase 2
Putian Yuxi Zhenro Mansion

Putian Jiuxi Zhenro Mansion Phase 3

Putian Zhenro Baitang Habitat Xiyue
Putian Hanjiang Zhenro Mansion

Quanzhou Shishi Zhenro Mansion

Quanzhou Zhenro Baojia Riverside Mansion

Quanzhou Jindong Zhenro Mansion

Jinjiang Zhenro Xunxing Century Spring
Quanzhou Jinjiang Zhenro Mansion
Zhangzhou Xihu Zhenro Mansion

Nanchang Zhenro Zhong'ao Yuexi Mansion
Nanchang Zhenro The Capital of Great Loch
Nanchang Zhenro Yueyun Mansion
Nanchang Yuelong Mansion

Nanchang Zhento Huarun Linglong Mansion
Nanchang Xinli Garden

Nanchang Zhenro Jinmao Media
Cloud Wonderland

Nanchang Zhenro Bay Mansion

Nanchang Zhaoshang Jinmao Zhenro
Land of Cloud

Nanchang Zhenro Vesture

Ji'an Lulin Mansion Phase 1

Jtan Lulin Mansion Phase 2

ERHEREARAT
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i R 2
Interest Attributable

City to the Group
5" Xiamen 40.80%
i Xiamen 100.00%
# HPutian 100.00%
#HPutian 100.00%
i Putian 100.00%
# MPutian 100.00%
# HPutian 100.00%
#HPutian 100.00%
i M Putian 100.00%
# M Putian 100.00%
#HPutian 100.00%
i A Putian 100.00%
# HPutian 100.00%
M Quanzhou 100.00%
M Quanzhou 46.50%
M Quanzhou 34.00%
M Quanzhou 51.00%
M Quanzhou 100.00%
1M Zhangzhou 96.50%
i ENanchang 62.00%
i ENanchang 100.00%
T H Nanchang 51.00%
i ENanchang 25.10%
i ENanchang 48.00%
T E Nanchang 39.00%
i B Nanchang 34.00%
HiENanchang 100.00%
T E Nanchang 34.00%
T E Nanchang 100.00%
H%ian 100.00%
#%ian 100.00%

FE WK
BmEmgy  (FIK)
Primary  Site Area
Intended Use” (sq.m.)
RIRE 17,228
R/RE 27,596
R/RE/S&O 199,941
RIRE 35,2608
R/RE 118943
R/RE 42431

R 79,698

R/RE 29,559
R/RE 22,829

R 16,116

RIRE 57,959
R/RE 46,988

R 19,895

R 33,942

R/RE 59,486
RIRE 57,632
RIRE 34,124
R/RE 104,664
R/RES&O 59,573
RIRE 39,116
RRE 872,794
R/RE 46,576
RIRE 36,587
RIRE 72,103
RIRE 90,414
RIRE 53,563
RIRE 22,842
RIRE 101,483
R/RE 58,729
RIRE 74,388
RIRE 67,590

A
(#&7)
Land Cost
(RMB10,000)
100,000
117,000
91,600
1,721
1,721
1,721
98,000
48,150
53,400
26,600
122,600
40,100
28,500
36,300

50,000

41,600

53,300
83,400
154,800
56,023
25,200
63,157
57,593
57,971
72,833

73435

21,036

139,894

121448

73,922

77,557

KW/t
BTHM
Actual/Estimated

Completion Date

2022111
2023/09
2022/08
2010/06
2008/11
2016/10
2023/06
2021/10
2021710
2022/08
2023/03
2022112
2023/06
2020/04

202111

202111

2022104
2023/11
202311
2022108
2017/06
2022110
202009
201911
201911

2023/12

2022/09

2023/08

2022110

202112

2022/03

T
(FIix)
Land Bank”
(sq.m.)
71,971
116,420
209,748
819

41,768
4,663
83,655

569

260

5,052
182,394
136,831
66,135

4955

28,084
340,558
131,874

43,761

18967
114,536

607
3,577
35,040

178,468

17,006

248,711

157,615

14,033

26,743
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Land Bank

Project Address

South to the Corner of Wenju Road and Bojian Road, Daxuecheng Sub-district, Jimei District, Xiamen, Fujian Province, PRC
Northeast to the Crossroad of Shamei Road and Xiang'an South Road, Lianhe Sub-district, Xiang'an District, Xiamen, Fujian Province, PRC
Adjacent to Mulanxi, Crossroad of Liyuan Road and Tianfei Road, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC

South to North Avenue, Licheng District, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC

Crossroad of Dongyuan Road and North Avenue, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC

Adjacent to Dongyuan Road (IV Houtang Area), Licheng District, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC

Near South Ring Road, West Lake, Baitang Town, Hanjiang District, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC

West to Chengxiang District Government, North to Tangxia Road, Chengxiang District, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC
Within the control range of Xialin Unit Sub-district, Chengxiang District, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC

Yangxi Sub-district, Chengxiang District, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC

West to Gongjiao South Stop, Xialin West District, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC

Puhan Avenue, Hanjiang District, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC

Within the control range of Xinhan Industrial Park, Hanjiang District, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC

East to Chaokeng China Shishi Garment Mall, Lingxiu Town, Shishi, Quanzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

South to Houdaianzhi Community, West to Shenhai Express Way, East to Binjiang Road, Crossroad of Shenhai Express Way Bridge
and Binjiang Road (South Side), Luojiang District, Quanzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

South to Er'hao Road, North to Liuyuan Road, West to Huyuan Road, East to Yanhai Avenue, Jinjiang, Quanzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

Next to Shiji Avenue, Luoshang Sub-district, Jinjiang, Quanzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

Xintang Garden, Economy development district, Jinjiang, Quanzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

Changxi 2nd Road, Xiangcheng District, Zhangzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

North to Changping Road, South to Wenhua Zhongxin South Road, Changleng Town, Xinjian District, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC
No.333, Zhenxing Avenue, Nanchang County, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC

North to Jinying Road, South to Xindi Road, West to Fota Road, Qingyunpu District, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC

Parcel North to Yincheng Road, East to Dongxiang Road (Fusheng Road), Nanchang County, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC

No.36, Wenzong Street, Honggutan New District, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC

No.777, Gezaoshan Avenue, Honggutan New District, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC

North to Wenshanyi Road, East to Yinhuzhong Road, Nanchang County, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC

North to temporary dwellings phase 3, West to Teaching Team, South to Shuangmashi Road, East to Chenjia Road, Wanli District,

Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC

North to Yuefangnan Road, West to Huochang Road, South to Tianxiangyi Road, East to Changdong Avenue, South to Yuefangnan Road,
East to Shichangnan Road, Qingshanhu District, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC

North to Aixi first Road, East to Chuangxin first Road, Gaoxin District, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC

North to Fuxing Road, West to Baishuixian Road, South to Fenghuangzhou Road, East to Jinggangshan Avenue, Chengnan New District, Ji'an,
Jiangxi Province, PRC

North to Chongwen Road, West to Gunan Avenue, South to Fuxing Road, East to Baishuixian Road, Chengnan New District, Ji'an,
Jiangxi Province, PRC
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KEH FE R TR A W/ Hit ER 1
i HHAR Wl T A 45 BumE  (CFIk) (#) EaN:E] (FF k)
Interest Attributable Primary  Site Area Land Cost Actual/Estimated Land Bank”
# Project Names City tothe Group  Intended Use" (sq.m.) (RMB10,000) Completion Date (sq.m.)
12 HESRERRH Yichun Jintou Zhenro Mansion % Yichun 35.00% R/RE 55,027 26,600 2022106 26,01
123 HEEAGARE—H Yichun Zhenro Yuelinglong Phase 1 % Yichun 100.00% RRE 48549 27375 2022005 6771
124 HEESHBE N Yichun Zhenro Yuelinglong Phase 2 HHYichun 100.00% R/RE 49,205 37,900 2023/11 133,094
125 EREELBIIMBEBITH  Yichun Zhenro Yango Feili Riverside Bay i Yichun 49.00% R/RE 38,920 20,700 202311 109,194
i 6 95 /) 5 Western Taiwan Straits Region Sub-total 3,687,318 4,077 483 3,765,965
126 T 7 0 Guangzhou Nansha Parcel % M| Guangzhou 25.50% RIRE/S&O 12,679 102,135 2024104 72,580
127 JHG 38 Guangzhou Zengcheng Parcel %M Guangzhou 100.00% RIRE 50,673 149,000 2024104 215,383
128 JEM 1 E S Guangzhou Baiyun District Zhongluotan Parcel % H{Guangzh 51.00% R 58,507 209,088 2024/04 190917
129 1L IE 4 238 E 48 iy Foshan Zhenro Jihua Zhenro Mansion b 1liFoshan 100.00% RRE 51,189 124,969 2023109 184,969
130 1l 2 PR3 RE TR IE AR Y Foshan Jinmao Country Garden Zhenro Mansion ~ {#11{Foshan 34.00% R/RE 97,814 300,428 2024/12 107,994
¥ = /)i Pearl River Delta Region Sub-total 270,862 885,620 771,842
7K 55 2 i kD 8,521,888 12,966,058 13,563,064
Sub-total of Land Bank Developed by the Group’s Subsidiaries
AW B 3 ROBE A vi B %
Properties Developed by the Group's Joint Ventures and Associated Companies
131 LUl Shanghai BU Center i Shanghai 19.00% RE/S&O 70,857 143,000 2022106 347,575
132 7R A L Jiaxing Zhongnan Zhenro Haishang Mingyue ~ F5BJiaxing 41.50% R/RE 33,424 34,500 2019/12 3,841
133 FELIE IR I Jiaxing Zhenro Cifi Light Blooming Land ¥ WJiaxing 23.75% R 58,321 87482 2019/12 987
134 SR ES ) Suzhou Flavour Yue Four Seasons Garden B M Suzhou 19.00% R 56,479 36,069 2019/12 26,963
135 BAmENEE Suzhou Yingxi Four Seasons Garden B Suzhou 18.91% R/RE 95,836 156,170 2022003 154,068
136 BN HEE Suzhou Jiangnan Cloud Chapter EiMSuzhou 38.95% R/RE/S&O 62,582 249,953 2022112 53,459
137 B EX T Wuxi Zhenro Jade Yue G Wuxi 50.00% R/RE 78,590 190,117 2023/08 210,345
138 HMBAIE A 2K Hangzhou Sunac Zhenro Hangyao City FiMHangzhou 24.23% RIRE 52,122 284,066 2024104 219,040
139 HiR AT Nanjing Zhenro Rungi Mansion T Nanjing 27.85% RRE 30,844 164,000 2023/10 98429
140 AU T I AR R 2 Nanjing China Merchant Zhento East 7 Nanjing 49.00% R/RE/S&O 90,981 224,000 202111 131,612
Forwarding Mansion
M AN Nanjing Long Yue FIA Nanjing 33.00% R 3505 134,000 2021106 9,068
142 AL Nanjing Riverside Mansion R Nanjing 50.00% R/RE 67,583 297,500 2023/07 21343
143 MR ELBAN Nanjing Zhenro Runhe Mansion T Nanjing 24.28% RRE 48,786 121,000 2023108 166,679
144 TR L - 5 Chuzhou Hongyang Times Billow Courtyard 1/ Chuzhou 30.00% RRE 89,886 46,600 2020006 17,750
145 TR A B Xuzhou Parasol Mansion &M Xuzhou 25.00% RRE 166471 83,013 202206 146,509
146 M &L Xuzhou Splendid Mountain Mansion &M Xuzhou 33.00% RRE 147,532 91,903 202206 68,243
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Land Bank

Project Address

Yichun Zhenro Jintou Yuanzhou Mansion, Yiyang Avenue, Yuanzhou District, Yichun, Jiangxi Province, PRC

Guangrun Community to the North, Guihualongpu Road to the West, Yuanzhoudong Road to the East, Yuanzhou Avenue to the South,

opposite to high-speed rail station, Yuanzhou District, Yichun, Jiangxi Province, PRC
East to Gaotiedongjiu Road, South to Yuanzhou Avenue, Yichun, Jiangxi Province, PRC

West to Yi'An Highway, East to Xinfang River, North to Yuanzhou Avenue, Yichun, Jiangxi Province, PRC

of B R R A 0 e KA

of R4 M S8 A5 8 e K A

o B R M 7 1 T R A B R

of B R L R

o R4 B0 MBI S Ao B DA BB LATS

South to Jingang Avenue, Nansha Street, Nansha District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, PRC

North to Nanbei Avenue, Lihu Street, Zengcheng District, G hou, Guangdong Province, PRC
East to Fulong Road, Zhongluotan, Baiyun District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, PRC
West to Jujin Road, Chancheng District, Foshan, Guangdong Province, PRC

West to Zongsan Road, South to Lezhong Road, Lecong Town, Shunde District, Foshan, Guangdong Province, PRC
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North to Huiding Road, South to Yinggang East Road, West to Xiangyanghe Road, East to Panxiu Road, Qingpu District, Shanghai, PRC
Chaoyang Road, Xincang Town, Pinghu, Jiaxing, Zhejiang Province, PRC

Outer Ring West Road, Weitang Street, Jiashan County, Jiaxing, Zhejiang Province, PRC

Building 4, Industrial Park District, Miaoquanwuzhuang Village, Guli Town, Changshu, Jiangsu Province, PRC

West to Wendu Road, North to Yuting Road, Wangting Town, Xiangcheng District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

North to Jizhi Street, South to Dongtaihu Road, West to Leishan Road, East to Xixia Street, Taihu New Town, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC
Southeast to the Crossroad of Xinhua Road and Xixian Road, Xinwu District, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, PRC

North to Guihua Nanyuan Road, West to Guihua Jingyuan Road, South to 6th Street, East to 3rd Street, Xiasha Development District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province, PRC

East to Zhijia Garden, West to Magao Road, Maqun Street, Qixia District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

East Forwarding Mansion, Crossroad of Jiuxianghe East Road and Siwang Road, Jiangning District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Longyuemingdi, East to the Crossroad of Siwang Road and Jiuxianghe East Road, Jiangning District, Nanjiang, Jiangsu Province, PRC
Parcel No.3, Economic and Technological Development Zone, Qixia District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

West to Kejihuan Road, South to Guihua Road, East to Tuanjie Avenue, North to Yuanxi Road, Jiangbei New District, Nanjing,

Jiangsu Province, PRC

Crossroad of Nangiao South Road and Jingzi Road, Southern Government Affairs New District, Nangiao District, Chuzhou,
Anhui Province, PRC

Crossroad of Huashan Road and Hanjiang Road, Tongshan District, Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Eastside of 200 meters North to the Crossroad of Huashan Road and Fenghu Road, Tongshan District, Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

—ECCFFR 4 3
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Land Bank
KEH FE R TR A W/ Hit ER 1
i HHAR Wl T A 45 BumE  (CFIk) (#) EaN:E] (FF k)
Interest Attributable Primary  Site Area Land Cost Actual/Estimated Land Bank”
# Project Names City tothe Group  Intended Use" (sq.m.) (RMB10,000) Completion Date (sq.m.)
147 NS Xuzhou Jade Cullinan M Xuzhou 30.00% R/RE 45,351 92,900 2022001 1,712
148 AIRERNHE Hefei Zhenro Capital Yue & Hefei 58.21% RRES&O 118793 195,390 2023106 111475
149 AR E Hefei Joy River New Chapter A Hefei 33.00% R/RE 67,834 90,559 2022005 106,651
150 AZEHEELBEMEA Luan Councry Garden Zhenro A% Lu'an 34.38% RRE 199,979 110,200 2023112 439,101

South Phoenix Mansion

151 BB IE 4R Fuyang Yingzhou Zhenro Mansion B BiFuyang 50.00% RIRE 101,718 86,055 2025107 309,517
R = £/ it Yangtze River Delta Region Sub-total 1,721,024 2918477 2,864,367
152 KB RIER Wuhan Qingneng Zhenro Mansion HIEWuhan 32.00% RRE 156,500 104,800 2022005 347,119
153 HEERM R Xuchang Furongyue Mansion T EXuchang 32.16% R/RE 20994 18,732 2021/05 16,905
/it Central China Region Sub-total 177,494 123,532 364,024
154 TR AER Chongging Central Jade Cloud F B Chongging 20.00% R 150,048 215,072 2025/07 195,658
15 /N Western Chinal Sub-total 150,048 215,072 195,658
155 FHELTRERA Tianjin Zhenro Zhengxing Pinnacle K H Tianjin 49.95% R/RE/S&O 18,185 181,000 2023/05 124,500
156 K HE I A b Tianjin Wisedom Luck Elegance Garden K H Tianjin 14.00% R/RE/S&O 45,511 194,300 2021/12 10,695
157 FHEMESUEE) Tianjin Longfor Zhenro Jasper Sky K H Tianjin 1250% RRE 133956 256,030 202301 28931
158 PR:yIRL Tianjin Jiuhe Mansion KM Tianjin 18.00% R/RE 52,482 352,000 202012 117,799
159 UM Tianjin Jinmen Zhenro Mansion K Tianjin 50.00% RRE 137,767 223,300 202211 133,907
160 KHERHR Tianjin Yunxi Runchen K Tianjin 50.00% R/RE 32,702 65,500 2023/10 90,278
161 it Jinan Jade Yue i Jinan 24.62% R/RE/S&O 57,78 110996 2022106 257875
162 T E AR RN Jinan Zhenro Yuetang Garden House it Jinan 24.62% R/RE/SKO 2,013 110,996 2022001 40,362
163 hiigeEs8 Jinan Jiu Long Mansion T Jinan 32.84% RRE 101,792 108,150 2022/12 10947
164 g BLEH Jinan Phoenix First Mansion i Jinan 20.00% R/RE 51,597 194,500 2022102 10,340
165 KRR Jinan Tianchen Mansion i Jinan 20.00% R/RE 51,614 194,500 2021/10 9,876
166 e S6 A Jinan Jingyue Mansion HHJinan 15.00% R/RE 40,843 149,900 2022/01 7,509
167 N Jinan Park Academy K Jinan 15.00% RARE 46,541 149,900 2021/09 8,042
168 FE bR Jinan Times Glory Jinan 33.00% R/RE 84,949 168,000 2023/09 135,401
B33 /) it Bohai Rim Region Sub-total 878,737 2,459,072 1,186,460
169 I8 M0G0 B I AR R I Xiamen Lianfa Zhenro Zhenhua Mansion [ M Xiamen 24.99% RRE 46,551 266,000 2024103 142,883
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Land Bank

Project Address

West to Kuangshan East Road and North to Huaihai West Road, Quanshan District, Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC
Northeast corner of the Crosstoad of Dazhong Road and Huaihai Avenue, Hefei, Anhui Province, PRC
Southeast to the Crossroad of Huaihai Avenue and Qianling Road, Yaohai District, Hefei, Anhui Province, PRC

Crossroad of Qingxi Road and Xingguang Avenue, Lu'an, Anhui Province, PRC

South to Qinghe East Road, West to Jingjiu Road, Yingzhou District, Fuyang, Anhui Province, PRC

oL T R LR T B
o R MR AT BB AL

North to Hankou North Avenue, East to Shenghai Avenue, Wuhu Street, Huangpo District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC

North to Hongteng Road, West to Qingmei Road, Jian'an District, Xuchang, Henan Province, PRC

o B R B Y AL 2 [

Section C of the two-way group in Liangjiang New District, Chongging, China
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South to Huanghe Road, Nankai District, Tianjin, PRC

Crossroad of Dongxing Road and Xinkuo Road, Hedong District, Tianjin, PRC

North to Taizhou Road, West to Fuxianhu Road, Beitang Economic District, Binhai New District, Tianjin, PRC
Northwest to the Crossroad of Shuanghuan Road and Jianing Road, Honggiao District, Tianjin, PRC

South to Jiatai Avenue, West to Ruixue Road, Zhangjiawo Town, Xiging District, Tianjin, PRC

North to Bohanghuan Road, West to Chenxi Road, South to Fengze Road, East to Jingfu Road, Zhangjiawo Town, Xiqing District,
Tianjin, PRC

East to Xingfuliu Road, North to Kaiyuan Middle Road, Licheng District, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC

East to Xingfuliu Road, North to Kaiyuan Middle Road, Licheng District, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC

North to the planed Tangwangshan Road East Extension, East to Xiushui Main Street, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC
East to Aoti Middle Road, North to Kaiyuan Middle Road, Licheng District, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC

East to Aoti Middle Road, North to Kaiyuan Middle Road, Licheng District, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC

West to Zhangma Main Street, North to Kaiyuan Middle Road, Licheng District, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC
East to Xingfuliu Road, North to Kaiyuan Middle Road, Licheng District, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC

East to Xingfuliu Road, North to Kaiyuan Middle Road, Licheng District, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC

of B AR T 8 A = B B SR B A 7

Southwest to the Crossroad of Xinjing Xisan Road and Xinjing Xier Road, Haicang District, Xiamen, Fujian Province, PRC
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Land Bank

KEH FE R TR A W/ Hit ER 1

i HHAR Wl T A 45 BumE  (CFIk) (#) EaN:E] (FF k)

Interest Attributable Primary  Site Area Land Cost Actual/Estimated Land Bank”

# Project Names City tothe Group  Intended Use" (sq.m.) (RMB10,000) Completion Date (sq.m.)

170 HHBEHEREN K Putian Lianfa Zhenro Yuhu Sky Land # HPutian 37.00% R/RE/A 2877 60,000 202211 72,792

171 B R IE 4 Nanchang Dongtou Zhenro Mansion T4 ENanchang 40.00% R/RE 50,811 80,104 202411 170,879

172 HEEEBEWCMIE  Jian Zhenro Yango Wen Lan Mansion H%Jian 48.25% RRE 82468 76,324 2022106 3,47

173 WM E S B RT Ganzhou Zhenro Yuerong Mansion M Ganzhou 50.00% R/RE 32,740 17,022 2022001 11,097

174 ERAEETEXRILE Mavwei Country Garden Zhenro Yue River Bay — 4&{Fuzhou 33.33% R/RE 47,200 39,300 2021/05 45,514

175 B IE A4 At Fuzhou Zhenro Shimao Vesture Mountain South  4{Fuzhou 40.00% R/RE 47,334 181,000 2022/12 160,697

176 MBS EZ I Fuzhou Yango Poly Yuanxi Garden Hi M Fuzhou 20.00% R 131972 122,500 2019/11 102,771

1 5 7 1 /1 i Western Taiwan Straits Region Sub-total 461,953 842,250 730,071

177 0L IE 48 L Foshan Zhenro Redco Guanshan Mansion fih1lIFoshan 49.00% R/RE 51,714 103,700 2024/01 199,597

¥k = /)i Pearl River Delta Region Sub-total 51,714 103,700 199,597

RS A5 A R i 0 A 3,440970 6,662,103 5,540,177
Sub-total of Land Bank Developed by the Group’s Joint Ventures and Associated Companies

H5 Total 11,962,857 19,628,160 19,103,242
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Land Bank
A H M Project Address
o 0 R I Within the control range of Yuhu Sub-district, Licheng District, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC
PRI E A TR B R B A SOl — bt North to Wenshanyi Road, West to Dongxiang Road, Nanchang County, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC
BTG 55 %l KRB DR~ i B IR R 9 2 S T DA~ A AT North to Shaoshan West Road, West to Shiyang Road, South to New Office Building of City Environment Protection Bureau,
HRLTG B AL East to Jizhou Avenue, Ji'an, Jiangxi Province, PRC
oL G A M A A K ﬁ il East to Rongjiang Avenue, South to Gannan Avenue, Ganzhou, Jiangxi Province, PRC
TRRREENTRREESLANS Minting, Tingjiang Town, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
o A A T TR B R A L L Northwest corner of the Crossroad of Tatou Road and Erhuan Road, Jin'an District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
P AN TS G e S AT o R A s — Parcel 1, Guihuhoulong Community, Luohan Village, Huanxi Town, Jin'An District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
o R L A I R R R R R Southeast to Qiaojin Road and Chongmin Road, Xiqiao New District, Foshan, Guangdong Province, PRC
[if Note:
(1) R:AEERE: FH S SOHO; O AT s A LE (1) R: Residential; RE: Retail; S: SOHO; O: Office; A: Ancillary
Q AEBMLAREYEELEEROFOC R LY ET (2) Total GFA of the Group’s land bank includes (i) total GFA available for sale and total
el EEEEE R HEEER Mg wE leasable GFA for completed properties, (ii) total GFA for properties under development
11 2 5 TR JR G 9 1 KR D B D S M R B T A and (iii) total GFA for properties held for future development.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Set out below are biographical details of directors and senior management

of the Company as at the date of approval of this annual report:

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Weiliang (BIf%3%), aged 38, was appointed as an executive
Director on 8 June 2020. He served as the vice-chairman of the Board
during the period from 26 March 2021 to 19 January 2023 and was re-
designated as the Chairman with effect from 20 January 2023. Mr. LIU has
over 15 years of experience in the real estate industry. He obtained a
bachelor’s degree in engineering management from Changsha University of

Science & Technology in 2007.

Mr. LIU joined the Group in June 2016 and has held various key positions
successively, including: (i) the deputy general manager of Zhenro (Changsha)
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (E%(%@)E%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ]) and the project manager
for Yichun project of Zhenro Properties Holdings Company Limited*
(E%i’@%ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬂﬁfﬁﬁ FE/AEI) (“Zhenro Properties Holdings”) from
June 2016 to August 2017; (i) the general manager of the merger
department of the strategic investment centre and subsequently the general
manager of the strategic investment centre of Zhenro Properties Holdings
from August 2017 to May 2019; (iii) the vice president of Zhenro
Properties Holdings from May 2019 to January 2021; and (iv) a director of
Zhenro Properties Holdings since November 2019.

Mzr. LIU has also held several positions in Zhenro Group Co., Ltd. (IFE4E%
A PR 7)) (formerly known as Fujian Zhenro Group Co., Ltd. (R IE
AL A RN A])) (“Zhenro Group Company”) since November 2018.
He served successively as the deputy general manager of the strategic
operation centre, the general manager of the human resources department,
the assistant to the chief executive officer and the executive vice president.
In November 2022, Mr. LIU was appointed as a non-executive director of
Zhenro Services Group Limited (“Zhenro Services”) (a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 06958) and he was then
appointed as the chairman of the board of directors of Zhenro Services in
January 2023. Before joining the Group, Mr. LIU worked in several real
estate companies in the PRC, including (i) the development manager of
Evergrande Properties Changsha Real Estate Co., Ltd. ('fﬁjﬁﬂﬁé%‘@ﬁ
2£/\F]) and the deputy general manager of Chenzhou Real Estate Co.,
Led. (HEHH B 223 A]) successively from July 2008 to May 2012; and (ii)
the deputy general manager of Heneng Properties Changsha Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (g E =10 & 2/ A)) from May 2012 to June 2016
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Biographies of the Directors and

SR EEEERE
hior Management

Mr. LI Yang (Z2¥¥), aged 37, was appointed as the executive Director and
the executive vice president of the Company on 26 March 2021 and has
been appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company with effect
from 13 September 2022. Mr. LI is mainly responsible for the overall
management of the day-to-day operations of the Group. He has over 10
years of experience in the real estate industry. Mr. LI obtained a bachelor’s
degree in arts from Anhui Polytechnic University (formerly known as
Anhui Institute of Engineering and Technology (ﬁ%ﬁi*ﬁﬂ?ﬁ% [%n’i’)) in
July 2008 and obtained a master’s degree in arts from Anhui University in
July 2011.

Mr. LI joined the Group in April 2018, and has held various key positions
successively, including: (i) the regional executive deputy general manager
and general manager in the Hefei region, and regional general manager in
the Zhengzhou region successively from April 2018 to July 2019; (ii) the
assistant to the chief executive officer and vice president of Zhenro
Properties Holdings successively from July 2019 to January 2021; and (iii)
a director and the executive vice president of Zhenro Properties Holdings
from January 2021 to June 2022, and (iv) the president of Zhenro
Properties Holdings since June 2022. From July 2019, Mr. LI has been
responsible for the management of various functional departments
successively, including design, operation, investment, sales and marketing,
human resources and administration, legal and audit. Before joining the
Group, Mr. LI served in various roles in H-Change Group (1 4E [H 45 FR
A7), including: (i) a general manager of the Hefei company and an
assistant to the president of Eastern China region successively from July
2011 to August 2017; and (ii) the operation vice president of the Southern
China region from August 2017 to April 2018.

Non-executive Director

Mr. OU Guowei (I [B{&), aged 34, was appointed as the non-executive
Director on 20 September 2017. He is the son of Mr. OU Zongrong, the
Company’s controlling shareholder. Mr. OU is primarily responsible for
providing strategic advice and recommendations on the operations and
management of the Group. He has over 12 years of experience in the PRC
real estate industry. Mr. OU graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University (7384 KB in February 2010, with a bachelor’s degree in

economics majoring in international economics and trade.

—ECCFFR 4 Q
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Before joining the Company, Mr. OU served various positions in Nanchang
Zhenro (Singapore) Real Estate Co., Led. (BB IEZEGH I B 2 A TR A
H)), including the chief officer of human resources from October 2009 till
November 2011, the general manager from December 2011 till February
2013 and the chairman of the board of directors from March 2013 till
February 2014. He also served as the assistant to the chief executive officer
of Zhenro Group Company from March 2013 to March 2016 and has been
a non-executive director of Zhenro Properties Holdings since December

2015. Mr. OU is also the vice president of Fujian Association of Commerce

in Shanghai (I 1 1T 48 2 75 ).

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam, FE#§HK), aged 73, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 15 December 2017. He is the
chairman of the audit committee of the Company. Dr. LOKE is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of the Group. He has over 42 years of working experience in
accounting and auditing for listed and unlisted companies, corporate
governance, financial consultancy and corporate management. Dr. LOKE
holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Universiti
Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration degree from
University of South Australia. He is a fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries). Dr.
LOKE is also a life member of The Hong Kong Independent Non-

Executive Director Association.

In addition to his directorship in the Company, Dr. LOKE also serves as an
independent non-executive director of the following companies whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange: Hang Sang (Siu Po) International
Holding Company Limited, Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company
Limited, Matrix Holdings Limited, China Silver Technology Holdings
Limited (formerly known as TC Orient Lighting Holdings Limited) and
Tianjin Development Holdings Limited, and Dr. LOKE is also a non-
executive director of Veson Holdings Limited (formerly known as SCUD
Group Limited).
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During the three years immediately preceding the date of approval of this
annual report, Dr. LOKE was an independent non-executive director of the
following companies whose shares are listed on/were listed on and
subsequently delisted from the Stock Exchange: CIMC-TianDa Holdings
Company Limited (formerly known as China Fire Safety Enterprise Group
Limited) (now delisted) from August 2006 to January 2021, Chiho
Environmental Group Limited from June 2010 to December 2021, Crazy
Sports Group Limited (formerly known as V1 Group Limited) from May
2005 to May 2022, Times Universal Group Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Forebase International Holdings Limited) from April 2016 to
September 2022, TradeGo Fintech Limited from August 2018 to February
2023, Zhong An Group Limited (formerly known as Zhong An Real Estate
Limited) from June 2009 to June 2021 and Tianhe Chemicals Group
Limited (now delisted) from May 2014 to May 2020.

Mr. WANG Chuanxu (FEf#)F), aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 December 2017. He is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of the Group. Mr. WANG has over 20 years of experience in
the finance industry and providing secretarial and corporate service to
listed companies in the PRC. He obtained his bachelor’s degree in
engineering majoring in industrial moulding design from East China
University of Science and Technology (FER I T KE) in the PRC in July
1994 and his master’s degree in economics majoring in political economics
from East China Normal University (FER TR EL) in the PRC in July
1998. Mr. WANG was granted the qualification of securities investment
consulting by China Securities Regulatory Commission in December 1999.
He also obtained the certificate of secretary to the board of directors of
listed companies issued by Shenzhen Stock Exchange in November 2008.

TECCOFER 6 "‘
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Mr. WANG had held several positions in a number of listed companies,
including being: a researcher and then the senior manager of investment
banking of Industrial Securities Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 601377.SH) from June 1998 to May
2007, a business director of investment banking department of Sinolink
Securities Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 600109.SH) from May 2007 to December 2008, the vice
general manager, the secretary to the board of directors and other positions
of Fujian Zhongfu Industries Co., Ltd. (currently known as Zhongfu Straits
(Pingtan) Development Company Limited) (a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000592.SZ) from December 2008 to
September 2011, the vice general manager and the secretary to the board of
Thaihot Group Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 000732.SZ) from November 2011 to April 2014
and the vice general manager of Greattown Holdings Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600094.SH) from July
2014 to March 2015.

Mr. WANG served as an executive director of Shanghai NextDV Software
Company Limited (J:{@{Eﬁlﬁﬁ'}(ﬁ:ﬁ Bﬁ/z_\\ﬁj) from August 2015 to
August 2020. He has served as a consultant of Nanjing Sidu Information
Technology Co., Ltd. (lt'ﬁ}ifﬁ jF{n ._‘ﬁ#ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\j) since August
2020 and as an executive director of Shanghai Duwei Consulting
Management Co., Led. ([ IEGIEEHE BEA R/ F]) since December
2021.

Mr. XIE Jun GB&), aged 44, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 13 September 2022. Mr. XIE has nearly 20 years of
extensive experience in the capital markets, real estate industry, cross-
border investment and financing business, multinational enterprises, large
state-owned enterprises, private enterprises and asset management for
high-net-worth individuals. Mr. XIE holds a master’s degree in business
administration from the University of Hertfordshire, United Kingdom. He
is licensed by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong as a
responsible officer of CRIC Securities Company Limited in relation to Type
1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”). He was
also granted Certification of Securities Professional in China by Securities
Association of China and Certification of China Banking Professional by
China Banking Association, and passed the Senior Management
Qualification Tests approved by China Securities Regulatory Commission
and China Banking Insurance Regulatory Commission, respectively.
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Mr. XIE has been the chief executive officer of CRIC Securities Company
Limited, a licensed corporation under the SFO in Hong Kong, since
January 2019 and has been the chairman of Snow Park Resort Japan
Company Limited since June 2021. He had held several management
positions in a number of companies, including being: a director and the
chairman of Leading Securities Company Limited of Japan from June 2019
to June 2022; the general manager of the international business department
of Western Securities Company Limited (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 002673.SZ) from January 2016 to December
2018; the general manager of asset and wealth management of BNP
Paribas (China) Limited from November 2011 to December 2015; the
general manager of asset and wealth management of Credit Suisse AG
Shanghai Branch from June 2007 to November 2011; and the vice
president of Shanghai Hong Kong Plaza Sub-branch of HSBC Bank (China)
Company Limited from April 2004 to June 2007.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Joint Company Secretaries

Mr. CHAN King Tak (B P8), the chief financial officer and joint
company secretary of the Company, joined the Company in September
2022. He has over 20 years of experience in capital markets, financial
management, corporate finance, compliance with the Listing Rules and
corporate governance. He graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a bachelor’s degree majoring in Accountancy in 2002, and
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with an executive
master’s degree in business administration in 2021. He is currently a fellow
member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. CHAN worked in several listed companies and

an international accounting firm.

Ms. KWONG Yin Ping, Yvonne (BE#EHE), the joint company secretary
of the Company. She is a vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group
(Hong Kong) Limited. She holds a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow of The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators). Ms. KWONG has extensive experience in providing
company secretarial and compliance services to numerous private and listed
companies. She is currently the named company secretary or joint company

secretary of several companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

—ECCFFR 6 3
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities

of the Group are property development and property leasing.

BUSINESS REVIEW
General

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on
the Group’s future business development are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement, as well as the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 5
to 7 and pages 8 to 33, respectively, of this annual report. An analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages
8 to 33 of this annual report. Save as disclosed in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Subsequent Events” in this
annual report, the Group has no significant events after the end of the
financial year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of approval of

this annual report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties the Group faces include (i) uncertainty as
to the acquiring of land reserves for development in desirable locations at
commercially acceptable prices; (ii) uncertainty as to business expansion
into new geographic locations; (iii) uncertainty as to obtaining sufficient
funding for land acquisitions and future developments; (iv) risks related to
the fluctuation of profitability of property projects; (v) risks related to
obtaining administrative certificates; (vi) risks related to the performance
of the PRC property markets; (vii) risks related to the government policies
and regulations regarding the PRC property industry; and (viii) risks

related to the increasing raw materials price and labour costs.

The financial risks of the Group mainly include foreign exchange rate risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. These financial risks, and
the related risk management policies and practices used by the Group are
discussed in note 43 headed “Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies” to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

It is the Group’s corporate and social responsibility in promoting a
sustainable and environmental friendly environment, and the Group strives
to minimize its environmental impact and comply with the applicable
environmental laws and regulations. The measures the Group takes to
ensure its compliance with the applicable environmental laws and
regulations include: (i) strictly selecting construction contractors and
supervising the process of construction; (ii) applying for review by the
relevant government authorities in a timely manner after the project is
completed; and (iii) actively adopting environmentally friendly equipment
and designs. The Group also takes voluntary actions with respect to
environmental protection and makes energy conservation and emission

reduction as primary considerations when designing its property projects.

None of the Group’s properties had received any material fines or penalties
associated with the breach of any environmental laws or regulations during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Group’s 2022 Environmental, Social and Governance Report shall be

published separately on the same date as this annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group continues to keep itself updated over the requirement of the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure compliance. The
Group had complied with all relevant laws and regulations in all material
aspects and has obtained all applicable material licenses, approvals and

permits from relevant regulatory authorities.

Relationship with Employees

The Group believes high-quality employees who value its corporate culture
are essential elements to promote the Group’s sustainable growth. The
Group intends to attract and retain skilled and talented employees through
various initiatives, including training programs, competitive compensation

packages and effective incentive system.

For details regarding employees and staff costs and the emolument policy
of the Group, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report —
Employees and Remuneration Policy”.

TECCOFER 6 6
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Relationship with Suppliers

The Group is dedicated to developing good relationship with suppliers as
long-term business partners to ensure stability of the Group’s businesses.
The Group reinforces business partnerships with suppliers by ongoing

communication in a proactive and effective manner.

For details regarding the Group’s major suppliers, please refer to the

section headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.

Relationship with Customers

Customers’ satisfaction with the Group’s services and products has a
profound effect on business and returns. The Group’s dedicated sales team
is in constant communication with customers and potential customers to
uncover and create customer needs and help customers make informed
decisions. Identification of customers’ pain points alongside grasping the
market trend are critical for the Group to timely adjust its operating

strategies to fit the market requirement.

For details regarding the Group’s major customers, please refer to the

section headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
state of the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 103 to 299.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (for the year ended 31 December 2021: Nil). As
at 31 December 2022, there was no arrangement under which a shareholder

of the Company had waived or agreed to waive any dividends.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) will be held on
Friday, 16 June 2023. A notice convening the AGM will be published on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and dispatched to
the shareholders of the Company in accordance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules in due course. For the purpose of determination of
eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 13 June 2023 to Friday, 16 June
2023 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be effected. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM to be held on Friday, 16 June 2023, all transfer of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later
than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Monday, 12 June 2023.

RESERVES

Changes to the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Changes to the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 13
to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 are set

out in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022
amounted to approximately RMB4.2 million.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for

the last five financial years is set out on page 300 of this annual report.
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
GROUP’S LISTED SECURITIES

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the

Group during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date
of approval of this annual report were:

8k r

Position

PATER FEHREEHBRTHAR (A F - F A+ = HERE
THAEE: A —F _=F-H - tHERIRITEF R EFGLF)
Executive Director, chairman of the Board and chief executive officer
(resigned as the chief executive officer with effect from 13 September 2022;
resigned as an executive Director and chairman of the Board with effect
from 20 January 2023)

BTEFREFGRI IR (A F = -4 - +tHEOEFGH
TR AL EER G W)

Executive Director and vice chairman of the Board (re-designated from vice
chairman of the Board to chairman of the Board with effect from 20
January 2023)

HATER THASREHAAR (A X" F LA+ =HEEX
1 AT B )

Executive Director, chief executive officer and executive vice president
(appointed as the chief executive officer with effect from 13 September
2022)

HATE SR - BIABIMHAE (A —F - 4L + = HEEHE)
Executive Director, vice president and chief financial officer (resigned with
effect from 13 September 2022)

FRATES

Non-executive Director

W PATES

Independent non-executive Director

BT E S

Independent non-executive Director
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Position

WAL RPATES (A ZF AU = HEEHE)
Independent non-executive Director (resigned with effect from 13
September 2022)

B FRATER (A F LA = HREZRT)

Independent non-executive Director (appointed with effect from 13
September 2022)

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, Mr. LIU
Weiliang, Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam) and Mr. XIE Jun shall
retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

None of Mr. LIU Weiliang, Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam) and Mr.
XIE Jun has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than under normal statutory obligations.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out in “Biographies of the Directors and Senior

Management” in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in Note 40 to the
financial statements and the continuing connected transactions as disclosed
in the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this
Directors’ Report, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2022.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the continuing connected transactions as disclosed in the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this Directors’ Report,
there was no other contract of significance between the Company or any of
its subsidiaries and any controlling shareholder of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, nor other contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2022.

—ECCFFR 6 Q
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1 2

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at

31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors

or the chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and

debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the

meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be

kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as notified to

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix

10 to

the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

Interest in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company

Name of member/associated

Director/Chief Executive corporation

AR B A28 ]

Mr. HUANG Xianzhi The Company
B 24 ft S 2 A

Mr. OU Guowet The Company
W 5E

W) AR ERHE AR I S A e

@  #% 217,140,000 & B iy & B Warm
Shine Limited 5 A ©

3) Bk I 5 56 A= 5 Warm Shine Limited 9 M —
BERESEA N HARIERE S &
66 91 > 4 Bk #1249 ® Warm Shine Limited %
A HE A5 10 B 0y oh AT RE 4 o

é O ERHEREARAT

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Notes:

1)

()

3)

A8 A 2> W] i HE

BEA T 4 b

Approximate

percentage of

B By BE %5 PR E O Ikt 8 H  shareholding

Capacity/ Number of in the

Nature of interest” Shares Company

FEE DN 4,569,000 0.10%
Beneficial owner

R YEL B AR 217,140,000? 4.97%

Interest in controlled

corporation®

All interests stated are long positions.
These 217,140,000 Shares are all held by Warm Shine Limited.
Mr. OU Guowei is the sole legal and beneficial owner of Warm Shine Limited and is

deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Warm Shine Limited is interested
under the SFO.
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AR oy ) £ RE W 0 RE AR Interest in debentures of the Company
T H B # 4T
7] %8000 i 2%
MR H 4
Approximate
AREERE AW fEHE®  percentage of
R Wk 3 1 44 R P N | holding in
ERRBITBAB A Name of Group B by WE £ Pk B O Principal the debentures
Name of member/associated Capacity/ amount of  of same class
Director/Chief Executive corporation Nature of interest” debentures in issue
B [ 8 2 A BN 3 PE P HE 4 O 1,410,000 % 7 0.19%
Mr. OU Guowei The Company Interest in controlled
corporation®
B 5 - Notes:
(1) FT 5 A TRE AR Y 2y 0T o (1) All interests stated are long positions.
2) O fE BE BB & ¥ M Strike Investment (2) These debentures are all held by Strike Investment Holdings Limited.
Holdings Limited : 47
(3) BB RSB A A Serike Investment Holdings (3)  Mr. OU Guowei is the sole legal and beneficial owner of Strike Investment Holdings
Limited IME— SR EZHA AN > HE Limited and is deemed to be interested in the debentures in which Strike Investment
2 5 N B B ] A vk B B R Serike Holdings Limited is interested under the SFO.
Investment Holdings Limited A RE 25 19 15
BERE T HE A RE 4T -
4 MBEEAEN -FFHBEI R (4)  The debentures are the senior notes due March 2023 with an aggregate principal
4 HE% 728,623,000 5 T % 17 8.09 4F | amount of US$728,623,000 bearing interest at a rate of 8.0% per annum.
EIsNINE: Suki-$iE 5/ &
NSRS T AR A S s i Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors nor
A=4+—H > M FH LARN A &Efr the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in

HABREAAFSREMEEB (ExE R any of the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
7 B B A ) B XV IS ) B E A~ A its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
J% 1 B A ME B8 P A AT AT AR 9 5B R K ) recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
BB 5352 M 2 AR N B B AT BB section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock
wo M BT RC BRI RE 25 Bk B > BN ZE R AR Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

LRSI b /A I @ T DK S )
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I (FE 5 A A A e AT BON B BRAM) it
J 53 =X AH B B 0 v 0 A AT o] AR 48 38 2% K
W15 6 9] 55 336 10 B8 A AN R JE AE B
B we T RE Bk 0 RE 2 Bk AT

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Pt 5 A B¢ B B L
WEBHEY MAESk

Number of  Approximate

S 8 FYER BE 45 P B Shares or percentage
Name of shareholder Nature of interest securities held” of interest
i o 2 e A @ 315 M 4 1,997,258,000(L) 45.73%
Mr. OU Zongrong® Interest in a controlled corporation

MR L £ Fic {8 HE £ 1,997,258,000(L) 45.73%
Ms. LIN Shuying® Interest of spouse

RoYue Limited R DN 1,890,826,000(L) 43.29%

Beneficial owner
P R E A B A PR Iy e FCA R 2R 0 A & 575,000,000(L) 13.16%

China Orient Asset Management Co., Ltd. Person having a security

interest in shares

P R AR 25,000,000(L) 0.57%

Interest in a controlled

corporation

B 5

O FERILE A BN 0% R G
LSS

@ A ¥ %$1,997,258,000 1 & B s
1,890,826,000 i & 13 H RoYue Limited F-F
H > 106,404,657 Bt Bt 13 HH RoJing Limited
R B K27343 M B i H RoJing ZR
(PTC) Limited £ A © Wik 5% %8 55 4 Ky RoYue
Limited > RoJing Limited & RoJing ZR (PTC)
Limited W) ME — G R E G HEA N>
B o B SE AR S A B 2 A RoYue Limited
¥ A 191,890,826,000 B A& 13 > RojJing
Limited 7¢ i 19106,404,657 & M 1y K
RoJing ZR (PTC) Limited 5 4 927,343 I
By AT BE 4 o

®) %iﬂ%ti%lﬁk%%%iﬁ’mﬂﬁ Ry

il 7R M B S XV AR o MR it

%ﬁﬁtﬁ’\ O AR S PR B A RE 4R Y AR 1)
%ﬂlﬁﬂxfﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁo

é 2 ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

(4)
Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

(2) These 1,997,258,000 Shares represent 1,890,826,000 Shares held by RoYue Limited,
106,404,657 Shares held by RoJing Limited and 27,343 shares held by Rojing ZR (PTC)
Limited. Mr. Ou Zongrong is the sole legal and beneficial owner of RoYue Limited,
RoJing Limited and Rojing ZR (PTC) Limited, therefore Mr. Ou Zongrong is deemed
to be interested in 1,890,826,000 Shares, 106,404,657 Shares and 27,343 Shares held
by RoYue Limited, RoJing Limited and Rojing ZR (PTC) Limited, respectively.

3) Ms. Lin Shuying is the spouse of Mr. Ou Zongrong. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms.
Lin Shuying is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Ou

Zongrong is interested.
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(4) Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by
Dongxing Securities Co., Ltd which in turn is owned as to 52.74% by China Orient
Asset Management Co., Ltd. By virtue of the SFO, China Orient Asset Management
Co., Ltd. and Dongxing Securities Co., Ltd are deemed to be interested in the Shares

in which Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited is interested.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and chief executive are not aware of
any other person, not being a Director or chief executive of the Company,
who had an interest or short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year.

MA]JOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2022, due to the nature of the Group’s business, revenue derived from
its top five customers accounted for less than 30% of total revenue, and the
purchases from its top five suppliers accounted for less than 30% of total

purchase cost.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules and the Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee consists of three members, namely Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE
Hoi Lam) and Mr. WANG Chuanxu, being independent non-executive
Directors, and Mr. OU Guowei, the non-executive Director. Dr. LOKE Yu
(alias LOKE Hoi Lam) has been appointed as the chairman of the Audit
Committee, and is the independent non-executive Director possessing the
appropriate professional qualifications. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee include: (i) making recommendations regarding the
appointment and removal of external auditors of the Company; (ii)
reviewing the accounting policies and financial positions of the Company; (iii)
reviewing and supervising the internal audit functions and internal control
structure of the Company; and (iv) reviewing and overseeing the risk
management of the Company.

—ECCFFR é 3
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The Group’s audited consolidated financial statements and the Company’s
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2022 were reviewed by the

Audit Committee before recommendation to the Board for approval.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association
of the Company, although there are no restrictions against such rights

under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the

shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 736 employees (31
December 2021: 1,467 employees). Please refer to Notes 6, 8, 9 and 41 to
the notes to financial statements in this annual report for details of
employee remuneration and benefit expense (including directors” and chief

executive’s remuneration) incurred for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Group recruits qualified personnel in local markets through various
channels, such as on-campus recruitment programs, recruiting firms,
internal referrals and advertisement on the Internet. The Group particularly
values employees who demonstrate loyalty to their work and who value
corporate culture, as well as those with relevant working experiences. The
Group’s future development, to a considerable extent, depends on its
ability to identify, hire, train and retain suitably skilled and qualified
employees, including management personnel, with relevant professional
skills. Therefore, the Group has established systematic training programs
for employees based on their positions and expertise.

The Group enters into labor contracts with all employees and offers
employees competitive remuneration packages that include basic salaries,
discretionary bonuses and performance-based payments. The Company has
also adopted the Share Option Scheme, details of which are set out in the
section headed “Directors’ Report — Share Option Scheme”.

Under the applicable PRC laws and regulations, the Group is subject to
social insurance contribution plans. The Group also participates in the

MPF Scheme for all employees in Hong Kong.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates its business mainly in the Mainland China. The
Mainland China based employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans operated by the relevant
municipal and provincial governments in the PRC (the “PRC Retirement
Scheme”) in accordance with the rules and regulations. The Group’s
subsidiaries which operate in the PRC are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage of the employees’
salaries. The municipal and provincial governments undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired PRC
based employees’ payable under the plans described above. Other than the
monthly contributions, the Group has no further obligation for the
payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of its employees.
The assets of these plans are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administrated funds managed by the PRC government.

The Group also participates in the MPF Scheme for all employees in Hong
Kong. The contributions to the MPF Scheme are based on minimum
statutory contribution requirement of the lower of 5% of eligible
employees’ relevant aggregate income and HK$1,500. The assets of this
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

There are no provisions under the PRC Retirement Scheme and MPF
Scheme whereby forfeited contributions may be used to reduce future
contributions. Particulars of the employee retirement benefits of the Group

are set out in Notes 2.4, 6, 8, 9 and 41 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 15 December 2017, the Share Option Scheme was conditionally
approved and adopted by the then shareholders of the Company and its

implementation is conditional on the listing.

(1) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company
with a means to incentivise the Participants (as defined below) and
retain employees of the Group, and to encourage employees to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and promote the long-

term development of the Company.

TECCOFER é 6
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(2)

(3)

Participants, Duration and Remaining Life

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board shall be
entitled at any time within the period of 10 years after the adoption
date, being 15 December 2017 to 14 December 2027, to grant
options to any director or employee of the Group who in the sole
discretion of the Board has contributed or will contribute to the
Group (the “Participant”). Subject to earlier termination by the
Company in general meetings or by the Board, the Share Option
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the adoption date. As at 31 December 2022, the
remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately 4 years
and 11 months.

No offer shall be made and no option shall be granted to any
Participant in circumstances prohibited by the Listing Rules at a
time when the Participant would or might be prohibited from
dealing in the Shares by the Listing Rules or by any applicable rules,
regulations or law. In particular, no options may be granted during
the period commencing one month immediately preceding the earlier
of (i) the date of the Board meeting (as such date is first notified to
the Stock Exchange in accordance with the Listing Rules) for the
approval of the Company’s results for any year, half-year, quarterly or
other interim period; and (ii) the deadline for the Company to
publish its interim or annual results announcement under the Listing
Rules; and ending on the date of actual publication of such results

announcement.

Maximum Number of Shares Available for Issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and all
other share option schemes existing at such time of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 400,000,000 Shares (representing 10%
of the total number of Shares in issue as of the date of the listing of
the Shares on the Stock Exchange, the “Scheme Mandate Limit”),
which represents 9.16% of the total number of Shares in issue as at
the date of approval of this annual report. The number of options
available for grant under the Share Option Scheme at the beginning
and the end of the year ended 31 December 2022 was 400,000,000.
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The Company may renew the Scheme Mandate Limit at any time
subject to prior shareholders’ approval but in any event, the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company under the limit as refreshed must
not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the

renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant and Scheme
Limit

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to any Participant
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12 month period shall not at the time of grant exceed
1% of the Shares in issue, unless otherwise separately approved by
shareholders in general meeting with such Participant and his

associates abstaining from voting.

At any time, the maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options which then have been granted and have
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of Shares in issue from time to time.

Grant of Options to Connected Persons or Any of their
Associates

Each grant of options to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or their respective associate(s), must be
approved by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the proposed grantee).
Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or their respective associate(s),
would result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options granted and to be granted under any share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date on which an offer of the grant of option is made to
the Participant (the “Offer Date”) representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the Shares in issue at the Offer Date, such grant of options must be
approved by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting, in
which the grantee, his/her associates and all core connected persons of

the Company must abstain from voting in favour of such resolution.
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Acceptance and Exercise of Options, Vesting Period

Participants are required to pay HK$1.00 as consideration for the
acceptance of an option granted to them. There is no specific period
set for such payment. The period for such acceptance and payment
are determined by the Board at the time of granting the options.

Subject to the terms of grant of any option, an option may be
exercised by the grantee at any time during the option period and in
accordance with the vesting schedule and other terms specified in the
offer. No option may be vested more than 10 years after the date of

grant.

Exercise Price

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the Board and
notified to a Participant but in any event shall be at least the higher
of:

o the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant of the option, which

must be a business day;

o the average of the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and

J the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

Option Granted

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no option had been granted
or agreed to be granted by the Company pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme, or were exercised, cancelled, lapsed or outstanding.

Further details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 December 2017.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of approval of this annual report and based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the minimum

public float of 25% as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young who shall
retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of auditor will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM. There has been no change in the
auditor of the Company during the past three years.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no reserve available for

distribution to shareholders of the Company.

INDEBTEDNESS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had total outstanding bank and other
borrowings of RMB30,883.6 million (31 December 2021: RMB47,959.5
million), corporate bond with carrying amounts of RMB4,695.4 million (31
December 2021: RMB4,438.9 million), senior notes with carrying
amounts of RMB23,859.5 million (31 December 2021: RMB21,740.2
million) and PCS with carrying amounts of RMB1,311.8 million (31
December 2021: Nil). The Group’s borrowings are denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and US dollars. The details are set out in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Liquidity,
Financial and Capital Resources — Indebtedness”.
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RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES AND EQUITY-LINKED
AGREEMENTS

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 was the Company, or
any of its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief
executive of the Company or their respective associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, nor did the Company enter into any
equity-linked agreement.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of approval of this annual report, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective associates had
interests in businesses, which compete or are likely to compete either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS UNDER
RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of the Directors and
Senior Management” and Note 8 to the financial statements, there is no
other change in Directors’ biographical details which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of
the 2022 interim report of the Company.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to restrict competition activities with the Company, the
controlling shareholders, namely Mr. OU Zongrong, Mr. OU Guogqiang,
Mr. OU Guowei, RoYue Limited, RoJing Limited, RoSheng Limited and
Warm Shine Limited (the “Controlling Shareholder(s)”), entered into a
deed of non-competition in favor of the Company on 15 December 2017 (the
“Deed of Non-competition”). Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition,
the Controlling Shareholders have undertaken, among others, not to
compete with the business of the Group, and details of the Deed of Non-
competition are set out in the sub-section headed “Deed of Non-
competition” in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the prospectus of the Company dated 28 December 2017.
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Each of the Controlling Shareholders has made a written confirmation to
the Board in respect of their compliance with the undertakings in the Deed
of Non-competition (the “Undertakings”) during the year ended 31
December 2022 (the “Relevant Period”).

Upon receiving the confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders, the
independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the same as part of the
annual review process. In determining whether the Controlling
Shareholders had fully complied with the Undertakings in the Relevant
Period for the annual assessment, the independent non- executive Directors
noted that: (a) the Controlling Shareholders declared that they had fully
complied with the Undertakings in the Relevant Period; (b) no new
competing business was reported by the Controlling Shareholders during
the Relevant Period; and (c) there was no particular situation rendering the
full compliance of the Undertakings being questionable. In view of the
above, the independent non-executive Directors confirmed that, as far as
they can ascertain, all of the Undertakings were complied with by the
Controlling Shareholders in the Relevant Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors and key officers shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices, pursuant to the articles
of association of the Company. The Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ and key officers’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions that may be brought against the Directors and key officers
throughout the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As at the date of approval of this annual report, Mr. OU Zongrong (a
Controlling Shareholder and father of the Company’s non-executive
Director, Mr. OU Guowei) is the Controlling Shareholder of Zhenro
Services. Hence, each of Zhenro Services and its subsidiaries (“Zhenro
Services Group”) is an associate of the Controlling Shareholder and a
connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions between
Zhenro Services Group and the Group constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions (as the case may be) of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Pre-Delivery Property Management Services Agreement

The Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into
a framework agreement in relation to the provision of pre-delivery
property management services with Zhenro Services (for itself and on
behalf of its subsidiaries) on 31 December 2019 (the “Pre-Delivery
Property Management Services Agreement”). Under the Pre-
Delivery Property Management Services Agreement, Zhenro Services
Group shall, where it is selected following the tender processes in
accordance with the relevant pre-delivery property management laws
and regulations, provide pre-delivery management services for
residential property projects developed by the Group before the
delivery of such properties to property owners (including but not
limited to security, cleaning, landscaping, repair and maintenance of
common area and shared facilities) according to the tender documents
and definitive management agreements to be entered into between
Zhenro Services Group and members of the Group from time to time
(collectively, the “Pre-Delivery Services”). The Pre-Delivery
Property Management Services Agreement had been effective from 1
January 2020 and up to and including 31 December 2022 and its
term may be renewed as the parties may agree, subject to applicable
laws and regulations. The service fees payable by the Group to
Zhenro Services Group for the Pre-Delivery Services shall be based on
the fee quotes to be submitted by the Zhenro Services Group under
the relevant tender bids and the pricing terms as recommended by
the relevant government authorities. The aggregate management
service fees paid by the Group to Zhenro Services Group for their
service in 2022 were RMBO0.2 million, which did not exceed the
annual cap of the transaction for 2022 of RMB24.0 million. The
transactions contemplated under the Pre-Delivery Property
Management Services Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios of the
transactions of the annual cap in respect of the management and
related services under the Pre-Delivery Property Management
Services Agreement exceeded 0.1% but all of them were less than 5%,
the transactions were subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements but are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule 14A.76(2) of the
Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Pre-Delivery
Property Management Services Agreement also constituted related
party transactions of the Company under IFRS, details of which are
set out in Note 40 to the financial statements.

Details of the Pre-Delivery Property Management Services
Agreement with the annual caps relating thereto are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 31 December 2019.
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Management Services Agreement

The Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into
a framework management services agreement in relation to the
provision of management and related services with Zhenro Services (for
itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) (the “Management Services
Agreement”) on 31 December 2019. Under the Management
Services Agreement, Zhenro Services Group shall provide
management and related services to the residential property projects
of the Group and their display units, sales offices and community
clubhouses as well as commercial properties operated by the Group,
including but not limited to cleaning, landscaping, concierge,
maintenance of public order, security services and other related value-
added services to the aforesaid venues according to the definitive
management agreements to be entered into between Zhenro Services
Group and members of the Group from time to time (collectively,
the “Management Services”). The management fees payable by the
Group to the Zhenro Services Group for the Management Services
shall be determined on arm’s length basis taking into account a wide
range of factors set out in the pricing policy in the Management
Services Agreement. The Management Services Agreement had been
effective from 1 January 2020 and up to and including 31 December
2022 and its term may be renewed as the parties may agree, subject
to applicable laws and regulations. The aggregate management
service fees paid by the Group to Zhenro Services Group in 2022
were RMB111.4 million, which did not exceed the annual cap of the
transaction for 2022 of RMB310.0 million. The transactions
contemplated under the Management Services Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios of the transactions of the annual cap in respect of the
management and related services under the Management Services
Agreement exceeded 0.1% but all of them were less than 5%, the
transactions were subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements but were exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule 14A.76(2) of the
Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Management
Services Agreement also constituted related party transactions of the
Company under IFRS, details of which are set out in Note 40 to the

financial statements.

Details of the Management Services Agreement with the annual caps
relating thereto are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 31
December 2019.
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Consultancy Services Agreement

On 19 May 2021, the Company entered into the Consultancy
Services Agreement (the “Consultancy Services Agreement”) with
Zhenro Commercial Management Co., Ltd.* (E%ﬁﬁ%ﬁg@}ﬁﬁﬁ PR
A]) ( “Zhenro Commercial”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
Zhenro Services, in relation to the provision of commercial property
operational and consultancy services (collectively, the “Consultancy
Services”) by Zhenro Commercial and its subsidiaries (the “Zhenro
Commercial Group”) to the Group. The Consultancy Services
Agreement has been effective from 28 June 2021 and up to and
including 31 December 2022 and its term may be renewed as the
parties may agree, subject to applicable laws and regulations. The
service fees payable by the Group to the Zhenro Commercial Group
for the Consultancy Services shall be determined taking into account
a wide range of factors set out in the pricing policy in the
Consultancy Services Agreement. The aggregate commercial property
operational and consultancy services fees paid by the Company to the
Zhenro Commercial in 2022 were RMB28.8 million, which did not
exceed the annual cap of the transaction for 2022 of RMB90.0
million. The transactions contemplated under the Consultancy
Services Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As one or
more of the applicable percentage ratios of the transactions in relation
to the annual cap in respect of the commercial property operational
and consultancy services under the Consultancy Services Agreement
exceed(s) 0.1% but all of them are less than 5%, the transactions are
subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements but are exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.
The transactions contemplated under the Consultancy Services
Agreement also constitute related party transactions of the Company
under IFRS, details of which are set out in Note 40 to the financial

statements.

Details of the Consultancy Services Agreement with the annual caps
relating thereto are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 19
May 2021.
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Lease Agreement

Members of the Group (as lessor) entered into the Existing Lease
Agreements (“Existing Lease Agreements”) and the New Lease
Agreement (“New Lease Agreement”’) with members of Zhenro
Commercial Group (as lessee) by 10 May 2021, pursuant to which
the such respective lessee leases the entire property from the relevant
member of the Group (as lessor), and has the right to procure tenants
and sub-lease any units in the relevant property, and to engage in
advertising, management and operation activities in respect of the
relevant property. The Existing Lease Agreements and the New Lease
Agreement have been effective from their respective signing date and
up to and including 31 December 2023 and the terms may be
renewed as the parties may mutually agree, subject to applicable laws
and regulations. There was no rental fees paid by members of Zhenro
Commercial Group to the Company in respect of the Existing Lease
Agreements and the New Lease Agreement in 2022. The transactions
contemplated under the Existing Lease Agreements and the New
Lease Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. With respect
to the Existing Lease Agreements, pursuant to Rule 14A.60(1) of the
Listing Rules, the Company is required to comply with the annual
review and disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules regarding the continuing connected transactions under the
Existing Lease Agreements, each of which is an agreement for a fixed
period with fixed terms. The Company will comply with all
applicable requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
upon variation or renewal of any of the Existing Lease Agreements.
With respect to the New Lease Agreement, as all of the applicable
percentage ratios (as defined under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules)
in relation to the highest annual cap for the New Lease Agreement
were less than 0.1%), the New Lease Agreement was fully exempted
from the shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements under Rule 14A.76(1)(a) of the Listing Rules. The
transactions contemplated under the Existing Lease Agreements and
the New Lease Agreement also constitute related party transactions
of the Company under IFRS, details of which are set out in Note 40

to the financial statements.

Details of the Existing Lease Agreements and the New Lease
Agreement and the annual caps relating thereto are set out in the

Company’s announcement dated 19 May 2021.
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5)

2023 CCT Agreements

In order to renew the Pre-Delivery Property Management Services
Agreement, the Management Services Agreement and the
Consultancy Services Agreement which were due to expire on 31
December 2022, on 15 November 2022:

(1)  the Company and Zhenro Services entered into an agreement in
relation to the provision of the Pre-Delivery Services by the
Zhenro Services Group to the Group (the “2023 Pre-Delivery
Property Management Services Agreement”);

(ii)  the Company and Zhenro Services entered into an agreement in
relation to the provision of the Management Services by the
Zhenro Services Group to the Group (the “2023 Management
Services Agreement”); and

(iii) Zhenro Commercial and the Company entered into an

agreement in relation to the provision of Consultancy Services

by the Zhenro Commercial Group to the Group (the “2023

Consultancy Services Agreement”, together with the 2023

Pre-Delivery Property Management Services Agreement and

the 2023 Management Services Agreement, collectively, the

“2023 CCT Agreements”).

While the 2023 CCT Agreements were entered into during the year
ended 31 December 2022, the term of each 2023 CCT Agreement
will be from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025 (both days
inclusive), which may be renewed as the parties may agree, subject to
compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations.

The service fees payable by the Group to Zhenro Services Group for
the Pre-Delivery Services shall be determined on arm’s length basis
and in accordance with the fee quotes to be submitted by the Zhenro
Services Group under the relevant tender bids. The management fees
payable by the Group to the Zhenro Services Group for the
Management Services shall be determined on arm’s length basis
taking into account a wide range of factors set out in the pricing
policy in the 2023 Management Services Agreement. The service fees
payable by the Group to the Zhenro Commercial Group for the
Consultancy Services shall be determined on arm’s length basis
taking into account a wide range of factors set out in the pricing

policy in the 2023 Consultancy Services Agreement.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no transactions
contemplated under the 2023 CCT Agreements. Details of the 2023
CCT Agreements and the annual caps relating thereto are set out in

the Company’s announcement dated 15 November 2022.

Review by the independent non-executive Directors and
external auditor

All the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the continuing

connected transactions have been entered into:

(i)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i1) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of

the Company as a whole.

The Company’s external auditor, Ernst & Young, was engaged to
report on the continuing connected transactions and they have

provided a letter to the Board of Directors confirming that:

(i)  nothing has come to their attention that caused them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not

been approved by the Board;

(ii)  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, nothing has come to their attention that caused
them to believe that the continuing connected transactions
were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance

with the pricing policies of the Group;

(iii) nothing has come to their attention that caused them to believe
that the continuing connected transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant

agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv) nothing has come to their attention that caused them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have

exceeded the annual cap set by the Company.
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(7) General

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group had not entered into any connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions which are required to be disclosed in this

annual report pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the other related party transactions as disclosed in
Note 40 to the financial statements did not constitute “connected
transactions” or “continuing connected transactions” required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules. The related party transactions that
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Group have complied

with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual report

form part of this annual report.

By order of the Board
LIU Weiliang
Chairman of the Board

Shanghai, PRC, 31 March 2023
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance by focusing on principles of integrity, accountability,
transparency, independence, responsibility and fairness. The Company has
developed and implemented sound governance policies and measures with
the Board being responsible for performing such corporate governance
duties. The Board will continue to review and monitor the governance of
the Company with reference to the Corporate Governance Code so as to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of the

Company.

So far as the Directors are aware, during the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Company has complied with the code provisions set out in Part 2 of
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules except for a deviation, during the period
from 1 January 2022 to 12 September 2022, from code provision C.2.1,
which states that the roles of the chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. During 2022, Mr. HUANG Xianzhi, a then executive Director
of the Company and the then chairman of the Board, served as the chief
executive officer of the Company until a suitable candidate is appointed.
Notwithstanding the deviation from code provision C.2.1, the Board
believed that Mr. HUANG Xianzhi’s extensive experience and knowledge,
together with the support of the management, shall strengthen the solid
and consistent leadership of the Group, and the vesting of the roles as the
chairman and chief executive officer to Mr. HUANG would allow efficient
business planning and decision, which the Board believed was in the best
interest of the business development of the Group during the transitional
period. With effect from 13 September 2022, Mr. LI Yang, an executive
Director, has been appointed as the chief executive officer; and Mr.
HUANG Xianzhi has resigned from such position. Upon such change, the
Company has re-complied with code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code. With effect from 20 January 2023, Mr. HUANG
resigned as the chairman of the Board and Mr. LIU Weiliang was
appointed as the chairman of Board.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND DIVERSITY
POLICY

The Board is responsible for directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs in order to lead the Company towards success. The Board has general
powers for the management and conduct of the Company’s business. The
day-to-day operations and management are delegated by the Board to the
management of the Company, who will implement the strategy and

direction as determined by the Board.
The Board will review the structure and composition of the Board from

time to time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to maintain a

high standard of corporate governance practices of the Company.
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The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. The Company has also
adopted a board diversity policy setting out the approach adopted by the
Board regarding diversity of Board members. In designing the Board’s
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, industry experience, technical and professional
skills and/or qualifications, knowledge, length of services and time to be
devoted as a director of the Company. The Company will also take into
account factors relating to its own business model and specific needs from
time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. As at the
date of approval of this annual report, the analysis of the Board composition

is as follow:
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The Board is fairly diverse in terms of position, age, skills and industry
experience, length of service and knowledge. In terms of gender, there is
currently no female Director on the Board. The Board is in the progress of
identifying female candidate(s) who possesses suitable skills, qualifications
and experience to join the Board in order to enhance gender diversity at the
Board level. The Company will endeavour to appoint at least one female
Director on or before 31 December 2024 through internal promotion or
external recruitment, and will continue to seek opportunities to increase
female representation on the Board.
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As at 31 December 31 2022, 30.8% and 69.2% of the employees (including
senior management) of the Group were female and male, respectively,
which is regarded by the Board as satisfactory and is in line with the
attributes of the real estate industry. There are no mitigating factors or
circumstances which make achieving gender diversity across the workforce
(including senior management) more challenging or less relevant as the
Group selects or promotes suitable talents based on criteria such as
academic background, working experience and performances rather than on
the ground of gender. The Group will continue to take gender diversity
into consideration during recruitment and when recruiting staff members
of mid to senior levels, and will maintain or even increase female

proportion at all levels with the ultimate goal of achieving gender parity.

The Company’s non-executive Director, Mr. OU Guoweli, is the son of Mr.
OU Zongrong, one of the Company’s Controlling Shareholders, and his
details are set out in the section headed “Biographies of the Directors and
Senior Management — Directors”. Save as disclosed above, no Board
member has other relationship with the other Board members, the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. The biographies
of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of the

Directors and Senior Management — Directors” of this annual report.

The Company has entered into service contracts with each executive
Directors and has issued letters of appointment to non-executive Director
and each independent non-executive Directors. The principal particulars of
these service contracts and letters of appointment are (a) for an initial fixed
term of three years commencing from 20 September 2020 (for executive
Director Mr. HUANG Xianzhi, who resigned with effect from 20 January
2023; and non-executive Director Mr. OU Guowei), 3 September 2021 (for
executive Director Mr. CHAN Wai Kin, who resigned with effect from 13
September 2022), 8 June 2020 (for executive Director Mr. LIU Weiliang),
26 March 2021 (for executive Director Mr. LI Yang), 6 June 2019 (for
independent non-executive Director Mr. LIN Hua, who resigned with
effect from 13 September 2022), 15 December 2020 (for independent non-
executive Directors Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam) and Mr. WANG
Chuanxu) and 13 September 2022 (for independent non-executive Director
Mr. XIE Jun), and (b) subject to termination in accordance with their
respective terms. The service contracts may be renewed in accordance with

the articles of association of the Company and the applicable Rules.

—ECCFFR égw
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The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, contributions to
pension schemes, share-based compensation expenses, discretionary
bonuses, housing and other allowances and other benefits in kind) payable
to the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
RMB19.7 million.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and performance of the Group. Details of the remuneration of
the Directors and senior management for 2022 are set out in Notes 8 and 9
to the financial statements. In addition, pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of
the Corporate Governance Code, the annual remuneration of members of
the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December 2022 is
set out below:
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Number of senior
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2,500,000 ¥ 7T 2 3,000,000 ¥ TG HK$2,500,000 to HK$3,000,000 1
3,000,001 ¥ 7T £ 3,500,000 ¥ TG HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 1
=t Total 2
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has three
independent non-executive Directors, which meets the requirement of the
Listing Rules that the number of independent non-executive directors
must represent at least one-third of the Board and should not be less than
three.

The independent non-executive Directors play an important role in
ensuring the Board obtains independent views. They use their independent
analysis and professional judgments to provide professional and fair
opinions on the decisions made by the Board. This ensures the interests of
the Company and the shareholders are being protected. All Directors,
including the independent non-executive Directors, are given various
channels to communicate and express their views to the Board and have
separate and independent access to the management of the Group in order
to make informed decisions. The chairman of the Board should hold at
least one meeting every year, with the independent non-executive Directors
and without the presence of other Directors, to discuss significant matters
and any concerns. Further, all Directors or any of their close associates who
have a material interest in any matter to be considered in a meeting should
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution, and shall not be included in
the quorum of the meeting. Independent non-executive Directors who, and

whose associates, have no interest in the matter should attend the meeting.
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The Board reviews the above mechanisms annually to ensure independent
views are available to the Board and the implementation and effectiveness
of such mechanisms, and confirmed that such mechanisms were effective
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The nomination committee is authorised to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors are required to provide an annual confirmation of their
independence to the Company and to notify the Company as soon as
possible of any subsequent change of circumstances that may affect their
independence. The Company has received the annual written confirmation
of independence from each of the independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers them to be

independent.

Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to ensure that
the Board procedures are followed. During the year ended 31 December
2022, Mr. CHEN Jian (resigned with effect from 6 December 2022) or Mr.
CHAN King Tak (appointed with effect from 6 December 2022) was one
of the Company’s joint company secretaries. The Company has also
engaged Ms. KWONG Yin Ping, Yvonne, a vice president of SWCS
Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited (a company secretarial
service provider), as another joint company secretary to assist Mr. CHEN
Jian or Mr. CHAN King Tak (as the case may be) in discharging their
duties as company secretary of the Company. Ms. KWONG Yin Ping,
Yvonne’s primary contact person at the Company was Mr. CHEN Jian or
Mr. CHAN King Tak (as the case may be) during their respective tenure of
office.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, each of Mr. CHEN
Jian, Mr. CHAN King Tak and Ms. KWONG Yin Ping, Yvonne have
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

—ECCFFR 8 3
Annual Report 2022
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On the first occasion of each Director’s appointment, the Company has
arranged a comprehensive induction to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and business and is fully aware
of the director’s responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant
statutory requirements. The Company will arrange suitable training for all
Directors in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as part
of their continuous professional development. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Company has arranged Listing Rules-related training
as part of Directors’ continuous professional development and the training

records of the Directors are summarized as follows:

% 18 A
35 I ok 0 &
B T A4 B
Attending briefings,
trainings or seminars

and reading materials

Executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Xianzhi (resigned with effect
from 20 January 2023)

Mr. LIU Weiliang

Mr. LI Yang

Mr. CHAN Wai Kin (resigned with effect
from 13 September 2022) Y

= =2 =2

Nomn-executive Director
Mr. OU Guowei N

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam)
Mr. WANG Chuanxu

Mr. LIN Hua (resigned with effect

= =2

from 13 September 2022) y
Mr. XIE Jun (appointed with effect
from 13 September 2022) N

Code provision C.5.1 of the Corporate Governance Code requires that at
least four regular Board meetings should be held each year at approximately
quarterly intervals.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company held 15 Board
meetings and one annual general meeting. A total of 67 proposals were
considered at the Board meetings, including proposals for the consideration
of consent solicitation relating to the Company’s senior notes and PCS,
exchange offer relating to senior notes, the Company’s 2021 annual report,
2021 annual results announcement, 2022 interim report and 2022 interim

results announcement.
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The table below sets out the details of the attendance of each Director at

THIEFEESEERLF TGN E the Board meetings, Board committee meetings and general meeting held
FEER HAFEEREGARAEREGR during the year ended 31 December 2022.
R
W REH R R
Number of meetings attended/meetings eligible to attend
FERERE WELZEH yFMZEEE BEKG
HHEY Audit Nomination Remuneration General
The Board Committee committee committee meeting
T EH Executive Directors
Bl SE A Mr. HUANG Xianzhi 14/15 — 212 212 111
BIfEE 5 55 R Mr. LIU Weiliang 14/15 — — — 1/1
L Mr. LI Yang 15/15 — — — 1/1
Bl A fd e 420 Mr. CHAN Wai Kin® 11/12 — — — 1/1
BT #EH Non-executive Director
i 2 S A Mr. OU Guowei 14/15 212 — — 111
B IE B AT H#EF Independent non-
executive Directors
e i bk 1 Dr. LOKE Yu (alias
LOKE Hoi Lam) 15/15 2/2 — — 1/1
e C Y e Mr. WANG Chuanxu 15/15 2/2 212 2/2 1/1
REHE S A @ Mr. LIN Hua® 10/12 — 1/2 172 1/1
itz sk Mr. XIE Jun® 3/3 — 0/0 0/0 0/0
B 5E - Notes:
1) PR A —F LA+ = H (1) Mr. CHAN Wai Kin resigned as an executive Director with effect from 13 September

()

3)

BT RATEDS o hE T 24—
A—HEZF A+ AWM
PEERAT 12K G & ok > SR
120K # F6 fr 3k o

MRAEEG R R CENA TR
BT AT - AR - F
F—H—-HEZZFE__F LA +ZH
W B AT 12K ek U
HRERER G-

AR —FZZFE AT =R
WRE B IFNATES - R TE =
F AT EHEZR T
“HEt B MM SRR E RS
T WO LR IR E R G @k
MRoFZ LA =ZHEF -
T = O] e 5 AT R
PN

(2)

3)

2022. Since there were only 12 Board meetings during the period from 1 January

2022 up to 12 September 2022, he was only required to attend 12 Board meetings.

Mr. LIN Hua resigned as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 13
September 2022. Since there were only 12 Board meetings during the period from 1
January 2022 up to 12 September 2022, he was only required to attend 12 Board

meetings.

Mr. XIE Jun was appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect from
13 September 2022. Since there were only 3 Board meetings from 13 September 2022
up to 31 December 2022, he was only required to attend 3 Board meetings. There was
no general meeting held during the period from 13 September 2022 up to 31
December 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. The Board reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and written
employee guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate

Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three principal Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee.
Each of the Board committees operates under its terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Board committees are available on the website of
the Company and that of the Stock Exchange.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent

professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee consists of three
members, namely Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam) and Mr. WANG
Chuanxu, being independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. OU
Guowei, the non-executive Director. Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam)
has been appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee, and is the
independent non-executive Director possessing the appropriate professional
qualifications. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include: (i)
making recommendations regarding the appointment and removal of
external auditors of the Company; (ii) reviewing the accounting policies
and financial positions of the Company; (iii) reviewing and supervising the
internal audit functions and internal control structure of the Company; and

(iv) reviewing and overseeing the risk management of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee reviewed
the financial reporting system, compliance procedures, internal control
(including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs and budgeting of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting departments) and risk management systems and
processes, whistleblowing policy and the reappointment of the external
auditor. The Board had not deviated from any recommendation given by
the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or

dismissal of external auditor.
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The Audit Committee also reviewed interim and final results of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the interim period and the fiscal year as
well as the audit report prepared by the external auditor relating to

accounting issues and major findings in the course of audit.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code. During the
year under review, the chairman of the nomination committee was Mr.
HUANG Xianzhi, who resigned with effect from 20 January 2023, and
Mr. LIU Weiliang was appointed as the chairman of the nomination
committee with effect from 20 January 2023. The other members of the
nomination committee were Mr. WANG Chuanxu, Mr. LIN Hua (who
resigned with effect from 13 September 2022) and Mr. XIE Jun (who was
appointed with effect from 13 September 2022), each an independent non-
executive Director. The primary duties of the nomination committee
include: (i) reviewing the composition of the Board of Directors and
assessing the ability and experience of Directors; (ii) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal of
Directors; and (iii) assessing the independence of the independent non-

executive Directors.

The Board had adopted a board nomination policy which sets out the
purposes and principles, the process and criteria for identifying and
recommending candidates for election to the Board. The nomination
committee has been delegated by the Board to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become a Director and make recommendations to the Board on
the selection and appointment of individuals nominated for directorships.
In assessing the Board composition, the nomination committee would take
into account various aspects set out in the board diversity policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
industry experience, technical and professional skills and/or qualifications,
knowledge, length of services and time to be devoted as a director of the
Company. The nomination committee would discuss and agree on
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary,

and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
nomination committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve board diversity,

where appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

—ECCFFR 8 7
Annual Report 2022
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the nomination committee has
reviewed the nomination policy and the board diversity policy; assessed the
independence of independent non-executive Directors; considered the
appointment of new Director; and made recommendation to the Board in
relation to the re-election of retiring Directors at the annual general

meeting.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code. The chairman of the remuneration committee
was Mr. WANG Chuanxu, an independent non-executive Director, and
the other members of remuneration committee were Mr. LIN Hua (resigned
with effect from 13 September 2022), Mr. XIE Jun (appointed with effect
from 13 September 2022), each an independent non-executive Director,
and Mr. HUANG Xianzhi (resigned with effect from 20 January 2023)
and Mr. LIU Weiliang (appointed with effect from 20 January 2023), each
an executive Director. The primary duties of the remuneration committee
include: (i) reviewing and making recommendations to the Board regarding
remuneration policies for Directors and senior management; (ii) supervising
the implementation of remuneration policies; (iii) assessing performance of
executive directors and approving the terms of executive directors’ service
contracts; and (iv) reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share

schemes under chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has in place a policy on Directors’ remuneration to ensure
that there is an appropriate level of remuneration to attract and retain
people of high calibre to oversee the Group’s business and development.
For details regarding the emolument policy of the Group, please refer to
the section headed “Directors’ Report — Employees and Remuneration
Policy”. The remuneration committee has adopted the model described in
code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the Corporate Governance Code in its terms of

reference.

During the year under review, the remuneration committee discussed and
reviewed the service agreements, appointment letters and remuneration
policy for Directors and senior management of the Company, and made
recommendations to the Board on the service agreements, appointment
letters and remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management, but there were no matters relating to share schemes
that were required to be reviewed and/or approved by the remuneration

committee.

During the year under review, the Board reviewed and approved the revised

terms of reference of the remuneration committee.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed, following
specific enquiry made by the Company, that they have complied with the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends to
the shareholders of the Company, provided that the Group records a profit
after tax and that the declaration and distribution of dividends does not
affect the normal operations of the Group.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend will be
subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia, the
Group’s operations, earnings, financial condition, capital requirements and
any other conditions the Directors may deem relevant at such time. Any
payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to any restrictions
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the articles of

association of the Company.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific

periods.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the fees paid to the Company’s
external auditor, Ernst & Young, for the audit of the financial statements
of the Group were RMB11.3 million.

During the year, the fees of non-audit services, including tax filing and
turnaround and restructuring strategy service provided by Ernst & Young
and its subsidiary and other affiliate entities to the Group are
approximately RMB1.9 million.

—ECCFFR 8 Q
Annual Report 2022
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the financial
statements in order to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow during the reporting period. A
statement from the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out on pages 99 to 102 of this annual report. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis

for the reasons as set out in note 2.1 to the financial statements.

The Directors noted that the Company’s external auditor did not express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 due to the potential interaction of multiple
uncertainties related to going concern and their possible cumulative effect
on the consolidated financial statements as described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of the independent auditor’s report.

The Group recorded a net loss of RMB14,617,223,000 for the year ended
31 December 2022. As at 31 December 2022, (i) the Group’s total bank
and other borrowings, senior notes, corporate bonds, perpetual capital
securities and asset-backed securities amounted to RMB62,988,159,000,
out of which RMB56,863,259,000 will be due for repayment within the
next twelve months, while its cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB3,270,111,000; (ii) the Group had not repaid an aggregate amount of
principal and interest of RMB455,572,000 for certain senior notes and an
aggregate amount of interest of RMB1,520,715,000 for certain senior
notes according to their scheduled repayment dates, triggering events of
default for certain senior notes amounting to RMB23,410,386,000; (iii)
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings in the aggregate principal
amount of RMB5,850,641,000 had not been repaid according to their
scheduled repayment dates, and as a result certain long term interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings in the aggregate principal amount of
RMB7,347,230,000 has become repayable on demand; (iv) the Group
failed to repay the principal and interest amounting to RMB1,123,101,000
for a corporate bond due in November 2022; and (v) the Group had not
settled the interest of perpetual capital securities amounting to
RMB68,369,000, triggering an event of default for perpetual capital
securities in the aggregate principal amount of RMB1,311,845,000.
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The above conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which

cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue as a going

concern. As a result of these multiple uncertainties, their potential

interaction, and the possible cumulative effect thereof, the external auditor

is unable to form an opinion as to whether the going concern basis of

preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2022 is appropriate.

In view of such circumstances, the management of the Group have

undertaken and proposes to undertake a number of plans and measures to

improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position (the “Plans and

Measures”), including:

(a)

(b)

(©

(d

(e)

®

The Group has appointed financial advisers to assist it with a holistic
restructuring of its offshore indebtedness, in order to achieve a more
stable capital structure, resolve its liquidity issue and stabilise the
Group’s operations, taking into account the interest of its
stakeholders, details of which are set out in the section “Management
Discussion and Analysis — The Offshore Holistic Liability

Management Solutions”;

The Group has been actively negotiating with several banks and
financial institutions and may be able to extend the payment
schedule for certain interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
Nevertheless, the confirmation of such extension is subject to the
final approval from the banks;

The Group has been actively negotiating with several financial
institutions to obtain new loans at a reasonable cost for ensuring

delivery of its property projects under development;

The Group will continue to seek for other alternative financing and
borrowings to finance the settlement of its existing financial
obligations and future operating and capital expenditures. As at 31
December 2022, the Group was applying for not more than
RMB3,000,000,000 quota for bonds guaranteed by China Bond
Issuance Co., Ltd., and is striving to enter into strategic cooperation
agreements with banks in order to obtain comprehensive real estate

credit support;

The Group has prepared a business strategy plan mainly focusing on
the acceleration of the sales of properties and implemented measures
to speed up the collection of outstanding sales proceeds and

effectively control costs and expenses; and

The Group will continue to seek suitable opportunities to dispose its
equity interests in certain project development companies in order to

generate additional cash inflows.

—ECCFFR Q “
Annual Report 2022
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It is noted that whether the Group will be able to continue as a going

concern would depend upon the following:

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

®

(g)

successfully completing the holistic restructuring of its offshore

indebtedness;

successfully negotiating with the Group’s existing lenders for the
renewal or extension for repayment of the Group’s bank and other

borrowings;

successfully securing project development loans for qualified project

development in a timely manner;

successfully obtaining of additional new sources of financing as and

when needed;

successfully carrying out the Group’s business strategy plan including
the acceleration of the sales of properties;

successfully implementing measures to speed up the collection of
outstanding sales proceeds and effectively control costs and expenses;

and

successfully disposing of the Group’s equity interests in certain

project development companies when suitable.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the above-mentioned Plans and

Measures and operate as a going concern, adjustments would have to be

made to write down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to their

recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might

arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as

current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these

adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial

statements.
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The Audit Committee has discussed with the Board and the management
of the Group about the concerns of the external auditor and the possible
impacts of the Plans and Measures. The Audit Committee and the Board
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity and performance of
the Group and its available sources of financing in assessing whether the
Group will have sufficient financial sources to continue as a going concern,
and have also taken into considerations that (1) certain progress made in
relation to the Offshore Holistic Liability Management Solutions in 2022
and in recent months; (2) the relaxation of COVID-19 control measures in
the PRC since December 2022; (3) the recent relaxation of property
tightening policies by local governments in the PRC; (4) the recent
improvement of overall sales momentum in the property market in the
PRC; (5) the extension of maturity dates for certain borrowings of the
Group in 2022; (6) the approvals of special loans by several local
governments and certain financial institutions to the Group to ensure
project delivery; and (7) the cash flow projections prepared by the
management, which cover a period of not less than twelve months from 31
December 2022. The Audit Committee and the Board agree with the
management’s position and basis of assessment on major judgmental areas,
and are of the view that, on the basis of successful execution of the Plans
and Measures, the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due
within twelve months from 31 December 2022. Accordingly, the Audit
Committee and the Board are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the

consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Audit Committee, the Board and the management also understood the
concerns of the external auditor that uncertainties exist as to whether the
management will be able to achieve the Plans and Measures. There was no
disagreement by the Audit Committee, the Board nor the management

with the external auditor’s position regarding the Disclaimer of Opinion.

—ECCFFR Q 3
Annual Report 2022
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal
control and risk management systems in order to safeguard the Group’s
assets and shareholders’ interests and reviewing the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control and risk management systems, covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
on an annual basis, so as to ensure that internal control and risk
management systems in place are adequate. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives (including, among others, material risks relating to
environmental, social and governance), and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Company
also has an internal audit function which primarily carries out the analysis
and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the issuer’s
risk management and internal control systems, resolves material internal
control defects and reports their findings to the Board on at least an annual
basis.

The Group has established a multi-dimensional risk management system,
which includes (1) an information platform that ensures the efficient
operation of the risk management system; (2) formulating risk management
policies to ensure the Group carries out consistent procedures and standards
for risk identification, measurement and reporting; (3) identifying potential
risks of various business segments and key procedures; (4) risk assessment
and action procedures to ensure identified risks are assessed and solutions
are proposed in a timely manner; and (5) Monitoring and reviewing the
risk management policies, risks assessment procedures, measures for
managing risks and their effectiveness, and report the findings to the
Board. In addition, the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems include a well-established organizational structure with clearly
defined lines of responsibility and authority. The day-to-day departmental
operations are entrusted to individual department which is accountable for
its own conduct and performance and is required to operate its own
department’s business within the scope of the delegated authority and to
implement and strictly adhere to the strategies and policies set by the
Company from time to time. Each department is also required to keep the
Board informed of material developments of the department’s business and
implementation of the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular

basis.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group to ensure that a sound system is maintained and operated by the
management in compliance with the agreed procedures and standards. The
review covered all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions. In particular, the
Board considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions. The review was made by
discussions with the management of the Company, its external and internal
auditors and the assessment was conducted by the Audit Committee. The
Board considers that the existing internal control and risk management
systems are adequate and effective, in particular, for financial reporting and

Listing Rules compliance.

WHISTLEBLOWING AND ANTI-CORRUPTION
POLICIES

Building a convenient and transparent reporting system is a crucial
component of the Group’s collective effort towards clean and honest
governance. To this end, the Group has formulated the “Guidelines for
Reporting Management”, which outline the Group’s internal and external
reporting management mechanisms, reporting channels and methods and
set forth standardized procedures for the acceptance and processing of
reports. Meanwhile, the “Guidelines for Reporting Management” provide
explicit protection and reward provisions for whistleblowers, and require
that any information about whistleblowers be kept confidential by the
recipient, so as to safeguard the rights and interests of whistleblowers to

the greatest possible extent.

In addition, the Group adheres strictly to relevant laws and regulations and
has established systems such as “Code of Conduct for Employees”, which
regulates employee behavior, including violations of integrity, abuse of
power and conflict of interests, and defines the Group’s value orientation,
enabling employees to perform their duties with loyalty, integrity, and
self-discipline, and jointly safeguard the overall interests of the Group. The
Group arranged and will continue to reinforce anti-corruption and anti-
fraud training for Directors and employees, intensifies corruption
prevention campaigns and fosters a culture of honesty and integrity among

its workforce.

—ECCFFR Q 6
Annual Report 2022
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company takes seriously of its
obligations under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a Continuous Disclosure
Compliance Policy which sets out guidelines and procedures to the
Directors and officers of the Group to ensure inside information of the
Group is to be disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner.
Briefing session is held regularly for officers to facilitate their

understanding and compliance with the policy.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Board may
whenever it thinks fit call general meetings. Pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company, general meetings shall also be convened on the
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company
of any one or more members of the Company holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are and
will be proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including

the election of individual Directors.
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The procedures for shareholder to propose a person for election as a director
are available on the Company’s website (www.zhenrodc.com). Shareholders
may lodge written proposal to the company secretary of the Company at
40/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, provided that the minimum length of the period, during which
such written notice is given, shall be at least seven days and that the
lodgment of such notice shall commence no earlier than the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.
In order to ensure that other shareholders would have sufficient time to
receive and consider the information of the person proposed for election as
a director, shareholders are urged to lodge their written notice of his
intention to propose a person for election as director as early as practicable
in advance of the relevant general meeting and, in any case, not less than
12 business days (as defined in the Listing Rules, i.e. day(s) on which the
Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing in securities) before the date
scheduled for holding the relevant general meeting, so that the Company
can complete the verification procedure with the Company’s share registrar,
and procure the publication of an announcement and/or the dispatch of a
supplementary circular to shareholders in compliance with the applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules. In the event that any such written
notice is received by the Company later than the 12th business day before
the date of holding the relevant general meeting, the Company will need
to consider whether to adjourn the relevant meeting so as to give
shareholders a notice of at least 10 business days of the proposal in

accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Board has adopted the shareholders’ communication policy to maintain
an open and effective communication with the shareholders and to update
the shareholders on relevant information on the Group’s business in a
timely manner. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.
The Company has established several channels to communicate with its

shareholders as follows:

(i)  Corporate communications such as annual reports, interim reports
and circulars are issued in printed form and are available on the Stock
Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website

at www.zhenrodc.com;

(i)  Announcements and other disclosures as required under the Listing
Rules are published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company;

(iii) Corporate information and contact details of the Company are made

available on the Company’s website;

—ECCFFR Q 7
Annual Report 2022
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(iv) Annual and extraordinary general meetings provide a forum for the
shareholders to raise queries and make comments about the
Company, and exchange views with the Directors and senior

management; and

(v) The Hong Kong share registrar of the Company, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, serves the shareholders in

respect of share registration, dividend payment and related matters.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has maintained
sufficient contact details for shareholders to put forward enquiries to the
Board. In addition, the Company held an AGM on 17 June 2022 at which
shareholders were able to communicate their views with the chairman of
the Board. Corporate communications were published on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner. The Board has
reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy during the year ended 31 December 2022 and based
on the above factors, the Board considers the shareholders’ communication

policy to be effective

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there has not been any change
in the Company’s memorandum and articles of association (the “Existing
Memorandum and Articles”). The Company’s Existing Memorandum
and Articles are available on the website of the Company (www.zhenrodc.
com) and that of the Stock Exchange.

On 31 March 2023, the Board proposes to amend the Existing
Memorandum and Articles to (i) bring the Existing Memorandum and
Articles in line with the latest requirements under the Listing Rules,
including the amendments to Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules which took
effect on 1 January 2022; (ii) provide flexibility to the Company in relation
to the conduct and proceedings of general meetings of the Company; (iii)
reflect the prevailing requirements under applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands; and (iv) incorporate certain corresponding and housekeeping
amendments (the “Proposed Amendments”).

The Board proposes to effect the Proposed Amendments by way of adoption
of the amended and restated memorandum and articles of association (the
“Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles”) in substitution
for, and to the exclusion of, the Existing Memorandum and Articles. The
Proposed Amendments and proposed adoption of the Amended and
Restated Memorandum and Articles are subject to the approval of the
shareholders by way of a special resolution to be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM. Prior to the passing of such special resolution at the
AGM, the Existing Memorandum and Articles shall remain valid.
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To the shareholders of Zhenro Properties Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Zhenro
Properties Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 103 to 299, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group. Because of the potential interaction of the multiple
uncertainties relating to going concern and their possible cumulative effect
on the consolidated financial statements as described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, it is not possible for us to form
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. In all other respects,
in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

—ECCFFR QQ
Annual Report 2022
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern

As set out in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
recorded a net loss of RMB14,617,223,000 for the year ended 31
December 2022. As at 31 December 2022, (i) the Group’s total bank and
other borrowings, senior notes, corporate bonds, perpetual capital securities
and asset-backed securities amounted to RMB62,988,159,000, out of
which RMB56,863,259,000 will be due for repayment within the next
twelve months, while its cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB3,270,111,000; (ii) the Group had not repaid an aggregate amount of
principal and interest of RMB455,572,000 for certain senior notes and an
aggregate amount of interest of RMB1,520,715,000 for certain senior
notes according to their scheduled repayment dates, triggering events of
default for certain senior notes amounting to RMB23,410,386,000; (iii) an
aggregate amount of principal of RMB5,850,641,000 for interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings had not been repaid according to their
scheduled repayment dates, triggering certain long term interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings amounting to RMB7,347,230,000 becoming
repayable on demand; (iv) the Group failed to repay the principal and
interest amounting to RMB1,123,101,000 for a corporate bond due in
November 2022; (v) the Group had not settled the interest of perpetual
capital securities amounting to RMB68,369,000, triggering an event of
default for perpetual capital securities amounted to RMB1,311,845,000.
These conditions, together with other matters disclosed in note 2.1 to the
financial statements, indicate the existence of material uncertainties which
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

The directors of the Company have been undertaking plans and measures
to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, which are set out
in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements. The validity of the
going concern assumption on which the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared depends on the outcome of these measures, which are
subject to multiple uncertainties, including: (i) successfully completing the
holistic restructuring of its offshore indebtedness; (ii) successfully
negotiating with the Group’s existing lenders for the renewal or extension
for repayment of the Group’s bank and other borrowings; (iii) successfully
securing project development loans for qualified project development
timely; (iv) successfully obtaining of additional new sources of financing as
and when needed; (v) successfully carrying out the Group’s business
strategy plan including the acceleration of the sales of properties; (vi)
successfully implementing measures to speed up the collection of
outstanding sales proceeds and effectively control costs and expenses; and (vii)
successfully and timely implementation of the plans to dispose of its equity
interests in certain project development companies, and timely collection

of the proceeds.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern (Continued)

As a result of these multiple uncertainties, their potential interaction, and
the possible cumulative effect thereof, we were unable to form an opinion
as to whether the going concern basis of preparation is appropriate. Should
the Group fail to achieve the abovementioned plans and measures, it might
not be able to continue to operate as a going concern, and adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying amount of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial

statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or

have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and to issue an auditor’s report. We report solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
However, because of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion section of our report, it is not possible for us to form an opinion on

the consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ho Wai Ling.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

HEFFt+ A=+ HIEEE
Year ended 31 December 2022

B 5 - SN O TR AR
Notes 2022 2021
AR¥ T AR WF o
RMB’000 RMB’000
W 2 REVENUE 5 25,895,478 36,992,368
B B AR Cost of sales (24,146,144) (31,609,978)
B M Gross profit 1,749,334 5,382,390
FoAth g A Ml 45 Other income and gains 5 254,149 1,559,320
FH B K 8 B < Selling and distribution expenses (976,217) (1,243,288)
FFECB Administrative expenses (924,754) (1,190,179)
4 B RS e (E R TR VR AE Impairment losses on financial assets, net 24, 40 (1,838,180) (7,815)
oAt BH 57 Other expenses 5 (8,920,797) (1,528,830)
e E Y NN TE I Fair value losses on investment
properties 14 (410,565) (201,201)
e N EEFF AR B Fair value losses on financial assets
4 BlE EE Y A - E 1R at fair value through profit or loss (148,721) (69,468)
il & Rl A Finance costs 7 (1,370,339) (645,115)
JREAL LA B 35 A X B548 © Share of profits and losses of:
HEiE Joint ventures (29,861) 7,419
R /N Associates (225,558) 263,204
% B B (s 18) i Fl (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 (12,841,509) 2,326,437
BT A58 BH 2 Income tax expense 10 (1,775,714) (1,130,924)
R (ER) R (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (14,617,223) 1,195,513
IR AN HEAS - Acttributable to:
IS Y/NEIE: F SN Owners of the parent (12,877,046) 809,005
KEERFEHFIFAHN Holders of perpetual capital securities 7,750 122,808
IE = B 25 Non-controlling interests (1,747,927) 263,700
(14,617,223) 1,195,513
BAwEEERFEE A (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
JE A% 45 JBE (s #8) 7 ) ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
JEA K fi v Basic and diluted 12 AR¥@e9sm ARM0.195C

RMB(2.95) yuan

RMBO0.19 yuan

TECCOFER
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
R e s I SN

Year ended 31 December 2022

e Sty S o
2022 2021
AR¥ T A R L
RMB’000 RMB’000
Nk 18R), A (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (14,617,223) 1,195,513
B EH M EIES Other comprehensive (loss)/income that may be
2 HoAb 2w (k5 18) ik 4 reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
W AN EFS E A R B S22 % Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations (1,329,722) 98,086
AE g b 2 T O 38) W 2 - OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/
31 B Bt e INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (1,329,722) 98,086
AR g A (s 18) W a5 S8 - TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/
B B JH INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (15,946,945) 1,293,599
PR N A Attributable to:
LS Y/NISIE: F<IN Owners of the parent (14,206,768) 907,091
KEERBHREFA N Holders of perpetual capital securities 7,750 122,808
TEPE IR RE 2R Non-controlling interests (1,747,927) 263,700
(15,946,945) 1,293,599

ERERBERAR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

N LB
31 December 2022

B 5 RO TR AR
Notes 2022 2021
AR+ VNS e
RMB’000 RMB’000
Ik i B) & NON-CURRENT ASSETS
L E N =Y & ] Property, plant and equipment 13 1,269,775 1,256,586
wEY % Investment properties 14 8,627,400 9,862,000
i 7 & Right-of-use assets 15 278,535 366,147
HoAth 41 T2 B = Other intangible assets 16 48 4,029
EESENRE Investments in joint ventures 17 2,207,870 2,253,731
i RN U E 'l < Investments in associates 18 7,598,662 10,842,477
I S B TE & R Deferred tax assets 19 971,749 2,445,635
IE i B & E A Total non-current assets 20,954,039 27,030,605
B E CURRENT ASSETS
AT HEFIAHZN Financial assets at fair value through
&G R profit or loss 20 282,473 652,254
BH 9t p W) 2 Properties under development 21 113,364,362 131,073,246
FRER &% T ¥ Completed properties held for sale 22 9,904,155 11,554,582
B 5 ME S SR Trade receivables 23 747,858 768,412
JRE Wiz B T ] EE Due from related companies 40 11,528,983 13,233,656
TE AT FIE ~ HoAth B Wi K IE B Prepayments, other receivables and
Fopb & other assets 24 26,333,040 28,462,160
AT i ] A TE Tax recoverable 2,101,667 1,946,202
Z R 4 KA ZZ Restricted cash and pledged deposits 25 5,979,604 24,393,357
Bl B Bl S5 E ) Cash and cash equivalents 25 3,270,111 14,727,132
A Total current assets 173,512,253 226,811,001
e

Annual Report 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
—E A A=A

31 December 2022

Bt 5 SR TR AR
Notes 2022 2021
AR+ AREFx
RMB’000 RMB’000

i By A 18 CURRENT LIABILITIES
Z o MEAS 3 E R EAT 22458 Trade and bills payables 26 15,604,977 20,379,909
oAt JEAT XA M MERT 2 I Other payables and accruals 27 11,589,405 13,491,751
B HEE Contract liabilities 28 76,723,225 90,987,118
AT B B N ) R JE Due to related companies 40 6,129,358 7,167,094
BB AT BH Al £ R Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 29 25,701,080 25,865,230
1 e 2 g Senior notes 30 23,859,544 6,493,906
ANEIR £ Corporate bonds 31 4,695,387 2,070,623
Tk 48 & R 5 5 Perpetual capital securities 34 1,311,845 -
JRE A B I Tax payable 10 4,708,084 5,030,496
8 f Lease liabilities 15 29,290 47,438
B B s A Total current liabilities 170,352,195 171,533,565
i B & s A NET CURRENT ASSETS 3,160,058 55,277,436

B8 A WU B AL 1R TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 24,114,097 82,308,041
EthEEEAR AT

10

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
—E AR A= —H

31 December 2022

W 5 E e S 2 —EC 4
Notes 2022 2021
AR+ AR¥ T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Ik i By £ 1K NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
ot S AR AT S HAth £5 3K Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 29 5,182,517 22,094,299
oAt JE AH 3K B R ERT 2 | Other payables and accruals 27 942,383 907,110
N ) s Corporate bonds 31 - 2,368,227
o Senior notes 30 - 15,246,258
B IE B TE B & Deferred tax liabilities 19 496,707 681,527
IEN =R Lease liabilities 15 12,833 68,109
JE R B B E AR Total non-current liabilities 6,634,440 41,365,530
F & E Net assets 17,479,657 40,942,511
HBE i EQUITY
B2 A HEA NI AL RE 4 Equity attributable to owners of the parent
g A= Share capital 32 282 282
s Reserves 33 4,758,652 19,353,914
4,758,934 19,354,196
K A AR S Perpetual capital securities 34 - 1,401,587
IF ¥ I WE 45 Non-controlling interests 12,720,723 20,186,728
HE 25 480 Total equity 17,479,657 40,942,511
Bl e 2R Mr. Liu Weiliang Mr. Li Yang
HH HH Director Director

Annuolzliio:r:zfgjg —I O 7
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEZF Ft+ A=t HIEEE
Year ended 31 December 2022

LETE TN 1]
Autributable to owners of the parent
EERE  ERUE 8
Bk REER  AfRE WERE ] Wl REEA Hit WARE RBREE  HaENE
Statutory  Exchange Perpetual Non-
Share Share  Merger  Capital  suplus fluctwation  Retained capital  controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserves  reserve profits Total  securities  interests equity

ARWFE ARWFE ARWFE ARWFe ARNFE ARWFE ARNFo ARNFE ARWTFE AR ARNTE
RMBOO0  RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBOW  RMBUO0  RMBUOO  RMBO0

Witz (Winw) (Wase)  Wiso) WEsg)  Fise)
(note32) (note33(a)  (mate33(h)) (mote33(c) (mote33(d)) (mote33(e))

e St 2 B¢ Asat 1 January 2022 B3O8 AT TOME LSS AST0T S96LIDE 93496 LAOLSST M1 4094l
EnER)/ il (Loss)profi forthe year - - - - - o (ATMG (ST B0 () (4612)
ERE AT Other comprehensive income

for the year:
BEENERELNER 2 Exhange diffrences on

transhaion of oreign

operations - - - - - (1972 - (13972 - - (132972
ERATLGEE Total comprehensive income

fortheyear - - - - - (1329720 (12,877,046  (14,206,768) 150 (L747927)  (15,946.945)
WEAAERRERL S Capital contribution from

non-controlling

shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 78,511 78,511
FELBHESTHNE Changes in ownership intetests

ML ELES in subsidiaries without

change of control - - - (388494) - - - (388499) - 0703)  (3,063,526)
FEREAT (Hy) Disposal of subsidiaries

(note 37) - - - - - - - - - 494)  (2439479)
B A AEERRREHRE Dividends paid o

non-controlling

shareholders of subsidieies - - - - - - - -
MBI B R (W) Announcement of redempion

(68208)  (682,082)

of perpetual capital
sccuritis (note 34) - - - - - - - - (L3799 - (L3791
MACE A 35465 TR (5 Dividends o che holders of
perpetul capital secutiies - - - - - - - - (1142) - (1142)
HETETRR b Appropiations to statutory
surplus reserves - - - - 207,566 - (07,566 - - - -
i 2 Asat 31 December 2022
TZRZT-H 8 3006478 4527360° (8148 1719,204F (882992 @IB340F 4758934 - 1IN 1A

| 08 ESSERMARAR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HEZ - Ft A= HILEE

Year ended 31 December 2022

EAGE LIV
Autributable to owners of the parent
EEhh  EdlE &
ik RBEE  AbEE  ERGRE Wik W REE gt ErER ORERELD  BRAE
Stourory  Excange Perperual No-
Share Shae  Merger  Capil supls  floctation~ Retained apitl  controlling Toul
apial  premium reserve feseve reserves reserve profis Toul  securitis  incerests equity
ARKTE ARKTE ARKTT ARKTT ARKTT ARKTr ARKTT ARKTT ARKTT ARKTT ARKTL
RMBUOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBUOO  RMBOMO  RMBOO0  RMBUOO  RMBOO0  RMBUOD  RAMBUOO  RMBO0O
Wit Wit Witne)  Wino)  Wane)  Wase
(te32)  (mote33a)  (me3300) (w330 (we33(d)  (mte33(e)
[ S i Agat | January 201 B AMITO O AST TSMP L6 G LS 956X LAISTT 166TSM 31609
R Pufcfor che e - - - - - N IO T 1) NN 7 R A R ADNE
ERERAHLE: Ocher comprehensive income
for the year:
BEENLRELNE ER  Exchnge diferences on
translation of foreign
operations - - - - - 98,086 - 98,086 - - 98,086
ERATIG A% Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 98,086 809,005 907,001 122808 23,700 1293599
WE AT BB g Capital contribution from
non-controlling
shareholders of subsidieies - - - - - - - - - 09683 939683
kR ED Acquisicon of non-controlling
interests - - - (577.900) - - - (577901) - (7062668 (7,610369)
EREAR Acquisition of subsidiaties _ _ _ _ _ B _ _ oI 1383
BEREAT () Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 37) - - - - - - - - - G004 GwA
B A (3 0) Dividends and distributions
(note 11) - (551,26 - - - - - (551,261) - - (551,261)
FIRE AT BRIERFRE Dividendspaid o
non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (57,040) (57,040)
Fibe s Redemption of perpetual
capltal scurities - - - - - - - - (12751) - (12750)
ARG EAREASA \FMEE Dividends tothe holders of
perpetual capital securities - - - - - - - - (127,177 - (127,17
BREEETRRAEE Appropriations to statutory
surplus resrves - - - - 250,288 - (50289) - - - -
MR-k As at 31 December 2021
TR 8 3696478%  457,300% 1703465 1,511,728* 486730¢ 896L2T2F 19354196 LAOLSST 20186728 40942511

* FEMMIEE GBS MR ENRN *
B % A it A N R 5 4,758,652,000 78 (&

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB4,758,652,000 (2021:
RMB19,353,914,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

A ANR19,353,914,000 76) ©
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MEHENER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BEZFZ - AEF A= —HIHEE

Year ended 31 December 2022

Wt ZEICHE R
Notes 2022 2021
AR AR¥ T
RMB’000 RMB’000
#6805 B B A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
BB AT ks 48) i A (Loss)/profit before tax (12,841,509) 2,326,437
A Adjustments for:
W~ W T a8 Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 6,13 34,511 63,647
i WG I 8 Depreciation of right-of-use assets 6,15 40,104 48,819
B At TR E = Amortisation of other intangible assets 6,16 144 2,909
WEWE - BB R Gain on disposal of items of property,
TH H i 2 13 58 plant and equipment, net 6 (2,419) (706)
I 18 i B i 5 Gain on bargain purchase 5 - (25,622)
HH B B R 2 W R R Losses/(gains) on disposal of subsidiaries,
(i i) 7 31 net 6,37 64,253 (875,616)
Ie] i B ol S 4 1 i 4R Gain on repurchase of senior notes 5 (47,375) -
HERATEF AHEHEN  (Gain)/losses on disposal of financial assets
& RE N (g as) at fair value through profit or loss, net
Nl 5 1 3 6 (8,860) 31,363
HEL SN LS /A A Gainon disposal of joint ventures and
FY A i associates 5 (33,108) -
JRE A DA B A 3 R K Share of profits and losses of:
JEi 18
G Joint ventures 29,861 (7,419)
R /N Associates 225,558 (263,204)
WA FHEFFAELEA 4R Fair value losses from financial assets
B RE A T E S 18 at fair value through profit or loss 148,721 69,468
2 i 1 o) O SRR Losses on senior notes redemption
5 18 at premium price 5 - 184,631
WA FEFAEGMN S Dividend income from financial assets
5 1 B A at fair value through profit or loss 5 - (11,531)
EBEMHZANEGENE Remeasurement gain on investments in
P& R -E/NEINERE S gD joint ventures and associates held before
E% business combination 5 - (15,040)
BEYEN T EHEH) Changes in fair value of investment
properties 14 410,565 201,201
FHATE AT BOE ~ Ho A RE Impairment provision for financial assets
FCIE K HAth 5 7 1Y) 4 il included in prepayments, other
SRR R receivables and other assets 6 1,838,180 7,815
WP Y E K FFEHE Impairment losses recognised for
B8 LY 2E W SR W (. properties under development and
| ZEiE] completed properties held for sale 5,6 8,395,500 1,169,487
FrfEmECD R TYEN Impairment losses written off for
VORIEN TRk & completed properties held for sale 6, 22 - (8,516)
EIRSgIWiN Finance costs 7 1,370,339 645,115
ALE A Interest income 5 (128,349) (520,683)
(503,884) 3,022,555
—‘ —‘ Eﬁﬁiﬁgiﬁﬁg’i}ﬁ o
Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEZ - Ft A= HILEE

Year ended 31 December 2022

B 5 RO TR AR
Notes 2022 2021
AR+ AR¥ T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 3% Wy 2 B REAR Decrease/(increase) in properties under
Ok LY WY (3 n) development and completed properties
held for sale 5,755,337 (8,724,209)
BRI B A b (3 ) Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash 6,702,836 (9,801,197)
2L S AT A7 3 D Decrease in pledged deposits 677,615 666,592
5 REWCERIE W D (B 1) Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 5,920 (646,700)
TE A 3KCE ~ HoAth FE Jit B & Increase in prepayments, other receivables
A % E 3 and other assets (6,475,404) (10,143,044)
ARG WS I e > ) R S Increase in amounts due from related
companies (16,313) (36,458)
E 5 MEAT 3R TE L EAT 2248 (Decrease)/increase in trade and bills
(W) /889 payables (3,758,916) 988,014
Hopth JEAT 2X0E M MERT 2 I Increase in other payables and accruals
& m 4,927,756 10,354,907
BRI B ), (Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities (5,572,632) 27,193,401
JREAST IR i > ) K I 1 Increase in amounts due to
related companies 11,212 276,893
85 T A5 B 4 Cash generated from operations 1,753,527 13,150,754
SR eilpe! Interest received 128,349 520,683
C AT BLIE Tax paid (1,032,681) (1,945,538)
850 B r 153 3 & i I 8 Net cash flows from operating activities 849,195 11,725,899
SBROCFER

Annual Report 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
WEF A= HIREE

Year ended 31 December 2022

B 5 RO TR AR
Notes 2022 2021
AR+ AR¥ T
RMB’000 RMB’000
5 71 B) B 4 b CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
E YW BE KX #IEH Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment (81,580) (16,877)
I B H A R Purchase of other intangible assets - (700)
NEREYE Additions in investment properties (55,032) (232,901)
W B A e 2 Acquisition of subsidiaries - 1,480,054
NG i /N R WA= E 4] Acquisition of financial assets at fair value
4 G A through profit or loss - (593,970)
Hy B i A H) Disposal of subsidiaries 37 1,077,712 (3,857,823)
HESEMSE Disposal of joint ventures 1,527,459 1,258,332
WA AR AR A Disposal of financial assets at fair value
4 RVE through profit or loss 89,546 599,149
HE—THR G Y 2 Disposal of an investment property 36,967 -
HWEBCENRE Investments in joint ventures (100,000) (133,657)
AR Investments in associates - (6,015,535)
HEYE- BE LI E Disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment 3,200 1,412
WEIEE 45, (i) 814 Net cash flows from/(used in) investing
o= A activities 2,498,272 (7,512,516)
fil ¢ 1 ) B < 9 CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
B N A JE FE R B SR 1 & Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries 78,511 9,396,833
1) B Ja 2> 7 I 2 I B O Dividends paid to non-controlling
TR A 1B 2L shareholders of subsidiaries (682,082) (57,040)
ERN/NEIE EESE N Dividends paid to the equity holders of
TR AT S the Company - (551,261)
] 7K 4 A R AN Dividends paid to the holders of perpetual
TR AT S capital securities (71,423) (127,177)
W ] 7k 4 A 8 75 Redemption of perpetual capital securities (12,751)
FEAETMEEFENN B Changes in ownership interests in
INTE I HRE S ) subsidiaries without change of control (3,063,526) (7,640,565)
B W A ) K Advances from related companies 40 7,017,127 4,311,021
18 35 B T N | B Repayment of advances from
related companies 40 (8,066,075) (9,824,589)
& %8 45 T B W N 1) B9 Gk Repayment of advances to related companies 40 10,004,622 5,902,074
5T BR B N T ) AR Advances to related companies 40 (10,063,608) (12,152,730)
B K 77 50k D (3% i) Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits 7,299,107 (7,701,376)
FHESRAT e HoAth 5 3T 15 Proceeds from interest-bearing bank and
FIE other borrowings 2,683,083 28,186,126
&t SR 1T M Hifth 53X Repayment of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings (17,519,443) (27,990,041)

BEAT A WE 7 B A3 R

h

" "‘ SRt EEEERAE

Proceeds from issue of corporate bonds

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

1,314,875
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BEZZ - AR A= —HIHEE
Year ended 31 December 2022

Repayment of corporate bonds

Proceeds from issue of senior notes
Repayment of senior notes

Proceeds from issue of asset-backed securities
Repayment of asset-backed securities
Interests paid to asset-backed securities
Lease payments including related interests

Interest paid

B E e S

Notes

2022

AR T
RMB’000

(5,000)

(270,457)

(82,7306)

15 (29,547)
(2,078,199)

R e o
2021

A R#T e
RMB’000

(1,448,250)
10,272,410
(9,603,612)
895,908
(1,577,832)
(271,438)
(33,342)
(6,160,096)

Fl I B8 T B U 9 AR

Net cash flows used in financing activities

(14,849,646)

(24,872,853)

Bl& K Bl& % B H NET DECREASE IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS (11,502,179) (20,659,470)
X BLE M B EERY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of year 14,727,132 35,477,942
W4 Bl 4 EEYIE 50512 Exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents 45,158 (91,340)
R KBS EY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

END OF YEAR 3,270,111 14,727,132
B&RJEFHMAE R ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
4 KR AT 45 8 Cash and bank balances 25 9,249,715 39,120,489
A2 PR 3 4 Less: Restricted cash 25 5,892,753 16,260,957

B HE PR A 3K Pledged deposits 25 86,851 8,132,400
4w R M B IR WL K B Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
5\ B 4 M B 4 S ) statement of cash flows and statement of
financial position 3,270,111 14,727,132
e
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Notes to Financial Statements
—E Mt HA=+—H
31 December 2022

1. 2 w) B 4 L E R 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

RANFPR -F—MNELH -+ — The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
HfE B = B 5 G Aoz s HE % limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 21 July 2014. The
HBRA T o AR A BN D F Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
NE—A+ASHBEFEBH G Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 16
PR R AR (TBE 2 B ) £ Bi o January 2018. The registered office of the Company is located at
AN E) Y SR AL R Walkers Walkers Corporate Limited, 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand
Corporate Limited, 190 Elgin Avenue, Cayman KY1-9008, Cayman Islands.

George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9008,

Cayman Islands °

TAAER > AR E EE Y R During the year, the Group was principally involved in property
K EME - development and property leasing.
ANFERB L AN A & In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate
e S SR 5 B % 2 SRk controlling shareholder of the Company is Mr. Ou Zongrong.
EEN Ny A NN g Information about subsidiaries
AN T F B S A A RE N Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
LU
AR ) JE A

it 8§ 2% w1 REM R B R EENS CROLERGERA JRHEE 4 LEEH

Issued Percentage of

ordinary/ equity interest

Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities
HERHA
Directly held:
Zhenro International Limited Pl IR LHE R 50,000 T 100 HER
Zhenro International Limited British Virgin Islands US§50,000 Investment holding
Blooming Force Limited KBIR LR 50,0005 T 100% HEER
Blooming Force Limited British Virgin Islands US§50,000 Investment holding

|14 Eremsssman

Zhenro Properties Group Limited



2 ) B 4 BB B )

A1 Bl VT 2 ) B4 R )
Ay A B 2 A A S

R ()

WA

Subsidiaries

R A -

Indirectly held:

Zhenro Hong Kong Limited
Zhenro Hong Kong Limited

Sheen Billion Investment Limited

Sheen Billion Investment Limited

True Dragon (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
True Dragon (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

M REA B 5 A R

Fuzhou Huiheng Trading Co., Ltd.

MR R

Fuzhou Fengzewei Industrial Co., Ltd.

M ERERERARAA
Fuzhou Huace Enterprise

Management Co., Led.

RN B A 1 S B IR
Fuzhou Juntai Commercial

Management Co., Ltd.

IE SR B PR A PR
Zhenro Property Holdings

Company Limited

BATSERAR MR

Notes to Financial Statements
R T A=+ 0

31 December 2022

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AR H R R E RS DR ER A

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

ik
Hong Kong

i
Hong Kong

s

Singapore

e A R
(Teh B 1) /b
People’s Republic of China

(“PRC”)/Mainland China

Gl
PRC/Mainland China

/o R
PRC/Mainland China

B/
PRC/Mainland China

B/ R
PRC/Mainland China

Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

10,0003 7T
HK$10,000

10,000 7C
HK$10,000

5,000,000 7 I T
SGD3,000,000

A B 10,000,000 TG

RMB10,000,000

A B #1,000,000,000 7
RMB1,000,000,000

A B 200,000,000 70

RMB200,000,000

B #5800,000,000 TC
RMB800,000,000

B #8,200,000,000 G
RMBS, 200,000,000

A2 Wl Bl
It B 2 b

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

TECCOFER
Annual Report 2022

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

FEEH

Principal activities

BB

Investment holding

Investment holding

BE B

Investment holding
Investment holding

BB

Investment holding

Investment holding

fE MR

Investment holding

Investment holding

119
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Notes to Financial Statements
T AT A=t

31 December 2022

1. Au REBEER @ 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
A AR o\ B E R )
Ay R F B M A AR R

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

M (4 (Continued)
2 7 Al
Hif i 2 AL B RE RS CRMTERGEREA  RETAR BEEH
Issued Percentage of
ordinary/ equity interest
Place of incorporation/ registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities

|l

MEHH - (3)
Indirectly held: (Continued)

ARG (L) B RARA B/ A\ B 100,000,000 7 95% WP KM &

Zhenro Yupin (Shanghai) Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.* and property leasing

MR (L) BREERARA A s/ 7 B 100,000,000 7 95% %

Zhenro Yuyuan (Shanghai) Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*

AR (L) BREERARAA o B/ T B 100,000,000 70 100% WM REHE

Zhenro Yutian (Shanghai) Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. and property leasing

IEA AR (L) BREERARA A B/ B A 325,500,000 7 95% W%

Zhenro Yufeng (Shanghai) Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB325,500,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*

ERAE (L) BRERARA A B/ 7 AR 50,000,000 7C 95% %

Zhenro Yuzun (Shanghai) Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*

REFEEREEARALA s/ 7 A 850,050,000 76 100% H¥ 5%

Wuhan Zhenro Zhengtai Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB50,050,000 Property development

Co., Ltd.

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited



2 ) B 4 BB B )

A1 Bl VT 2 ) B4 R )

gy s e

Notes to Financial Statements
R T A=+ 0

31 December 2022

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

PN/ e e Tl - /A= N = | Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
W () (Continued)
A2 W A
i 18 24 ¥ GRS HR R B RN RSB BHEHA EEEE
Issued Percentage of

Subsidiaries

MEHH : (5)
Indirectly held: (Continued)

B IE A6 IE B A IR
Nanchang Zhenro Zhengxing Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd.

IE5 (1) B SESRA R ]

Zhenro (Putian) Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd.

IR (R H) 5 30 7 3R TR )

Zhenro (Putian) Property
Development Co., Ltd.

ERE () AR

Zhenro Fortune (Fujian)
Real Estate Co., Ltd.

ERRED) BERRAH
Zhenro (Changsha) Real Estate Co., Ltd.

B IE 5 GBI 0) 2 56 IR v )

(HBEE]

Nanchang Zhenro (Singapore) Real Estate Co., Led.
(“Nanchang Real Estate”)

ordinary/ equity interest

Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to
registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities
/o A )\ 150,000,000 7 100% Y% 5%
PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
s/ T AR 310,000,000 7C 100% HERE LY ERE
PRC/Mainland China RMB310,000,000 Property development
and property leasing
i/ 7 A B #30,300,000 78 100% WM %
PRC/Mainland China RMB30,300,000 Property development
/o A B #101,100,000 76 100% 9% 5 R A K
PRC/Mainland China RMB101,100,000 Property development
and property leasing
/o A B 60,000,000 7C 100% H3%EH% LY ERE
PRC/Mainland China RMB60,000,000 Property development
and property leasing
oo A R 105,000,000 7€ 100% H¥EEELYERE
PRC/Mainland China RMB105,000,000 Property development
and property leasing

Annuolzliio:rtﬁ;zaﬁ —I —‘ 7



SRR EE

Notes to Financial Statements
T AT A=t

31 December 2022

1. 2w K EEE R @

A5 Bl Vi 2 ) B4 R )

Ay A B 2 A A R S
UGS )

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

118

AR v HE A
Hif i 2 AL R R TR R R A JRHET b EEEH
Issued Percentage of
ordinary/ equity interest
Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities
A ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
1 K5 0 7 A TR oo B AR 99,039,200 100% YR
Nanchang Shiou Properties PRC/Mainland China RMB99,039,200 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ERNMER CFE) BERRARAT  PE/PE K AR 50,000,000 7 100% 413 b 3
Zhenro Shantian Zhengtai (Pingtan) Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
1 %2 57 s S A TR i/ 7 15,000,000 100% WM %
Xi'an Jingqi Property Development Co., Led. PRC/Mainland China RMBS$,000,000 Property development
ESET WA (H5 1) B34 PR ) /o A A\ B 80,800,000 78 100% ¥)3€ b
Zhenro Yuhu (Putian) Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB80,800,000 Property development
WMEELEKEEARAR G VTR B 8,000,000 7 100% ¥)3€ b %
Hunan Xiushan Lishui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB8,000,000 Property development
MEERLARERERARAA /o A A\ 100,000,000 76 100% )% 5%
Nanchang Zhenro Honggu Investment Co., Led. PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property development
A LR R ERREARA R s/ B B 50,000,000 7 100% Yy
Nanchang Zhenro Xinjian Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
ALK BB A R ] v s/ A B 400,000,000 7 5% WEHE
Hefei Yongtuo Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB400,000,000 Property development

Development Co., Ltd.**

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited



2\ S &R )

A1 Bl VT 2 ) B4 R )
Ay A B 2 A A S

R ()

I 2%

Subsidiaries

A ()

Indirectly held: (Continued)

AREREERRARARA

Hefei Zhengyu Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

EHHH BERRARAA
Zhengrun (Putian) Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd.

ETFCFE) BXERARA A
Zhengsheng (Pingtan) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

EA (R BEERARAR
Zhenro (Minhou) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

EE(GRE) BEERARAA
Zhenro (Mawei) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

SRR M EE

Notes to Financial Statements
R T A=+ 0

31 December 2022

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

(Continued)
A2 A
AR MR R E RN CRMEERGEMEA O BETAL REXH
Issued Percentage of
ordinary/ equity interest
Place of incorporation/ registered  attributable to

registration and business

share capital

the Company

Principal activities

/A R 125,000,000 76 100% Y%
PRC/Mainland China RMB125,000,000 Property development
s/ T B #80,800,000 7 100% Y% 5%
PRC/Mainland China RMB80,800,000 Property development
o B/ B A H50,000,000 78 100% 413 b 3
PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
/o A R 50,000,000 76 100% )3 b 3
PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
/o B 50,000,000 7C 100% W15 R EME
PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
and property leasing
TECCOFER
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SRR EE

Notes to Financial Statements
T AT A=t

31 December 2022

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

1 2 w) B 4 &R ) L.

A5 Bl Vi 2 ) B4 R )
Ay A B 2 A A R S

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

12

UGS ) (Continued)
AR v HE A
Hif i 2 AL B RE RS CRMTERGEREA  RETAR BEEH
Issued Percentage of
ordinary/ equity interest
Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities

MEHH - (3)
Indirectly held: (Continued)

IE5E (M) B R AR AR /o A\ B 50,000,000 7 100% 1% 5%

Zhenro (Fuzhou) Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

5 (B S s A A s/ 7 AR 50,000,000 7C 100% H¥EHE LY ERE

Zhenro (Minhou) Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. and property leasing

A (PR B RARA A i/ 7 N 50,000,000 78 100% 413 b %

Zhenro Shantian (Pingtan) Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

M ERITES EREARAA B/ 7 B #100,100,000 76 100% )3 b 3

Nanjing Zhento Jiangbin Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB100,100,000 Property development
Co., Ltd.

P IE 5 F5 4 B B TR0 /o B 100,000,000 7C 100% 4% %

Nanjing Zhenro Property Development PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd.

MR EREXBRARAA /o AR 110,000,000 76 100% P15 %

Nanjing Zhenro Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB110,000,000 Property development

S (P 8 8 RA WA A s/ 7 AR 50,000,000 7C 100% M5

Zhenro Shantian (Pingtan) Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd.

IESERRG (BR M) B 3650 B AT R A+ i/ 7 AR 159,462,900 7C 95% WM %

Zhenro Sunan (Suzhou) Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB159,462,900 Property development

Development Co., Ltd.*

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited



2 ) B 4 BB B )

A1 Bl VT 2 ) B4 R )
Ay A B 2 A A S

R ()

I 2%

Subsidiaries

MEHH : (5)
Indirectly held: (Continued)

ERET R M) B EH R
Zhenro Group Sunan (Suzhou)

Investment Co., Ltd.*

LT & I 7 i B A R

Jiangxi Zhenro Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd.

IESERR G (BR M) 7 07 A7 R W
Zhenro Sunan (Suzhou) Property

Co., Ltd.

P RCIE SR TE 5 5 s P A IR R
Nanjing Zhenro Dexin Property

Development Co., Ltd.

AR T 15 2 I I 5 5 0 B A TR A

Fuzhou Mawei District Zhenro Property

Development Co., Ltd.

R (R SEREARA A

Zhenro (Fuzhou) Investment

Development Co., Ltd.

MG ERETEERRARA A
Minhou Zhenro Zhengsheng Real

Estate Development Co., Led.

IEARRE (BEM) 55 30 7 B A R ]+
Zhenro Sutong (Suzhou) Property

Development Co., Ltd.*

BATSERAR MR

Notes to Financial Statements
R T A=+ 0

31 December 2022

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AR R R E RS R R A

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

Gl I
PRC/Mainland China

B/ A
PRC/Mainland China

/o R
PRC/Mainland China

B/
PRC/Mainland China

B/ A
PRC/Mainland China

/o
PRC/Mainland China

oo A
PRC/Mainland China

o/ o B
PRC/Mainland China

Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

N 105,265,000 7C
RMB105,265,000

A B #1,000,000,000 7
RMB1,000,000,000

N B 750,000,000 T
RMB750,000,000

N #1.430,306,200 7
RMB1,430,306,200

B 60,000,000 7C
RMBG0,000,000

A B 50,000,000 7C
RMB50,000,000

AR 50,000,000 7C
RMBS50,000,000

A 150,000,000 7C
RMBS50,000,000

A2 7 Al
It 1 i > e

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

95%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

95%

TECCOFER
Annual Report 2022

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

FREH

Principal activities

RS

Property development

ELE

Property development

UELES

Property development

ELE Y IE il
Property development

and property leasing

B L

Property development

R

Property development

ESE

Property development

ESES

Property development
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Notes to Financial Statements
T AT A=t

31 December 2022

1. 2w K EEE R @

A5 Bl Vi 2 ) B4 R )

Ay A B 2 A A R S
UGS )

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

AR v HE A
Hif i 2 AL B RE RS CRMTERGEREA  RETAR BEEH
Issued Percentage of
ordinary/ equity interest
Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities

WA (4

Indirectly held: (Continued)

TR IEZ BB A R ]+
Chuzhou Zhenghong Real Estate

Development Co., Led. **

ARTETH R ERARA A
Shishi Zhengsheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

ETE () B R RARA A
Zhengsheng (Fuzhou) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

& (R BXRERARAF
Zhengding (Fuging) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

EFi (%) EXRRARAF
Zhengrui (Fuging) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

R CF8) BERRARA A
Zhengxin (Pingtan) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

7o DL B o B A R ] e

Jiaxing Zhuosu Property Development
Co., Ltd.#*

FREEBEARAF
Jiaxing Rongyu Real Estate Co., Ltd.*

RUEBEXARAH
Changsha Zhengze Real Estate Co., Ltd.

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

/A B 125,000,000 76 R E kS
PRC/Mainland China RMB125,000,000 Property development
s/ T B 50,500,000 7 100% Y% 5%
PRC/Mainland China RMB50,500,000 Property development
/o R A B #50,000,000 78 100% 1% 5%
PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
/A R 50,000,000 76 100% %5 %
PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
/o B #50,000,000 7 100% ¥ 5%
PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
oo T A B 150,000,000 78 100% 1% 5%
PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
R/ A B 100,000,000 76 50% W
PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property development
/e g AR 52,632,000 7C 95% Wk
PRC/Mainland China RMB52,632,000 Property development
/o B #800,000,000 7 100% ¥ %%
PRC/Mainland China RMB800,000,000 Property development



2 ) B 4 BB B )

A1 Bl VT 2 ) B4 R )
Ay A B 2 A A S

R ()

I 2%

Subsidiaries

M (41)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

O o e A R R+
Zhengzhou Xinronggui Real Estate

Co., Ltd.*

HEMBEEEREREAERAA

Ji'an Birong Property Development
Co., Ltd.

HETHERMEREARAH

Ji'an Yuanrong Property Development
Co., Ltd.

R0 A A A R e
Nanjing Liangrongxin Property

Development Co., Led. **

PG IR 0 A A R
Lu'an Zhengyu Property Development

Co., Ltd.**

BEWRE EAERARAA
Xiangyang Changfang Zhengchuang
Real Estate Co., Ltd.

SR 7 2 R 2 A PR ]
Chengdu Chunhua Tianyuan

Agriculture Development Co., Ltd.*

N IR A SR PR+
Zhangzhou Zhengyu Real Estate Co., Led.*

T LA B SR IR ]
Jiaxing Rongkun Real Estate Co., Ltd.**

BATSERAR MR

Notes to Financial Statements

Y e
31 December 2022

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AR R R E RS R R A

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

Gl I
PRC/Mainland China

B/ A
PRC/Mainland China

/o R
PRC/Mainland China

B/
PRC/Mainland China

B/ A
PRC/Mainland China

/o
PRC/Mainland China

oo A
PRC/Mainland China

oo B
PRC/Mainland China

Wi/
PRC/Mainland China

Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

B #3,000,000,000 76
RMB3,000,000,000

N B 200,000,000 7C
RMB200,000,000

A B #200,000,000 70
RMB200,000,000

B 480,000,000 TC
RMBA480,000,000

R #150,000,000 7C
RMB150,000,000

A B 50,000,000 7C
RMB50,000,000

B 10,000,000 T
RMB10,000,000

B #1,600,000,000 7
RMB1,600,000,000

A B 50,000,000 7T
RMBS50,000,000

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

A5 w A

T A EEEH
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company Principal activities

97.9% )% fi 5

Property development

100% %5

Property development

100% 492 %

Property development

36.67% W1

Property development

35% YR

Property development

100% 412 B %

Property development

65% WK%

Property development

96.5% )% B %

Property development

37% WEME

Property development

TECCOFER
Annual Report 2022
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2022

1. 2w K EEE R @

A5 Bl Vi 2 ) B4 R )

Ay A B 2 A A R S
UGS )

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

124

AR v HE A
Hif i 2 AL B RE RS CRMTERGEREA  RETAR BEEH
Issued Percentage of
ordinary/ equity interest
Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities

MEHH - (3)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B G A A R A

Yichun Jintou Real Estate Co., Led. **

BN 1 5 7 B A W+
Guangzhou Fumao Property

Development Co., Led. **

7% IE B A R A+

Xi'an Zhengyi Real Estate Co., Led.*

R IR BB RA R

Nanjing Zhengzi Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

AR S T A IR R
Hefei Rongfeng Property Development Co., Ltd.

AR SEER A R
Hefei Rongrui Property Development Co., Ltd.

AERFREREAR A
Hefei Rongsen Property Development Co., Ltd.

RIS R W RARA A
Hefei Rongjin Property Development Co., Ltd.

Bl LIRS A 3 A IR A A
Xiangyang Zhengyao Property
Development Co., Ltd.

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

/A 50,000,000 76 3% WERE
PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
/o A 500,000,000 76 S
PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 Property development
/o AR #10,662,000 7 93.79% WI¥M %
PRC/Mainland China RMB10,662,000 Property development
iR /o A B 50,000,000 7 100% 43¢5 %
PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
/A B 100,000,000 76 100% 1% 5 %
PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property development
/o B 100,000,000 76 100% Y% 5%
PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property development
/o B #100,000,000 7 100% ¥ 5%
PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property development
/o B #100,000,000 70 100% ¥ %%
PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property development
/o B 50,000,000 7 100% ¥ 5%
PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development



2 ) B 4 BB B )

A1 Bl VT 2 ) B4 R )
Ay A B 2 A A S

R ()

I 2%

Subsidiaries

M (41)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

EERRHEEFRAR

Zhenghuicheng Chengdu Real Estate
Co., Ltd.

EREHEERRARAH
Chongqing Zhengjue Real Estate Co., Ltd.

W% IESL S ERARA A
Xi'an Zhenghongfeng Real Estate Co., Led.*

RI(HRM) BEERARA A
Rongsheng (Fuzhou) Real Estate Co., Ltd.

B ) BEEARAA
Rongyu (Putian) Real Estate Co., Led.

BN B B A R R+
Suzhou Lingrui Real Estate Co., Led. **

BRNRESR B A R R+
Suzhou Chengrui Real Estate Co., Ltd.**

AL o B A R+
Changshu Hongrun Property
Development Co., Ltd.*

BN IE 5 o B A IR A R
Suzhou Zhengyu Property
Development Co., Ltd.

PR IE L B 3 3 R A IR i
Nanjing Zhengjiang Real Estate Co., Ltd.*

BATSERAR MR

Notes to Financial Statements
R T A=+ 0

31 December 2022

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AR R R E RS R R A

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

Gl I
PRC/Mainland China

B/ A
PRC/Mainland China

B/ R
PRC/Mainland China

/B R
PRC/Mainland China

B/ 7
PRC/Mainland China

Gl I
PRC/Mainland China

B/ A
PRC/Mainland China

B/ R
PRC/Mainland China

/o
PRC/Mainland China

B/
PRC/Mainland China

Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

N B 30,000,000 7C
RMB30,000,000

A R 30,000,000 7T
RMB30,000,000

N 10,363,000 7T
RMB10,363,000

N IR #1,930,000,000 78
RMB1,930,000,000

AR 50,000,000 78
RMBS50,000,000

AR 50,000,000 7C
RMBS50,000,000

AR 50,000,000 7
RMBS50,000,000

A #500,000,000 7

RMB500,000,000

N B 1,009,520,000 G
RMBI,009,520,000

B 600,000,000 TC
RMBG00,000,000

A2 7 Al
It 1 i > e

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

96.5%

100%

100%

50%

50%

55%

100%

51%

TECCOFER
Annual Report 2022

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

FREH

Principal activities

RS

Property development

ELE

Property development

EL LS

Property development

UELE

Property development

IR

Property development

EES

Property development

B

Property development

LR

Property development

R

Property development

EEES

Property development
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A5 Bl Vi 2 ) B4 R )
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

12

AR v HE A
Hif i 2 AL R R TR R R A JRHET b EEEH
Issued Percentage of
ordinary/ equity interest
Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities
A ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
P 5 A TR ] B/ A\ B 300,000,000 7 49% W%
Nanjing Zhuofa Real Estate Co., Led.** PRC/Mainland China RMB300,000,000 Property development
REEABERRARALA /o T A\ R 50,000,000 7 100% Y% %
Wuhan Zhengzhou Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
S5 R BB A A A s/ 7 B 2,800,000,000 18 80% IR
Rongrui (Fuzhou) Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB2,800,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Led.*
MERRFHEREARAF R/ A AR #100,000,000 7 100% 155 %
Nanchang (Birong) Property PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
HEEAEEARAA B/ 7 B 150,000,000 7 100% W%
Yichun Zhengchuang Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
RE(HH) BERRERAA B/ 7 R 150,000,000 7 100% Y% %
Ronghong (Putian) Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
RN 3 5 o B A PR 6 ) i/ 7 AR 50,000,000 7C 50.1% %R %
Chuzhou Hongzheng Real Estate Co., Ltd.* PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
IERE (1) B ERARA A s/ 7 AR 305,145,0007C 51% PEME
Zhenglong (Foshan) Real Estate Co., Ltd.* PRC/Mainland China RMB305,145,000 Property development
AL BB A A A+ oo B 7 R 196,000,000 7 98.21% Y¥H%
Hefei Zhenghua Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB196,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*
BMEHERRRAMAR /A AR 38,460,000 7T 100% )3 %
Xuzhou Zhengming Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB38,460,000 Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited



gy s e

Notes to Financial Statements
R T A=+ 0

31 December 2022

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

2 ) B 4 BB B ) 1.

A1 Bl VT 2 ) B4 R )
Ay A B 2 A A S

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

UGS ) (Continued)
AR ) HE A
Hif i 2 AL B RE RS CRMTERGEREA  RETAR BEEH
Issued Percentage of
ordinary/ equity interest
Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities

MEHH : (5)
Indirectly held: (Continued)

WEREEEARAA /o A A\ B 100,000,000 7 100% %M
Jinan Rongxi Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property development
B REEARA R B/ 7 B H246,940,000 76 100% Y% %
Xiamen Rongzhu Real Estate Co., Led. PRC/Mainland China RMB246,940,000 Property development
S (R BEBRARAA s/ 7 R 50,000,000 7C 100% HE%M %
Rongji (Tianjin) Real Estate Co., Led. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
B ESEEARA A s/ 7 B %20,319,000 7 98.22% Y%
Nanchang Zhengding Real Estate Co., Ltd.* PRC/Mainland China RMB20,319,000 Property development
BMEREXBRARAF L/ 7 B 602,050,000 70 100% 155 %
Xuzhou Zhengjun Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB602,050,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
7 % IR 5 3 7 4 8 A PR A )+ /A AR 10,362,694 7T 96.5% Y%
X{i'an Zhengjie Property Development PRC/Mainland China RMB10,362,694 Property development
Co., Led.*
REEREERRARALA s/ 7 AR 50,000,000 7C 100% $) %%
Wuhan Zhengchu Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
HAREREEARA A s/ 7 A B 30,000,000 78 100% M
Chengdu Ronghengyun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 Property development
BB R L AR R A IR A+ R/ A ARH$175,000,000 70 S1% WIER %
Chongging Zhenghong Langyuan Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB175,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*
“BCFFR

Annual Report 2022
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

AR v HE A

Hif i 2 AL R R TR R R A JRHET b EEEH
Issued Percentage of
ordinary/ equity interest

Subsidiaries

WA (4

Indirectly held: (Continued)

RMGEE BFA RO+

Quanzhou Rongjin Real Estate Co., Led.**

MR AR+
Quanzhou Ronghui Real Estate Co., Ltd.*

BN EER AR RA RN
Suzhou Meizheng Property

Development Co., Ltd.*

TR ERM) BB EA WA A+
Rongjing (Zhengzhou) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.*

LT IE B A IR
Xiamen Zhengliang Real Estate Co., Ltd.

HERERLEREERAT
Nanchang Zhuzheng Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd.*

BN IE T 7 R )
Suzhou Zhengguan Property

Development Co., Ltd.*

BN IE ot 5 0 7 4 6 PR A ]
Suzhou Zhengnuo Property

Development Co., Ltd.**

| 28 ESEERMERAT

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

B/
PRC/Mainland China

Gl I
PRC/Mainland China

B/ A
PRC/Mainland China

/B R
PRC/Mainland China

B/ R
PRC/Mainland China

L/
PRC/Mainland China

B/ B A
PRC/Mainland China

/o A
PRC/Mainland China

registered

share capital

B 150,000,000 7C
RMB150,000,000

B 100,000,000 7C
RMB100,000,000

N B 200,000,000 7C

RMB200,000,000

B 100,000,000 7
RMB100,000,000

B 300,000,000 7
RMB300,000,000
B 330,000,000 7

RMB330,000,000

A 500,000,000 7
RMBS500,000,000

N E#377,665,000 T
RMB377,665,000

attributable to

the Company

34%

51%

95%

51%

100%

62%

51%

50%

Principal activities

3 %

Property development

ESEE

Property development

ELE

Property development

UELE

Property development

ELES

Property development

3 %

Property development

B

Property development

R

Property development



2 ) B 4 BB B )

A1 Bl VT 2 ) B4 R )
Ay A B 2 A A S

R ()

I 2%

Subsidiaries

A ()

Indirectly held: (Continued)

HELHERERARLA

Sugian Zhengxiang Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

WM SR BB A R+
Zhengzhou Rongxi Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd.*

SO 5% B B R AT IR A R+
Zhengzhou Rongrui Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.*

MELERERARAF
Nanchang Zhengze Real Estate Co., Led.

B B0 7 MO P R ]+
Nanchang Rongming Property

Development Co., Led. **

MERBERARA
Nanchang Ronglin Real Estate Co., Ltd.*

IE# (1) B 36 A R~ A

Zhengcheng (Putian) Real Estate Co., Ltd.

F¥GEH) EEHRAA
Zhengzhe (Putian) Real Estate Co., Ltd.

BEAEEXRRANAA
Fuyang Ronghui Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

BATSERAR MR

Notes to Financial Statements

Y e
31 December 2022

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AR R R E RS R R A

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

Gl I
PRC/Mainland China

B/ A
PRC/Mainland China

/o R
PRC/Mainland China

B/
PRC/Mainland China

B/
PRC/Mainland China

B/ A
PRC/Mainland China

/o
PRC/Mainland China

/o A
PRC/Mainland China

B/
PRC/Mainland China

Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

AR #1,850,000,000 7
RMBI,850,000,000

A B 100,000,000 7C
RMB100,000,000

A B 100,000,000 7C
RMB100,000,000

B 50,050,000 78
RMBS50,050,000

AR 294,118,000 7C
RMB294,118,000
N B 200,000,000 7C

RMB200,000,000

A B 50,500,000 7C
RMB50,500,000

B 50,500,000 7
RMBS50,500,000

B 100,000,000 TC
RMB100,000,000

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

A2 7 Al
BeHET 2 EEEH

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company Principal activities

100% 4 % B %

Property development

51% W

Property development

519 YR %

Property development

100% ¥ H%

Property development

349 YRR

Property development

1%

Property development

100% 42 B %

Property development

100% 2B %

Property development

100% 4 3 B 8%

Property development

Annuolﬁiﬁcﬁtﬁﬁﬁ —I 2 Q
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1. 2w K EEE R @

A5 Bl Vi 2 ) B4 R )

Ay A B 2 A A R S
UGS )

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

AR v HE A
Hif i 2 AL R R TR R R A JRHET b EEEH
Issued Percentage of
ordinary/ equity interest
Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities
A ()
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BRI 58 B TR B/ B \ B #350,000,000 7 3% MERE
Suzhou Xinzhengmei Real Estate Co., Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB350,000,000 Property development
A M LA 5 o B A TR ) B/ 7 A 200,000,000 76 55% MR
Hefei Xingyu Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd.*
P IE R E R A RA A oo T R #2,500,000,000 78 100% ¥ %%
Nanjing Zhengkang Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB2,500,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
P IR E A RA R B/ B #1,380,000,000 78 100% W A%
Nanjing Zhengtong Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB1,380,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ER(HH) BEARAA /o A A\ B 50,000,000 7 100% 1% 5 %
Zhengjia (Putian) Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Property development
L IERE BB RA WA A+ /o T B 100,000,000 7C 95% WG
Shanghai Zhengshu Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*
MR ERERBRARAA oo T AR H2,460,000,000 76 519 W3R %
Nanjing Zhengye Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB2,460,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*
REEAEERRARA A G VTR B 5,000,000 78 100% ¥)3€ b %
Wuhan Zhengben Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB$,000,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
3 5 T M B LA s/ T R 900,000,000 7C 205% WERE
Nanjing Shansheng Property PRC/Mainland China RMB900,000,000 Property development

Development Co., Ltd.**

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited



2 ) B 4 BB B )

A1 Bl VT 2 ) B4 R )

Ay A B 2 A A S

R ()

I 2%

Subsidiaries

M (41)

Indirectly held: (Continued)
RMEREEHRAR

Quanzhou Zhengyao Real Estate Co., Ltd.

RMEREFEARA T+

Quanzhou Baorong Real Estate Co., Ltd.**

RE GEM) B E8RA R+
Rongju (Fuzhou) Investment

Development Co., Led.*

I 3 6 O A PR R
Xixian New District Rongyuansheng

Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

B A TR A
Nanchang Jianmei Property Co., Led.**

A IE P E A R ]+
Nanchang Zhengrun Real Estate Co., Ltd.**

R BN A R 7
Zhangjiagang Free Trade Yaohui

Property Development Co., Led.**

RHIE R F AR
Tianjin Zhengsheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

MR ERERA R
Nanjing Taiqi Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd.**

BATSERAR MR

Notes to Financial Statements
R T A=+ 0

31 December 2022

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AR R R E RS R R A

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

Gl I
PRC/Mainland China

B/
PRC/Mainland China

B/ R
PRC/Mainland China

R/ A
PRC/Mainland China

L/ R
PRC/Mainland China

B/ B A
PRC/Mainland China

/o R
PRC/Mainland China

Gl
PRC/Mainland China

Gl
PRC/Mainland China

Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

AR 50,000,000 7C
RMBS50,000,000

B 265,000,000 7
RMB265,000,000

N B 470,000,000 7C

RMB470,000,000

N 10,000,000 7
RMB10,000,000

B 10,000,000 7T
RMB10,000,000

\ B 40,000,000 7
RMB40,000,000

AR #65,000,000 7T
RMB65,000,000

B 60,000,000 T
RMBG0,000,000

A B #100,000,000 7C
RMB100,000,000

A2 7 Al
It 1 i > e

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

46.5%

70%

100%

39%

48%

26%

100%

25%

TECCOFER
Annual Report 2022

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

FREH

Principal activities

RS

Property development

ELEE

Property development

ELE

Property development

UELE

Property development

ELES

Property development

LS

Property development

UELE

Property development

ELES

Property development

ELES

Property development
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R ()

I 24

Subsidiaries

WA (4

Indirectly held: (Continued)

BRNIEf B S B R A IR ] v
Suzhou Zhengxin Property

Development Co., Led. **

B ALy T O A PR ] e
Kunshan Zhuomi Property

Development Co., Ltd.**

BMEXERERARAA
Xuzhou Zhengyong Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

MRENERBRARAR
Nanjing Zhengli Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

IESL (M) B3 A IR A )
Zhengyu (Suzhou) Commercial
Management Co., Ltd.

i 30 T BB PR A
Foshan Xunmao Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd.

RELEYERREARA A
Wuhan Zhengcai Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

AR 5 B B IR R
Fuzhou Haiguangrong Real Estate Co., Ltd.**

| 37 IRemEmERAT

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AR H R R E RS R A

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

B/
PRC/Mainland China

R/ A
PRC/Mainland China

B/ R
PRC/Mainland China

Gl
PRC/Mainland China

B/ A
PRC/Mainland China

B/ A
PRC/Mainland China

oo A
PRC/Mainland China

B/ A
PRC/Mainland China

Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

AR 103,722,000 7
RMB103,722,000

B 880,000,000 7
RMB80,000,000

N 177,000,000 7T
RMB177,000,000

N R 177,940,000 7C
RMB177,940,000

N 171,585,000 7
RMB171,585,000

R #500,000,000 7C
RMBS500,000,000

N R 5,000,000 7
RMBS,000,000

A 500,000,000 76
RMBS500,000,000

A2 7 Al
It 1 Vi e

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

30.79%

25%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

26.5%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

FREH

Principal activities

3 %

Property development

UELE

Property development

B L

Property development

EEES

Property development

R

Property development

ESES

Property development

B E

Property development

R

Property development



2 ) B 4 BB B )

A1 Bl VT 2 ) B4 R )
Ay A B 2 A A S

R ()

I 2%

Subsidiaries

A ()

Indirectly held: (Continued)
HEEREEARAHA

Yichun Zhengding Real Estate Co., Ltd.

RUBBERARA A
Changsha Yueyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd.*

R LR IET B A R
Wuhan Zhenro Zhengsheng Real
Estate Co., Ltd.

A AR A PR
Wuhan Hengrui Jufu Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd.*

ER () BEERARAR
Zhenggian (Foshan) Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd.

B % I B R A RS
Minhou Zhenghong Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

WHECHREERRAA
Chengdu Zhengqitai Real Estate Co., Ltd.

BLF TR B A R
Xiamen Zhengpeng Real Estate Co., Led.

HEERERARA R
Yichun Zhengze Real Estate Co., Ltd. *¥*

BATSERAR MR

Notes to Financial Statements

Y e
31 December 2022

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AR R R E RS R R A

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

Gl I
PRC/Mainland China

B/ A
PRC/Mainland China

B/
PRC/Mainland China

/o
PRC/Mainland China

B/ R
PRC/Mainland China

B/ A
PRC/Mainland China

B/ B A
PRC/Mainland China

B/ A
PRC/Mainland China

B/ A
PRC/Mainland China

Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

B 20,000,000 TG
RMB20,000,000

N B 300,000,000 7T
RMB300,000,000

B 100,100,000 7C
RMB100,100,000

A B #50,000,000 7
RMB50,000,000

R #1,250,000,000 7
RMB1,250,000,000

B 680,000,000 TC
RMBG80,000,000

A B 130,000,000 78
RMB30,000,000

R 50,000,000 7
RMBS50,000,000

N B #100,000,000 7C
RMB100,000,000

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

A5 w A
T A EEEH
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company Principal activities

100% 4 % B %

Property development

1% WM

Property development

100% 4 % 5%

Property development

519 YR

Property development

100% 9%

Property development

100% 4 3% B 8%

Property development

100% 42 B 5%

Property development

100% 435

Property development

49% )% 55

Property development

TECCOFER
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R A=T—H
31 December 2022

1. 2w K EEE R @

A5 Bl Vi 2 ) B4 R )

Ay A B 2 A A R S

R ()

I 24

Subsidiaries

WA (4

Indirectly held: (Continued)

ER () EEARA
Zhengqian (Putian) Real Estate Co., Ltd.

B A S B AR

Xiamen Ronglianjia Real Estate Co., Ltd.

B MR RA A
Xiamen Rongheng Industrial Co., Ltd.

I BT I 5 R A R ] e
Xixian New Area Zhenghongzhuo Real

Estate Development Co., Led.**

Y 5 A R ]
Shaanxi Zhuoyue Jingda Real Estate Co., Led.**

PR IE B S B R IR ¢
Nanjing Zhengao Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.*

5 (M) B REA R A
Zhengrui (Fuzhou) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

EREEE (M) HRA A
Zhengteng Real Estate (Hangzhou) Co., Led.*

B 52 5 o 7 R e
Guangzhou Chuangjia Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd.**

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

134

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AR H R R E RS R A

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

B/
PRC/Mainland China

Gl I
PRC/Mainland China

B/ A
PRC/Mainland China

B/ B A
PRC/Mainland China

B/
PRC/Mainland China

Gl
PRC/Mainland China

B/ R
PRC/Mainland China

/o
PRC/Mainland China

G VTR
PRC/Mainland China

Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

B 50,500,000 78
RMB50,500,000

N #1,570,000,000 7C
RMB1,570,000,000

\ B #1,000,000,000 7C
RMB1,000,000,000

N BB 472,065,000 T
RMB472,065,000

N B 374,000,000 T
RMB374,000,000
N H1,615,000,000 T

RMB1,615,000,000

B 20,000,000 7C
RMB20,000,000

A B 900,000,000 78
RMB900,000,000

B #100,000,000 T8
RMB100,000,000

A2 7 Al
It 1 Vi e

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

34%

34%

60%

100%

83%

50%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

FREH

Principal activities

3 %

Property development

ESEE

Property development

ELE

Property development

B

Property development

B

Property development

EEES

Property development

ESEE

Property development

B

Property development

R

Property development



2 ) B 4 BB B )

A1 Bl VT 2 ) B4 R )
Ay A B 2 A A S

R ()

I 2%

Subsidiaries

M (41)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

IERE (M) B RARA R

Zhengpeng (Guangzhou) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

IEHE (B BERRARAF
Zhenghui (Guangzhou) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

LA () B EARA A«
Zhengyao (Fuzhou) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.*

0L IE 5 M R AR A PR )
Nanjing Hongzheng Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd.*

AR B b S B IR ]
Fuzhou Jingmu Enterprise

Management Co., Led.**

WM ERERERARAA
Chuzhou Zhengxiang Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

REFHEEERARARAA
Wuhan Zhengshuo Enterprise

Management Consulting Co., Led.

MAERERERARAA
Nanjing Zhengxiao Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

BATSERAR MR

Notes to Financial Statements
R T A=+ 0

31 December 2022

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(Continued)

AR R R E RS R R A

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

Gl I
PRC/Mainland China

B/ A
PRC/Mainland China

/o R
PRC/Mainland China

Gl
PRC/Mainland China

B/ A
PRC/Mainland China

/o
PRC/Mainland China

o /o A
PRC/Mainland China

oo B
PRC/Mainland China

Issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

B H1,045,440,000 TG
RMB1,045,440,000

\ B 10,000,000 7C
RMB10,000,000

A B 100,000,000 1C
RMB100,000,000

AR 50,000,000 7C
RMBS50,000,000

N B 900,000,000 7C
RMB900,000,000

AR 820,000,000 7T
RMB20,000,000

N B 30,000,000 70
RMB30,000,000

R #100,000,000 G
RMB100,000,000

A2 7 Al
It 1 i > e

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

51%

51%

34%

100%

100%

100%

TECCOFER
Annual Report 2022

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

FREH

Principal activities

RS

Property development

ELE

Property development

UELES

Property development

EES

Property development

B L

Property development

B

Property development

ESE

Property development

ELES

Property development
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1. 2w K EEE R @

A5 Bl Vi 2 ) B4 R )

Ay A B 2 A A R S
UGS )

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

13

I 24

Subsidiaries

A ()

Indirectly held: (Continued)

MAIEREERRARAR

Nanjing Zhenggao Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

B AL A R ) e
Kunshan Jianbao Real Estate
Co., Ltd.**

IERE (BOM) B3R A R A
Zhengteng (Guangzhou) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

i S (BE) 7 365 A R )
Guanrui (Suzhou) Commerce

Management Co., Ltd.

RAEEE SR ERARKELA
Chengdu Ronghuiyu Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.

BEP T IE 2 B 56 A IR A+
Xiamen Zhengben Real Estate Co., Ltd.*

o 0 B B S R R )
Minhou Shengrui Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

Zhen Kai Gloryvictor Limited
ZhenKai Gloryvictor Limited

Zhen Hui Starworld Limited
ZhenHui Starworld Limited

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

(Continued)
AR v HE A
AL R R TR R R A JRHET b EEEH
Issued Percentage of
ordinary/ equity interest
registered attributable to

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

B/
PRC/Mainland China

Gl I
PRC/Mainland China

/o R
PRC/Mainland China

B/
PRC/Mainland China

B/ R
PRC/Mainland China

/o
PRC/Mainland China

/o A
PRC/Mainland China

EEELHEE
British Virgin Islands

K E LTS
British Virgin Islands

share capital

B 198,000,000
RMB98,000,000

A #1,200,000,000 7
RMB1,200,000,000

N 10,000,000 1
RMB10,000,000

B 20,000,000 7T
RMB20,000,000

AR 30,000,000 7C
RMB30,000,000

A B 50,000,000 7C
RMBS50,000,000
B 120,000,000 T
RMB20,000,000
21,000,000 3 T

USD21,000,000

29,000,000 3 TG
USD29,000,000

the Company

100%

50%

100%

100%

100%

51%

100% (Bt &%)

(note)

100% (Jff 5%)

(note)

100% (Fff 5%)

(note)

Principal activities

3 %

Property development

ELE

Property development

UELE

Property development

EES

Property development

ESEE

Property development

B

Property development

R

Property development

Investment holding

tracgedile

Investment holding
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2022

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

2 ) B 4 BB B ) 1.

A1 Bl VT 2 ) B4 R )
Ay A B 2 A A S

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

UGS ) (Continued)
AR ) HE A
Hif i 2 AL B RE RS CRMTERGEREA  RETAR BEEH
Issued Percentage of
ordinary/ equity interest
Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities

MEHH : (5)
Indirectly held: (Continued)

% (BEM) T A A R L/ NRH392160000C  100% (HH3E) 43R0 %

Aihong (Suzhou) Business Management Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB39,216,000 (note)  Property development

AR LB £ B B R A A /o T ANEH 1960800076 100% (MfGE) 435 %

Fuzhou Kairui Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB19,608,000 (note)  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

RUERERBEARAA oo T ARM100000007C 1009 (HF7E) D3

Changsha Zhengro Zhengjing Real PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 (note)  Property development
Estate Co., Ltd.

IES (BOM) B3 A R ) R/ A AEH100000007C  100% (W 3E) B 3

Zhengkun (Guangzhou) Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 (note)  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

M IEME X RARA A B/ 7 AEH 10000000076 100% (MEEE) 4R %

Xuzhou Zhengcheng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 (note)  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

MREREERREARAA oo 7 AR 10000000070 100% (HF7E) #3003

Nanjing Zhengsheng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 (note)  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

B IE S EEREARA A /o A AEH1960784007C  100% (MF3E) 3

Nanjing Zhengting Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB196,078,400 (note)  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

FIER B EREARA L/ 7 AR H411,940,0000C  100% (HHRE) 3%

Nanjing Zhengnai Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB411,940,000 (note)  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

“BCFFR

Annual Report 2022
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1. Au REBEER @ 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
A AR o\ B E R )
Ay R F B M A AR R

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

UGS ) (Continued)
AR v HE A
Hif i 2 AL B RE RS CRMTERGEREA  RETAR BEEH
Issued Percentage of
ordinary/ equity interest
Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities

MEHH - (3)
Indirectly held: (Continued)

B RS EEARA A /o AE50,0000007E 1009 (W) 413 B 3

Xiamen Ronglu Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 (note) Property development

Ao A5 3 UG B TR AT IR R /o ARH98,039,0007C  100% (HHaE) 93 4

Fuzhou Hengrui Huasheng Investment PRC/Mainland China RMBY8,039,000 (note)  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

MR EREERRARALA oo T ARM3844670000C  100% (HFFE) HEDR %

Nanjing Zhengde Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB384,467,000 (note)  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

B E R R A R/ A NE 82428570070 100% (Mf3E) R 3

Xiamen Ronglan Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB824,285,700 (note)  Property development

i (M) T A A R B/ 7 ARM39215,7000  100% (HERE) 43R0 %

Li Chao (Suzhou) Commerce PRC/Mainland China RMB39,215,700 (note)  Property development
Management Co., Ltd.

FREL (BRM) 7 AT IR ) /o A AR H20,0000007C  100% (HERE) 3B 5

Qizhi (Suzhou) Commerce PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 (note)  Property development
Management Co., Ltd.

& (BN BERERARAA s/ 7 AR ¥ 100000007 100% (HH3E) %55

Zhengxin (Guangzhou) Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 (note)  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

BT A R R AR B R A S
3C44 R TG AR A )R R i xR
SR AN R Y
o T R A OE U3 A4 A o b
SCHEFE Y BT A B A Rk
MEABAERAF -

The English names of all group companies registered in the PRC
represent the best efforts made by the management of the Company
to translate the Chinese names of these companies as they do not have
official English names. The legal form of all the above disclosed

principal subsidiaries are limited liability companies.

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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FE BB A L 7B F -
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Mgk B _F__F+ =+
H oo A SR WO A R 50 a2 )
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FAE R AT i -

A8 M S i 5 T A B
RIS IERE A RN A
IE 3 (B ) 7 26 88 e A R A )
W AUIE S B R AR A A
A IE W 2E B AT IR A
W BUIE = E 2R R A R A
AU A% B R A IR A
JEL 1) T 2 L 36 AT PR W

JEL 1 T 2 0 L S A PR W
33 (M) T 24 HE AT PR )
B (R M) 78 264 BT IR A )
IE#E () B 38R A R AW
I {5 B T LS R SR A KRN W
Zhen Kai Gloryvictor Limited

Zhen Hui Starworld Limited

S (B ) T 78 AT BR A
B AUIEAT BB R A R A A
e I B B 1 T 1% 8 A BRA W

gy s e
Notes to Financial Statements
R T A=+ 0

31 December 2022

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the

opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or

formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give

details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

Note: The Group legally transferred the equity interests in the following subsidiaries

as collateral to trust financing companies as at 31 December 2022.

Fuzhou Kairui Investment Development Co., Ltd.
Changsha Zhengro Zhengjing Real Estate Co., Ltd.

/g — S
+ZH=+—HM®
B AR £ H 4 b

Percentage of equity

pledged as at
31 December 2022

Zhengkun (Guangzhou) Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

Nanjing Zhengsheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
Xuzhou Zhengcheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
Nanjing Zhengting Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
Nanjing Zhengnai Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
Xiamen Ronglu Real Estate Co., Ltd.

Xiamen Ronglan Real Estate Co., Ltd.

Li Chao (Suzhou) Commerce Management Co., Ltd.
Qizhi (Suzhou) Commerce Management Co., Ltd.
Zhengxin (Guangzhou) Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
Minhou Shengrui Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
ZhenKai Gloryvictor Limited

ZhenHui Starworld Limited

Aihong (Suzhou) Business Management Co., Ltd.
Nanjing Zhengde Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

Fuzhou Hengrui Huasheng Investment Development Co., Ltd.

TECCOFER
Annual Report 2022

49%
67%
49%
42%
14%
49%
39%
49%
49%
49%
49%
49%
70%
49%
49%
99%
49%
49%
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ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

Under the aforestated arrangements, the Group was obliged to purchase the related
equity interests at a fixed amount on a future date upon repayment of the borrowings

from the trust financing companies.

In addition, the Group retains the power to control these companies in the ordinary
course of business by confirmation from the legal equity holder of each company (i.e.,
the trust financing company). In this regard, considering the facts that the substance
of the arrangements is to collateralise some equity interests in these subsidiaries for the
borrowings for project development and the Group retains the practical ability to
govern the financial and operating policies of these project companies so as to obtain
benefits from the operating activities of these project companies, the directors of the
Company are of the view that the financial position and operating results of these

companies should be consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

* These companies are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the

Company’s control over them.

Hk The Group was granted more than a majority of voting rights in the
shareholders’ meeting according to the contractual arrangements with the other
shareholders of the subsidiaries, and the articles of associates of the subsidiaries,
which gives the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
these companies. Accordingly, the Group has control over these companies

which are accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements
SRS A

31 December 2022

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which
include International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
interpretations) approved by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Going concern basis

The Group recorded a net loss of RMB14,617,223,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2022. As at 31 December 2022, (i) the Group’s
total bank and other borrowings, senior notes, corporate bonds,
perpetual capital securities and asset-backed securities amounted to
RMBG62,988,159,000, out of which RMB56,863,259,000 will be
due for repayment within the next twelve months, while its cash and
cash equivalents amounted to RMB3,270,111,000; (ii) the Group
had not repaid an aggregate amount of principal and interest of
RMB455,572,000 for certain senior notes and an aggregate amount
of interest of RMB1,520,715,000 for certain senior notes according
to their scheduled repayment dates, triggering events of default for
certain senior notes amounting to RMB23,410,386,000; (iii) an
aggregate amount of principal of RMB5,850,641,000 for interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings had not been repaid according to
their scheduled repayment dates, triggering certain long term
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings amounting to
RMB7,347,230,000 becoming repayable on demand; (iv) the Group
failed to repay the principal and interest amounting to
RMB1,123,101,000 for a corporate bond due in November 2022; (v)
the Group had not settled the interest of perpetual capital securities
amounting to RMB68,369,000, triggering an event of default for
perpetual capital securities amounted to RMB1,311,845,000.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

The above conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty

which cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue as a

going concern. In view of such circumstances, the directors of the

Company have undertaken a number of plans and measures to

improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, including:

(a)

(b)

(0

(d)

The Group has appointed financial advisers to assist it with a
holistic restructuring of its offshore indebtedness, in order to
achieve a more stable capital structure, resolve its liquidity
issue and stabilise the Group’s operations, taking into account
the interest of all its stakeholders;

The Group has been actively negotiating with several banks
and financial institutions on the extension for repayments of
certain borrowings. The Group may be able to extend the
payment schedule for certain interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings. Nevertheless, the confirmation of such extension is

subject to the final approval from the banks;

The Group has been actively negotiating with several financial
institutions to obtain new loans at a reasonable cost for

ensuring delivery of its property projects under development;

The Group will continue to seek for other alternative financing
and borrowings to finance the settlement of its existing
financial obligations and future operating and capital
expenditures. As at 31 December 2022, the Group has been
applying for not more than RMB3,000,000,000 quota for
bonds guaranteed by China Bond Issuance Co., Ltd., and is
striving to enter into strategic cooperation agreements with
banks in order to obtain comprehensive real estate credit

support;
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31 December 2022

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

(¢) The Group has prepared a business strategy plan mainly

focusing on the acceleration of the sales of properties;

(f) The Group has implemented measures to speed up the
collection of outstanding sales proceeds and effectively control

costs and expenses; and

(g) The Group will continue to seek suitable opportunities to
dispose its equity interests in certain project development

companies in order to generate additional cash inflows.

The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections
prepared by management, which cover a period of not less than
twelve months from 31 December 2022. They are of the opinion
that, taking into account the abovementioned plans and measures,
the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due within twelve months from 31 December 2022. Accordingly,
the directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the

consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Going concern basis (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist as to
whether the Group is able to achieve its plans and measures as
described above. Whether the Group will be able to continue as a

going concern would depend upon the following:

(@) successfully completing the holistic restructuring of its offshore
indebtedness;

(b)  successfully negotiating with the Group’s existing lenders for
the renewal or extension for repayment of the Group’s bank and

other borrowings;

(¢)  successfully securing project development loans for qualified

project development in a timely manner;

(d) successfully obtaining of additional new sources of financing as

and when needed;

(e)  successfully carrying out the Group’s business strategy plan

including the acceleration of the sales of properties;

(f)  successfully implementing measures to speed up the collection
of outstanding sales proceeds and effectively control costs and

expenses; and

(g) successfully disposing of the Group’s equity interests in certain

project development companies when suitable.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the above-mentioned plans
and measures and operate as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the carrying values of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected

in the consolidated financial statements.
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31 December 2022

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of

the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(¢)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated

until the date that such control ceases.
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continned)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i)
the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time

for the current year’s financial statements.

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Y~ BT Rk i - AF HEE 2 I EY T 1 SR

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

A1 G H — JETT & 219 AR

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

I [ B B A B 1 R I A R MR TSR 0 - I PR A S
e JU) 5 16 9% B T 2 B ) % B R w R SR 4 SR E T

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and 1AS 41
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31 December 2022

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are applicable to

the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to IFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”) without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that,
for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination, an
entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do
not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group
has applied the amendments prospectively to business
combinations that occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As
there were no business combinations during the year, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position

and performance of the Group.
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Annual Report 2022

14/



SRR EE
Notes to Financial Statements

D

RIS SN

HF+Z =1

31 December 2022

2.2 FRHBUOR KW &2 B )

R R AR AR KRB AT B B
B ok o o R A M E KR B AR
()

(b)

(©)

148

B B g A A 16 BRI B R
AR E R Y WE K
i JEH B A b0 R BT
R TR H G R K R E O
AE 40 LA B R B 2 10 Oy o
1 BT 75 ) 3t B KR DL A9 A AT
P 4% 3k B o A0 R H R
4 fife w8 B AT AT [ B g
SV 55 2 5% A B 1 E 19 6% 56 JH H
i BT A5 KH K % 55 TH H Y
Ao ALEOE F 4
— A — B s & AT R
IR/ E S O & & RERE
16 W) A% S B ET o R
M B BE B
At R TR E R IHE > B
EEECHIRN - S - Nibl)
B IR L B B A AT AT R o

BB g w37 BE R B AT
N o AR B R gt e
5537 9% WP AN A A2 B s
P & AT & AR A |
5 S5 A0 B AT B B AR
B %) L H B B ROA 4
JEAT % & 0 8 R R (I E
g TR doRh R BB AT % &
) HE AR BR Y At A 2 i
(4n 4y BCJE AT & %9 BT 4 26
i 75 M A O E R 3 85 2T
PR A #0583 % BB AR e
— i R AT BUR A B A A S
HERR BRERBES LA
WY o ) O I R
TRtA-AKHMOH %
TAR—H — B oM R EAT H O
A FAT B A A TR
SR M A E A
Ao WL ZEETAGHEA
4 B Y B B IR D0 B R B E A
(GROPZ

SRt EEEERAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited

2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are applicable to

the Group are described below: (Continued)

(b)

(©

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items as determined by IAS 2 Inventories, in
profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after 1 January 2021. Since there was no
sale of items produced prior to the property, plant and
equipment being available for use, the amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of
fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to
the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include
both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g.,
direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the
contract. The Group has applied the amendments prospectively
to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations
at 1 January 2022 and no onerous contracts were identified.
Therefore, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are applicable to
the Group are described below: (Continued)

(d)  Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the amendment
that is applicable to the Group are as follows:

. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. The Group has applied the amendment
prospectively from 1 January 2022. The amendment did
not have any material impact on the financial position or

performance of the Group.
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P& B w1 U 58 1 % % I R B S o E

TS A 25 B T

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice

Statement 2
B & mH e RIS s BF M B HT
Amendments to IAS 8
P g st UE RIS 12 98 R B R T
Amendments to IAS 12

| 5() Fremrmaman

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.
& A BRI 2 Al 35 R S H 19 B BT B

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or and
Joint Venture’
B 1% 11 ] b 19 i B A 1
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’
REE A
Insurance Contracts'
REEG A
Insurance Contracts'
R 5 B 255 R T R 55 17 S IR I R R R A 9 BE 1
B K — R E R
Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 — Comparative Information®
B AE B B BT B A (T — % AT )
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”)**
Wt AT 19 TF T B A ([ % = AR BT )2
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

Bt B Y B
Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

& a1t HY E 7

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Hi B — 38 5 i Ak 2 B KA R B 19 A A R I

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction'
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31 December 2022

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the 2020
Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020, IFRS 4 was
amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply IAS

39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the classification

overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial application of IFRS 17

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continned)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain
or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28 was removed and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available

for adoption now.

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-lessee
uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback
transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount
of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale and
leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application
of IFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on

the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continned)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current, in particular the determination over whether an entity
has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by
the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations
that are considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the IASB
issued the 2022 Amendments to further clarify that, among
covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those
with which an entity must comply on or before the reporting date
affect the classification of that liability as current or non-current. In
addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional disclosures by an
entity that classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-
current when it has a right to defer settlement of those liabilities that
are subject to the entity complying with future covenants within 12
months after the reporting period. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An entity
that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to apply
simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the amendments and whether
existing loan agreements may require revision. Based on a
preliminary assessment, the amendments are not expected to have

any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other information
included in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to
accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. The Group is currently revisiting the
accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the

amendments.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continned)

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also
clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to
develop accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have

any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in IAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions that
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such
as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient
taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or other
component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other than
leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control

over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent

of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share of
the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or
joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s investments in

associates or joint ventures.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-

related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the

ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the

separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any

resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain

on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the

Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit

retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative financial
instruments and equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment properties), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in
use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if
it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise,

to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the

impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of

the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its

intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with

specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal estimated useful

lives and the annual depreciation rates are as follows:

i w5 T 4R ) EEHER

Annual

Estimated depreciation

useful lives rates

M Buildings 204 5%
20 years 5%

1 Bl = Motor vehicles 4FSAE 19% % 24%
4-5year 19% to 24%

PN Gl e BT A Office equipment and electronic devices 3F 54 19% & 32%
3 —5years 19% t032%

LIRS E S Leasehold improvements EEE:2 12.5% ®33%

CRZEN V0 &S REEN RS
A AR AT A AR R % JE B
EDNE L L o e i
Fc > T A% HB 4y B AHE AT 3T 8 o R R
A~ AT AF ) R AT Tk B
TP 2% B AR B2 R At > AR A A
(% /) -
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HIVRH AR FIENEEET -
AR A A 0 R B A R A
Je LA B A B A B A AL AR
WA o 7E 2 TR R T Kow] Tf 4%
HR BB B E Sk i
I

3 —8years 12.5% t033%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year

end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the

appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

POLICIES (Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use assets which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the

reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the year in which they

arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement
or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If
a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Right-
of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to the date
of change in use, and any difference at that date between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from
inventories to investment properties, any difference between the fair
value of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount is

recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after

completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
comprising land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs,
professional fees and other costs directly attributable to such
properties incurred during the development period and net realisable

value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
those will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On
completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties
held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated in the statement of
financial position at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined by an apportionment of the total costs of land and
buildings attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable value
takes into account the price ultimately expected to be realised, less

estimated costs to be incurred in selling the properties.

Allocation of property development costs

Land costs are allocated to each unit according to their respective
saleable gross floor area (“GFA”) to the total saleable GFA.
Construction costs relating to units were identified and allocated
specifically. Common construction costs have been allocated

according to the saleable GFA similar to land costs.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at

each financial year end.

Software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is amortised
on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives of 2 to 5

years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period

of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying

assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. When the
right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold land held as
inventories, they are subsequently measured at the lower of cost
and net realisable value in accordance with the Group’s policies
for “properties under development” and “completed properties
held for sale”. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

20 2 40 4F
20 to 40 years
2F 54

2 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated

useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

(4)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold
land held as inventories, they are subsequently measured at the
lower of cost and net realisable value in accordance with the
Group’s policy for “properties under development” or “completed
properties held for sale”. When a right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property, it is included in investment
properties. The corresponding right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, and subsequently measured at fair value, in

accordance with the Group’s policy for “investment properties”.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment of

an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of motor vehicles and office equipment
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases of
low-value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop

computers that are considered to be of low value.

When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an

operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the

period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as

finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive

income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for

“Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at

fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified

and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention

in the marketplace.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continned)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the

asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair

value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are also recognised as other income in the statement of profit
or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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Notes to Financial Statements
R T A=+ 0

31 December 2022

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial

position) when:
o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that

the Group could be required to repay.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”)
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit

enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on
a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information. The Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30

days past due.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering

the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which

apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured

at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has evaluated the expected loss rate that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component
and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to
adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as

described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
and payables at amortised cost or as derivatives designated as hedging

instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables at amortised cost, net

of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
amounts due to the related companies and interest-bearing bank and

other borrowings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

classification as follows:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings, and payables)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings, and
payables (including payables under asset-backed securities) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through

the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is

included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i)
the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set
out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income

recognised.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Corporate bonds

Corporate bonds issued by the Company that contain both liability
and early redemption option (which is not closely related to the host
contract) are classified separately on initial recognition. At the date
of issue, both the liability and early redemption option components
are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the corporate bonds are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The early redemption option is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the corporate
bonds are allocated to the liability and early redemption option
components in proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction
costs relating to the early redemption option are charged to profit or
loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the periods of the corporate bonds using
the effective interest method.

Senior notes

Senior notes issued by the Company that contain both liability and
early redemption option (which is not closely related to the host
contract) are classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. At the date of issue, both the liability and early

redemption option components are recognised at fair value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the senior notes is
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
early redemption option is measured at fair value with changes in fair

value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the senior notes are
allocated to the liability and early redemption option components in
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to
the early redemption option are charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over the

period of the senior notes using the effective interest method.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Perpetual capital securities

Perpetual capital securities with obligation to repay principal or to
pay any distribution are classified as part of liabilities. In subsequent
periods, the perpetual capital securities are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Transaction costs relating to the
perpetual capital securities are included in the carrying amount of
the liability and amortised over the periods of the perpetual capital

securities using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the

respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle

the liabilities simultaneously.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand

and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which

are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the

statement of profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of certain
industrial products and the provision of construction services for
general repairs of defects occurring during the warranty period.
Provisions for these assurance-type warranties granted by the Group
are recognised based on sales volume and past experience of the level
of repairs and returns, discounted to their present values as

appropriate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit

or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the

Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against

which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax

liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are

expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments
or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released to

profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sales of properties and services provided in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown, net of

taxes.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of properties

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the purchaser. Depending on the terms of the contract
and the laws that apply to the contract, control of the asset may
transfer over time or at a point in time. Control of the asset is

transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

o provides benefits which are received and consumed

simultaneously by the purchaser; or

o creates and enhances an asset that the purchaser controls as the

Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
petformance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over
the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the purchaser obtains

control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of the performance obligation that best depict the
Group’s performance in satisfying the performance obligation.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effect of a financing component if it

is significant.

For property development and sales contracts for which the control of
the property is transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised
when the purchaser obtains the physical possession or the legal title
of the completed property and the Group has a present right to

payment and the collection of the consideration is probable.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Property management service income

Property management service income derived from the provision of
property maintenance and management services is recognised when
the relevant services are rendered and the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance as the entity performs.

Management consulting services

Management consulting service income derived from the provision of
support services in connection with development of property projects
is recognised when the relevant services are rendered and the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided

by the Group.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument

of the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the

Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or
services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised
for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are
subject to impairment assessment, details of which are included in

the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e.,

transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a
contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the

following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated

contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance

obligations in the future.
(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract cost assets are amortised and charged to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer
to the customer of the goods or services to which the asset related.

Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of

the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Group’s presentation currency. The functional currency of the
Company is the Hong Kong dollar while RMB is used as the
presentation currency of the financial statements of the Company for
the purpose of aligning with the presentation currency of the Group.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised

in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or

loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for

each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of
the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of

the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

Perpetual capital securities

Perpetual capital securities with no contracted obligation to repay
their principal or to pay any distribution are classified as part of
equity. Perpetual capital securities with obligation to repay principal

or to pay any distribution are classified as part of liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected

in the future.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, apart
from those involving estimations, management has prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that the Group
will be able to operate as a going concern in the coming year, which
is a critical judgement that has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements. The
assessment of the going concern assumption involves making a
judgement by the directors of the Company, at a particular point of
time, about the future outcome of events or conditions which are
inherently uncertain. The directors consider that the Group has the
capability to continue as a going concern and the major events or
conditions, which may give rise to business risks, that may
individually or collectively cast a significant doubt upon the going

concern assumption are set out in note 2.1 to the financial statements.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements:
Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such
as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of
the commercial property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments not amounting to substantially all the fair value of the
commercial property, that it retains substantially all the significant
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these properties which

are leased out and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease.
That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After
the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there
is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its
control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option
to renew or to terminate the lease (e.g., construction of significant
leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased

asset).

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Provision for properties under development and completed properties
held for sale

The Group’s properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Based on the Group’s historical experience and the nature of the
subject properties, the Group makes estimates of the selling prices,
the costs of completion of properties under development, and the
costs to be incurred in selling the properties based on prevailing

market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net sales
value, the net realisable value will decrease and this may result in a
provision for properties under development and completed properties
held for sale. Such provision requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, the carrying value and provision for the properties in the
periods in which such estimate is changed will be adjusted

accordingly.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and rating).
The provision rates are based on profitability of default and the loss
given default for other receivables and deposits, and amounts due

from related parties.

The expected loss rate is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the properties
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in

the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits is disclosed in notes 23, 24 and 40 to the

financial statements, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC. As a
result of the fact that certain matters relating to the income taxes
have not been confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimation
and judgement based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and
other related policies are required in determining the provision for
income taxes to be made. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts originally recorded, the
differences will impact on the income tax and tax provisions in the

period in which the differences realise.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT is
based on management’s best estimates according to the
understanding of the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the
determination by the tax authorities upon the completion of the
property development projects. The Group has not finalised its LAT
calculation and payments with the tax authorities for all its property
development projects. The final outcome could be different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, and any differences will impact
on the LAT expenses and the related provision in the period in which
the differences realise.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of sources,

including:

(a) current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those

differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since

the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and

(¢) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts and (when possible) by external evidence
such as current market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount

and timing of the cash flows.

At 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of investment properties
was RMBS8,627,400,000 (2021: RMB9,862,000,000). Further
details, including the key assumptions used for fair value

measurement, are given in note 14 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the
end of each reporting period. These non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. Impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those

cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable

profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management monitors the operating results of the Group’s business
which includes property development and leasing and commercial
property management by project locations for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment,
while no single location’s revenue, net profit or total assets exceed
10% of the Group’s consolidated revenue, net profit or total assets,
respectively. As the economic characteristics are similar in all the
locations, where the nature of property development and leasing and
management are similar, and the nature of the aforementioned
business processes, the type or class of customer for the
aforementioned business and the methods used to distribute the
properties or provide the services are also similar, all locations were

aggregated as one reportable operating segment.

Geographical information

No geographical information is presented as the Group’s revenue
from the external customers is derived solely from its operation in
Mainland China and no non-current assets of the Group are located
outside Mainland China.

Information about major customers

No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under common
control accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the
year (2021: Nil).

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,
OTHER EXPENSES

Fta 9 A An analysis of revenue is as follows:
—Bo g B
2022 2021
AR¥ T AR ¥F o
RMB’000 RMB’000
i 4 Revenue
LA 5 Revenue from contracts with customers 25,805,465 36,881,267
A F H Al A IF A9 4 2 Revenue from other sources
REFEYELEEN Gross rental income from investment
RS N K property operating leases:
T S > B4 8 RO Lease payments, including fixed payments 90,013 111,101
25,895,478 36,992,368

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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We g5 - H ftb gt A X ¥ 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,

gt~ HAth BA 3 ) OTHER EXPENSES (Coninued)
%P a8 W Revenue from contracts with customers
Q) s ER (i)  Disaggregated revenue information
—BoE B
2022 2021
AR¥% Tz AR ¥ T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
5 ek IR B A Types of goods or services
FH Sale of properties 25,707,613 36,518,764
HEEY Sale of goods 12,287 127,790
LEX S NI¥ Property management services - 67,666
P A IR RS Management consulting services 85,565 167,047
Ea SRy ok Y Total revenue from contracts with
customers 25,805,465 36,881,267
W i e R O ] Timing of revenue recognition:
YR BEY I — R B Properties or goods transferred at a point
WE in time 25,719,900 36,646,554
Il 5 i B ] o 7% Services transferred over time 85,565 234,713
T AR g Total revenue from contracts with
customers 25,805,465 36,881,267
2 A i A O The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in
S EE AR W) A # A Y Ik the current reporting period that was included in the contract
5 A liabilities at the beginning of the year:
g B4
2022 2021
AR ¥ T AR ¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
A RS B G A B E Revenue recognised that was included in
ERITAY € contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period: 22,646,250 26,338,483
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,
OTHER EXPENSES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i1)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is

summarised below:

Sale of properties
For property sales contracts, the Group recognises revenue
equal to the contract amount when the purchaser obtains the

physical possession or the legal title of the completed property.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred to the customer, being at the point the
goods are delivered to the customer. Payment of the transaction
price is due immediately at the point the customer has accepted

the materials.

Property management services

For property management service contracts, the Group
recognises revenue equal to the right to invoice amount when
it corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the
Group’s performance to date, on a monthly basis. The majority
of the property management service contracts do not have a

fixed term.

Management consulting services

For management consulting services, the Group recognises
revenue in the amount that equals to the right to invoice which
corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the
Group’s performance to date. The majority of the management
consulting service contracts do not have a fixed term. The term
of the contracts for pre-delivery and consulting services is
generally set to expire when the counterparties notify the
Group that the services are no longer required.
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We 25~ H fb e A & ¥ 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,

/|

g~ oAt B 3 )
A A B g 5 A

OTHER EXPENSES (Continued)

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

2022 2021
AR Tz A R F o
RMB’000 RMB’000
oAb A Other income
FE WA Interest income 128,349 520,683
HAth Others 3,521 6,028
131,870 526,711
Wi 75 Gains
ifE b0, 22 % 5 A8 Foreign exchange differences, net - 41,648
B A B Government grants 15,576 17,416
B I 4 Forfeiture of deposits 13,376 18,629
B BB A F B9 e ss (B 3E37)  Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) - 875,616
T 18 i B Ui 25 Gain on bargain purchase — 25,622
Fe N FEFEAIE 4 1Y Dividend income from financial assets at fair
S lE RS A value through profit or loss - 11,531
TRy /NS S I NG = E o Gain on disposal of financial assets at
B Al E T AR fair value through profit or loss 10,155 25,785

SETE A O 2 R A A 3E
gt 5 2 ) P B B R
fipstiE=

[ S {8 5E SR 4R I A

A8 R N RN
W 4

3 WS S B TH E

Remeasurement gain on investments

in joint ventures and associates held before

business combination - 15,040
Gain on repurchase of senior notes 47,375 -
Gain on disposal of joint ventures and

associates 33,108 -
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant

Wi 5 and equipment 2,689 1,322
122,279 1,032,609
254,149 1,559,320

An nuolﬁiﬁcﬁtﬁﬁﬁ —I Q Q
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We 25~ Hofib Bt A & W 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,
i ~ At B 32 o) OTHER EXPENSES (Continued)
HARBA SZ A h An analysis of other expenses is as follows:
2022 2021
AR Tz ARWTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

MBS ERFEHEMDE  Impairment losses recognised for properties

R T4y 2 il 5 10 under development and completed

i 18 (Fff 521 ~ 22) properties held for sale (notes 21, 22) 8,395,500 1,169,487
[ifE 50, 7 % 1% #H Foreign exchange differences, net 432,523 -
H B E A B s 4R (fF5£37)  Losses on disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) 64,253 -
EEE=¢ Donations 4,200 76,852
HER /NS S I AN = B[ Losses on disposal of financial assets at

4 & A Y s 4R fair value through profit or loss 1,295 57,148
HEY - WS M #E H A Losses on disposal of items of property, plant

&5 18 and equipment 270 616
FEREND R LTWEN Impairment losses written off for completed

UL M 4R B (B 5E 22) properties held for sale (note 22) - (8,516)
DA e 18 W ] 6 S SRR 0 s R Losses on senior notes redemption at

premium price - 184,631
H Aty Others 22,756 48,612
8,920,797 1,528,830

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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B B i (5 48) ¥ 1 6. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX
7% 4 [ B B AT (s 48) % A 5 dn The Group's (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
B, (FFA) LA £ T 4% 2 30 (crediting):
Bt 5 RO TR
Notes 2022 2021
AR AR ¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
& W A Cost of properties sold 22 24,114,013 31,404,183
FFELERNE %R TYH#R  Impairment losses written off for

VORIEN ZRi=t &) completed properties held for sale 5,22 - (8,516)
Wb EE ) 2 KR E HH 4 Impairment losses recognised for

B T W) 25 e R b properties under development and

75l completed properties held for sale 5,21, 22 8,395,500 1,169,487
W RE K dEH Depreciation of items of property,

s plant and equipment 13 34,511 63,647
i JF)HE & 2 Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15 40,104 48,819
A 48 TR 7 A Amortisation of other intangible assets 16 144 2,909
HEF AT A A4 (Gain)/loss on disposal of financial

G RE W (e ds) S assets at fair value through

[ ZEi=REE- profit or loss, net 5 (8,860) 31,363
HEY 2 BkE s Gain on disposal of items of property,

B 19 U 43 5 58 plant and equipment, net 5 (2,419) (706)
HE BB A T B (B518), Losses/(gains) on disposal of

Ik %5 U 48 subsidiaries, net 37 64,253 (875,616)
A% 4Rl 857 T Auditors’ remuneration 11,300 9,500
S FlE EE ek (B S 4R T AR Impairment losses on financial assets,

net 24, 40 1,838,180 7,815
& & 18 A B 32 (G 45 Employee benefit expense

#HRAREITHAR (including directors” and chief

Frm (B 5E8) - executive’'s remuneration (note 8):

L& T4 Wages and salaries 481,654 578,490

AR Pension scheme contributions and

A& 15 Al social welfare 80,272 95,100

Annuolzliio:r:zfgjg 2 O —‘
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il A

7. FINANCE COSTS

FilE LA B A AT R An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
SR .
2022 2021
N & A BT e
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERERAT B H AR K - 2 Interest on interest-bearing bank and other
B EREEULEE borrowings, corporate bonds, senior notes
SRR S T A5 3CE A S and proceeds from asset-backed securities 4,721,068 5,741,445
W 4 G & A AR Y AR BE S Interest expense arising from revenue
contracts 870,135 651,383
8 A EAE Interest on lease liabilities 3,631 6,027
S JE #% P FF AR 45 1Y Total interest expense on financial liabilities
xRl B A R EL B S AR not at fair value through profit or loss 5,594,834 6,398,855
B E AL FE Less: Interest capitalised (4,224,495) (5,753,740)
1,370,339 645,115

Y B

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

o - TS I /AN )
383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ (o) B ()W LA B 2 ) (B
5 T 2RI 2 R KRB SR 23 Bk R 1Y
NGRS S E RN NI =S

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (¢) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is

202

LU

as follows:

BT B
2022 2021
A R¥ T VNS e
RMB’000 RMB’000
(IES Fees 900 900
HCAth T 45 Other emoluments:
T& ~ HERG E Y AR A Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 13,918 17,033
7 B 8 18 AT Performance-related bonuses 4,284 7,273
E R KT O T I Pension scheme contributions and social
welfare 624 571
18,826 24,877
19,726 25,777
* KANFZETHATESHFREES * Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments
B A A B K8 S5 A M B TE AL which are associated with the operating result of the Group.
3K e
ESEREERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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8. DIRECTORS REMUNERATION (Continued)

YA | A R (a) Independent non-executive directors
N AT T M L FE BUAT B The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
&M T the year were as follows:
2022 2021
N & VNS e
RMB’000 RMB’000
Ml 4 Fees
I g AR5 A Mr. Loke Yu 300 300
T 7 ek Mr. Wang Chuanxu 300 300
MR SE A Mr. Lin Hua 210 300
it iR etk Mt. Xie Jun 920 _
900 900
AE A s M A L b E A5 Sr 9F There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
HATEFOHM( —F = — non-executive directors during the year (2021: Nil).
i ) o
MiTEFRE - ITEHRE (b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the
EEEmiTHB AN A chief executive
BARFEL  #EEH
TE E-3 03/ T L3 93
e REMWEAH O BAEAL MR 6 1 A 307 T 4t
Pension
Salaries, Equity-settled scheme
allowances Performance share-based  contributions
and benefits related payment and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses expenses welfare  remuneration
ARBFLT ARBETT ARWTT AREFT ARWFETFT ARWFTL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E 2022
WiTEH Executive directors:
R A Mt. Huang Xianzhi - 2,851 350 - 153 3,354
B fi £t 5 4 Mr. Chan Wai Kin - 5,100 3,000 - 12 8,112
Blfg st Mr. Liu Weiliang - 1,945 285 - 153 2,383
LA Mr. Li Yang - 1,845 307 - 153 2,305
FairES: Non-executive directors:
o B A e e M. Ou Guowei - 2,177 342 - 153 2,672
- 13,918 4,284 - 624 18,826
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8. H MW N ()

(b)

204

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

HiTEFR-FEANITES (b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the
EEEITHANE () chief executive (Continued)
[EAREEAD  wEAFH
THE - W R TR R K
e REWEA O BEEA MR X Zan R Rl B At
Pension
Salaries, Equity-settled scheme
allowances Performance share-based contributions
and benefits related payment and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses expenses welfare  remuneration
ANREFILT ARBFIL AREFILC ARFFL ARBEFIL AREFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TR AR 2021
WATEH: Executive directors:
AR R Mt. Huang Xianzhi - 3,201 1,401 - 139 4,741
B S R Mr. Chan Wai Kin - 6,948 3,050 - 15 10,013
Blfhsi ek Mt. Liu Weiliang - 2,145 1,085 - 139 3,369
BV Mr. Li Yang - 1,845 317 - 139 2,301
FHATHESE Non-executive directors:
B £ 5 Mr. Ou Guowei - 2,894 1,420 - 139 4453
- 17,033 7,273 - 571 24,877
B8 e O AT B M L OF Mr. Xie Jun has been appointed as an independent non-

WRHEE 0 F
F = F R e B
CRER TS £
FREE 22 R TR
B A=A
R -

HANE e AR —F (B
EWRHR_FZFNLATE
HEEfT B k%=
— A AR AT BOAR R S AT
- FHEECEZERAE
RNEATBAE A F
FENAT=RAR-

#wE_F - _HF+ A=
— H kA A S I )
AT {7 25 2 50 AT o] M & (fF
Ty A A G ) SO A A 4
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executive director with effect from 13 September 2022. Mr.
Chan Wai Kin and Mr. Lin Hua have resigned as an executive
director and an independent non-executive director,
respectively with effect from 13 September 2022.

Mr. Huang Xianzhi acted as both chief executive and an
executive director concurrently in 2022 (until his resignation
as chief executive officer on 13 September 2022) and 2021. Mr.
Li Yang has been appointed as chief executive officer of the
Company with effect from 13 September 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no emolument was
paid by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or to any directors or past
directors as compensation for loss of office (2021: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2021: Nil).
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
directors (2021: four directors), details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining two (2021: one) highest paid employees who are neither a
director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

TR e S

2022 2021

AR ¥ T ANRET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

T~ RS R E YRR Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,359 1,781

2 I $4 7 AT Performance-related bonuses 1,658 1,538
T wh BB AL € 18 A Pension scheme contributions and

social welfare 305 139

5,322 3,458

7 R DA 8 R R JF R R JF
B AT BN B om R BN B

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid

employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

mR follows:
& B A%
Number of employees
TR TR T AR
2022 2021
2,500,000 #5 JC % 3,000,000 76 HK$2,500,000 to HK$3,000,000 1 -
3,000,001 # 7C & 3,500,000% 5t HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 1 -
4,000,001 ¥ 7T £ 4,500,000% 5 HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 - 1
2 1

WE_F _FF+ A=+ —H
1k AR 5> A 4R ] S 48 16) AT ] T A A
i 0 M AR B S AT ol B o R A
A A SR SO AR SR AR Y B
T B fE A 1 AR
) -

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no emolument was paid
by the Group to any of the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office (2021: Nil).

An nuolzliio:r:zfgjg 2 O 6
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B FG R0 R e R R R YE A BT
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JEASAA T A L > R 2 % 4 28 R R R
EoF T A=t HIE
AF T 4 BB R A 9 E AR A AT T
A B ik A o

A AR T T B A b K B R R
T A N ZH 3% 259 1) B < 40 A b I
P FBL -

- B8 (B Y B 309% £ 60% 1 B
iR < o LB =R U G LB
(B 78 25 0 B W 26 T 45 3K TE Bk AT 4
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o At ) ZE BH 8 ST ) o AN 4R EIAR
Ve B B A B I R
0 K8 2 1 st 38 (E B AL 51~ AE K
Bl TR A o b g (R AR
HY b B B AT R B
HEUE o

10. INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands, the
Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the Cayman Islands and British
Virgin Islands are not subject to any income tax. The Group’s
subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong were not liable for income
tax as they did not have any assessable profits currently arising in
Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China were subject
to PRC CIT at a rate of 25% for the year.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from the sale of
properties less deductible expenditures including land costs,
borrowing costs and other property development expenditures. The
Group has estimated, made and included in taxation a provision for
LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant Mainland
China tax laws and regulations. The LAT provision is subject to the

final review and approval by the local tax bureau.

TR e ey o

2022 2021

AR ¥ T AR MT T

RMB’000 RMB’000

R4 B A Current tax:

Hp ] A 2 T AR B 526,293 1,423,553
R B (B 104,647 409,289
% 2iE B IE (B 5k 19) Deferred tax (note 19) 1,144,774 (701,918)
AN BT 2 AR Total tax charge for the year 1,775,714 1,130,924

SRt EEEERAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax

expense at the effective income tax rate is as follows:

THEIEWMT

2022 2021
AR #F oL AR WT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
kB AT Ol $2) s A (Loss)/profit before tax (12,841,509) 2,326,437
eI 2 B A5 B R G At the statutory income tax rate (3,210,377) 581,609
B A2 B W N W EAL i Bl Profits and losses attributable to
M8 joint ventures and associates 63,855 (67,656)
PN Expenses not deductible for tax 17,568 22,688
8 4 M A B T M 18 2 Tax losses and deductible temporary
CIEN R I differences utilised from previous years (21,376) (170,584)
ER IR R ) o Deductible temporary differences not
recognised 3,386,723 347,493
A 7R 1Y) B TE s 4R Tax losses not recognised 1,460,836 110,407
- b, 14 1 B A Provision for LAT 104,647 409,289
- Hb 38 (E B ) B 28 Tax effect on LAT (26,162) (102,322)
i AR 45 [ B SR R EH A Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate
i TH 22 1,775,714 1,130,924

TN A A LSS A EAG
B i I8 2 A N B 102,487,000 7T
(=& = — 4 N R 792,096,000
JC) o N G AR KA A A
JEE AL B BT HE S A R ¥ 187,627,000
JC (& —4F 0 AR ¥701,888,000
J0) R EE AR RNIIET &8 %
T W5 A N F) R A U6 R s AR -

The share of tax charge attributable to joint ventures and associates
amounted to RMB102,487,000 for the year (2021:
RMB792,096,000). The share of tax credit attributable to joint
ventures and associates amounting to RMB187,627,000 for the year
(2021: RMB701,888,000) is included in “Share of profits and losses
of joint ventures and associates” in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

AnnuclI:l;g-eio:rfiﬁjﬁ;z 2 O 7
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11.

12.
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ﬁ}f ?‘E'f ﬁli (4 10. INCOME TAX (Continued)
A A BB SR I 2 A 1 R A B JE L Tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents:
ot St — A
2022 2021
AR AR ¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JRE AT e B A 2 BT A5 L PRC CIT payable 3,241,816 3,312,932
JRE AT b ) L b 39 (B PRC LAT payable 1,466,268 1,717,564
JRE AsF A5 T A A Total tax payable 4,708,084 5,030,496
Jit &, 11. DIVIDENDS

HEHEERARMEE —Z =
Et+_H=+—HILEEZLY
BB (A ) o

AEBMBPHRK —F _—F-H T
VANRE 6N @ K Sl N S R =
kB & ORIk Bk
o Broasd#s ot A EFA AR
551,261,000 7C » L %t H Ik it B B
W oE At H = — H A
AT e

B > w3 HE & RF A A
W A 4 B (s 10) 28 Al

BRI AR (5 18) 8 R AR 9%
2y A ORE 4R EE A NG AR N (O
B) R DL K AR R BB AT N
T ARE V-2 #04,367,756,000 B (& —
—4E 1 4367,756,000 %) §H & -

MAAREBPREE T - " F R
SEF -t A=t —HIEF
JE NI A % ATV E A % > i
WARMEBE X R
—HE+ A=+ —HILEEL
A R A B R AR s R -

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

12.

The board of directors does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

The proposed 2020 final dividend of HK$0.15 per ordinary share,
amounting to a total of approximately RMB551,261,000 was
approved by the Group’s shareholders at the annual general meeting
on 18 June 2021. The above-mentioned declared dividend was paid
before 31 December 2021.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share amount is based
on the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
4,367,756,000 (2021: 4,367,756,000) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021
in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.
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. B4 w % f# i 12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
A BE 4G B Ik i )/ ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
&M an) HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (Coninued)
B R AR B B R A B D AR B The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share amounts
PIFIEH A are based on:
2022 2021
(& 18), /% # (Loss)/earnings
NGRSk Er S N/ R (Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity
E18) A (BT 1) holders of the parent (RMB’000) (12,877,046) 809,005
i 3 Shares
BN AT A Y fn R Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Sy in issue during the year 4,367,756,000  4,367,756,000
%k Ok 18), /& A (Loss)/earnings per share
FEA I Basic and diluted ARWeosm  ARM0.197C
RMB(2.95) RMBO0.19

Annuolzliio:rtﬁ;zaﬁ 2 O Q
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13. W3 ~ W bs B sk e

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

A ] Gilley
B BWEE RETEHE BWRIE HREIR Ha gt
Office
equipment
and electronic Leasehold Construction
Buildings Motor vehicles devices improvements  in progress Total
ARBFLE ARBFL ARBEFEZ AREFL AR¥FIL AR¥TI
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
“E g 31 December 2022
+ZH=1+—H
/£ g At 1 January 2022
—H—H
AR Cost 525,332 85,470 64,443 128,607 746,988 1,550,840
2t e Accumulated depreciation (74,760) (74,998) (56,816) (87,680) - (294,259
W T 1§ (8 Net carrying amount 450,572 10,472 7,627 40,927 746,988 1,256,586
. g At 1 January 2022, net of
—H—H> accumulated depreciation
il R 450,572 10,472 7,627 40,927 746,988 1,256,586
NE Additions - 732 96 - 80,752 81,580
e Disposals - (614) (167) - - (781)
A e s Disposal of subsidiaries
(Wt 3E37) (note 37) - (546) (571) (31,982) - (33,099)
A AT B Depreciation provided during
the year (20,433) (2,980) (4,970) (6,128) - (34,511)
. - At 31 December 2022, net of
+=-H=+—H> accumulated depreciation
Mk A tin s 430,139 7,064 2,015 2,817 827,740 1,269,775
A S At 31 December 2022
+-A=Z+—H
%N Cost 525,332 55,247 46,718 16,182 827,740 1,471,219
2Rt g Accumulated depreciation (95,193) (48,183) (44,703) (13,365) - (201,444)
B T8 T {1 Net carrying amount 430,139 7,064 2,015 2,817 827,740 1,269,775
R ESEEARAR

21

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

iid ] HE
R BHE LETEE WRTE  EHIR Bt
Office
equipment
and electronic Leasehold  Construction
Buildings  Motor vehicles devices  improvements in progress Total
ARHEFL ARBEFL ARBFIL ARFFIL AREFILC AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SR —E 31 December 2021
T-A=+—H
/e e 3 At 1 January 2021
—HA—H
A Cost 525,332 85,115 63,549 118,022 - 792,018
EYEiR Accumulated depreciation (49,811) (70,566) (50,859) (59,372) - (230,608)
W T 1§ (8 Net carrying amount 475,521 14,549 12,690 58,650 - 561,410
I At At 1 January 2021, net of
—H—H> accumulated depreciation
M 5T 475,521 14,549 12,690 58,650 - 561,410
wE Additions - 1,039 2,829 13,009 - 16,877
e Disposals - (198) (508) - - (706)
W B Transfer from properties under
(P 21) development (note 21) - - - = 746,988 746,988
e i B I 2 ) Acquisition of subsidiaries - 974 47 180 - 1,201
i I A Disposal of subsidiaries
(W 5E37) (note 37) - (1,460) (1,474) (2,603) - (5.537)
AF JIE 3 0 4 Al Depreciation provided during
the year (24,949) (4,432) (5,957) (28,309) - (63,647)
N oE 4 At 31 December 2021, net of
+=-H=+—H> accumulated depreciation
EiloS iy 450,572 10,472 7,627 40,927 746,988 1,256,586
A e At 31 December 2021
+-H=1+—H
[ Cost 525,332 85,470 64,443 128,607 746,988 1,550,840
LY kv Accumulated depreciation (74,760) (74,998) (56,816) (87,680) - (294,254)
R TV Net carrying amount 450,572 10,472 7,627 40,927 746,988 1,256,586

/= S S s S e
H: AEBEKEBTFMED AR
1,038,168,000 70 (=& = — 4 : AR
#5959,629,0007C) M ¥ 2 ~ = M ik

i TR > Ty A B B R A0 SR AT S
A A AR AT (B 5E29) ©

TECCOFER
Annual Report 2022

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s property, plant and equipment
with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB 1,038,168,000
(2021: RMB959,629,000) were pledged to secure bank and other
borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Py &% MR fa st
Under
construction Completed Total
AR¥FIL ARWEFLT ARFEFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
A X T —4E—H—HM Carrying amount at 1 January 2021
e T 4,280,400 6,334,800 10,615,200
AN Additions 232,901 — 232,901
B E N | (R EE37) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) (784,900) - (784,900)
ON V- {8 o A s 1 T AE Net loss from a fair value adjustment (180,580) (20,621) (201,201)
hNoE 4T/ Carrying amount at 31 December
=t —HA-_F -4 2021 and 1 January 2022
—H—HmRmHE 3,547,821 6,314,179 9,862,000
NE Additions 55,032 - 55,032
v 1A% i Transfer upon completion (234,515) 234,515 -
e Disposal - (36,967) (36,967)
N N F (B EE37) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) - (842,100) (842,100)
NSV (B R s 48 T AR Net loss from a fair value adjustment (49,139) (361,426) (410,565)
WwoER o AE+T A Carrying amount at
s el = RS S 31 December 2022 3,319,199 5,308,201 8,627,400

A 4L B 156 2L R B A b
AEBMP R EY £ T BB L H
G OA G Al (B PR AT 4 R
fifi Bt e A R A (2847 )
Rt —F 4+ H =+
— H &E A & A R %8,627,400,000 0
(iiigﬁikE%%@mwm

o AN 4R I = AR B B A % it
%@W“$Qﬁ%$@M@%R
EBAL AN EAGE BT & AL EY
SEIY AN BB AL (B o T2 B VE AL HE T 1
I VAL S T Ul o
E S i $%@m B S 6 B R
W B A B (R R AT B
ﬁiﬁﬁmmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@
HEAT B R o

W oE D F A H = A+
H o 7 4E 3 & EEE{EZ’JAE’*%
6,156,753,0007C ( & ——4F : AR

%anmwmwum&§%¥EE
#'F Joy A% B2 [ A 42 100 6B AT M A
FAE A (B 5k 20) -

SRt EEEERAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland China.
The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2022 based on valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL”), an independent
professionally qualified valuer, at RMBS8,627,400,000 (2021:
RMB9,862,000,000). The Group’s senior finance manager and the
chief financial officer decide, after approval from the board of
directors of the Company, to appoint which external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
The Group’s senior finance manager and the chief financial officer
have discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed for financial

reporting.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s investment properties with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMBG,156,753,000
(2021: RMB6,317,652,000) were pledged to secure bank and other
borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).
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14. BEWE ») 14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

N T 8 & Fair value hierarchy
TEMAPAAEHZEYEN DT The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy
EN RNk of the Group’s investment properties:
REBTTAETZAZ T HER LT SO0 A F G &
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2022 using
WHETSE  ERWEE EAATBE
ZWE LN § LN §
B —#) (8 =) GE=%) B Gt
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AREFT ARFEFLT AREFLT AR¥FE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
UL I H AT Recurring fair value measurement for:
R AEA PR
ERTHEYE Completed commercial properties - 5,308,201 5,308,201
TER w2y ¥ Commercial properties under
construction - - 3,319,199 3,319,199
- 8,627,400 8,627,400
e A ES LR TIrS 2 Te
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021 using
EHTY ERABE EAATBE
ZHRE i A B i A B
(55 —%) (58 =) (55 =) HEt
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AREFLT AREFT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
LT IH B HETT Y Recurring fair value measurement for:
R AP
SR ENHEL/E S Completed commercial properties - - 6,314,179 6,314,179
TR Y % Commercial properties under
construction - - 3,547,821 3,547,821
- - 9,862,000 9,862,000

AETN > B — AR B T A > [ 4 N During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
(BT A S S R A A

BEE =R (CF A ) o

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2021: Nil).

TECCOFER
Annual Report 2022
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14. BEWE ») 14.
25 V1 8 5k ()

DLF % B W R A

A1 % A B

il 4 $ 1§

Valuation techniques

SECENITES7ES W A E AL

Completed commercial Income capitalisation
properties method

G GE S7/E S b ik

Commercial properties Comparison method

under construction

CRTHEEYREN L FHETE R
e ACE AR AL R E > J7 kR
A B W 6 TR B A AR A T AR
o/ s AE BUAT LR AT AR BUA RO
FH 4 Wi A B Ol B &4 /O 78 A A
W AAE TS BEAG) o SRR LU
AAL > DL ) B AL LR E
KF{H o TR EAE B E I T 275 M
BH T 8 B RS A R E B
Ly e

fi L 2 KU 0, (36 0) 6 8 3
0 3 1 2 - (8K (3
D) e AR AL H % K R
) 8 B 0 S0 26T K R
Wb () -

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key

inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

KA AT 85 o A\ WvR i [ 5 o i °F- 35
Significant unobservable inputs  Range or weighted average
SRR R
2022 2021
fiti 5 AH
(N BB J7 K R A )
Estimated rental value 30-258 30-258
(RMB per sq.m. and per month)
AL A
Capitalisation rate 3%—6% 3.5%—5.75%
R IR IR ES
Expected profit margin 10% 10%

The fair value of completed commercial properties is determined by
the income capitalisation method, taking into account the net rental
income of the properties derived from the existing leases and/or
achievable in the existing market with due allowance for the
reversionary income potential of the leases, which have been then
capitalised to determine the fair value at an appropriate capitalisation
rate. Where appropriate, reference has also been made to the

comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant market.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated rental value would
result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase/(decrease) in the
capitalisation rate would result in a significant decrease/(increase) in

the fair value of the investment properties.
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14. HEWE @) 14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cominned)
2 VAE 8 B (4 Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
TE 2 2T E R R The fair value of commercial properties under construction is
EME B2 MBI LTS determined by using the comparison method, with reference to
AT L R 3R B iR 26l (n v ) &% comparable sales evidence as available in the relevant market to
MBELL THEHB &SR ENLT derive the fair value of the property assuming it was completed and,
HUBRFRECZL : where appropriate, after deducting the following items:
N e Y S/ ES 1% o Estimated construction costs and professional fees to be
IR A A NS expensed to complete the properties that would be incurred by
i e a market participant; and
. i 2 B o M B B o Estimated profit margin that a market participant would
LI =N SR S| require to hold and develop the property to completion.
e
il ot a8 58 AR B o G B O The higher the estimated construction costs, the lower the fair value
P& Wy 30 T E AR - 78 31 R R of the investment properties under construction would be resulted.
MR e EREREBREYEAN T The higher expected profit margin, the lower fair value of the
H A - investment properties under construction would be resulted.

Annuolzliiti:zfgjg 2 —‘ 6
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REEMBAHABRHLEESENZ
B N A~ M B & HL At B TE H
MIFLE & 4 o AS4E B2 P RTAE t —
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A T2 & S AE o M L K H At R A 1
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15.

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of office buildings,
motor vehicles and other equipment used in its operations. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the
owners with lease periods of 20 to 40 years, and no ongoing payments
will be made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of office
buildings generally have lease terms between 2 and 5 years. Motor
vehicles and other equipment generally have lease terms of 12
months or less and/or are individually of low value. Generally, the
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets
outside the Group. There are several lease contracts that include
extension and termination options and variable lease payments,
which are further discussed below.

(@ fHHAREEE (@) Right-of-use assets
AE A S A2 T RE R R The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
T {E Mg the movements during the year are as follows:
-k 3 A ] A Bt
Land use rights  Office buildings Total
AR¥TTT ANRWTr ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE—F—J—H Asat 1 January 2021 247,964 97,392 345,356
N Additions - 49,723 49,723
WA B A (MR 20) Transferred from properties under
development (note 21) 23,825 - 23,825
FHHA 4 1k BT 2R 22 b Decrease arising from lease term
termination - (3,938) (3,938)
e % Depreciation charge (13,015) (35,804) (48,819)
WoE =+ H=1+—H Asat31 December 2021 and
R oF o FE—~H—H 1 January 2022 258,774 107,373 366,147
ANEN Additions - 17,587 17,587
TR A 4% 1L T 2 AR 2 D Decrease arising from lease term
termination - (65,095) (65,095)
P88 B 2 Depreciation charge (13,015) (27,089) (40,104)
A S As at 31 December 2022
+ZA=+—H 245,759 32,776 278,535

Wo_E I FET A=+
Ho A4 B AR E A AR
¥ 174,618,000 0 ( . & — —
A N R 183,461,000 00) 11
A EEC M AL
A4 B2 0GR AT B At A8 R A
HEAP (P 5E29) -

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s right-of-use assets with
an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB174,618,000 (2021: RMB183,461,000) were pledged to
secure bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note

29).
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15. LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)  Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

G/ N during the year are as follows:
o St — 4
2022 2021
AR A BT o
RMB’000 RMB’000
w—H— B R Carrying amount as at 1 January 115,547 103,104
FEIR TN New leases 17,587 49,723
A RR R S 3 Accretion of interest recognised
during the year 3,631 6,027
LM %0k Jor i A 2 Wb Decrease arising from lease term
termination (65,095) (3,938)
INE: Payments (29,547) (39,369)
A _H=+—HMMKMm(E Carrying amount as at 31 December 42,123 115,547
Gy AT B Analysed into:
R HA &6 157 Current portion 29,290 47,438
FE B[ HA 5 4 Non-current portion 12,833 68,109

LS 1 48 10 B 000 G T
S B 9 43 -

(o) TWAE 45 A ol A8 0 AL B A B K

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 43

to the financial statements.

(¢)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are

JEUNF - as follows:
2022 2021
N & VNS e
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEAENE Interest on lease liabilities 3,631 6,027
i P R B S Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 40,104 48,819
B S 3 A B A B Y BA S Expense relating to short-term leases
(FFAATBB %) (included in administrative expenses) 6,087 7,853
HALEEEEHEARMN Expense relating to leases of low-value
B 3 (FH A S8 B o) 84 assets (included in selling and
B %) distribution expenses) 7,148 8,528
AR A e R Y ROE AR A Total amount recognised in profit or loss 56,970 71,227
TECCOFER

Annual Report 2022

217



BATSERAR I AE

Notes to Financial Statements

R A=T—H
31 December 2022

15. L& @)

15. LEASES (Continued)

A SR WA Ty R RN )

(d) AH & AR BE K B oK B
i B A B A B A R A B & TR
Hh A A BB R AR M 3

A 4 A 2 LA

AEFERBEEEHESLHEHER
P& Wy 2 (K 3E14) > B 456 b
N EDE HERK —E
SKAHL P 32 AT 38 4> 3 B e R 4R
ol TR N S
AR N R S A B N R
90,013,0007C ( =& — —4F + A R¥
111,101,000 7G) > w18 Hi B3 i %
M 5Es o

MREFZZFEF A= —H &
A AR 9% B A P RT S 0 R W i
S A8 7 AR B R AR T iR R
S BLAH B O I R

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(d) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows
relating to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in

note 35 to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting of six
commercial properties in Mainland China under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was RMB90,013,000 (2021:
RMB111,101,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the
financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases

with its tenants are as follows:

S il ST Sy

2022 2021

AR¥ T AR ¥TFor

RMB’000 RMB’000

—4E R Within one year 89,791 117,648
— DL FAH A LI A After one year but within two years 11,251 107,254
WA LI FH =4 IR After two years but within three years 9,948 27,107
AR DL EAH YA RL Y After three years but within four years 6,226 24,007
Py 4F DL _EAE T AR DL A After four years but within five years 6,226 21,410
HAERE After five years 37,000 152,574
160,442 450,000

2"‘ 8 ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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{41 % A 16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
RO TR T
2022 2021
AR¥ T AR WFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
LigEs Software
w—H—H At 1 January
J%N Cost 22,522 22,486
EE 3 Accumulated amortisation (18,493) (15,584)
U ATTRER N Net carrying amount 4,029 6,902
W= —HZ A Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated
FrBs B 5 8 amortisation 4,029 6,902
NE Additions - 700
I B AT N ) Acquisition of subsidiaries - 16
R JE N B (B EE37) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) (3,837) (680)
AF A B 43 A6 1 B Amortisation provided during the year (144) (2,909)
Wt —-HA=+—H At 31 December 48 4,029
Hwr_H=+—H: At 31 December:
A Cost 18,685 22,522
ZLET 4 5 Accumulated amortisation (18,637) (18,493)
ATIREE(:N Net carrying amount 48 4,029
ReaftENEE 17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
SR B
2022 2021
AR¥ T AR WFIC
RMB’000 RMB’000
53 A Share of net assets 2,207,870 2,253,731

JRE Wi K JE AT & A 36 O R I B
R M RE 40 5 -

AEENEECEERANREE
ZE -t A=t —HILE
JE£ 3107 3F AR 7 g F K o

The amounts due from and to joint ventures are disclosed in note 40

to the financial statements.

The joint ventures of the Group are considered not individually

material for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Annuolﬁiﬁéfiﬁjﬁ 2 —‘ Q
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17. RE BN EWMRE @)

22

()

(b)

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

AEFPD R N EE (a)  Particulars of the Group’s material joint ventures in 2022 are
et EFEEOT as follows:
A 55 1 M A
B E A WAHMET I
Paid-in Percentage of
capital ownership interest 3 % B
R S5 0 M B R AR ANR¥ T attributable Principal
Name of company Place and year of registration RMB’000 to the Group activities
A M SR 6 i SR T A A 20,000 33% WA EE
ARZ A “E N
Hefei Liangjin Enterprise Hefei, PRC Property
Management Consulting 2019 development
Co., Ltd.
AR e A B A TR (b) Hefei Liangjin Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd. is
NE (R A AREBRHE X considered a material joint venture of the Group for the year

o+ A=+ —HIR4E
BE W) B A A ) B R
i) At A PR LR A

— MY KB EIHA > KT

g ik A o

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

and was accounted for using the equity method.

ended 31 December 2022. It operates a property development
project with the other joint venture partner in Mainland China
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
(b) (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Hefei Liangjin Enterprise
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. adjusted for any differences

in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in

e 2 A 1% AR T (3R the consolidated financial statements:
TR
VT
31 December
2022
AR T
RMB’000
B4 kB 4SZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 374,136
HoAth 7 By & E Other current assets 1,058,935
B Current assets 1,433,071
IE T & Non-current assets 18
SRAE NEEYE S & Financial liabilities, excluding trade and
At 8 AT 3K IE other payables (935,390)
Ho At % B & Other current liabilities (246,761)
i) B Current liabilities (1,182,151)
FAEE Nect assets 250,938
B A A [ % G v A 36 0 g AR - Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in
the joint venture:
A 45 18 JUT A5 8 A RE L 9] Proportion of the Group’s ownership 33%
A AL A TR E Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture 82,810
Wt B W T A8 S 0 R 5 B AR 2 Adjustment for unrealised profits and losses
o B from related party transactions -
G IR T (E Carrying amount of the investment 82,810
I % Revenue 917,133
B 32 Expenses (777,922)
Fi 18 Tax (34,803)
A TR T R B A T R A AR AR Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 104,408

Annuolzliiti:zfgjg 2 2 —‘



BATSERAR I AE

Notes to Financial Statements

e

I

A=t —H

31 December 2022

17. RE BN EWMRE @)

(©

T VEST EER T
K 4 A 3 1
EOH

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(¢) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not

individually material:

—®- M B
2022 2021
AR¥ T AR MT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
NG A A R A K Share of the joint ventures’ profits and
21 (5 18) ik 35 48 % losses and total comprehensive (loss)/
income for the year (64,316) 7,419
ALK EESEREN Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
B T (B A0 %E investments in the joint ventures 2,125,060 2,253,731

AKArERERE > ARRE
EAAENREWH S T2
W |l s R T AR
A = — H % 5 4R 6 %
(R = ) - G
EaRiE: E-R7 N BT
AN -

18. REGEEAFKRE

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment was necessary as at 31 December
2022 as the investments in joint ventures were considered fully
recoverable (2021: Nil). The joint ventures have been accounted

for using the equity method in these financial statements.

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

22

Or AR E

Share of net assets

SRR TE T
2022 2021

AR ¥ F oL AR ¥TFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
7,598,662 10,842,477

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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18. Wk 85 o Wl B B () 18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cominned)
JHE e T M ASF Tk 45 2 B CTE S BB The amounts due from and to associates are disclosed in note 40 to
EEY TS the financial statements.
@ AEBEEHENAFE (a)  Particulars of the Group’s material associates are as follows:
wr
A 52 18 B A
B E A AT
Paid-in Percentage of
capital ownership interest T i B
A w1 3t B K% 4F £ AR ¥TF attributable Principal
Name of company Place and year of registration RMB’000 to the Group activities
TR HE S 55 M 2 BB AT IR A w] o BB 92,000 33% W3R
—E )\
Xuzhou Yafeng Real Estate Xuzhou, PRC Property
Development Co., Ltd. 2018 development
B B A R A H B R A 1,300,000 45% W¥R
“E-NE
Nanjing Zhaoyang Real Estate  Nanjing, PRC Property
Co., Ltd. 2019 development
L P B SR SR R o 5[ 2,660,000 25% Wk E
Xiamen Lianrongyue Properties ~ Xiamen, PRC Property
Co., Ltd. 2021 development
REFRENEXARAA P EKE 250,000 32% W3k BH 8
“E-RE
Wuhan Qingnengdecheng Wuhan, PRC Property
Properties Co., Ltd. 2016 development
R M IE B o PR B A R A F P BRR M 400,000 32% WP
T R
Suzhou Zhengxi Real Estate Suzhou, PRC Property
Development Co., Ltd. 2018 development
AR R B E B ARAR FE A 2,800,000 25% ¥
A
Hefei Lianrong Real Estate Hefei, PRC Property
Development Co., Ltd. 2021 development
My st MRAIZAHAR =LA > A4 Note: Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group only has significant
EEE T I E AR influence on Nanjing Zhaoyang Real Estate Co., Ltd. as another
INFEAEREZ S 5N % shareholder of the investee has enough voting power to control and
WA EEEN S — 2 KR operate the entity. Thus, the entity was accounted for as an associate by
YA 75 2 1 1 S RE DL the Group through the Group’s holding of 45% of equity interests in it.
R E LT B &
B M R A W M 459

P AR T 95 HE AR 2 — R W

AT AR -

Annuolzliio:r:zfgjg 2 2 3
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18. B AR BE @)

(b)

224

M HE 5 BE B A BR
Al K B B A R R
(BE_F 4+ A=+
— H 1k 4 B R 2 A 4R
R E s F]) B A
1 5 ms P P S [R] O A 2 (R
Yy &P B E B o PR T HE 45 1
N

JEL 1Y M6 2 D B 6 A IR W (R
BEOF D ERCF DA
FZA=+— HIEFE R
o A A B o B N R B

HhE AT R SR P S S TR
HEEZMYEMEHE &
JHHE 45 35 A B

REBRMEREEARLA
AN EEEMERBEA
B2 W) K A BE B 6 5 b B
BAHRAR (HE _F - —4&F
T+ HZ=+—B 1k FEHH
o A B OB S N T
BAREHE ~F - 4+
A=+ — B 14 5 &
N ) BRI A Y SR e
Wk 3G W] A R Y 2B B
HE > M EEALR-

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)

Xuzhou Yafeng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. and Nanjing
Zhaoyang Real Estate Co., Ltd., which were considered material
associates of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022, operate
property development projects with strategic partners in Mainland

China and are accounted for using the equity method.

Xiamen Lianrongyue Properties Co., Ltd., which was considered a
material associate of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021, operates property development projects with strategic
partners in Mainland China and is accounted for using the equity

method.

Wuhan Qingnengdecheng Properties Co., Ltd., Suzhou Zhengxi
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. and Hefei Lianrong Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. which were considered material associates of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 but were not material
for the year ended 31 December 2022, operate property development
projects with the strategic partners in Mainland China and are

accounted for using the equity method.
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18. it i = o Bl B BE ) 18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cominned)
by (%) (b)  (Continued)
™ R IR A B A T M The following table illustrates the summarised financial
B A BR A | BB A R information in respect of Xuzhou Yafeng Real Estate
W E > B AT ] & 5l BUR 2= Development Co., Ltd. adjusted for any differences in
BLAE 0 R I B AR A W TR accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in
2% T ) R T (R SR the consolidated financial statements:
S S
e
31 December
2022
AR¥ T
RMB’000
e k&% EY Cash and cash equivalents 23,672
FoAh 7 B & A Other current assets 1,353,092
B & Current assets 1,376,764
I U B Non-current assets 20,573
SRAE NEEYE S & Financial liabilities, excluding trade and
At JE A5F 3 TE other payables (106,087)
HC A 3 ) A Other current liabilities (183,998)
iR =K Current liabilities (290,085)
T EE Net assets 1,107,252

B A AR [ A B S A FIROME RS ¥R ¢ Reconciliation to the Group's interest
in the associate:

A 45 18 JUT A5 8 A RE L 9] Proportion of the Group’s ownership 33%
7 4E H AL B A A T IR A E Group’s share of net assets of the associate 365,393
Wt B W T A8 S 0 R 5 B AR 2 Adjustment for unrealised profits and losses

o B from related party transactions (257)
& 1 1R 1w (A Carrying amount of the investment 365,136
Wi it Revenue 1,109,803
B 2 Expenses (869,626)
Fi 18 Tax (84,357)
A TR T R B A T R A AR AR Profit and total comprehensive income

for the year 155,820

Annuolzliiti:zfgjg 2 2 6



SRR EE

Notes to Financial Statements
T AT A=t

31 December 2022

18. B AR BE @)

by (#)

TR R A B A B S
AR F R R
O AT AT & G B 22 B4R
o B 7 B AR S BB R R Y

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)

(continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information in respect of Nanjing Zhaoyang Real Estate Co.,

Ltd. adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and

reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial

R statements:
S S
VT
31 December
2022
AR T
RMB’000
e LR E%EY Cash and cash equivalents 339,028
HoAth 7 By & E Other current assets 2,843,049
B Current assets 3,182,077
IE T & Non-current assets 12,559
SRAE NEEYE S & Financial liabilities, excluding trade and
oAt A 20 other payables (1,451,020)
HoAth 7% B & & Other current liabilities (486,062)
Bl A Total liabilities (1,937,082)
T EE Net assets 1,257,554
B 7 45 T A W 2 D R AR IR Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the
associate:
A 45 18 JUT A5 8 A RE L 9] Proportion of the Group’s ownership 45%
7 4E H AL B A A T IR A E Group’s share of net assets of the associate 565,899
Wt B W T A8 S 0 R 5 B AR 2 Adjustment for unrealised profits and losses from
o B related party transactions -
& 1 1R 1w (A Carrying amount of the investment 565,899
i A Revenue _
B 2 Expenses (31,509)
i IH Tax 6,734
AN M 4R B A T e R A0 A Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year (24,775)

2 2 ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(b) (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Xiamen Lianrongyue Properties Co.,
Ltd. adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and

reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial

7 1) IR T {3 AR statements:
SRICE SR
2022 2021
N & AR¥ T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B T B S5 8 Cash and cash equivalents 63 100
A U B & R Other current assets 2,769,759 2,764,701
T ) B Current assets 2,769,822 2,764,801
I U Non-current assets 10,000 10,000
SHEEE NEEE S & Financial liabilities, excluding trade and
HAth A 0 other payables — _
HoAh 3% #) & 18 Other current liabilities (120,192) (114,802)
Ui B £ A Current liabilities (120,192) (114,802)
FHEE Net assets 2,659,630 2,659,999
L A A [ A T4 A /Y Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in
HE 5 BHIR the associate:
A S5 1 B A A HE LE 1) Proportion of the Group’s ownership 25% 25%
AL B EAG B & A 71 A Group’s share of net assets of the associate 664,908 665,000
B 722 B Rk B BLIE 28 Adjustment for unrealised profits and
A W % losses from related party transactions - -
& W) R TE Carrying amount of the investment 664,908 665,000
Wi A Revenue _ _
BH 5 Expenses (369) 2)
i T Tax _ 1
AF A s 1R B 4 THT S 4R AR Loss and total comprehensive loss for the
year (369) oY)

Annuolzliiti:zfgjg 2 2 7
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18. B AR BE @)

(b)

228

(%)

TR IR A B AR TR
HEA R F R BB R
T DAL g Rh B E R
1 H o R B A A B B R R

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b) (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information in respect of Wuhan Qingnengdecheng Properties

Co., Ltd. adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and

reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial

T 1) IR T 3 AR statements:
o S
+ZH=+—H
31 December
2021
AR ¥F o
RMB’000
B T B % 8 W Cash and cash equivalents 159,725
A 3 ) A Other current assets 2,625,640
B Current assets 2,785,365
I U B Non-current assets 372
SRAE NEEYE S & Financial liabilities, excluding trade and
At 8 AT 3K IE other payables (169,900)
HoAth i ) & f& Other current liabilities (2,120,198)
i) B Current liabilities (2,290,098)
T EE Net assets 495,639
B A AR W A B N AU RE 25 MR ¢ Reconciliation to the Group’s interest
in the associate:
7 S5 1 B Ak A RE LE A9 Proportion of the Group’s ownership 32%
A B B AL B N AT A E Group’s share of net assets of the associate 158,604
T R W 22 B 1 oK A BLAE AR Adjustment for unrealised profits and losses
VE o % from related party transactions (2,985)
G IR T E Carrying amount of the investment 155,619
I %5 Revenue 1,395,886
B 7 Expenses (987,487)
i JH Tax (109,351)
A A Ve 1) B A TR A AR Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 299,048

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b) (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information in respect of Suzhou Zhengxi Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd. adjusted for any differences in

accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in

2% T ) R T (R SR the consolidated financial statements:
+—-H=+—H
31 December
2021
AR ¥F o
RMB’000
e LR E%EY Cash and cash equivalents 126,085
HoAth 7 By & E Other current assets 784,747
B Current assets 910,832
IE T & Non-current assets 20
SRAE NEEYE S & Financial liabilities, excluding trade and
At 8 AT 3K IE other payables (191,825)
HoAth i B A i Other current liabilities (111,659)
i) B Current liabilities (303,484)
& Net assets 607,368
B A AR [ A B S A FIROME RS ¥R ¢ Reconciliation to the Group's interest
in the associate:
A 45 18 JUT A5 8 A RE L 9] Proportion of the Group’s ownership 32%
7 4E H AL B A A T IR A E Group’s share of net assets of the associate 194,358
Wt B W T A8 S 0 R 5 B AR 2 Adjustment for unrealised profits and losses
o B from related party transactions -
& IR Carrying amount of the investment 194,358
I £ Revenue 2,351,988
B 32 Expenses (1,943,498)
Fi 18 Tax (139,711)
A TR T R B A T R A AR AR Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 268,779

“BCFFR
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RSB R A B I 2
JEE B R A R 2 R BB A R
2 OOt AE ] & Fh BUR 2
SR R RSl B AR BB R

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(b)  (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Hefei Lianrong Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. adjusted for any differences in

accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in

2 A 114 MR T R the consolidated financial statements:
o S
+—-H=+—H
31 December
2021
AR ¥F o
RMB’000
Bl KB EHY) Cash and cash equivalents 26
Ho At it ) & = Other current assets 2,789,793
) Current assets 2,789,819
I U B Non-current assets 10,000
SRAE NEEYE S & Financial liabilities, excluding trade and
Al 78 A5 S IH other payables -
HoAth i B A i Other current liabilities (174)
) A & Current liabilities (174)
T EE Net assets 2,799,645
B A AR [ A B S A FIROME RS ¥R ¢ Reconciliation to the Group's interest
in the associate:
A 45 18 JUT A5 8 A RE L 9] Proportion of the Group’s ownership 25%
IR A [ AL B N R R Group’s share of net assets of the associate 699,911
Wt B W T A8 S 0 R 5 B AR 2 Adjustment for unrealised profits and losses
o B from related party transactions -
& Y B T Carrying amount of the investment 699,911
i A Revenue _
5 Expenses (355)
B IH Tax —
AN e 1R B A T JRs 4R AR AR Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year (355)
ESESEERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(¢) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually

material:

—®- M B
2022 2021
AR¥ T AR ¥F oL
RMB’000 RMB’000
iRl k- R/NEIEE T Share of the associates’ profits and losses

2 TR 5 AR A and total comprehensive income (265,738) 81,588

A AR B N B s N A RE R Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
I THT (B 48 % investments in the associates 6,002,719 9,127,589

AN F)E R R N B
o RNEIN RS E T DA 4
1o 1 R = =S plt
H =+ — B 5k (5
(T4 %) - A
A B 4% RE £ k0 5% 4F B TS
FIN X

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment was necessary as at 31 December
2022 as the investments in associates were considered fully
recoverable (2021: Nil). The associates have been accounted for

using the equity method in these financial statements.

Annuolﬁiﬁéfiﬁjﬁ 2 3 —‘
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19. ¥ %E i JH 19. DEFERRED TAX
IR AL B OE A B KB RO R A The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year
B are as follows:
R HE Bt IH & E Deferred tax assets

AR AR
ARERR  ERBEA  EHTE it REB RN REEE
HEAR SAMER  RRSE REA RERA  ElkE O MER  WEES it

Ty

Losses
available for
offsetting  Advertising fee Unrealised Impairment
against future  for offsetting  Payroll and Accrued revenue losses on
Lease taxable  against future welfare  construction received Accrued financial
liabilities profits  taxable profits accrual cost  inadvance LAT assets Total

ARETE ARWTE ARBTZ ARWTE ARWTFLT ARWTIL ARKTL ARKTL ARFTL
RMBOOO  RMBU000 RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO

MoFZ—F—H—H Al January 2021 25,776 99,941 8,669 6,935 191,043 1,627,585 188,472 2428 2,150,849
ES i Business acquisition - 3,110 - - - 285,573 - . 288,683
H I E A A (W 3E37)  Disposal of subsidiaries
(note37) - (58,303) (142) (©3) (54,883)  (134,590) - - (248,041)
FERFEA/ (FIBR ) RE Deferred tax credited/
R IEHIA (charged) to profit or
loss during the year 3,111 60,014 (5,686) (4,009) 65,351 432,372 (11,496) 1,954 541,611
RZBZ—4 At 31 December 2021
FoAZ+—H 28,887 104,702 2841 2865 201511 2210940 176976 4382 2,733,102
H BB 2 7 (J7E37)  Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 37) - (23,131) (41) - (39,316) (162,334) (32,900) - (257,722)
ERFIA/ (HIBR )4 Deferred tax crediced!
fiy AR AL B I8 (charged) to profit o
loss during the year (18356 (66:392) (2,800) 1L930) (56225 (1,115,942) (8,302) 102 (1,269,845)
RoZ- At 31 December 2022
FZA=+T—H 10,531 15,179 - 933 105,970 932,664 135,774 4,484 1,205,535

2 3 ERHEREARAT

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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. ;@ @ ﬁ IE (45) 19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
IR AL B OE A B KB RO R A The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year
B - (4) are as follows: (Continued)
R %t B IH £ 1] Deferred tax liabilities

a<C/E S E B U
EAMATE  AStfiEt EHEAFELE

W OMATERE MATENE  BEAERE At
Fair value
Fair value  adjustment Fair value
adjustment  arising from  adjustment
arising from property,  arising from
investment plant and business  Right-of-use
properties equipment  combination assets Total

ARETLE  AREFL ARWTZE ARWETT ARKETIL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AT FE T —HF—H—H Atl January 2021 859,352 58,777 253,240 24,348 1,195,717
ERGFEA) 1A Deferred tax (credited)/
18 4 11 08 A B T charged to profic or
loss during the year (50,300) (3,085) (109,417) 2,495 (160,307)
B B 8 /A A (Fif5F37)  Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 37) (68,652) - (42,351) - (111,003)
A I Je 2 ) Acquisition of
subsidiaries - - 44,587 - 44,587
iy TR T AR At 31 December 2021
+ZA=+—H 740,400 55,692 146,059 26,843 968,994
EWGEA)/ B Deferred tax (credited)/
18 i A A% 4 B I charged to profit or
loss during the year (102,643) (3,085) (694) (18,649) (125,071)
B & A 7] (I 5E37)  Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 37) (29,622) - (83,808) - (113,430)
e - At 31 December 2022
+-H=+—H 608,135 52,607 61,557 8,194 730,493
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19.

19.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

YE &5 88 0 BT reporting purposes:
2022 2021
AR ¥ T AR ¥F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
T FR A B R LR A e R R Net deferred tax assets recognised in the
I FIE B TE A A R E consolidated statement of financial position 971,749 2,445,635
&R B R L 2R A R R A Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
% SiE B JE B E T (E consolidated statement of financial position (496,707) (681,527)
475,042 1,764,108

A 42 B A R B OK FE E A 0 B A RS
B A NE¥7,164,704,000 0 (. F —
— 4 N R ¥2,929,716,00000) > #%
TE— 2 1A B LI 8 R 2k
BT I o N 4 % S e 18 T R R
HE B TE A E > R A HE AR E R
— B E AR HRAAK
n] BE A ME SR B s R K B Bl s 4R o

AL B R A AR
16,336,484,000 0 ( =& — — 4 A
[ ¥2,661,636,0007C) °

R AP 2 N RS 3L 0 B A 2 T A5 B
) AE b R b T R A e
1> 2 m g AN E B E IR AR
10 EIMBL - M ER &
FAE — H — H R AR sl A R
TEELEF A=+ B HEE
AL B A o A R B A M BEL B A R
A T R RE I A A B W
AL BRI T A0 B R o A SR [ Y
FABLZ B510% o R IL > A 48 8 28
A el T N N Al o RN
HoZZEANF—H—-HREEAD
B4R BT 43 IR 1 P S A TE AN B o

SRt EEEERAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited

234

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB7,164,704,000 (2021: RMB2,929,716,000) that will expire in
one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available

against which the tax losses can be utilised.

The Group has deductible temporary differences of
RMB16,336,484,000 (2021: RMB2,661,636,000).

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.



19.

20.

98 %iE B I (4

W E P A=+ —H:
R A 1 N S A S N L YA £
B JB5 > w2 S0 Ak TE 0 B R TE B
Z A ME A Y TE A0 B RE BR AT AT R I
Bl ANFERTLR > AEBEP
A ol R R AR AR T 1Y AR T iR
rR I P AR R s R SR R R A AR
Al AR PR R W] BE 2 UR AT B R o
AL Slf7 406 e 58 % 4E Bl IH A fE 1Y R
B A Hb B R A R R A A B
MrERBAHEAGLOAET(CFE —
A N R ¥ 1,046,679,000 70) o

A B TR s 129 # AT RE EE AR Y R
2 R B R R IR B A B BB
| it T e e A0 A ot T

1 O A6 R A B 35 0
il V% e

19.
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DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group’s fund will be retained in Mainland China for
the expansion of the Group’s operation, so it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately nil (2021: RMB1,046,679,000).

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the
extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits through future
taxable profits is probable.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

—® U — R

2022 2021

A R¥ T AR ¥F oL

RMB’000 RMB’000

N FEFT R BT RERE  Listed equity investments, at fair value 417 266,141
N CFEFEE R BT A Unlisted other investments, at fair value

& 282,056 386,113

282,473 652,254

BREFZEF A= HB
bl B ERCE T R E &
[ W (/A ol (R WANE 1= B -3 )

W oE_F+H=T—H:
ALEBMBRETEHN BT (ZF . —
A0 N R 168,587,000 70) 1 % 2 F
Hit AR M SR EECEMN - &
A A B 0 BR AT B LAt 1 3K ME
& (B sk 29) »

The above equity investments at 31 December 2022 were classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were held
for trading.

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately nil (2021: RMB168,587,000) were pledged to secure
bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).

TECCOFER
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21. Wb E

A=t —H

21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

g i
2022 2021
AR #Fox A BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A —H— H R Carrying amount at 1 January 131,073,246 117,686,697
N E Additions 23,115,555 46,083,367
S EERET R T Transferred to completed properties held for
(B ¥ 22) sale (note 22) (23,848,612)  (38,803,151)
R Y W B Transferred to property, plant and equipment
(B 5E13) (note 13) - (746,988)
T A 0 RE R (K 5T 1s) Transferred to right-of-use assets (note 15) - (23,825)
Wi 15 B J > ) Acquisition of subsidiaries — 16,562,383
B N A (B R 37) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) (9,549,188) (9,140,255)
L 8 9k (E s 48 (B 58S > 6) Impairment losses recognised (notes 5,6) (8,153,767) (699,882)
M E A E R EC R LYK Impairment losses transferred to completed
U 1 e 18 (B 58 22) properties held for sale (note 22) 727,128 154,900
BT A =+ —HMIEmME Carrying amount at 31 December 113,364,362 131,073,246

A 42 [ Y BR g b ) €O R P B A
YA i E e

WZEZ_F+ A =+ —
H. AEBMAAKRBTMHEHNRKE
56,708,147,0007C ( =& — — 4 1 A
R ¥ 66,855,605,000 7C ) (1) BH 2% F 4
ECE > By AL I ERAT I
A 18 A HEPP (B 5E29) o

BH 8 ) SE R S A B T

The Group’s properties under development are situated on leasehold

lands in Mainland China.

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s properties under development

with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB56,708,147,000 (2021: RMB66,855,605,000) were pledged to
secure bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).

The movements in provision for impairment of properties under

development are as follows:

T Sty S

2022 2021

AR¥ T A R ¥T e

RMB’000 RMB’000

A —H— H AR Carrying amount at 1 January 562,159 17,177

L 8 8k (E s 48 (BFF 585 > 6) Impairment losses recognised (notes 5, 6) 8,153,767 699,882
EHEREHEDL R TYWHER  Impairment losses transferred to completed

WMH e (B E22) properties held for sale (note 22) (727,128) (154,900)
Wt H=4+—H 0 EmE Carrying amount at 31 December 7,988,798 562,159

2 3 ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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pH %% b P 3 ) 21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
BH 2% o W 200 1 (R & B oK The value of properties under development (“PUD?”) is assessed at the
WAL o A BR T (A AR g L ] A B TR end of each reporting period. An impairment exists when the
B > B A7 AF B - W] 56 35 3 (B )9 AR carrying value exceeds its net realisable value. The net realisable value
P AT AR W R 6 B B S & is determined by reference to the selling price based on the prevailing
AN 2 - s Y EEHE market price less applicable selling expenses. After making the
(B S A AR 0 N B2 2B BE B T ) 2509 provision for impairment of PUD, in case the factors causing
HIRZCAHE EHE DY impairment of PUD no longer exist, and the net realisable value
3609 T 2 B I R A LR T E exceeds the carrying amount, the original provision for impairment
A 7E 5 2 #H 48 00 B 28 i 2 3 (E shall be released to the profit or loss for the current period.
T BE A T DA ] o e Y
FEACE W AR -
FhEBEoR ITWE 22. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
2022 2021
A R¥ T AR ¥F oL
RMB’000 RMB’000
A —H— H R E Carrying amount at 1 January 11,554,582 7,870,910
P B B 2E (5T 21) Transferred from properties under
development (note 21) 23,848,612 38,803,151
R 2 B A (B 5E6) Transferred to cost of sales (note 6) (24,114,013) (31,404,183)
T80 (EL T AR e (B 5Es ~ 6) Impairment losses written off (notes 5, 6) - 8,516
W AP XN EE T Impairment losses transferred from properties
(Bff 5 21) under development (note 21) (727,128) (154,900)
. ffE 52 (B s 4R (B s - 6) Impairment losses recognised (notes 5, 6) (241,733) (469,605)
H R E A A (B 5E37) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) (416,165) (3,099,307)
Wt A=+ — 3 IE Carrying amount at 31 December 9,904,155 11,554,582

WoE2 -+ - H=Z+ —
Ho A £ 4 RmMED AR
1,579,940,0007C ( & — — 4 AR
#51,898,059,00070) 1 FE1E & %
T EC B &AL B H
AT B HoAth A BRI AP (B 5 29) -

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s completed properties held for
sale with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,579,940,000 (2021: RMB1,898,059,000) were pledged to
secure bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).

—B-—EFR
Annual Report 2022
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22. FEHEC® T % ) 22. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

238

SRR RS Y E SR Rk ]
BEWE

(Continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of completed properties

held for sale are as follows:

—®o R B4

2022 2021

AR F ANRWT T

RMB’000 RMB’000

w—H— B8R Carrying amount at 1 January 678,985 175,104
(G R (B 3Es -~ 6) Impairment losses written off (notes 5, 6) - (8,516)

R E PR E NI EE T Impairment losses transferred from properties

(B 58 21) under development (note 21) 727,128 154,900
L 52 el (B s 42 (BFF 58S~ 6) Impairment losses recognised (notes 5, 6) 241,733 469,605
B B A T Disposal of subsidiaries (1,574) (112,108)
WA = A H R T Carrying amount at 31 December 1,646,272 678,985

FRAE AR Ok T W) 3800 3 (E 0 %
i A A AT A o v B TR (R L T
BT (E > H AT AR AE o AT B BT
{6 5 AR 98 B AT T 18 807 T 86 B B
Sl 27 1 R E o AL RRAE
O 3% T w42 Bl (E 1% > fin i
BREFHECR TYERENR
ROMHA BEEHHEREC R T
Wy S AT A B (O A R T
EH> MERCFROFELEDR
T S (A 4 e AU T DA ]
I ) AT E A

PP 2 R EIE TR T Y
2610 AT B (E 1 B E W & T
AR AE AR B BB DL S 58 G 4
W) 3 8 1 P 5 19 AR o B B P 3
B FpfE & B R T ¥k W%
o F A AT BT A AR
R A o A4 B B R 0 AT
il (L Bl 368 2 T 40 S AT 8 S A -
HH I A M A [R] T Y T R T
it 1 5 M E T 8 R LA i > L
175 PR SR AN R I SR > Wl RE AR B
% S YT Y 5 e (A B ) o

SRt EEEERAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited

The value of completed properties held for sale (“PHS”) is assessed at
the end of each reporting period. An impairment exists when the
carrying value exceeds its net realisable value. The net realisable value
is determined by reference to the selling price based on the prevailing
market price less applicable selling expenses. After making the
provision for impairment of PHS, in case the factors causing
impairment of PHS no longer exist, and the net realisable value
exceeds the carrying amount, the original provision for impairment

shall be released to the profit or loss for the current period.

The determination of the net realizable value of PUD and PHS
involves expected future selling prices, the relevant taxes, and costs
necessary to complete the sale of these properties. The calculation of
the net realisable value for PUD and PHS at the financial reporting
date is performed by the Group’s management. The Group’s
management engaged an external valuer to perform independent
valuations for certain properties. Recent property market cooling
measures imposed by the local governments in different cities in
Mainland China, which include policies of limiting prices and home
purchase restrictions, could lead to volatility in property prices in

these cities.
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

TR TE T

2022 2021

AR ¥ Tt A RETF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5 E W X TE Trade receivables 747,858 768,412
WE Impairment - -
747,858 768,412

B 5 MWK 2R R F A
& HEYELHERY - ALHE
5 R 3 AR s [ i R T A R R
A% 42 W) o B B RE r RE ) A BE Aa 0 A
fif o BE R DL b BT Al R A B Y R
oy WK IA W I 2 oo ik % 5 i
O N DD R NV
A SR G B W E R E 5 UK A
BT M A A 3E K B
(9 BRIH o A 42 Sl J g L 5 ) i
AXIE &5 B 15 A AT o] 1 S Al
i 2T TR o 8 5 B WO IH 7 A
EipSS

B 5y E WK E f AR R TR -
B 5y S TE Y B T (B B RN o
EAR AT o TR 2 i it R B8 8% 52 H
B0 B 5 M SRR SE R B 2 AT AN T

Trade receivables mainly represent rentals receivable from tenants,
sales of properties and sales of goods. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by management. In view of the aforementioned
and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
Included in the Group’s trade receivables of sales of properties are
mainly due from state-owned enterprises and government
departments. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are

non-interest-bearing.

Trade receivables are unsecured and non-interest-bearing. The
carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate to their fair values.
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

TR T T A

2022 2021

AR ¥ T o ANRET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

— 4 A Less than 1 year 291,556 734,234
—4EPL b Over 1 year 456,302 34,178
747,858 768,412

WE oA 7 ) R oK 80 A9 R W sk JH
Fe A0 45 B A 4 36 S BOR R MR 2
TCALHEF > %5 % P A A
SR

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
diversified customers including state-owned enterprises and
government departments, for whom there was no recent history of
default and high collectibility.

Annuolzliio:r:zfgjg 2 3 Q
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23. ¥ 5 BEW R E () 23.

A SE T AR 5 I P S S ISR 0
%0 R 2 E T B 2 0k By R B
i 18 A AR A iﬁmﬁ%%ﬁ
B 5 M W R TE R A A
TE I M 18 A Eﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
B> & 5 BUCRIHC AR =G5
L B B o ) M e ] 5
Wi B TE Y TE O s 1E R BTN B 139%
(B 41 0.19%) o M9 % 78 )
K 18 3R R R 1 A B R A o AR
HEBL > ABZSEHMENG
BRHEGR A A E K B 9
908 0 LA AT M 1R A

24ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
Fe H Al ¥

o W sk 24

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for ECLs
prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the ECLs, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rate of trade
receivables is assessed to be 1.3% (2021: 0.1%). Based on evaluation
on the expected loss rate and gross carrying amount, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the ECL in respect of these
balances is considered to be immaterial, and therefore, there has not

been a loss allowance provision.

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS

TR TR
2022 2021
AR ¥ T AR WT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B =7 L@ A BT Prepayments related to third parties’ land use
5} 3K 1A rights - 1,181,016
e 4 Deposits 2,704,734 3,792,756
Wi B 1 b ol ) A 19 TELAS KR Prepayments for acquisition of land use
rights - 71,802
A AT i [\ B I Orther tax recoverable 3,106,738 3,975,233
JRE Wi B 8 N 7 JE P I B IE Due from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries 15,371,376 16,692,543
B A Contract cost assets 1,732,326 1,726,034
A 5 A TE AT 3OE Prepayments for construction cost 57,603 207,804
AT BUN AR B #EAE IR T Proceeds from pre-sales of properties
B TR ) 2 BT A5 3KOE deposited in accounts of local
governments and related agencies 2,599,375 -
At 1 i gk TE Other receivables 836,620 832,497
26,408,772 28,479,685
Vo (R Impairment (75,732) (17,525)
26,333,040 28,462,160

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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24. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS

Al R Wi 3K IE T A R (R The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables and
EEE) R deposits are as follows:

S il ST Sy
2022 2021
AR F ANRWT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
w—H— H R E Carrying amount at 1 January 17,525 9,710
B 58 I E s 1 (FfE 5% 6) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 58,207 7,815
Rt A=+ AR E Carrying amount at 31 December 75,732 17,525

TELASH BRI ~ At R SRR I R A
FE o SR AT~ R E S HL A [ G K
HIRR -

A AR ] T I AE AT R K
il JE A 3K TE K AT 3K (ZE AR 5 [ R B
W5 i 4 ME BRI 26 o 9% 3 W (H 19 A )
HEAT W FTEAL - G B IE &8
A BB R > DR B R
Wr BWIAE MERR LA 2 B8 ) o i =&
CoEFY A=t/ HGE
Bl N R H#75,732,00000 (%
—F+__H=1+—H: AR¥
17,525,000 7G) °

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets are unsecured, non-

interest-bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model on
other receivables and deposits, which are subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. As at 31 December 2022, the ECLs were
RMB75,732,000 (31 December 2021: RMB17,525,000).

An nuolﬁiﬁcﬁtﬁﬁﬁ 2 4 —‘
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}E; 4 )3 Iﬁ 5 % I= % > ‘_xl' 25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED
R B 4 B 3K 30 17 % CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

B E 4
2022 2021
AR ¥ T o AR ¥F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Bl T RAT & Bk Cash and bank balances 9,249,715 39,120,489
W 7 PR 4 Less: Restricted cash 5,892,753 16,260,957
R Pledged deposits 86,851 8,132,400
W4 MkBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 3,270,111 14,727,132

FR4E A B b B B > AR T
[ b 2 BH 9 o m 2O A T Bl 4& K
TH A7 B 5 AT R P AR+ A
e ZE AT ZH =+ —
H o 3% 8B 0 22 B 36 4 2 N R
5,812,649,000 70 (=& = — 4« AR
5 12,860,957,0007C ) » & - FE . —
FHH=Z1t—H > ZRHHESE
6 72 W A7 3K F 3,400,000,000 0 T3
7 4L [ %Héfﬁ/‘:@)%ﬁ?ﬂﬁ;ﬁ&
iz 78 B A7 OR] S BOR B - i
TP ZA=+—H> IKE%IE
G H R R A N R B A A
BB R 180,104,000 7T (& ——
Ao HE) o

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place certain
amounts of cash in the designated bank accounts for a specified use.
As at 31 December 2022, the restricted cash for this part amounted
to RMB5,812,649,000 (2021: RMB12,860,957,000). As at 31
December 2021, the restricted cash included time deposits
amounting to RMB3,400,000,000, which would mature in more
than three months when acquired by the Group and earn interest at
the time deposit rates. As at 31 December 2022, the restricted cash
included an amount of RMB80,104,000, which was seized by the
People’s Court due to lawsuits (2021: Nil).



2

5

&

& % Bl e % -
2z M B4 ke K
WoE D FE A =T —H-
5 BN R %86,851,0007C ( — &
— 4 0 N R #8,132,400,000 70 ) 1Y 51
T A7 3R B s A 4 T R B8 = O 1B 1
B B E ks HE &
B SRAT RUE M HE AR S BUR T
SRAT VE By BE AT SR AT R S0 B PR K
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED

CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, bank deposits of RMB86,851,000 (2021:
RMBS,132,400,000) were pledged for the Group and third parties as
security for purchasers’ mortgage loans, construction of projects,
bank facilities, or pledged to banks as collateral for issuance of bank

acceptance notes.

ot St —E A
2022 2021
AR ¥ T AR ¥F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Bl KBS EY) Cash and cash equivalents

DI R ¥sHE Denominated in RMB 3,257,121 12,083,803
DL TeRHE Denominated in US$ 7,920 2,115,514
DS e RHE Denominated in HK$ 5,070 527,815
3,270,111 14,727,132

DhNRWEHHE W Z R H 34 &  Restricted cash and pledged deposits
[SEIELNEEY denominated in RMB 5,979,604 24,393,357

AR A d st HAb &%
AR 4 o I 7 i ) O I A7 B A0k £51)
e K& ME - B ME 2 A BE A BEA E )
A 4 T AT A A R A O AT AP B 2K
B5 19 SR AT A N R WS R &
i

|ATH R EH B RAT A7 FOR
%0 B R S B o SRAT &S8R A7 1
A A RO B 00 5 R R SR AR AT o
B 4 M B4 45 fE W 00 IR T (R B R
P EA A

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the

cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair values.
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25.

26.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED
CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the internal credit rating of restricted cash,
pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents was performing. The
Group has assessed that the credit risk of the restricted cash, pledged
deposits and cash and cash equivalents has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and measured the impairment based on
12-month ECLs, and has assessed that the ECLs are immaterial.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

o St ST Sy

2022 2021

AR¥ T AR WFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

— 4 A Within 1 year 14,632,614 19,659,552
—4ERL kB Over 1 year 972,363 720,357

15,604,977 20,379,909

B 5 FEAT 3K A 7y HE AR AT > — AR
THREELEH RE_F 4+
ZH =4 —H AN A M E A A
BEATI A N R ¥ 1,364,855,000 70 ( —
T AR ) T K L SR PR
At e

2 Ar 4 Rt EEEERATE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited

The trade payables are unsecured and are normally settled based on
the progress of construction. As at 31 December 2022, commercial
acceptance bills of approximately RMB1,364,855,000 (2021: nil)
issued by the Company’s subsidiaries were overdue and unpaid.
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. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

RO TR AR

2022 2021

AR¥ T AR W¥FIC

RMB’000 RMB’000

B b i R RE A B R 4 Deposits related to land use rights - 2,500,000
INEUNGIE X2 S T Advances from non-controlling shareholders

of subsidiaries 5,682,388 6,111,911

AR ERSE Retention deposits related to construction 1,575,390 1,798,235

MEAT T8 K 45 A Payroll and welfare payable 126,256 256,171

Yy 26 8 % M B A & Deposits related to sales of properties 330,014 476,692

s ZEL KB Business tax and surcharges 366,471 396,361

ML 4 Maintenance fund 288,544 365,131

EiE L ES A ZIA (FfiE)  Proceeds from asset-backed securities (note) 2,237,786 2,432,687

E AT Fi] B Interest payables 1,881,147 -

Others 43,792 61,673

12,531,788 14,398,861

ko B Less: Current portion 11,589,405 13,491,751

FE B 1 356 4 Non-current portion 942,383 907,110

BRFRE &5 BR 45 B o B e A A

SRR E BB (TR R B B
) WEEEAT A A SRR R WL
ST A5 BCTE 5 T A 4B 1M B B ) 2
N W g8 19 2 T R 2 R ) R K
TE FE S - A5 A 42 ) J R ik H
B E R I R A AE
5 i BB A T A5 K TE IRE > AL
o RE AR SRR TR B R
BT MBS R _F
FEtr A=+ —H BEEE
I BT A T 2 B A 2 N R
1,295,403,0007C ( & . — 4 A
R ¥ 1,525,577,0007C) > JE B 3 3B
B N R 942,383,000 70 (&
A AR 907,110,000 ) o K
EF P ZH = —HIE
AL AR [ T B E SRR R
T fERE N TER A W R AR - R
& % KB A R 180,787,000 7T
A B #140,465,000 0~ A R
974,151,000 7C J2 N & ¥ 942,383,000
LR E —F = AE=H
+tH ZF_=FAANH-

ZEZ=F+t—HTILH K=
EFEYLEN A Z+AH A ZFE
o TZHZ= +*Elf§’7$%
B Ih ot ok K @}\E”ﬂ%‘
180,787,000 JC f #& X i — &
HEZA+EtHERE ~&F

ANH— B sl AT ] B
P 5 BT AR A -

Note: The balance represented proceeds received from a special purpose entity (“SPE”)

set up by a financial institution in Mainland China for issuance of asset-backed
securities, to which the Group has collateralised certain future trade receivables
for the remaining receipts from sales of properties. Under an assignment
arrangement between the Group and the SPE, as and when the Group receives
the sales proceeds from customers, the Group would remit any cash flows it
collects on behalf of the SPE. As at 31 December 2022, the current portion of
the proceeds from asset-backed securities was RMB1,295,403,000 (2021:
RMB1,525,577,000) and the non-current portion was RMB942,383,000 (2021:
RMB907,110,000). During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
successfully negotiated with creditors of asset-backed securities on the
extension for repayments of principal and interest thereon. Repayments of the
outstanding amount of RMB180,787,000, RMB140,465,000,
RMB974,151,000 and RMB942,383,000 has been extended to 17 March
2023, 8 May 2023, 19 November 2023 and 28 April 2024, respectively.
Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the Group has successfully extended the
repayment of outstanding amount of RMB180,787,000 from 17 March 2023
to 1 June 2023, and waived any potential defaults with respect of the asset-
backed securities.

An nuolzliiti:zfgjg 2 4 6
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28.
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H Al BE F 3%
B )

M N R #52,237,786,000 00 (& ——
o0 N R 5 2,432,687,000 70 ) B E S
FraB 5 &N R ¥573,610,0007C ( —
T ) T IR R R R
AN (G5 RIBH A T 6% £ 13% (—
T AR 6% B 6.6%) W E 2 A
Rt A MHE A A
TR A R AT K TE B R N B B
SRR R FE S R 4 R AR -
S Athy B AT BKCTE A 45 R ORI A
V- (B B AR M ) B 16 (AR A o

CRNEE
BRI AR T -

JH K HE Gt

27.

28.

Contract liabilities

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Continued)

Except for the asset-backed securities and certain advances from non-
controlling shareholders amounted to RMB2,237,786,000 (2021:
RMB2,432,687,000) and RMB573,610,000 (2021: nil), respectively,
which bear interest at fixed interest rates ranging from 6% to 13%
per annum (2021: 6% to 6.6%), other payables and remaining
advances from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries are
unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand. The fair
values of other payables at the end of each of the reporting periods
approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Details of contract liabilities are as follows:
/A R 2 /A ki /A i
S e R ES —~H—H
31 December 31 December 1 January
2022 2021 2021
AR ¥TFoc AR #F L A RHF L
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
76,723,225 90,987,118 60,866,676

AEBHBREYEBERHESY
JIT T ) 5 2 PR A U T AT K e
A7 G F 7E AL BAT Z AT > &
B H B b E B AR - B RFHE -

W oE - HFETH=Z+—H>
RN B A EAL R B AT 5
B4R AT) EI’JTCE'J%E}\E”%
82,815,748,000G ( = & — — 4 A
B %*%‘104,536,813,00075) o 45 P g TH
who A B A IE379% K 63% 1 4 R
AR — AR B — AR RN R AR A
R (—F 4 EHEBHEG
H B O H439% M s57% M & B
A Y — AR B — A 4R R 48 4R A
F8) o b 3U T B R A S B HL AR
FEENEFGH (AR — 4
o DLR) A B R E AT B R A = AT -

Jiv A7 W SR B B L% Bk AR
P59 YRR 2 — 4F BLL T o 4 IR

% o s o5 e B3 1S SR AT LR Sl
AT EZEFERBEITEHAN
Lo -

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

The Group receives payments from customers based on billing
schedules as established in the property sales or rental contracts.
Payments are usually received in advance of the performance under
the contracts which are mainly from property development and sales
and rental.

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December
2022 amounted to RMB82,815,748,000 (2021:
RMB104,536,813,000). Management expects that 37% and 63% of
the amount will be recognised in profit or loss within one year and in
more than one year, respectively (2021: Management expects that
43% and 57% of the amount will be recognised in profit or loss
within one year and in more than one year, respectively). The amount
disclosed above does not include unsatisfied performance obligations
that were related to the Group’s contracts with customers with an
original duration of one year or less.

All property management services and management consulting
services are for periods of one year or less. As permitted under IFRS
15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.
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wt B8R A7 B H At £ sk 29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS
RV ZAZY—H ZEC T A=A
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
-4 IEA0O) B FI 2 (%)
Effective Effective
interest WA AR¥TIL interest HMH ARBFIL
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
H Current
BITEH—HBEM  Bank loans — secured 9 2023 126,303 6.4-8.8 2022 434,240
RAATER— ML Bank loans — unsecured 4.19-4.82 2023 379,536 4.3-10 2022 478,727
HAb &R — AN Other loans — secured 9.9-12 2023 2,715,432 9-12 2022 6,869,986
HAb xR — KM Other loans —
unsecured 10 2023 109,696 10 2022 63,757
RIRATEAM A Current portion of long
W iy — A 4L term bank loans
— secured 4.15-8.8 2023 16,448,535 4-93 2022 13,197,495
RMMRTEHME  Current portion of long
By — S 4 term bank loans
— unsecured 4.68-8.88 2023 1,675,221 4.7-8.9 2022 3,389,358
RIHAERB A Current portion of long
W — A A term other loans
— secured 8.8-11 2023 4,246,357 8.8-9.3 2022 1,431,667
25,701,080 25,865,230
EIE Non-current
WITEHR— A Bank loans — secured 4£3-6.2  2024-2035 4,587,247 42-88  2023-2035 18,573,989
SRATE I — KA Bank loans — unsecured - - - 47-89  2023-2024 980,310
Hib & — B Other loans — secured 2.8-11 2025 595,270 8.8-10 2023 2,540,000
5,182,517 22,094,299
30,883,597 47,959,529
B4 B
2022 2021
AR ¥ Tt AR+ L
RMB’000 RMB’000
Ei: 3 e 3 o Interest bearing at:
& 7 ) Z Fixed rate 26,423,035 38,718,182
T 8 I % Floating rate 4,460,562 9,241,347
30,883,597 47,959,529
—BCFFR
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29. wt B SRAT B At £ 3K o)

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (Continued)

e “E
2022 2021
AR #F o AR ¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
I3 BT Analysed into:
JRE 8 75 SR AT AR K Bank loans repayable:
JH A — 4 A 4 oK Within one year or on demand 18,629,595 17,499,820
A AR In the second year 1,359,677 12,031,120
TRES = 35 A In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(B & R AF) 3,121,570 6,830,599
AR Beyond five years 106,000 692,580
23,216,842 37,054,119
A9 At i 5 - Other borrowings repayable:
JH A — AF A B R Within one year or on demand 7,071,485 8,365,410
)i In the second year 127,270 1,040,000
B = F R A In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(& H W) 468,000 1,500,000
7,666,755 10,905,410
30,883,597 47,959,529

W _E T H=+—H:
RN I R s Ol I s i
B8 AT I HoAh & 3 5 N R ¥
5,850,640,000 7C (2% . —4F : fig) »
HERELA ST -FB PEB
BRAT B A 4R A T M B S AR R
s BEORGLEMHE A R E R
B R AT KOH A 1 RN R W
3,190,998,000 JC ( .75 . —4F @ fi) »
HFFA ARG E ol 3 &) 53 -

R 45 74 A [ 30 40 115 B B o > AR 4
BT AR E A G B RT X
HC At BKIE R R AT ] 98 4 i 4 L
AH BEE ORI R o R
CHEY A=t —H REERE
TSR - 5 TR ESRAT L H A
B —EANFAEREERY A
At AR #7,347,230,000 8 (%
T M) Y BB SR AT B Al £
AOETER R HE '
ToH=Z+—H LA FEIET
M {85 3K 34 B 7R 76 R 4R T 4 A B
IRILR M B & EET -

2 Ar 8 SRt EEEERAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited

As at 31 December 2022, the Group failed to repay or breached the
covenants of certain interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
amounting to RMB5,850,640,000 (2021: Nil), which constituted an
event of default. At the same date, there were outstanding litigations
commenced by banks in the PRC against certain subsidiaries of the
Group requesting such subsidiaries to repay certain interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings amounting to RMB3,190,998,000 (2021:
Nil), which were included in the above-mentioned defaulted
borrowings.

Pursuant to agreements of some of the Group’s borrowings, any
default under the Group’s senior notes, corporate bonds or interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings will trigger the relevant
borrowings becoming repayable on demand. As at 31 December
2022, the Group was in default of certain senior notes, certain
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and a corporate bond,
causing interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of a total amount
of RMB7,347,230,000 (2021: Nil) having become repayable on
demand. The above-mentioned borrowings that under events of
default are presented under current liabilities in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022.
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29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (Continned)

Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured by the
pledges of the following assets with carrying values at the end of the
reporting period as follows:

AP EFT A B 19 4Bl & % Financial assets at fair value through profit or

(Bff 5E20)
L ERS: 9 & L M R SE))
FRAE 8B T2 (ffsk22)

2022 2021

YN & A R ¥T e

RMB’000 RMB’000

Investment properties (note 14) 6,156,753 6,317,652
Right-of-use assets (note 15) 174,618 183,461
Properties under development (note 21) 56,708,147 66,855,605
loss (note 20) - 168,587
Property, plant and equipment (note 13) 1,038,168 959,629
Completed properties held for sale (note 22) 1,579,940 1,898,059

woFE At H = —
H> AEBCHEMEHARY
403,829,000 C ( & ——4 1 AR
2,349,993,0007C) 1A B C S 21
o AT £ FKOE 1@%3&%#%{)&&
¥325,423,000 6 (ZF ——4F : AR
E%1828 913,000 7G) 1Y #R 17 Ko H A £
R HE R o

o E D F T A=+ —H>
$%§Iﬁﬁ%/\ﬂ#?ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁia
MAEEE TRATERNAR
2,402,709,000 7C ( **$ AR
#55,141,602,0007C) ﬁ?ﬁi‘%%

MRoEFF A=+ —H &
ﬂ?’*ﬂﬁ"?ﬁ’]fﬂﬁﬂiﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ"
AEmAREHE THRITERAR
#% 165,000,000 7T (— **$ AR
#5258,000,000 7C) 1 Hi ¥E 4 -

AL R L RN wE B RAT R
LAt £ R0 23 SF (B HL R T (E A
Ao AEARRAR BE b R % AF R
Ty B A BUAT 85 A A A 4R 1 S
T 5755 =77 < Pl R M [ A

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has pledged future proceeds in
respect of properties sold amounting to RMB403,829,000 (2021:
RMB2,349,993,000) as collateral to secure bank and other
borrowings amounting to RMB325,423,000 (2021:
RMB1,828,913,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the non-controlling shareholders of the
Group’s subsidiaries have guaranteed certain of the Group’s bank
loans amounting to RMB2,402,709,000 (2021: RMB5,141,602,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the companies controlled by the
controlling shareholder of the ultimate holding company have
guaranteed certain of the Group’s bank loans amounting to
RMB165,000,000 (2021: RMB258,000,000).

The management of the Company has assessed that the fair values of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the fact that such borrowings were
made between the Group and independent third party financial

institutions based on prevailing market interest rates.

An nuolzliio:r:zfgjg 2 4 Q
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30. SENIOR NOTES

ZBIZEFZAZTH “EtZ=t—H
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
84 5
PN K4
Principal Principal
at original GEVIES at original AHF%
currency  Contractual currency  Contractual
T interest ~ FMIH ARWTFL T interest ~ FIMIH ARETIL
000 rate (%)  Maturity RMB000 000 rate (%) Maturity RMB000
CEZ M BEREE  Senior notes due 2022 11 DITTEL 300,000 ¢
mi &= FEZE) (“2022 Notes I1I") US$22,777 8.70% 2022 159,159 US$300,000 8.70% 2022 1,892,776
423: SRR Z BB Senior notes due 2023 11 300,000F7C 300,000 75
R ZHERER) (2023 Notes II") US$300,000 9.15% 2023 2,115,305 US$300,000 9.15% 2023 1,929,980
:Z I SEFIH 2 B AR Senior notes due 2024 1 290,000 75 290,000 75
R CEREL) (2024 Notes I') US$290,000 7.88% 2024 2,044,772 US$290,000 7.88% 2024 1,866,317
:Z T0AE 5 ) 2 B AR Senior notes due 2024 1T 200,000 7¢ 200,000 75
“ENEEEN) (2024 Notes II") U8$200,000 835% 2024 1422,183 08$200,000 8.35% 2024 1,297,597
_Z: SR ZBREH  Senior notes due 2023 11T 200000575 200,000 75
m-EZZFEEHm) (12023 Notes II) US$200,000 8.30% 2023 1,422,641 15$200,000 8.30% 2023 1,297,592
CETHFEIMNZ BREEL Senior notes due 2025 T 349,000% 7T 350,000 7C
[tz St 3¢ -3 )] (2025 Notes ) US$349,000 7.35% 2025 2,468,459 1U5$350,000 7.35% 2025 2,253,884
CERIANEIMZBRZEEL Senior notes due 20261 393,000 7 400,000£ 7
=R ARERD) (2026 Notes ") US$393,000 6.63% 2026 2,806,085 US$400,000 6.63% 2026 2,564,690
~% 4/\% 92 S ZZ AR Senior notes due 202611 291,000 78 300,000 T
(ZEZAEER) (2026 Notes IT") US$291,000 6.70% 2026 2,066,385 US$300,000 6.70% 2026 1,888,349
:Z::H B2 BERZEE  Senior notes due 2022 IV 1361570 220,000 ¢
VIIZEZZEEEV]) (42022 Notes IV) US§23,361 5.98% 2022 151451 1S$220,000 5.98% 2022 1,405,949
CECIERM 2 BERESE  Senior notes due 2024 I 340,000 7C 340,000 78
m-ETNEZEN]) (2024 Notes 1) US$340,000 7.10% 2024 2,370,769 US$340,000 7.10% 2024 2,147,849
CETTENNZBEEEEY Seniornotesdue 2022V AR 14170 NEH1,300,0007C
([ZE-EERgY)) (2022 Notes V") RMBS, 141 7.125% 2022 8580 RMBI,300,000 7.125% 2022 1,342,290
CEZZEHM Y BEEE  Seniornotesdue2022VI  ARHKLS9TC B #300,00075
VIM R TRV (2022 Notes VI) RMBL,879 7.125% 2022 1974 RMB300,000 7.125% 2022 310,005
CEZFEIIMZBREE  Senior notes due 2022 VII 17,7390 250,000% 7%
VI ZZ 2RI (42022 Notes VIT) US$17,739 6.50% 2022 127,994 US$250,000 650% 2022 1,542,886
HETLER((-F =FZ New USD Notes 728623 FTC
#Ev)) (2023 Notes IV") US$728,623 8.00% 2023 5,084,900 - - - -
HNRWEE (K =4  New RMB Notes NE1,589,9807
V) (“2023 Notes V") RMBI,589,980 8.00% 2023 1,608,887 - - - -
23,859,544 21,740,164
3 B Less: current portion 23,859,544 6,493,906
3 B 0 Non-current portion - 15,246,258

20

ERHEREARAT

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)
+oHEF R FoA=t A
31 December 31 December

2022 2021
AR T AR W T T
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR [ RE A R A JE ZE 2 A0 N ¢ The Group's senior notes were repayable

as follows:

JEN — 4 N B TR R Repayable within one year or on demand 23,859,544 6,493,906
JHN R AR R Repayable in the second year - 3,227,572
JHNEE = 258 hAEMH R Repayable in the third to fifth years - 12,018,686
HE Total 23,859,544 21,740,164

TR EEERIV
WoFZF=A T IUH A
2y AR 58 B A B A B R R R
1% > BEAT AR 4 HLEH 15 728,623,000 32
JCH F T SRRV > AR
F8% » Wik —F T =AE = A EI
DL A B A N A A B A 26 ZhenAn
Glory Investment Limited 3 17 H 2% 24
AR S &
COOAEEgEIV . F A
VIR - E=ARWER
5950 BREE . R _F =
= H S H 2 HAT AT g > A W] Af
e R i i wl i il = S CIIK = = {1

T T AR RV o T ) BE R R A
IR 8 A O B A B

WZEFZZF T ZH=1—H, &
AFRBEN R S EBFIVII R
FE 390 i 3 AT S2 A R L 29,145,000 92
I HHE AR A A

WA A E B S R T =S
AXRNHZRAERMHE B _F
THETHZEZTH ARFER
e AT B N R 1H 2 AR 42 728,623,000
5 TT (CF S 49 N R % 5,074,568,000
JC) R ECRE S A S . HRE R A
Hfo

2023 Notes IV

On 29 March 2022, with the completion of exchange offer and
consent solicitation, the Company issued the 2023 Notes IV at a
coupon rate of 8% due in March 2023 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$728,623,000, in exchange of 2022 Notes III, 2022
Notes IV, 2022 Notes VII and 5.95% Senior Notes due March 2022,
which were guaranteed by the Company and issued by ZhenAn Glory
Investment Limited, a joint venture of the Company. At any time
and from time to time prior to 6 March 2023, the Company may
redeem the 2023 Notes IV at a pre-determined redemption price.
The details of the redemption price are disclosed in the relevant

offering memorandum.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company failed to pay interest in the
amount of US$29,145,000 before expiry of grace period for the 2023
Notes IV, which constituted an event of default.

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the Company failed to make the
payment of the outstanding principal amount of US$728,623,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB5,074,568,000) together with
interest accruing thereon, which constituted an event of default, as
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 6 March 2023.

AnnuclI:l;g-eio:rfiﬁjﬁ;z 2 6 —‘
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

2023 Notes V

On 29 March 2022, with the completion of exchange offer and
consent solicitation, the Company issued the 2023 Notes V at a
coupon rate of 8% due in March 2023 with an aggregate principal
amount of RMB1,589,980,000, in exchange of 2022 Notes V and
2022 Notes VI. At any time and from time to time prior to 6 March
2023, the Company may redeem the 2023 Notes V at a pre-
determined redemption price. The details of the redemption price are
disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company failed to pay interest in the
amount of RMB63,599,000 before expiry of grace period for the
2023 Notes V, which constituted an event of default.

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the Company failed to make the
payment of the outstanding principal amounted of
RMB1,589,980,000 together with interest accruing thereon, which
constituted an event of default, as disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 6 March 2023.

2022 Notes 111

On 3 October 2019, the Company issued the 2022 Notes III at a
coupon rate of 8.7% due within 2022 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$300,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$293,962,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 3 August 2022, the Company might redeem the 2022 Notes
III at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the
redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

By the end of 21 March 2022, the Group has made repurchase of
2022 Notes III in the principal amount of US$7,000,000. On 29
March 2022, the Company completed the exchange offer and consent
solicitation for 2022 Notes III, which extended the maturity date
and waived any potential defaults, resulting in an aggregate principal
amount of US$270,223,000 of 2022 Notes III being cancelled and
exchanged to 2023 Notes IV, and the remaining outstanding
principal amount of the 2022 Notes III was US$22,777,000. On 3
August 2022, the Company failed to make the payment of the
remaining outstanding principal amount of US$22,777,000 together
with interest accruing thereon, which constituted an event of default.
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

2022 Notes IV

On 15 April 2021, the Company issued the 2022 Notes IV at a
coupon rate of 5.98% due within 2021 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$220,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$218,468,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 13 April 2022, the Company might redeem the 2022 Notes
IV at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the
redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

On 29 March 2022, the Company completed the exchange offer and
consent solicitation for 2022 Notes IV, which extended the maturity
date and waived any potential defaults, resulting in an aggregate
principal amount of US$196,639,000 of 2022 Notes IV being
cancelled and exchanged to 2023 Notes IV, and the remaining
outstanding principal amount of the 2022 Notes IV was
US$23,361,000. On 13 April 2022, the Company failed to make the
payment of the remaining outstanding principal amount of
US$23,361,000 together with interest accruing thereon, which
constituted an event of default.

2022 Notes V

On 2 July 2021, the Company issued the 2022 Notes V at a coupon
rate of 7.125% due within 2022 with an aggregate principal amount
of RMB1,300,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
RMB1,292,350,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 30 June 2022, the Company might redeem the 2022 Notes
V at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the
redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

On 29 March 2022, the Company completed the exchange offer and
consent solicitation for 2022 Notes V, which extended the maturity
date and waived any potential defaults, resulting in an aggregate
principal amount of RMB1,291,859,000 of 2022 Notes V being
cancelled and exchanged to 2023 Notes V, and the remaining
outstanding principal amount of the 2022 Notes V was
RMBS,141,000. On 30 June 2022, the Company failed to make the
payment of the remaining outstanding principal amount of
RMBS,141,000 together with interest accruing thereon, which
constituted an event of default.
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30. B EE @ 30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)
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2022 Notes VI

On 2 July 2021, the Company issued the 2022 Notes VI at a coupon
rate of 7.125% due within 2022 with an aggregate principal amount
of RMB300,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
RMB298,717,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 30 June 2022, the Company might redeem the 2022 Notes
VI at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the
redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

On 29 March 2022, the Company completed the exchange offer and
consent solicitation for 2022 Notes VI, which extended the maturity
date no earlier than March 2023 and waived any potential defaults,
resulting in an aggregate principal amount of RMB298,121,000 of
2022 Notes VI being cancelled and exchanged to 2023 Notes V, and
the remaining outstanding principal amount of the 2022 Notes VI
was RMB1,879,000. On 30 June 2022, the Company failed to make
the payment of the remaining outstanding principal amount of
RMB1,879,000 together with interest accruing thereon, which
constituted an event of default.

2022 Notes VII

On 3 September 2021, the Company issued the 2022 Notes VII at a
coupon rate of 6.5% due within 2022 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$250,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$247,595,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 1 September 2022, the Company may redeem the 2022
Notes VII at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the
redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

By the end of 21 March 2022, the Group has made repurchase of
2022 Notes VII in the principal amount of US$13,500,000. On 29
March 2022, the Company completed the exchange offer and consent
solicitation for 2022 Notes VII, which extended the maturity date no
earlier than March 2023 and waived any potential defaults, resulting
in an aggregate principal amount of US$218,761,000 of 2022 Notes
VII being cancelled and exchanged to 2023 Notes IV, and the
remaining outstanding principal amount of the 2022 Notes VII was
US$17,739,000. On 1 September 2022, the Company failed to make
the payment of the remaining outstanding principal amount of
RMB17,739,000 together with interest accruing thereon, which
constituted an event of default.
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

2023 Notes II

On 6 November 2019, the Company issued the 2023 Notes II at a
coupon rate of 9.15% due within 2023 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$300,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$296,629,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 6 May 2023, the Company may redeem the 2023 Notes II at
a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the redemption
price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum. On 29
March 2022, the concurrent consent solicitation has been accepted by
the notes holders to waive any potential defaults in respect of the
2023 Notes II.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company failed to pay interest in the
amount of US$27,450,000 before expiry of grace period for the 2023
Notes II, which constituted an event of default.

2023 Notes 111

On 15 June 2020, the Company issued the 2023 Notes III at a
coupon rate of 8.3% due within 2023 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$200,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$197,594,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 15 September 2023, the Company may redeem the 2023
Notes III at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the
redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.
On 29 March 2022, the concurrent consent solicitation was accepted
by the notes holders to waive any potential defaults in respect of the
2023 Notes III.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company failed to pay interest in the
amount of US$16,600,000 before expiry of grace period for the 2023
Notes III, which constituted an event of default.
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

2024 Notes 1

On 14 January 2020, the Company issued the 2024 Notes I at a
coupon rate of 7.88% due within 2024 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$290,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$286,288,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 14 April 2024, the Company may redeem the 2024 Notes I
at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the redemption
price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum. On 29
March 2022, the concurrent consent solicitation was accepted by the
notes holders to waive any potential defaults in respect of the 2024
Notes I.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company failed to pay interest in the
amount of US$22,838,000 before expiry of grace period for the 2024
Notes I, which constituted an event of default.

2024 Notes 11

On 21 May 2020, the Company issued the 2024 Notes II at a coupon
rate of 8.35% due within 2024 with an aggregate principal amount
of US$200,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$197,345,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 10 March 2024, the Company may redeem the 2024 Notes
II at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the
redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.
On 29 March 2022, the concurrent consent solicitation was accepted
by the notes holders to waive any potential defaults in respect of the
2024 Notes II.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company failed to pay interest in the
amount of US$16,700,000 before expiry of grace period for the 2024
Notes II, which constituted an event of default.



30. BAEEE W

CTEIYEERIO

Mo F T —4ENHA+TH AAH
BEAT A 4 MU 1 340,000,000 TG 1)
TR PO AE PR B R R
7% > M F AR B o AL
ﬂfpﬁ%ﬂﬁ%?ﬂlﬁ%‘”ﬁa% 240,000 3

I (K8 $0 Bk B 8 3 0 K AR 4 DA R B
%ﬁi o A TE AESNHA+H
2 H AT ] BRE (] $“ﬂ7fﬁ%#
FE A T o] B (0] L P AR 2R
I o %Eﬁ%iﬁﬂﬁ%%*ﬁ
R & e S e & R o
JLE > R EECRE A
NEEH > DUER o B — % 0 4 ZE
A B AT A E A -

WoE -+ H=+—H K
Z3 AR BB A AR PR I R
PR 91 i 3 R S A R B 24,140,000 35
JG > HoHE R A A -

TR AR B

MRZEZRFNIHA T+ —H AR
Al B AT A 4 B85 15 350,000,000 3 T
M) & AL R A RS
7.35% » W F TORAEF ) o A
7y TSRS T A5 K IR T HE 345,592,000
20 (K840 BR 60 85 9 30 B 41 4 DL K&
HpZ) - F_HE_HR
H Z B AT A7 B > A< 2\ 7] ] i 76
AT I D ] R AR R
PEI o B ) A 09 FE I O AH BE B
ping > an A e S =
TILH - [ R & ROR B R
BN LBl =R AR
PE1A B AT A] T AR S A o

HwE_F-_ "+ _HA=+—H:>
A SE T 2 5] % A 4 751,000,000 3 JC
H/Jg ? gﬁﬁz—r‘#&l °

WZEF_Z_Ft+ZH=1—H R
NEIRBER E AT EBINE
PR HH T I AT S A AR 25,725,000 95
I6 > HAE R A F A -

iR et

Notes to Financial Statements
R A= —H

31 December 2022

30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

2024 Notes II1

On 10 June 2021, the Company issued the 2024 Notes III at a
coupon rate of 7.1% due within 2024 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$340,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$333,240,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 10 September 2024, the Company may redeem the 2024
Notes III at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the
redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.
On 29 March 2022, the concurrent consent solicitation was accepted
by the notes holders to waive any potential defaults in respect of the
2024 Notes III.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company failed to pay interest in the
amount of US$24,140,000 before expiry of grace period for the 2024
Notes III, which constituted an event of default.

2025 Notes I

On 11 September 2020, the Company issued the 2025 Notes I at a
coupon rate of 7.35% due within 2025 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$350,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$345,592,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 5 February 2025, the Company may redeem the 2025 Notes
I at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the redemption
price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum. On 29
March 2022, the concurrent consent solicitation was accepted by the
notes holders to waive any potential defaults in respect of the 2025
Notes L.

By the end of 31 December 2022, the Group has made repurchase of
2025 Notes I in the principal amount of US$1,000,000.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company failed to pay interest in the
amount of US$25,725,000 before expiry of grace period for the 2025

Notes I, which constituted an event of default.
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30. BRAEE @ 30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)
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2026 Notes 1

On 7 January 2021, the Company issued the 2026 Notes I at a
coupon rate of 6.63% due within 2026 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$400,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$395,850,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 7 January 2026, the Company may redeem the 2026 Notes I
at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the redemption
price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum. On 29
March 2022, the concurrent consent solicitation was accepted by the
notes holders to waive any potential defaults in respect of the 2026
Notes I.

By the end of 31 December 2022, the Group has made repurchase of
2026 Notes I in the principal amount of US$7,000,000.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company failed to pay interest in the
amount of US$26,520,000 before expiry of grace period for the 2026
Notes I, which constituted an event of default.

2026 Notes I1

On 4 February 2021, the Company issued the 2026 Notes II at a
coupon rate of 6.7% due within 2026 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$300,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$296,661,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 4 August 2026, the Company may redeem the 2026 Notes
II at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the
redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.
On 29 March 2022, the concurrent consent solicitation was accepted
by the notes holders to waive any potential defaults in respect of the
2026 Notes I1.

By the end of 31 December 2022, the Group has made repurchase of
2026 Notes 1I in the principal amount of US$9,000,000.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company failed to pay interest in the
amount of US$20,100,000 before expiry of grace period for the 2026
Notes II, which constituted an event of default.
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30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

2026 Notes 11 (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group failed to repay an aggregate
amount of RMBG6,973,741,000 (2021: nil) for certain interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings and a corporate bond, which
triggered an event of default for certain senior notes amounting to
RMB23,410,386,000, which are presented under current liabilities
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022.

If an event of default has occurred (such as 30-day grace period
lapses) and is continuing, the trustee or holders of at least 25% in
aggregate principal amount of the senior notes then outstanding
may, by written notice to the Company and to the trustee, declare
the principal of, premium, if any, and accrued and unpaid interest on
the relevant senior notes to be immediately due and payable (the

“Acceleration Notice”).

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
the Company has not received any Acceleration Notice as a result of
the non-payment of principals or interest for aforementioned senior

notes.

The 2022 Notes III & IV & V & VI & VII, the 2023 Notes II & I1I&
IV & V, 2024 Notes I & II & III, 2025 Notes I, and 2026 Notes I &

II are guaranteed by certain of the Group’s existing subsidiaries.

The fair values of the early redemption options of the 2022 Notes III
& IV & V & VI & VII, the 2023 Notes II & III & IV & V, 2024
Notes I & II & III, 2025 Notes I, and 2026 Notes I & II were not
significant and therefore were not recognised by the Group on
inception and at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

AnnuclI:l;g-eio:rfiﬁjﬁ;z 2 6 Q
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31. CORPORATE BONDS

e St

It Sy +=A

—H—H R 37 BB itk =+—H

&5 4 Name of bonds 1 January Interest 31 December
2022 Issued expense Payment 2022

ARWFE AREFLZ ARBTFLT AREFLZ AR¥TFIL

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ERBHV Zhenro Bond V 1,058,429 - 64,672 - L1230l
BRI Zhenro Bond VII 1,016,157 - 64,003 863 1,079,297
IEAE % v Zhenro Bond VIII 1,012,194 - 55,140 5,331 1,062,003
IERAFIX Zhenro Bond IX 1,352,070 - 80,163 1,247 1,430,986
4,438,850 - 263,978 7,441 4,695,387

e S

R + A

—H—H C#1T A B 52 ES =+—H

f& 5 & T Name of bonds 1 January Interest 31 December
2021 Issued expense Payment 2021

AREFIT AREFLZ ARETILE AREFT ARETIL

RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ERERI Zhenro Bond III 360,778 - 11,273 372,051 -
EZAE IV Zhenro Bond IV 1,109,680 - 69,080 1,178,760 -
E2AE IV Zhenro Bond V 1,056,841 - 64,588 63,000 1,058,429
&I Zhenro Bond VII 1,016,827 - 56,830 57,500 1,016,157
E&AE S v Zhenro Bond VIII 1,010,878 - 55,816 54,500 1,012,194
EERAFIX Zhenro Bond IX - 1,314,875 37,195 - 1,352,070
4,555,004 1,314,875 294,782 1,725,811 4,438,850

B AR BEOR > A4 1 AR 1Y 2 m R

As at the end of each of the years, the Group’s corporate bonds were

FUWR repayable as follows:
+=ZH=Z=+—H +T-H=1+—H
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AR Tt NR¥TF o
RMB’000 RMB’000
JEN— R B E R E R Repayable within one year or on demand 4,695,387 2,070,623
TR T AEE R Repayable in the second year - 2,368,227
4,695,387 4,438,850

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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CORPORATE BONDS (Continued)
Zhenro Bond V

On 4 November 2019, Zhenro Property Holdings issued a three-year
corporate bond with a principal amount of RMB1,050,000,000
(“Zhenro Bond V). Zhenro Bond V is denominated in RMB and
bears interest at a rate of 6.0% per annum, payable annually in
arrears, beginning on 4 November 2020. After deducting the
issuance costs, the Group received net proceeds of
RMB1,045,275,000 from the issuance. The effective interest rate was
6.17% on an annual basis for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

On 4 November 2022, Zhenro Property Holdings failed to repay the
principal of RMB1,123,101,000 together with interest accruing

thereon, which constituted an event of default.

Zhenro Bond VII & VIII

On 27 July 2020, Zhenro Property Holdings issued a five-year
corporate bond with a principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000
(“Zhenro Bond VII”), which was listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Zhenro Bond VII is denominated in RMB and bears
interest at a rate of 5.75% per annum, payable annually in arrears,
beginning 27 July 2021. After deducting the issuance costs, the
Group received net proceeds of RMB991,437,000 from the issuance.
The effective interest rate was 5.95% on an annual basis for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

According to the terms of Zhenro Bond VII, Zhenro Property
Holdings may at its option adjust the interest rate at the end of the
third year which will be fixed in the remaining period, and the bond
holders may at their option sell the bonds back to Zhenro Property
Holdings at the end of the third year, in whole or in part, at a price
equal to 100% of the principal amount of the bonds plus accrued and
unpaid interest to the option exercise date.

Pursuant to the a series of announcements in 2022, Zhenro Property
Holdings successfully extend repayment of interest to 27 July 2023,
and waived any potential defaults with respect of the Zhenro Bond
VIIL
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31.

CORPORATE BONDS (Continued)
Zhenro Bond VII & VIII (Continued)

On 14 September 2020, Zhenro Property Holdings issued a four-year
corporate bond with a principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000
(“Zhenro Bond VIII”), which was listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Zhenro Bond VIII is denominated in RMB and bears
interest at a rate of 5.45% per annum, payable annually in arrears,
beginning 14 September 2021. After deducting the issuance costs,
the Group received net proceeds of RMB994,369,000 from the
issuance. The effective interest rate was 5.61% on an annual basis for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

According to the terms of Zhenro Bond VII and Zhenro Bond VIII,
Zhenro Property Holdings may at its option adjust the interest rate
at the end of the second year which will be fixed in the remaining
period, and the bond holders may at their option sell the bonds back
to Zhenro Property Holdings at the end of the second year, in whole
or in part, at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the

bonds plus accrued and unpaid interest to the option exercise date.

Pursuant to the a series of announcements in 2022, Zhenro Property
Holdings successfully extend repayment of interest and outstanding
principal to 14 September 2023, and waived any potential defaults
with respect of the Zhenro Bond VIII.
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CORPORATE BONDS (Continued)
Zhenro Bond IX

On 23 July 2021, Zhenro Property Holdings issued a four-year
corporate bond with a principal amount of RMB1,320,000,000
(“Zhenro Bond IX”). Zhenro Bond IX is denominated in RMB and
bears interest at a rate of 6.3% per annum, payable annually in
arrears, beginning 23 July 2022. After deducting the issuance costs,
the Group received net proceeds of RMB1,314,875,000.00 from the
issuance. The effective interest rate was 6.41% for the year ended 31
December 2022.

According to the terms of Zhenro Bond IX, Zhenro Property
Holdings may at its option adjust the interest rate at the end of the
second year which will be fixed in the remaining period, and the
bond holders may at their option sell the bonds back to Zhenro
Property Holdings at the end of the second year, in whole or in part,
at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the bonds plus

accrued and unpaid interest to the option exercise date.

Pursuant to the a series of announcements in 2022, Zhenro Property
Holdings successfully extend repayment of interest to 23 July 2023,
and waived any potential defaults with respect of the Zhenro Bond
IX.

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of the corporate bonds was
RMB1,381,289,000 (2021: RMB4,291,948,000). The fair value is
calculated using the market price of the bonds on those dates. The
fair value measurement of Zhenro Bond VII, Zhenro Bond VIII and
Zhenro Bond IX issued by Zhenro Property Holdings is categorised
within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy as they are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. The fair value measurement of Zhenro
Bond V issued by Zhenro Property Holdings is categorised within

level 2 of fair value hierarchy as it is not listed.
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32. Ik AR 32. SHARE CAPITAL
J% 1y Shares
RO TR
+=ZH=4+—H +_HZ=1—H
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
FL e
Us$ Us$
O AT KRB - Issued and fully paid:
4,367,756,000 B (& ——4F : 4,367,756,000 (2021: 4,367,756,000)
4,367,756,000 %) & B% 1 {H ordinary shares of US$0.00001 each
0.00001 FEJC (& ——4F : H M (2021: US$0.00001 each)
T {E0.00001 35 J7T) (14 385 78 i 43,678 43,678
AN T A A R A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as
follows:
o7
Jit 3 8 H Jit A
Number of Share
shares in issue capital
AR ¥F T
RMB’000
AR T —FE—H—H- At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021
CEFE A=+ —H K and 31 December 2022
Rt A =E+—H 4,367,756,000 282
AE R A N E DB AT AR I A A ) There were no movements in the issued share capital of the Company
(B —4F ) - during the year (2021: Nil).

2 é 4 SRt EEEERAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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33. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for

the year ended 31 December 2022 are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

(a)

(b)

(o)

(d)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par

value of the shares issued and the consideration received.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the issued capital
of the then holding company of the companies now comprising
the Group and the capital contributions from the equity
holders of certain subsidiaries now comprising the Group
before the completion of the Corporate Restructuring and the

Reorganisation.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the difference between the cost of
acquisition and the non-controlling interests acquired in the
case of acquisition of additional non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries, or, the difference between the proceeds from
disposal and the non-controlling interests disposed of in the
case of disposal of partial equity interests in subsidiaries to non-
controlling shareholders without loss of control. Details of the
movements in the capital reserve are set out in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

Statutory surplus reserves

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, the
Group is required to appropriate 10% of its net profits after
tax, as determined under the Chinese Accounting Standards, to
the statutory surplus reserves until the reserve balance reaches
50% of its registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set
out in the relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of
association of the Group, the statutory surplus reserves may be
used either to offset losses, or to be converted to increase share
capital provided that the balance after such conversion is not
less than 25% of the registered capital of the Group. The
reserves cannot be used for purposes other than those for which

they are created and are not distributable as cash dividends.
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34.
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33. RESERVES (Continued)
(e) Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of group entities. The reserve is dealt with in

O EE 2.4 5 W & S BUR accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2.4 to the
i 3 o financial statements.
K 4 & AW R 34. PERPETUAL CAPITAL SECURITIES
4 0 T HE AR Classified as Equity
PN 4 Ik i
Principal  Distribution Total
ANRWTIT AR¥TIL ARWTIL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

W oFE - —F—H—H Balance as at 1 January 2021

Z &k 1,363,107 55,600 1,418,707
KEEARFBHIFAN Profit attributable to holders of

JE A5 45 perpetual capital securities Payment - 122,808 122,808
I K 46 A A Redemption of perpetual capital

securities (12,751) - (12,751)

AF Payment - (127,177) (127,177)
i e Balance as at 31 December 2021

ToAZtT—HZER 1,350,356 51,231 1,401,587
REF A —H Balance as at 1 January 2022

Z &k 1,350,356 51,231 1,401,587
KEEERBEEAR N Profit attributable to holders of

JRE A Tt ] perpetual capital securities - 7,750 7,750
5 3 Payment - (71,423) (71,423)
5 Hf5 T ] oK A A R S Announcement of redemption of

perpetual capital securities (1,350,356) 12,442 (1,337,914)

i —— Balance as at 31 December 2022

+ A=+ HZ %

ERERBERAR
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34. PERPETUAL CAPITAL SECURITIES (Continued)

Classified as Liabilities
+=ZH=+—H
31 December
2022

A BT e
RMB’000

Perpetual Capital Securities 1T 1,311,845

AT JLENRATILH > AR F
B 4T AR 42 8 £ 200,000,000 35 G 1Y 45
P8 K AR R S (K B & AR B S
101) o 40 Bk 34T B AS 45 1Y BT 15 3 IE
1 #4841 55 198,274,000 3 JC © K %E
R SR 1 A E B ]
AT BEEBER -F 2 F—H
T A H Bk DL AR AT AR S B R T
RAT B IR B AT E R - TR B
BITHEE “F - F—H -+
FOH 05 IR R 5 A B % 10.25% 0
& DLR AR R B R o ALEE
S A B gk A AR 75 5 IR A AR B
B o ARy E) R e L A R A R 4
R 415 78 5 19 A B I B 3 TR © BR IR I
HE AN A 2T A KA
R AT IR B AT AT B8 A1 40 IR 4 38 - 5 HI
A B A E IR SR AT AT B S
543 UR A A K NG R R R g
UG R AT B B Bk B At S A Ek
B[]~ 0~ BE A - B [ B AT A
FRAZ W B o A 2% W) R AR 4 O ] A R
ﬁ%%ﬁ R o A\ I 4 AT R
KA T H AT B 4~ SR B kAT
ﬁﬁ@@%o

Mo FE - THE=ZA -+ ILHE B
JYK BB AR T SRR B EOR o AR
FEMESEEEEE T =
EZHANRH BOREN T KER
HEIGE = — % — =4 = > W%
A R TS 2 A AR B DL
G AT 0] VB A A o HR B[] 2 ROK A
SN HMAE - AHE=ZH
UL H W5 5C 3288 0 A B A K AR
NI/ IR S = B &= < 7 N4
Bl —FE ZFE=ZHNH (TEE
H ) 2K 8O8 R - B 45 0 HoR
8 3% R 4 B 10 1029% > N0 B F 1§ ]
H OR 4% 5% B ) 1Y AE AT e 5t e ok
43K -

On 19 June 2019, the Company issued senior perpetual capital
securities (the “Perpetual Capital Securities II”) with the principal
amount of US$200,000,000. Net proceeds after deducting the issue
cost amounted to US$198,274,000 in total. The Perpetual Capital
Securities II have no fixed maturity date and are redeemable on or
after 25 January 2022 at the Company’s option at the principal
amount together with accrued, unpaid or deferred distribution
payments. The distribution rate for the instruments is 10.25% per
annum from the date of issue to 25 January 2022, then increases by 5%
per annum thereafter. No guarantee or pledge was made by the
Group for the Perpetual Capital Securities II. The Company may, at
its sole discretion, elect to defer a distribution pursuant to the terms
of the securities. Unless and until the Company satisfies in full all
outstanding arrears of distribution and any additional distribution
amount, the Company shall not declare or pay any dividends or
distributions, or make payment on, and will procure that no dividend
or other payment is made on or redeem, reduce, cancel, buyback or
acquire for any consideration thereof. Securities may be redeemed at
the option of the Company, in whole but not in part. The Company
has no obligation to deliver cash in respect of the perpetual
instruments, pay interest nor exercise its right of redemption.

On 29 March 2022, the consent solicitation for the Perpetual Capital
Securities IT was completed. The Company postponed the redemption
of the securities to 6 March 2023, extended the first reset date of
distribution rate to March 2023, and made modifications to relevant
indebtedness default event in order to waive any potential defaults.
Pursuant to the Consent Solicitation Memorandum and relevant
terms of the Trust Deed dated 29 March 2022, the Company
announced that all outstanding perpetual capital securities would be
redeemed in full on 6 March 2023 (the “Redemption Date”) at a
redemption price equal to 102% of the outstanding principal amount
thereof, plus any distributions accrued and unpaid to, but excluding,
the Redemption Date.
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34. PERPETUAL CAPITAL SECURITIES (Continued)

35.

In the opinion of directors, before 29 March 2022, the Company was
able to control the delivery of cash or other financial assets to the
holders of the Perpetual Capital Securities II, therefore the Perpetual
Capital Securities II were classified as equity instruments and
presented as a part of equity. However, on 29 March 2022, due to
the distribution of redemption notice in relation to the Perpetual
Capital Securities II, which is mandatory and binding upon given,
the directors believe there would be a payment obligation on the
Redemption Date. Therefore, the Perpetual Capital Securities II are
reclassified as financial liabilities and presented as a part of liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company failed to pay interest in the
amount of US$10,250,000 before the expiry of grace period for
Perpetual Capital Securities II, which constituted an event of default.
At the same date, the Group failed to repay an aggregate amount of
RMB6,973,741,000 for certain interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and a corporate bond, which resulted in an event of

default for Perpetual Capital Securities II.

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the Company failed to repay the
principal and interest thereon for the Perpetual Capital Securities II.
Up to the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements,
the Company has not received any Acceleration Notice as a result of

the non-payment under Perpetual Capital Securities II.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of RMB17,587,000 (2021:
RMB49,723,000), in respect of lease arrangements for office
buildings.
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) BhE W B EAEMN AR (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
% )
R E R
WHER AR
at BT R ok
HA % BEXE  REEAR JEE fF Total
Interest- W% g ARl liabilities
bearing bank A Asset-  Perpetual  ALEEAfR Due to from
andother B Corporate backed capital Lease related financing
borrowings  Senior notes bonds  securities  securities liabilities  companies activities
ARBTE ARWTE AREFE NRETFL ARBETLE ARWTE AR¥FIL AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZEZ—F—H—H Acl January 2021 41,761,295 20,968,070 4,555,004 3,101,851 - 103,104 13,816,828 84,306,152
BEEEMAHAR R Cash flows from
financing activities (3,771,746)  (1,245,906) (410,936) (953,363) - (33,342)  (5,513,568) (11,928,861)
SR 1 Non-cash movements 9,969,980 2,018,000 294,782 284,199 - 45,785 (1,136,166) 11,476,580
REZFEZ—%+ZH  Ac31 December 2021
=+—H 47,959,529 21,740,164 4,438,850 2,432,687 - 115,547 7,167,094 83,853,871
BEES AN AR E Cash flows from
financing activities (16,675,891) (236,226) (7,441) (353,193) - (29,547)  (1,048,948)  (18,351,246)
R | Non-cash movements (400,041) 2,355,605 263,978 158292 1,311,845 (43,877) 11212 3,657,014
MZFEZZFFZH A3l December 2022
Zf—H 30,883,597 23,859,543 4,695,387 2,237,786 1,311,845 42,123 6,129,358 69,159,639
0 MEBEHABRESHEN (¢) Total cash outflow for leases
FARER RN HEBR The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of
EREWT cash flows is as follows:
- S - TE T4
2022 2021
AR¥ T A R¥T o
RMB’000 RMB’000
RE %1 H A Within operating activities (3,631) (6,027)
& TS B A Within financing activities (29,547) (39,369)
(33,178) (45,396)
B FFR
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36. BEAy H K JE ¥ B
Ik 2 & Wi & 2w

A5 W B A ORI JBCRE 4R A9 B
J& 2 F AR O R

HE 48 1Y

=

—EFFE+YZA=+—H

36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling

interests were set out below:

31 December 2022

B Ik 1 IR VA ECE =0y

HE 25+ A 1Y HE £ 1 4E T ¥ iz B 5

B HE T 4 Ll (f 487) /it A B 5h 5 iR
Percentage of (Loss)/profit for Accumulated

equity interest held  the year allocated balances of

by non-controlling  to non-controlling non-controlling

interests interests interests
% AR¥ T AR¥ T
% RMB’000 RMB000
M IE B R Nanjing Zhenggao Real Estate
AR (TR 5 IE = ) Development Co., Led.
(“Nanjing Zhenggao”) 48.98 ] 649,366
[EENRINCE 31 Nanjing Zhengjiang Real
AR AE ((rEEIEL]) Estate Co., Led. (“Nanjing
Zhengjiang”) 49.00 128,087 402,918
RMEEEEAMRAF  Quanzhou Baorong Real
(TSR E ) Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Quanzhou Baorong”) 53.50 149,486 269,966
Rt A=+ —H 31 December 2021
% P Ik B % R IR
e 4 £ A 10 T 22 1 4F I P2 B RE 4
i 43 L i F,/ (1) Zat4h R
Percentage of equity Profit/(loss) for Accumulated

T LR SE R R
AR A (T 22 L)

P R B
ARRAT (TR a %))

M AUIEE R R
AR R (TR R IES])

interest held by  the year allocated to balances of

non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling

Nanjing Taiqi Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd

Nanjing Shansheng Property
Development Co., Ltd

Nanjing Zhengye Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd

interests interests interests

% A RETFIT AR

% RMB’000 RMB’000

(“Nanjing Taigi”) 75.00 201,094 454,929
(“Nanjing Shansheng”) 63.33 116,977 405,413
(“Nanjing Zhengye”) 49.00 (15,780) 1,190,432

2 7 ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information
of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-

company eliminations:

31 December 2022

[P [P SRR LB S
Nanjing Nanjing Quanzhou
Zhenggao Zhengjiang Baorong
AR AR AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
& Revenue -~ 2,279,027 1,390,779
BH < 48 %H Total expenses (1) (1,930,468) (1,006,708)
P 1B B Income tax expense - (87,157) (104,658)
A A g A B A T Profit and total comprehensive
I 2 48 5E income for the year (1) 261,402 279,413
i B & Current assets 1,694,476 966,897 596,918
IE B G = Non-current assets 1,275,000 — 5,329
B A A Current liabilities (1,643,698) (144,615) (97,639)
FE W H) A fE Non-current liabilities - - _
1,325,778 822,282 504,608
KB TE B P S Bl Net cash flows from operating
e activities (1) 11,398 175,216
PG By S Bl Net cash flows from investing
i A activities — _ _
Pl 3 ) JIr B4 Net cash flows used in
Uit 2 A financing activities - (26,081) (219,375)
Ba kBl &5 EY Net decrease in cash and cash
R AR ik ] equivalents (1) (14,683) (44,159)

Annuolﬁiﬁéfiﬁjﬁ 2 7 —‘
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PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)

BRI PRI 36,

31 December 2021

2/

L 28 e o IE 2
Nanjing Nanjing Nanjing
Taiqi Shansheng Zhengye
ANE¥T T AR ¥T T AN B ¥F oo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
I % Revenue 1,110,502 1,470,045 1,698
BH =% 48 %H Total expenses (654,783) (1,223,635) (65,313)
I A8 B B S Income tax expense (187,594) (61,700) 31,411
A A R B & T U %5 Profit and total comprehensive
Fok income for the year 268,125 184,710 (32,204)
LB & Current assets 1,925,278 1,135,356 6,024,297
FEWEEE Non-current assets 241 2,107 82,994
Vi RER Current liabilities (1,313,469) (497,303) (3,464,301)
IE i B A Non-current liabilities (5,478) - (279,700)
606,572 640,160 2,363,290
MG A T Net cash flows from/(used in)
) B Em e EsE operating activities 146,269 (1,375,641) 1,269,915
BEE ) T EBE Net cash flows from investing
Ui B activities - _ _
FC&E TR B (B ) Net cash flows (used in)/from
AR 4B financing activities (306,729) 1,058,930 1,172,674)
e LRE%HEY Net (decrease)/increase in cash
(370 /1 I v 48 and cash equivalents (160,460) (316,711) 97,241
R ESEEARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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37. B E 2

Wo_E - _HF+__H=+—H>
AL 0 AT L = KR &
[y O /A I T = = o
& E R RE A A AR
#2,465,511,000 70 ( & — — 4 A
B % 1,637,713,00000) & N B Z T

37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group disposed of equity interests in
several subsidiaries to certain independent third parties and
companies controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholders for
considerations of RMB2,465,511,000 (2021: RMB1,637,713,000)
and nil (2021: RMB891,000,000) respectively. Subsequent to the
disposals, these entities are no longer subsidiaries of the Group.

(% = — 4 AN K %891,000,000
L) MERK S REHEEAHEA

A5 18 1) Y T 2 W

O H O B R B R AR W (E

The carrying values of the assets and liabilities on the dates of

mr disposal were as follows:
—moE CE A
2022 2021
AR¥Fic AR WHFIC
RMB’000 RMB’000
8 EE T Net assets disposed of:
W4 M 45 EY Cash and cash equivalents 1,372,229 6,386,536
7 P ) B 4 Restricted cash 1,065,993 459,985
2 A A7 3K Pledged deposits 68,828 11,957
B 5 sk T Trade receivables 14,634 3,113
TE A E - HAb E U R IE M H: Prepayments, other receivables and other
i & 7 assets 7,782,026 963,544
Wi [n] B JE Tax recoverable 45,637 589,264
JHE i B B N ) SRE Due from related companies 1,659,487 3,643,173
BA 4% iy 25 Properties under development 9,549,188 9,140,255
FEHERD &R LY Completed properties held for sale 416,165 3,099,307
RNEBERENMEEAANEE  Investments in joint ventures and associates 1,984,775 30,525
N S & Property, plant and equipment 33,099 5,537
Y Intangible assets 3,837 680
gL 7/ Investment properties 842,100 784,900
i SIE JUT 45 B A Deferred tax assets 257,722 248,041
B 5 HE AT 3R TE M ME ) 2 Trade and bills payables (1,016,017) (2,285,256)
Y Contract liabilities (8,691,261) (4,973,905)
A A B OE S ST Orther payables and accruals (4,098,053) (3,359,485)
IE E BT B R Deferred tax liabilities (113,430) (111,003)
JRE A} A TE Tax payables (259,029) (485,859)
wH B SR AT B HoAMh £ 3K Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (4,004,016) (1,908,318)
JREAST IR Bt 2 R K I Due to related companies (1,944,675) (10,077,694)
4,969,239 2,165,297
IF 1 1M 5 Non-controlling interests (2,439,475) (300,414)
2 R R Net assets disposed of 2,529,764 1,864,883
WA S BT HE 25 00 B L B W45 Transferred to interests held and classified as
INE R B EA associates and joint ventures - (211,786)
BB A TS (B 1R) W ts (Losses)/gains on disposal of subsidiaries (64,253) 875,616
$i2 LR 7 SE AT Satisfied by:
B AT B A0 Cash consideration paid 2,449,941 2,528,713
JRE Wi AR AE Consideration receivable 15,570 _
—e——a
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37. th W8 2 W6 o) 37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Comined)
HEEEWNEAR M & KE & An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
SEM WA FEB AT of the disposal is as follows:

S il Sl Sy

2022 2021

AR Tz ARWTF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

e A Bl & RAE Cash consideration paid 2,449,941 2,528,713
HENH 4 RBSEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (1,372,229) (6,386,536)

T ENRERREZ%EY  Net inflow/(outflow) of cash and cash

WA (i) 5% equivalents in respect of the disposal 1,077,712 (3,857,823)

38. AR AR 38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
TR BRI > e A B SR N R At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided
W ai R BB T for in the financial statements were as follows:

o St o S
2022 2021

AR T ARWT T
RMB’000 RMB’000

] ERATAE A BAIZ T A Guarantees given to banks in
LEEYEE XA NS connection with facilities

5 granted to purchasers of the
Group’s properties (1) 40,128,810 34,711,305
] SRAT B Ho A BEMEVE 1 B9 Guarantees given to banks and
AR T B WA R R other institutions in connection
= VB E R with facilities granted to related
companies and third parties 2) 4,464,355 12,981,873

44,593,165 47,693,178

2 7 4 SRt EEEERAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Notes:

(oY)

(2

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by
certain banks to the purchasers of the Group’s completed properties held for
sale. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements, in the case of default
on mortgage payments by the purchasers, the Group is responsible for repaying
the outstanding mortgage principals together with any accrued interest and

penalties owed by the defaulted purchasers to those banks.

Under the above arrangement, the related properties were pledged to the banks
as collateral for the mortgage loans, upon default on mortgage repayments by
these purchasers, the banks are entitled to take over the legal titles and will

realise the pledged properties through open auction.

The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance and registration of property
ownership certificates to the purchasers, which will generally be available
within one to two years after the purchasers take possession of the relevant

properties.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 in respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage
facilities granted to purchasers of the Group’s completed properties held for
sale. The directors of the Company considered that in the case of default on
payments, the net realisable value of the related properties would be sufficient
to repay the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and
penalty, and therefore, no provision has been made in connection with the

guarantees.

The Group provided guarantees to banks and other institutions in connection
with borrowings made to the joint ventures, associates and third parties. The
directors of the Company consider that provision in respect of the guarantees
provided to the joint ventures, associates and third parties is immaterial as of
31 December 2022 and 2021 since the fair value is not significant. Further
details of the related party transactions are included in note 40 to the financial

statements.
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(3)

In addition to the litigations commenced by banks and other financial
institutions against subsidiaries of the Group as disclosed in note 29, there
were outstanding litigations commenced by several constructors against certain
subsidiaries of the Group claiming construction fees. Based on the advice of the
Group’s in-house legal counsel, the directors of the Company have estimated
that the Group will likely be liable to pay the construction fees, which had
been provided and included in “trade and bill payables” as at 31 December
2022 and 2021. In the opinion of the Company’s directors, no further provision
for litigation was required to be made for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

Except as disclosed above, during the year and up to 31 December 2022, the
Group was not involved in any other material litigation, arbitration or
administrative proceedings, claims or disputes. As far as the directors of the
Company was aware, the Group had no other material litigation or claim which
was pending or threatened against the Group. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group was the defendant of certain non-material litigations, and also a party to
certain litigations arising from the ordinary course of business of the Group.
The likely outcome of these contingent liabilities, litigations or other legal
proceedings cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty at present, but the
directors of the Company believes that any possible legal liability which may
be incurred from the aforesaid cases will not have any material impact on the

financial position or results of the Group.
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39. & 39. COMMITMENTS
AREFBPBREBEKBEAU TER The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
R reporting period:
RO e S
2022 2021
AR ¥ T ARWTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EAHEOKENGE S ¥ Contracted, but no provided for:
Wi i Aol Acquisition of land use rights - 1,410,560
BH %% Hh W) 2E Properties under development 21,235,924 32,534,100

21,235,924 33,944,660

BEAL > AR 4R I 1 A SR A A
ORI (fL 4 A 42 S A
5 Sk A R IfE 1 R I8 3 B > a% R

In addition, the Group had the following commitments provided to
joint ventures (including the Group’s share of commitments made

jointly with other joint venturers), which are not included in the

WA Bl R 7 above:

—®oT4E B
2022 2021
A R¥ T A R For
RMB’000 RMB’000

C AT {H W A A Contracted, but no provided for:
EE Capital contributions 1,836,176 1,936,176
1,836,176 1,936,176

Annuolzliiti:zfgﬁ 2 7 7



iR et

Notes to Financial Statements
SR AS—H

31 December 2022

40. B Wk 05 22 5
@ HEXBEBT RS

R EE VS k- NCIE- T

i 3 A A 2 S S FL Y
LT

MTABESEREEAFMN
K

fEah T &80 RES N
GIEOE-% N

R i 4 2 B e R i 119 2 )
& (B ) 3 A L A L A
aft Fie B (Wi )

T 4 T T B AR A i B 2 R 22
WA (B RE)

Ty A B A 3 R s m R
B PRk Al B (RS RE)

A 2 T R AR
e A (K E)

WIRE : 3% %5 22 5 T9 M 4% 2 B 25 O

W o Mo &
’MT°

2 7 8 SRt EEEERAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Significant related party transactions

Advances from joint ventures and

associates

Repayment of advances from joint

ventures and associates

Advances to joint ventures and associates

Repayment of advances to joint ventures

and associates

Property management and management
consulting services from companies
controlled by the ultimate controlling

shareholders (note)

Rental income to companies controlled by
the ultimate controlling shareholders

(note)

Management consulting services to joint

ventures and associates (note)

Interest income from joint ventures and

associates (note)

Note: These transactions were carried out in accordance with the terms and

conditions mutually agreed by the parties involved.

EROE
2022

AR T
RMB’000

7,017,127

8,066,075

10,063,608

10,004,622

140,436

78,549

52,839

—AF
2021

YN
RMB’000

4,311,021

9,824,589

12,152,730

5,902,074

278,454

42,456

82,536

76,741
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(ii1)

(iv)

WZE AT A
=1 — H &4EH®
Gl ¥ K BE A A
Mgz AR
4,464,355,000 G 1 & T
SRAT B Ho A B BAE B 5
RO FZ—F: AR
5,642,873,000 %) ©

e S ey iy = =
T—H . RELEHLD M IE
BAHEEGTESEA
HmREE)ERARY
Fu(ZF - —F: AR
#% 10,000,000 7C ) » % I
G I R TE R OR
) B8 R R B o

R AT A
=T Ho RAERA
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NI NS D2 (N
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31 December 2022

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Other transactions with related parties

)

(i1)

(ii1)

(iv)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group guaranteed certain
bank and other loans made to joint ventures and
associates of up to RMB4,464,355,000 (2021:
RMB5,642,873,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has donated up to
nil (2021: RMB10,000,000) to IEZ4EA %546
(“Zhenro Foundation”), the director of which is a close
family member of the Controlling Shareholders.

As at 31 December 2022, the companies controlled by
the controlling shareholder of the ultimate holding
company have guaranteed certain of the Group’s bank
loans amounting to RMB165,000,000 (2021:
RMB258,000,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has disposed of its
total 99% equity interest in Zhenro Commercial
Management to companies controlled by the ultimate
controlling shareholders for a consideration of
RMB891,000,000.
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40. Bl Wk 5 22 5y ()

(o)

280

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Bl B8 W5k 7 W R £ &5 Bk (c) Outstanding balances with related parties
o Sy —m A
+ZH=+—H +ZA=+—H
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
ANRWTF o AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JRE Wt 13 W 2> W) K IE - Due from related companies:
FEH S - Non-trade-related:
BB AR R s A Joint ventures and associates 13,308,956 13,233,656
R Impairment (1,779,973) -
25t Grand total 11,528,983 13,233,656
JEE A5k IR Wi 2 ) ok O Due to related companies:
B 5 M - Trade-related:
e AL R P B9 /A F] Companies controlled by the ultimate
controlling shareholders 205,188 241,916
FEH 5B Non-trade-related:
ER e DQ L/ Joint ventures and associates 5,924,170 6,925,178
e Grand total 6,129,358 7,167,094

JRE Wi ] e 2 D i R (L VE A

The movements in provision for impairment of due from

MEEERNT : related companies are as follows:
“EIE T T4
2022 2021
AR #F oL A BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
= — H IR Carrying amount at 1 January - -
Ol BB W (B B 1R (Fff 5 6) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 1,779,973 -
B H=Z+T—HmMRMH(E Carrying amount at 31 December 1,779,973 -

A AR 8 TE 0 15 B 1R
=X 3 RE U BE B O 9 R E E AT
W RE Y > 5% S R TH ZH R
B R BB R e RIS o BE i
T EFEAL - G B
F 4 B 7 AR R B OB BT
DL B 5 A 4 i RE DL SR 5
AR A AL e i T T
F+HA=+—H> Bl
W7 SCJE B W E B N R
1,779,973,0007C ( — & —. — 4F
T-H=+—H: %) -

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
on the amounts due from related parties, which are subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. As at 31 December 2022, the
impairment of the amounts due from related parties was
RMB1,779,973,000 (31 December 2021: Nil).
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40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(¢) Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)

Except for the amounts due to joint ventures and associates of
RMB48,092,000 (2021: RMB973,919,000) which are interest-
bearing at a rate of 5.95%, other balances are unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the

i T Group
—®TE T E
2022 2021
AR F L AR ¥Fox
RMB’000 RMB’000
w5 R B AR A Short term employee benefits 24,117 28,523
BFL e H R AL & F]  Pension scheme contributions and social
welfare 928 709
I T EEEHANENFHM  Total compensation paid to key
AR management personnel 25,045 29,232

ORI e A — A R R
S5 i R B RS

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8

to the financial statements.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 December 2022

& i’ & Financial assets
&N TG A
S5 23 0 4 L
iz B 8 AR Financial assets
B 1 5z at fair value
Financial assets through profit At
at amortised cost or loss Total
AR T AR¥T ARWET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HATHFFABREM A EE Financial assets at fair value through
£ (P 5k 20) profit o loss (note 20) - 282,473 282,473
B 5 BEH R Trade receivables (note 23)

(3£ 23) 747,858 - 747,858

AT AT F0E - HAG IR Financial assets included in

R HMEENSMERE  prepayments,other receivables and

(Fff 3t 24) other assets (note 24) 18,807,371 - 18,807,371
JRE Wi ]t ) O Due from related companies (note 40)

(Ff &k 40) 11,528,983 - 11,528,983
ZIRHHEE (M E2s) Restricted cash (note 29) 5,892,753 - 5,892,753
SR A7 K (B 3E25) Pledged deposits (note 25) 86,851 - 86,851
B RB &% EY Cash and cash equivalents

(6t 5% 25) (note 25) 3,270,111 - 3,270,111
40,333,927 282,473 40,616,400
et = Financial liabilities

i 4 8 B A B
W 17 4 b B AR
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
AR F i
RMB’000
LB B (B Rk 1s) Lease liabilities (note 15) 42,123
B 5 WE A R T B AN SRR (B 3 26) Trade and bills payables (note 26) 15,604,977

F A H Al R AT RO K T B0 Financial liabilities included in other payables and
B E (B 5E27) accruals (note 27) 10,089,865
S ER AT B At £ =K (B ¥ 29) Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 29) 30,883,597
B S TR (B 5 30) Senior notes (note 30) 23,859,544
oA S (B EEs1) Corporate bonds (note 31) 4,695,387
KA E AT ( Kﬁ 7 34) Perpetual capital securities (note 34) 1,311,845
JRE AR B8 W 2 m) R T (Bt 58 40) Due to related companies (note 40) 6,129,358
92,616,696

ESESEERAR
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SRR AS

(Continued)

31 December 2021

TR AT HA=T—H
31 December 2022

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

& & e Financial assets
BATHERA
A5 A e L E
iz 4 B A Financial assets
BG4 il e at fair value
Financial assets through profit Mgt
at amortised cost or loss Total
AREFT ARYFI AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HATHFFABREM A B E Financial assets at fair value through
7 (Fff&E20) profit or loss (note 20) - 652,254 652,254
B 5 ek FB (B 5k 23) Trade receivables (note 23) 768,412 - 768,412
FEATEA ZOE ~ HA MK Financial assets included in
R HMEENSMERE  prepaymentsother receivables and
(Bt ¥ 24) other assets (note 24) 17,525,040 . 17,525,040
JHE i B 66 7 O (M 5k 40)  Due from related companies (note 40) 13,233,656 - 13,233,656
ZIRHIH % (M3 2s5) Restricted cash (note 29) 16,260,957 - 16,260,957
SR A7 K (B35 25) Pledged deposits (note 25) 8,132,400 - 8,132,400
B4 LA ESEY (Hik25) Cash and cash equivalents (note 25) 14,727,132 - 14,727,132
70,647,597 652,254 71,299,851
&b (g Financial liabilities
i B 61 B AR
H1) Hfe 1) 4 il AR
Financial
liabilities

at amortised cost

AR WFL

RMB’000

HE & MFE (5Es) Lease liabilities (note 15) 115,547

BTy WEAT BRTE S AT SR 45 (B 55 26) Trade and bills payables (note 26) 20,379,909
A LAt M A BOE B RE ST B A 45l Financial liabilities included in other payables and

BE (B 5E27) accruals (note 27) 8,909,729

wh B AR AT B LAt A8 3Kk (B 5 29) Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 29) 47,959,529

1B e 98 (M5 30) Senior notes (note 30) 21,740,164

NEIR Mﬁﬂ‘iﬁ) Corporate bonds (note 31) 4,438,850

JHE A5 B W 2 ] @CIE (B 53 40) Due to related companies (note 40) 7,167,094

110,710,822

S
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42.

284

T H A CFE R A
- 1H & 2%

9 B AT (L 5028 - (AL 45 BB 25 10
B A A S I 4 T LA DR T
(AT 0 -

42.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably

approximate to fair values, are as follows:

R T A AR
Carrying amounts Fair values
TR COCOE R B F 4R
2022 2021 2022 2021
AR¥TFILE ARB¥Fr AR¥ETFILE ARKTIC
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
4 BhE B Financial assets
¥ N PEFF A% B Financial assets at fair
& Rl value through profit or
loss 282,473 652,254 282,473 652,254
& b £ Financial liabilities
ahE R AT R H A 53K Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 30,883,597 47,959,529 30,896,097 47,967,896
NI € Corporate bonds 4,695,387 4,438,850 1,381,289 4,291,948
5 S L Senior notes 23,859,544 21,740,164 1,461,157 14,790,923
KA E AR TS Perpetual capital securities 1,311,845 — 66,414 -
60,750,373 74,138,543 33,804,957 67,050,767

B AL B MR EY)
C A A7 3K 2 BRI BL &~ 5 e
WoE I~ 5 RE A RO B I A R
%~ wF AT BOH At HE WCE R
B FCAb S 7 ) 4 B - RENHCAL
JRE ASF Bk T B E YR W R 4 Al R
LA K% JRE Wit JRE ARF IR Wk 2 ) R E A 28
S (B BELFC R T (A A > T R R
%55 T A 09 ) 301 0] PR s -

A A T Y T P el B AR B A
W ATMESMLAAFHERE
A B SRR Py o o B 4 1)
P B HE e o A A Hol A WA
R 43 B 4 A HL R 04 5 )
D E 1B PR Al 8 B0 T A B
il (L phy B 5 40 A S AU o AR
P ) R AR BE B B O B &
B A A R AT T AT o

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, restricted cash, trade receivables, trade
and bills payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, and amounts due from/to related companies
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term

maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager
reports directly to the chief financial officer. At each reporting date,
the finance department analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation results are discussed with the audit

committee twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.
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31 December 2022

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used

to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance
risk for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31

December 2022 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of senior notes, perpetual capital securities and
corporate bonds, excluding Zhenro Bond V, are based on market
prices. The fair value of Zhenro Bond V has been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and

remaining maturities.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices. The fair value of unlisted fund investments is based on
the market approach by reference to quoted market prices,

maximising the use of observable market data where it is available.

TECCOFER
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42. & THB A FERA
SN

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

YN N T F Fair value hierarchy

TR RAEHSB T ENNF The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
R E A - of the Group’s financial instruments:

BAVFEGENEE: Assets measured at fair value:

MNR_EZ__H+_H=+—H As at 31 December 2022

fEH LT g a8 2 A PR

Fair value measurement using

WHETY  EKRWBIE ERATBEE
i i A\ Big LY €3
(5B—#) (SE=#) (BE=%)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AR¥TE AR¥TT AR¥TELT AR¥TI
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AN FF A48 5 Financial assets at fair value
Y 4 A through profit or loss 417 282,056 - 282,473
W - —4%+_H=+—H As at 31 December 2021
1 LA gt 8 2 AT E
Fair value measurement using
WHTYS  EAWBE HERKAWHE
ZHME WAREE WA
(56— (5% —#k) (%5 =%%)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs HET
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARWTT ARWTT ARWFETT AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
%A PP A2 Financial assets at fair value
FY <5 i A through profit or loss 266,141 386,113 - 652,254

The Group had no financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).

ALEEPH _FZFE+A=F
— o T 45 A O (B R 0
BRI () -

AR RE N > 55— SR BLAE 4% 2 ] During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
lf7 8 2% - R B 2 WA T R
FEBL G A B = A
BRI (R AR ) .

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2021: Nil).

ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

As at 31 December 2022

5 DL T Bovg G R 2 A PR

Fair value measurement using

WS ERWEZE ERAWBEE
Z HifE LN (83 il A\ B
(5B—#) (=) (=)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs At
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AR¥ T AR¥TL AR¥TIT AR¥TE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
A EERAT e Hifth  Interest-bearing bank and
EE other borrowings - 30,896,097 - 30,896,097
N A E 25 Corporate bonds 993,595 387,694 - 1,381,289
5 S L g Senior notes 1,461,157 - - 1,461,157
K GG R w5 Perpetual capital securities 66,414 - - 66,414
2,521,166 31,283,791 - 33,804,957
hoEz - —4FE+HA=+—H As at 31 December 2021
i LA Bg w8 2 AT E
Fair value measurement using
WHETY  EARWBER HERAWHE
ZHME AR A HE
(56— (5% —#k) (% =#k)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs HET
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ANR¥TILT AR¥TLE AR¥ETFLT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
A EERAT e Hifth  Interest-bearing bank and
E other borrowings — 47,967,896 - 47,967,896
NGRS E Corporate bonds 3,255,860 1,036,088 - 4,291,948
1 S TR Senior notes 14,790,923 — - 14,790,923
18,046,783 49,003,984 - 67,050,767
S
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43. W4 w5 B kg A B H R K
B3R

ALEEN TEE e T A EEAHHE
B KOBRAT &5 B~ © 5y MEWCEKIE LA
Je B Gy B FCAb BB A B0 - %%
THRLEEM A EELE - AEH
WA HoA e EE KR WER
SRAT B H A 30 BESE AR - 3k
R AP EFFABRGN SR T
o B W A R RRIH B b RE kR
W o M T A=A MER
T A S B ) L L

A B2 ) B B CORE AR A R 2R B
2o R 2 By~ A JEL B~ A5 T LB
B i B < B o — M o AR AR
P S EL L gy LR IUCDR S W o R
B 1 OR 5 A BB AT AT 5 09 A
A T o S Al R
A5 Jel B PREOR > HEA A -

@ A B

A S ) T B R T N R
JE B = 2 B B 3R T E 29
e 09 A 4 B R AT B A £
A B o AR 4R B A AR A
GoE S - R
A SR AT R SR AT A5
B R -

WoZEZHEF A =Z
H o> i 76 B A A 52 & 4 5F
A 55 B LR SR AT A 3K 0 R
R EFT H19% o B A 4E
A AR AE BE Y R B T T A A
LN #) N R 44,606,000
(= F - —4F: AR ¥
92,413,000 7C) ©

(b) A I R bt

A4 [ T B 2 B BN R B e
% S Ja\ B )y TR AE A B LB
fir 2 T 6E 18 W LA Sk 2 B W
28 Gy A o Besh > A
T B A€ 9 4 & A B T
SR B E B o
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

43.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly include cash and
bank balances, trade receivables, and trade and other payables, which
arise directly from its operations. The Group has other financial assets
and liabilities such as interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
senior notes, corporate notes, financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss, amounts with related companies and other
receivables. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to

raise finance for the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk
management. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are

summarised below.

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to risk for changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank and other
borrowings as set out in note 29 to the financial statements.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to
hedge interest rate risk. The Group manages its interest cost

using variable rate bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2022, if the interest rate of bank
borrowings had increased/decreased by 1% and all other
variables held constant, the profit before tax for the year of the
Group would have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB44,606,000 (2021: RMB92,413,000).

(b) Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from transactions by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. In addition, the Group
has currency exposures from its financial assets and senior
notes.
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43, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continned)

(b) A B L B (%) (b) Foreign currency risk (Continued)
TR B R R R W CRAE B A The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
BENVIINE - SO N -l TR the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the US$
o B E T KA R EETE R and RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,
& P ] BB S B A S [ BR of the Group’s profit before tax (arising from US$ and RMB
B AT s A 04 52 28 (2 5 LA E T denominated financial instruments) and the Group’s equity (due
M ANBRWFHEN &/ T H) & to changes in the fair value of forward currency contracts)
A B [ HE A A0 R R (ol R 2
B AR A E2E) 25
TR JE 73 #r o
3 70 BE 3 B Bt Tl 2 1
EFCFE) B/ (% 4)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
US$ rate before tax
% VNS e
% RMB’000
- - 2022
i N B 0, 55 ST 1 55 If the RMB weakens against US$ —-5% (934,795)
PN T ST L If the RMB strengthens against US$ +5% 934,795
- a3 2021 X
(PN S L ¥ If the RMB weakens against US$ -5% (1,103,782)
PN I i If the RMB strengthens against US$ +5% 1,103,782
(© & HJEBE () Credit risk

A S LR R T L A R ]
SFEZHEEIETHEE AR
M 2 B BT AR DA R
WMETHEZFEFHERR
BHFELIET o BAh > HEUCERIA
A5 R FF A 2 B AR 4R
TR 3 MR 2 JE B Ol AN K
WA IR A B A L T BE
Watzzxgims > R&MHE
B BER EE A A o s A
E N E RS U

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. For transactions that are not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group
does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of the
Head of Credit Control.
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43. W4 w5 B kg A B H R K

(#)
(c) f& M REBE 4)

B KB B e A 5 i o S B
TEREINR T A=+—H
e M A 45 1 0 £ A O3 3 4y
Y fE BB R Koo R B
(% 3 2R da ) 8 R} (B IF
A Al R A JH AN B
JEAS 8BS ) R ) A R
AR R o
<l Y MR T AR -

R-FZZFEFT+ZA=T
—H

E 5 e IE
P ATEAT CE ~ HAth Financial assets
TH K&

># =

JRE Wi HoAth included in
R éz‘ e prepayments,

—EW other receivables

Trade receivables

43, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continned)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 December. The amounts

presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2022

1248 A
f S5 18
12-month 2 mE MG EEE
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
BRSO OB HME  BERER 8 5 & At
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total

ARETE ARBTT ARWTT ARBETT ARWTL
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

- - - 747,858 747,858

and other assets —

Normal 18,807,371 - - - 18,807,371
JE U B B /N 7) 33 Due from related
companies 13,308,956 13,308,956
Z BR i B 4 Restricted cash 5,892,753 - - - 5,892,753
B &1 7 5K Pledged deposits 86,851 - - - 86,851
e KB &% EY  Cashand cash
equivalents 3,270,111 - - - 3,270,111
41,366,042 - — 747,858 42,113,900

2 Q ERERBERAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c) % FH EL Fﬁ (%) (c) Credit risk (Continued)
Wz —H+_H=+ As at 31 December 2021
—H
1218 F 7839
5 R ER
12-month 2 MEME SRS
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
B BRSO B EME 8 2 st
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
B 5y I X E Trade receivables - - - 768,412 768,412
A FE {5 I8 ~ HAth Financial assets
JRE Wi R E B He A included in
%F%%ﬁﬁ? prepayments,
—IE% other receivables
and other assets-
Normal 17,525,040 - - — 17,525,040
ME W BB A 7l 3K H  Due from related
companies 13,233,656 - - — 13,233,656
2 R R 4 Restricted cash 16,260,957 - - - 16,260,957
[EEGELIREE Y Pledged deposits 8,132,400 - - — 8,132,400
We M 4% EY Cashand cash
equivalents 14,727,132 - - — 14,727,132
69,879,185 - - 768,412 70,647,597
* 74 H AR TE G S 1R * For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified

L (E R 5 iR
B Dy I WO AR T A A S i R

B 5E 23 3% 7% -

RN

A4 B o

ok

fiff 5t AT A 3KOH

A

g T T B HG At Y
R Sl AR ) LSl e R
BN W25 R E I fE

JE B B B 6 e R
1

A% N ]
Ao % &g E 2

HEERGEB BT ] -

approach for impairment, information based on the ECLs is disclosed in
note 23 to the financial statements. There is no significant concentration

of credit risk.

*k The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other

receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are
not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial

assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
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43. A% B PR A5 P H B & 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(%5) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continned)
) WiBE &k (d) Liquidity risk
PN R s R R The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
BOARAT R H A S HE A continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
&~ NElESF - ERZEED & interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, lease liabilities,
YRS ST R RS R T 15 S TE AE 4 corporate bonds, senior notes and proceeds from asset-backed
Pl AR A B T M 2 T securities. Cash flows are being closely monitored on an
Al o A A )RR A U B P ongoing basis.
Ba i e
7 £ 3 N s B OR He A A ok The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
B N W= N O = R - Qi) end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
BT - undiscounted payments, is as follows:
BER AN 3FE12EA KV o st
Less than 3 to Over
On demand 3 months 12 months 1 year Total
AR#EFT ANR#EFLT ANREFLT AREFT AR¥EFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ZE "W+ _-H 31 December 2022
=+—H
FHE R AT I Ho At Interest-bearing bank
= and other
borrowings 16,467,510 3,974,548 7,304,422 5,504,226 33,250,706
NGIE-E: Corporate bonds 1,113,000 - 3,697,481 — 4,810,481
xR Senior notes 633,470 26,388,276 - - 27,021,746
KB AR S5 Perpetual capital
securities - 1,416,716 - - 1,416,716
HE A K Lease liabilities - 7,572 37,727 14,343 59,642
Z 5 BEAS 3K I Trade and bills
=% 1 payables 15,604,977 - - - 15,604,977
F A HAth 4 BUIE Financial liabilities
H 4 il & included in other
payables 0,720,392 795,558 1,222,204 943277 12,681,431
JREAF B ¥ 22 W) Z I Due to related
companies 48,334 6,081,266 - - 6,129,600
43,587,683 38,663,936 12,261,834 6,461,846 100,975,299
ESESEERAR
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Lease liabilities
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A HAth E £} 38 Financial liabilities
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included in other
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows: (Continued)

ISR 3AMA 3E12f A 1AL E At
Less than 3 to Over
On demand 3 months 12 months 1 year Total

ARWETIE ARWETIL ARWTIT ARETLE ARWTIE
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000

— 5,961,160 22,671,414 25,439,621 54,072,195
- - 2/417,160 2,741,981 5,159,141
- 605,741 7,519,526 17,567,884 25,693,151
- 10,798 39,113 71,707 121,618

20,379,909 - - 20,379,909

6,477,042 261,531 1,394,898 928,634 9,062,105

6,848,309 322,267 - - 7,170,576

33,705,260 7,161,497 34,042,111 46,749,827 121,658,695

A OB R AR E R R )
B w2 B EE2.1 -

Please refer to Note 2.1 for analysis of going concern basis of

preparation.
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43, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continned)

(e)

Interest rate benchmark reform

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had certain interest-
bearing bank borrowings denominated in United States dollars.
The interest rates of these instruments are based on the LIBOR
with a tenor of six months or twelve months, which will cease
to be published after 30 June 2023. Replacement of the
benchmark rates of these instruments from LIBOR to an RFR
has yet to commence but it is expected that there will be
renegotiations of terms in the future. During the transition, the

Group is exposed to the following risks:

° Parties to the contract may not reach agreement in a
timely manner as any changes to the contractual terms
require the agreement of all parties to the contract

o Additional time may be needed for the parties to the
contract to reach agreement as they may renegotiate
terms which are not part of the interest rate benchmark
reform (e.g., changing the credit spread of the bank
borrowings due to changes in credit risk of the Group)

o The existing fallback clause included in the instruments
may not be adequate to facilitate a transition to a suitable
RFR

The Group will continue to monitor the development of the

reform and take proactive measures for a smooth transition.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Interest rate benchmark reform (Continued)

The information about financial instruments based on an
interbank offered rate that has yet to transition to an alternative

benchmark rate is as follows:

AT A A A R— R A
Non-derivative
financial liabilities-

carrying value

—®o g B
2022 2021
AR T AR ¥ T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
71 B 847 5 3 — % JLLIBOR Interest-bearing bank borrowings — United
States dollar LIBOR 1,226,203 1,457,355
H BEBAEH (f) Capital management

AL E A B AR
oy PR B A A ) R A AR 0 A
Frfafm E A LR
LA 32 4 36 s Sl i R (.
e RAL -

A 4 g AR 9 AR IR DL Y A
b BE R o8 B L E A JE A
oy HE B BT R B AR ZE R R
45 [ o8 R A TR Y Ak
B B R AR (] i B AT R
Jie AR o B o

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its

business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to

shareholders or issue new shares.
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43, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continned)

(f) Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net

debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group

includes, within net debt, trade and bills payables, other

payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings, corporate bonds, senior notes, perpetual capital

securities, lease liabilities modified in 2022 and amounts due

to related companies, less cash and cash equivalents. Capital

includes equity attributable to the owners of the parent. The

gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as

follows:

BREAMBEWT :

[ Sty S Sy d

+=ZH=+—H8 +=-H=+—H

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

AR T AR MWT T

RMB’000 RMB’000

& G ME AT 2 A M e A g Trade and bills payables 15,604,977 20,379,909
H At A 2 TE K E R Other payables and accruals 10,089,865 8,909,729

AR ERAT B HA 3K Interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings 30,883,597 47,959,529

N FE & Corporate bonds 4,695,387 4,438,850
e B Senior notes 23,859,544 21,740,164
K E A IR Perpetual capital securities 1,311,845 -
HE A K Lease liabilities 42,123 115,547
JE AT B W6t ) BRI Due to related companies 6,129,358 7,167,094
o e M ESSEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (3,270,111) (14,727,132)
& BS 15 48 Net debt 89,346,585 95,983,690

BEON T BEA N REAL RE 25 Equity attributable to owners of

the parent 4,758,934 19,354,196

EOR N AR RS Capital and net debt 94,105,519 115,337,886
EREAER Gearing ratio 95% 83%
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31 December 2022

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 20 January 2023, the board of directors (“the Board”) of the
Company announced that, Mr. Huang Xianzhi has resigned as the
chairman of the Board, an executive director, the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company, a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company and an authorised
representative of the Company. In addition, Mr. Liu Weiliang, an
executive director, has been re-designated from the vice chairman of
the board to the chairman, and has been appointed as the chairman of
the nomination committee, a member of the remuneration committee
and an authorised representative of the Company. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 20 January 2023.

On 6 March 2023, the Company announced that the Group did not
expect to repay the outstanding principal amounts of
US$200,000,000 for the Perpetual Capital Securities II,
US$728,623,000 for the 2023 Notes IV and RMB1,589,980,000 for
the 2023 Notes V, and the outstanding distributions or interest
thereon. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 6 March 2023.

On 10 March 2023, the Group successfully negotiated with creditors
of asset-backed securities on the extension for repayment of principal
and interest thereon. Repayment of the outstanding amount of
RMB180,787,000 has been extended from 17 March 2023 to 1 June
2023.

TECCOFER
Annual Report 2022

297



SRR EE
Notes to Financial Statements

D

RIS SN

A=t —H

31 December 2022

45, A%

TR R > A B AR 2 ] BB R

o> ] B B IR Dt 2%

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

REERMT at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
RO TR
2022 2021
AR #F oL ANR#T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Ik i B & NON-CURRENT ASSETS
REESERNRE Investments in joint ventures 1 1
LE NS & Property, plant and equipment 8 1,591
KA | S B Total non-current assets 9 1,592
i B & A CURRENT ASSETS
Bl R B4 E Y Cash and cash equivalents 4,649 574,302
TE AT FRIE - HoAth JBE i3I ) H: Prepayments, other receivables and other
fih & & assets 14,939 46,381
JRE Wi B W 2 W) R E Due from related companies 41,811 18,229
JRE i B g 2 ] R E Due from subsidiaries 27,288,884 27,350,843
BT ) E Total current assets 27,350,283 27,989,755
i B £ 1| CURRENT LIABILITIES
w1 B SRAT BOH A £ 5K Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 1,866,971 2,230,178
LAt B ASE Sk TE K T Other payables and accruals 1,882,575 29,281
JREASH B gt 2 ) SC0E Due to related companies 48,092 2,891,634
JRE AT BT g 2 ] Sk E Due to subsidiaries 2,180,520 973,919
e Senior notes 24,126,674 5,733,515
KB AN B Perpetual capital securities 1,311,845 -
s E A Total current liabilities 31,416,677 11,858,527
W ()& R E NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (4,066,394) 16,131,228
A R K L B £ 0 TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES (4,066,385) 16,132,820
Ik i B £ 1% NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
B g Senior notes - 15,355,543
FE B A R AR Total non-current liabilities - 15,355,543
T (A EE Net (liabilities)/assets (4,066,385) 777,277
HE 35 EQUITY
A Share capital 282 282
i A Reserves (4,066,667) (638,749)
K 4B AR R I Perpetual capital securities - 1,415,744
Y s Ak HE 25 AR RE Deficiency in assets/total equity (4,066,385) 777,277
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

B 5 Note:
AAFRER M Z T A summary of the Company’s equity is as follows:
MESL By KRB EA
A BprdiE RGN ok 5 w5 st
Exchange Perpetual
Share Share Retained fluctuation capital
capital premium profits reserve securities Total
ANRWFIL ARWFIL AREFL ARBTFIT ARWFIL ARWFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
W E T Balance at 1 January
F—H—H 2021 282 4,247,739 (1,954,815) 68,217 1,418,707 3,780,130
SERN 2T (E1E)  Total comprehensive
U 5 A A (loss)/income for the
year - - (2,480,993) - 129,806 (2,351,187)
T K 4 A TR IR Dividends to the holder
FeAr NIRAT BB of perpetual capital
securities - - - - (132,769) (132,769)
[iE 5, ke h faf £ Exchange fluctuation
reserve - - - 32,364 - 32,364
J L B 4y IR Dividends and
distributions - (551,261) - - - (551,261)
e e S Balance at 31 December
+-H=+—H 2021 and 1 January
) Qe 2022
— A — H W& 6% 282 3,696,478 (4,435,808) 100,581 1,415,744 777,277
ENETH (EHH), Total comprehensive
Wi g A (loss)/income for the
year - - (3,057,054) - 7,750 (3,049,304)
If) 7K 48 AR 7 Dividends to the holder
B NIR AT BB of perpetual capital
securities - - - - (72,140) (72,140)
5 M5 B R] K 4B AR Announcement of
w5 redemption of
perpetual capital
securities - - - - (1,351,354) (1,351,354)
[iEE 52, 30 38 1ot fh Exchange fluctuation
reserve - - - (370,864) - (370,864)
Jie B K 4y IR Dividends and
distributions - - - — _ _
/e Balance at 31 December
+TZHA=+—H 2022
H 45 ik 282 3,696,478 (7,492,862) (270,283) - (4,066,385)

46. Ik vk B B e R

FHEGN F ZFEZA =
FI A 7SI 52 HEE ) 3 A U 5 o

46. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 31 March 2023.
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Five Years’ Financial Summary

BE+_H=Z+—HIL%EE
Year ended 31 December

R ZFF ZFRDZRE SR ZF AR

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

ANR¥EFE ARWTFILT ARWTLT AR¥TL ARKTIL

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

I 28 Revenue 25,895,478 36,992,368 36,126,089 32,557,660 26,453,106

R (k18) /% F (Loss)/Profit for the year (14,617,223) 1,195,513 3,558,934 3,093,984 2,232,537
IS Y/NIEIE: ZWN (Loss)/Profit for the year
REAGAE N (B518) / actributable to owners

s F of the parent (12,877,046) 809,005 2,650,744 2,506,405 2,120,734

R+=ZH=+—H
As at 31 December

TR TR CERTRE CE-NE CE - NE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

ARBFL ARETFTIT AR¥BTL ARBFTT ARETI

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

R EE Non-current assets 20,954,039 27,030,605 22,145,787 17,701,352 14,754,924

TEEE Current assets 173,512,253 226,811,001 199,239,714 151,517,858 126,643,583

% e A Total assets 194,466,292 253,841,606 221,385,501 169,219,210 141,398,507

EI R B=R Non-current liabilities 6,634,440 41,365,530 51,523,998 41,713,271 26,637,657

TiE A Current liabilities 170,352,195 171,533,565 132,258,549 96,445,950 90,281,849

A Total liabilities 176,986,635 212,899,095 183,782,547 138,159,221 116,919,506

HE 5 Total equity 17,479,657 40,942,511 37,602,954 31,059,989 24,479,001

NEHEAR N Total equity attributable to
JEE i HE 4 4 AH owners of the parent 4,758,934 19,354,196 19,576,267 16,396,527 13,528,968
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